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784 495 301 26 83
1,101 172 62 5 1
1,885 667 363 31 84

2014 12 31

2
8,586 1,509 673 249 152
15,099 3,394 1,098 544 333
23,685 4,903 1,771 793 485
1,062 586 342 23 26
1,211 146 43 8 2
2,273 732 385 31 28

EBA

2015
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ACC
2015 40
2016
RMC
BIS EATE Exposure at
Transfer Event PTE Probability of Transfer Event

LGTE Loss Given Transfer Event
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EDTF 22

EDTF 23
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ooOoooOoo
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
4.4 2.8
1.0 1.1
0.0 0.0
(0.3) ©.7)
5.1 3.2
VaR
VaR
97.5
2015 VaR 2.5
7 4.8
97.5 8.7
VaR 5.1
MRYa—-Fubk-YRY
fiify - @HA1—0O
e esseeesen e ettt ettt st e
&0
B i ereeereeteeereeeeee e eeseasereaeeae e e e s ee et et eeeneeae e er et
Bl e iasasastassatratoeme e ae e et ataas st R R R R mmAn et
L
0 uﬁ_mﬁw%w
I1HIEH.3HI-UEIIﬁHIﬂHITHIEHIBHIIDRIIIH.12HI
VaR 2015 VaR

40

199/569



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)

ooooOoog
0.01
1.4
2.5
2015 12 31
1.2)
0.4
0.1
0.1
.49
200
EDTF 24
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latR

EatR BPV latR
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ooooooo

2015

2015
EatR BPV
EatR EatR
2015
EatR
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

EatR 2.4 0.4

2015 EatR 0.4 2.4

EatR BPV

BPV
0.01

2015 BPV
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latR
latR 12
2015 500 latR
l1atR
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
latR 19 15
2015 2015 12 31 latR 19

2015
2014 12 31

VaR

12 31 200
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Tier

FX

EDTF 18

12
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2015 HQLA
2015 12 31 98 2014 80
LCR 128 144 NSFR 116
115
DNB 23 26
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HOLA
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
61,447 39,933
33,900 36,432
95,347 76,365
1,553 2,231
AA- 128 107
AA- 137 129
1,817 2,466
RMBS AA 252 542
BBB- A+ 308 412
560 955
HQLA 97,724 79,786
RMBS 43,789 43,184
6,312 6,769
3,235 7,122
151,061 136,861
HQLA 62 DNB
HQLA 98 63 HQLA
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HQLA RMBS
151 2014 137
29
HQLA
EDTF 18
5 B HOLA L TAC IR L O] BRSO LA 1 KE
0155 EFRILE (EEMBESES L) 5FEEFREE
NSEEFRE
) ! hp
' N Mt
| =l 0% M LA HEQEI Ruy 7% W A5% 15%
B okEL 240 M LAN2 a MEDEI Fod 1% [ %E 1904
EHUE 1% LA HEDRA vy 1% FILA 6%
EFL 206 T ERAMBS 3% EE 30
Tt 13% B 104
B Tmit 3%
2015

EDTF 21
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31

337.6 326.3

212.4 208.9

117.1 119.9

13.3 13.0

82.1 76.0

51.2 45.7

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.3

51.2 45.5

74.0 71.6

23.5 22.7

8.0 7.9

42.5 41.0

203.1 216.5

53.1 56.2

CD/CP 48.0 51.6
ABCP 5.1 4.6
150.0 160.3

119.4 131.7

RMBS 14.4 16.6
15.5 11.9

0.7 0.2

30 30
2015 22 19

2015
51
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90 91
EDTF 20
iGN BB h L o— BB H L o—
GEER) 201550 RRIE EXR— L — L TR EXrR— Lt — L TR
205 R 2015 EHME
By +H{Ea—0 By +H{Ea—0

Yo

-
A [ IRF:GESS
Ha.-o=o 550 W 138M~15 R EEEEEE888¢8¢8
W OkEL 159 ~ 2vA~3%A
&M 7 I axBA~6xH
L 7o 1 TxA~I2xA
mH K 6o M 12vAM
B +oh 109
2015 12 31
57 - 97 154
1,285 78 482 1,845
488 1,153 3,078 4,719
1,939 839 451 3,229
3,769 2,070 4,108 9,947,
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EIB GIC

2015 12 31 63 1 2014 55

2015
2015 2014

1 EBA

EDTF 19

EBA
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NFRC
NFRC

EDTF 31
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€))
CRO a.i. W.
CFO B.C.
B.J.
R.J.
H.
J.L.
2016 17
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OooooOodd
IFRS
IFRS
(IFRS)
2015
( 38
59 ) 131
2015 12 31
2016 17
2015 193
( 32 12 )
193
2015
134
2016 16 125.91
(IFRS)
2015 18

N.V. 2016
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
* *

6 64,943 8,176,973 43,409 5,465,627
7 31,210 3,929,651 45,962 5,787,075
8 3,472 437,160 4,279 538,769
9 2,196 276,498 4,325 544,561
10 48,113 6,057,908 56,489 7,112,530
11 458,618 57,744,592 461,787 58,143,601
12 37,773 4,755,998 39,770 5,007,441
13 3,672 462,342 3,807 479,339
14 1,493 187,984 2,059 259,249
15 7,765 977,691 7,148 900,005
16 381 47,972 452 56,911
193 24,301 211 26,567

24 2,390 300,925 2,501 314,901
17 7,999 1,007,154 8,560 1,077,790
43 155 19,516 327 41,173
670,373 84,406,664 681,086 85,755,538
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Ogoooood
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
* *

18 19,038 2,397,075 18,066 2,274,690
19 337,593 42,506,335 326,288 41,082,922
20 174,991 22,033,117 189,060 23,804,545
10 55,120 6,941,292 67,560 8,506,480
21 8,050 1,013,576 8,047 1,013,198
22 16,991 2,139,337 19,744 2,485,967
23 993 125,029 794 99,973
230 28,959 255 32,107
24 575 72,398 473 59,555
26 15,503 1,951,983 11,928 1,501,854
629,093 79,209,100 642,215 80,861,291
28 25,706 3,236,642 24,804 3,134,404
29 5,949 749,039 5,931 746,772
30 7,826 985,372 6,349 799,403
13,775 1,734,410 12,280 1,546,175
30 176 22,160 181 22,790
1 i 30 1,131 142,404 1,043 131,324
1,307 164,564 1,224 154,114
31 492 61,948 473 59,555
41,280 5,197,565 38,871 4,894,248
670,373 84,406,664 681,086 85,755,538
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
* *

32 17,593 2,215,135 18,638 2,346,711

32 8,454 1,064,443 9,520 1,198,663

32 9,139 1,150,691 9,118 1,148,047

33 2,077 261,515 2,075 261,263

33 185 23,293 196 24,678

33 1,802 238,222 1,879 236,585

34 366 46,083 145 18,257

35 603 75,924 219 27,574

12 148 18,635 418 52,630

36 866 109,038 1,110 139,760

13,014 1,638,593 12,889 1,622,854

37 4,786 602,605 5,086 640,378

38 2,916 367,154 2,532 318,804

39 443 55,778 437 55,023

8,145 1,025,537 8,055 1,014,205

14 623 78,442 32 4,029

40 1,033 130,065 2,633 331,521

40 344 43,313 488 61,444

2,869 361,236 1,681 211,655

42 655 82,471 (161) (20,272)

2,214 278,765 1,842 231,926

880 110,801 620 78,064

387 48,727 385 48,475

809 101,861 705 88,767

TR 63 7,932 74 9,317

31 75 9,443 58 7,303

2,214 278,765 1,842 231,926
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
* *
2,214 278,765 1,842 231,926
28
101 12,717 637 80,205
28
() (126) (34 (4,281)
(56) (7,051) 86 10,828
(124) (15,613) 533 67,110
6 755 13 1,637
44 5,540 237) (29,841)
28
- - @n (3,400)
28 659 82,975 548 68,999
(709) (89,270) (586) (73,783)
31
(10) (1,259) 22 2,770
28
(83) (10,451) (156) (19,642)
28
3 378 (11) (1,385)
18 2,266 ) (1,763)
(152) (19,138) 774 97,454
2,062 259,626 2,616 329,381
738 92,922 1,372 172,749
387 48,727 385 48,475
809 101,861 705 88,767
1 Vi 63 7,932 74 9,317
65 8,184 80 10,073
2,062 259,626 2,616 329,381
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2015 1 1 24,894 3,134,404 12,280 1,546,175 1,224 154,114 473 59,555 38,871 4,804,248
2,061 259,501 - - 78 9,821 75 9,443 2,214 278,765

28
18 2,266 - - - - (10) (1,259) 8 1,007
(131) (16,494) - - - - - - (131) (16,494)
(50) (6,296) - - - - - - (50) (6,296)
- 21 2,644 - - - - - - 21 2,644
1,919 241,621 - - 78 9,821 65 8,184 2,062 259,626
(387) (48,727) - - - - - - (387) (48,727)

i vi

- - - - (63) (7,932) - - (63) (7,932)
(787) (99,091) - - (15) (1,889) - - (802)  (100,980)
30 - - 1,500 188,865 - - - - 1,500 188,865
- - (12) (1,511) - - - - 12) (1,511)
29 - - 18 2,266 - - - - 18 2,266
67 8,436 (11) (1,385) 83 10,451 (46) (5,792) 93 11,710
2015 12 31 25,706 3,236,642 13,775 1,734,410 1,307 164,564 492 61,948 41,280 5,197,565
2014 1 1 23,731 2,987,970 12,852 1,618,195 1,505 189,495 446 56,156 38,534 4,851,816
1,692 213,040 - - 92 11,584 58 7,303 1,842 231,926

28
481 60,563 - - - - 22 2,770 503 63,333
361 45,454 - - - - - - 361 45,454
- @7 (3,400) - - - - - - @70 (3,400)
(38) (4,785) - - - - - - (38) (4,785)
- (25) (3,148) - - - - - - (25) (3,148)
2,444 307,724 - - 92 11,584 80 10,073 2,616 329,381
(385) (48,475) - - - - - - (385) (48,475)

1 vi

- - - - (€O)] (9,317) - - 74) (9,317)
(687) (86,500) - - (18) (2,266) - - (705) (88,767)
% Vi 30 (167) (21,027) (648) (81,590) (443) (55,778) - - (1,258) (158,395)
29 - - 108 13,598 - - - - 108 13,598
(42) (5,288) (32) (4,029) 162 20,397 (53) (6,673) 35 4,407
2014 12 31 24,894 3,134,404 12,280 1,546,175 1,224 154,114 473 59,555 38,871 4,894,248
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12 31
2015 2014

> >

2,869 361,236 1,681 211,655

39 443 55,778 437 55,023

15,16 1,013 127,547 924 116,341

40 1,033 130,065 2,633 331,521

- - 40 5,036

1) (1,385) 17 2,140

34 (366) (46,083) (145) (18,257)

14 623 78,442 32 4,029

35 (603) (75,924) (219) (27,574)

12 (148) (18,635) (418) (52,630)

542 68,243 (256) (32,233)

(150) (18,887) (116) (14,606)

7,18,40 15,734 1,981,068 (1,513) (190,502)

8,35 971 122,259 1,878 236,459

10 8,376 1,054,622 (16,676)  (2,099,675)

9,22 (185) (23,293) 903 113,697

11,40 2,042 257,108 (2,976) (374,708)

75 9,443 %6 12,087

10 (12,431) (1,565,187) 17,288 2,176,732

19 11,305 1,423,413 (6,143) (773,465)

20 (14,069)  (1,771,428) (6,588) (829,495)

21 3 378 91 11,458

(371) (46,713) (338) (42,558)

(847) (106,646) (4,095) (515,601)

) 15,848 1,995,422 (13,463)  (1,695,126)

13 @7 (4,659) (54) (6,799)

44 5,540 54 6,799

- - 591 74,413

15,16 (2,513) (316,412) (2,360) (297,148)

813 102,365 1,609 202,589

12 (6,219) (783,034) 9,863)  (1,241,850)

8,431 1,061,547 19,528 2,458,770

) 519 65,347 9,505 1,196,775

29 (980)  (123,392) (441) (55,526)

998 125,658 549 69,125

1,488 187,354 - -

- - (382) (48,098)

TRl (1,252) (157,639) (1,164) (146,559)

(86) (10,828) (86) (10,828)

30 - - (709) (89,270)

2,966 373,449 3,607 454,157

(3) (378) ©9) (1,133)

) 3,131 394,224 1,365 171,867

) 10,498 2,454,993 (2,593) (326,485)

43,409 5,465,627 43,039 5,419,040

2,036 256,353 2,963 373,071

64,943 8,176,973 43,409 5,465,628

17,693 2,227,726 18,877 2,376,803

8,702 1,095,669 9,739 1,226,237
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2016
2
2.1
1ASB
2011-2013
IFRS
1ASB
13
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oOoOooodn
1ASB
2010-2012
IFRS 2010
2011 1ASB
IFRS IAS 16 24 38
IFRS
2016
IAS 19
2016
1AS
1AS
2016
IAS 16 IAS 38
2014 12 1ASB IAS 16 IAS 38
2016
IFRS 11
2016
2012-2014
2014 25 1ASB
2012-2014
IFRS 1AS

1ASB
2016
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1ASB
IFRS
2014 IASB IAS 39 IFRS
2018
FVOCI FVTPL
IAS 39
FVOCI
12
12 ECL
ECL IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS 12
ECL ECL
IFRS
IFRS
IAS 39

2018
2018
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2016
1ASB
IFRS 14
IFRS 15
IFRS 10 IAS 28
2015 12 31
35
2015 12 31
2014 12 31
64 64
156 -

156 325 637
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4.4.8

4.9

14
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23 47

2.2
2.2.1

Wet op het financieel toezicht

2015 12 31

- N.V.

- N.V.

- N.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.
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2016

2016

2.2.2

20 50

2.3

0TC
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2.5

10

IFRS
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SPE
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SPE
SPE SPE

2.10

90

2.11

2.24

2.12

12 31
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2.13

2.14

2.15
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90

IBNR
IFRS

LIP
LIP

CRD IV
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2.16
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2.17

2.18

40
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2.19

2.20
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Projected unit

credit method

2.23

2.23
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2.24
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2.26
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2.27
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2.29
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3
Tier 1 CET1 Tier 1
CRR IV CRD IV 2010
2014
Tier 1 Tier 1
Tier 1 2014
CRD IV CRR 2015
Tier 1 4.5
2016 2019
CRD IV CRR
CET 1 Tier 1
2015 4.5 6.0 8.0
2016 - 2019
! 2.5 2.5 2.5
7.0 8.5 10.5
2016 - 2019
! 0 -2.5
2016 - 2019
! 3.0 3.0 3.0
1 2016 2019 2.5
2016
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CRR

2015 2014

28 25,482 24,528

(126) (119)

5,949 5,931

23 28

224 365

(5,539) (5.,248)

2,741 3,229

Tier 1 28,754 28,714
1,488 -

6,373 7,283

5 6

(76) (©)]

(1,492) (2.126)

Tier 1 35,052 33,874
15,078 11,738

6 8

(85) -

(596) (481)

49,455 45,139

213,002 211,870

Tier 1 13.5% 13.6%
Tier 1 16.4% 16.0%
23.2% 21.3%

2 14.7% 14.4%

244/569



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)
oOoOooodn

IRB FVPL
CRR
2014 - 2018

IRB
2015 Tier 1 CRR

4.1
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IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 4.3.1
4.3.2
4.3.1
12
2015
2015 12 31 19
2015
12 31 200
2014 12 31
2015

2015
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
19 15
4.3.2
2015 0.4 2.4
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2.4 0.4
4.4

248/569



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)
oOoOooodn

4.4.1

2015 2014 2015 2014
64,943 43,409 0% 0
31,210 45,962 53% 58
48,113 56,489 88% 87

458,618 461,787 76% 77
36,838 38,493 0% 2

639,722 646,140 64% 67
62,285 53,647 18% 18

702,007 699,787 60% 63
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oOoOooodn
4.4.2
49 8.4
2015 23 TIS 2015
28 TIS
10
2015 2014
458,618 461,787
3,353 2,135
20,151 18,295
8,957 11,626
426,157 429,731
313,895 74% 321,429 75
27,563 6% 27,312 6
42,098 10% 40,198 9
12,741 3% 11,273 3
9,400 2% 9,230 2
20,116 5% 19,948 5
344 0% 341 0
426,157 100% 429,731 100
207,867 49% 210,788 49
TIS 120,463 28% 126,904 30
97,827 23% 92,039 21
426,157 100% 429,731 100
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oOoOooodn
TIS
2015 2014
24,042 26,202
14,296 14,091
10,986 11,194
5,103 6,253
7,806 10,752
6,281 6,103
5,214 5,343
5,866 5,968
9,275 9,478
4,499 4,718
3,011 2,364
888 823
1,414 1,340
TIS 21,782 22,275
TIS 120,463 126,904
2015 2014
18,691 17,474
23,769 22,977
14,373 14,031
10,865 9,933
7,951 7,249
3,901 4,276
2,670 3,823
1,711 1,792
2,671 2,285
2,069 1,772
9,156 6,427
97,827 92,039
4.4.3
1SDA
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4.4.4

IAS 32
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IAS 32
2015 12 31

31,883 (673) 31,210 - (17,655) 13,555

108,741 (60,628) 48,113 (36,047) - 12,066

477,897 (19,279) 458,618 - (20,198) 438,420

8,379 (380) 7,999 - - 7,999

626,900 (80,960) 545,940 (36,047)  (37,853) 472,040

21,336 (2.,298) 19,038 - (589) 18,449

350,314 (12,721) 337,593 - (486) 337,107

120,690 (65,561) 55,129 (36,047) - 19,082

8,430 (380) 8,050 - - 8,050

500,770 (80,960) 419,810 (36,047) (1,075) 382,688
2014 12 31

46,690 (728) 45,962 - (28,676) 17,286

124,764 (68,275) 56,489 (43,195) - 13,294

483,072 (21,285) 461,787 - (18,864) 442,923

8,917 (357) 8,560 8,560

663,443 (90,645) 572,798 (43,195)  (47,540) 482,063

20,352 (2.286) 18,066 - (721) 17,345
341,047 (14,759) 326,288 - (2,036) 324,252
140,803 (73,243) 67,560 (43,195) - 24,365

8,404 (357) 8,047 - 8,047

510,606 (90,645) 419,961 (43,195) (2,757) 374,009
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ooooood
4.4.5
4.4.6
PD
21 RO- R20 D1- D4
D1- D4 D1 90 D2
D3
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2015 12 31
25,249 5,909 50 2 31,210
2,417 807 49 8 3,281
- 1,222 18,453 596 910 21,181
- 39,880 167,049 3,579 1,658 212,166
- 652 23,118 1,579 376 25,725
- 4,367 15,784 - - 20,151
- 7,746 149,844 2,742 7,491 167,823
- 3,655 3,786 45 23 7,509
85,188 384,750 8,640 10,468 489,046

2014 12 31
29,564 16,043 175 180 45,962
1,269 777 3 71 2,120
- 1,544 20,185 589 1,193 23,511
- 39,411 173,203 4,327 1,289 218,230
- 1,344 20,424 1,845 224 23,837
- 9,848 8,447 - - 18,295
- 12,966 144,424 3,386 7,284 168,060
- 4,257 2,045 7 130 6,439
100,203 385,548 10,332 10,371 506,454
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30 30 60 61 90 91
2015 12 31
44 6 - - 50
41 5 1 2 49
- 516 38 15 27 596
- 2,766 407 187 219 3,579
- 1,163 245 84 87 1,579
- 1,828 213 138 563 2,742
- 37 8 - - 45
6,395 922 425 898 8,640
2014 12 31
139 - 35 1 175
- 1 1 1 3
- 300 61 28 200 589
- 2,955 549 282 541 4,327
- 1,171 333 116 225 1,845
- 1,883 334 178 991 3,386
- 6 1 - - 7
6,454 1,279 640 1,959 10,332
4.4.7
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oooooog
Special Asset Management
4.4.8
FGH
2015
2015
One
Rabobank FGH
2015 12 31
1.9

2014 2.3
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Oooooodo
2015

2015 12 31
7,729 1,447 588 [©) 105
13,794 3,614 1,040 142 217
21,523 5,061 1,628 134 322

784 495 301 26 83

1,101 172 62 5 1
1,885 667 363 31 84

2014 12 31
8,586 1,509 673 249 152
15,099 3,394 1,098 544 333
23,685 4,903 1,771 793 485
1,062 586 342 23 26
1,211 146 43 8 2
2,273 732 385 31 28

2015
ACC
2015
40 2016
4.5

VaR
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Tier 1
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2015 12 31
2,911 9,465 2,521 3,492 795 19,184
245,973 46,182 12,534 13,290 23,848 341,827
117 32,480 48,941 67,701 40,518 189,757
1,471 3,467 1,088 614 48 6,688
59 615 2,434 4,696 21,088 28,892
- 50 10 2,435 21,524 24,019
250,531 92,259 67,528 92,228 107,821 610,367
10,402 - - - - 10,402
2014 12 31
2,480 8,777 1,270 5,015 666 18,208
238,695 44,500 9,987 15,138 23,079 331,399
229 32,350 59,775 67,318 44,938 204,610
1,543 4,878 712 811 22 7,966
38 684 1,523 5,624 23,553 31,422
- - 3 1,382 15,340 16,725
242,985 91,189 73,270 95,288 107,598 610,330
11,826 - - - - 11,826
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2015 12 31

63,650
4,412
144

8

6
20,180
49
2,335
1,030
91,814

2,911
244,194
117

13
1,363
62
575

249,235
(157,421)

1,284
23,130
397
307
3,071
51,235
2,385
3,910
85,719

9,459
46,108
32,390

4,186
4,350
542

48

96,083

(11,364)
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9
1,878
539

33
2,870
37,948
3,344
1,669
48,290

2,492
12,322
48,306

3,392
1,343
2,380

10

70,245

(21,955)

1,300
1,669
848
11,226
89,456
19,636
1,113
125,248

3,415
12,550
60,720

11,795
590
4,464

2,008

95,542
29,706

490

723
1,000
30,940
259,799
12,359
55

270
305,636

761
22,419
33,458

35,743
48
9,543

13,437

115,409
190,227

64,943
31,210
3,472
2,196
48,113
458,618
37,773
2,390
7,992
656,707

19,038
337,593
174,991

55,129
7,694
16,991
575
15,503

627,514
29,193

oOoOooodn
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OooooOodd
2014 12 31
41,992 1,377 40 - - 43,409
14,373 26,814 2,635 1,522 618 45,962
26 839 503 2,214 697 4,279
35 752 128 1,122 2,288 4,325
22 4,375 3,404 12,086 36,602 56,489
30,380 39,257 38,474 83,380 270,296 461,787
4 3,858 3,090 16,369 16,449 39,770
747 - - - 1,754 2,501
744 4,194 1,528 1,539 549 8,554
88,323 81,466 49,802 118,232 329,253 667,076
2,470 8,781 1,263 4,953 599 18,066
235,971 45,062 9,728 14,295 21,232 326,288
229 32,318 59,470 63,839 33,204 189,060
176 4,477 3,830 15,421 43,656 67,560
1,715 4,386 713 791 57 7,662
40 695 1,494 5,611 11,904 19,744
473 - - - - 473
- - 3 1,077 10,848 11,928
241,074 95,719 76,501 105,987 121,500 640,781
(152,751) (14,253) (26,699) 12,245 207,753 26,295
2015 12 31
2015
23 2014 26 2015 12 31 25 2014 23
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99

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

2014

4.5
VaR
DNB
VaR
VaR
3.8 2015
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4.3

VaR

VaR

VaR 10
97.5

VaR

VaR

4.8 VaR 2015 40
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2015 —12 31 4.3 1.2 0.4 0.4 0.1 (1.3) 5.1
2015 — 4.2 1.3 0.2 0.7 0.3 NA 4.8
2015 — 8.0 2.0 0.6 1.0 0.7 NA 8.7
2015 — 2.5 0.7 0.1 0.2 0.2 NA 2.5
2014 —12 31 2.6 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.3 1.2 3.2
2014 — 3.5 1.3 0.2 0.8 0.4 NA 3.8
2014 — 15.6 7.2 0.9 1.1 0.9 NA 22.5
2014 — 2.4 0.6 0.0 0.3 0.3 NA 2.4
VaR
2015 2014
1.2 0.6
0.9 0-3)
0.1 0.2
0.1 0.0
1.9 0.5
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NFRC

EBA

NFRC
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CDS
FVA FVA

Euribor Libor
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2015 2015 2014 2014
64,943 64,943 43,409 43,409
31,210 31,330 45,962 45,996
458,618 466,237 461,787 473,236
19,038 19,077 18,066 18,101
337,593 342,228 326,288 331,049
174,991 178,477 189,060 196,056
15,503 16,558 11,928 13,111
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2015 12 31
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2015 12 31
64,929 9 5 64,943
- 30,411 919 31,330
2,385 961 126 3,472
24 1,187 985 2,196
39 47,309 765 48,113
- 128,662 337,575 466,237
33,068 4,111 594 37,773
- - 486 486
- - 155 155
- 18,209 868 19,077
5,017 80,315 256,896 342,228
1,593 152,351 24,533 178,477
578 53,863 688 55,129
- 16,967 24 16,991
16,457 101 - 16,558
2014 12 31
43,409 - - 43,409
- 45,312 684 45,996
3,059 1,091 129 4,279
318 2,274 1,733 4,325
60 55,306 1,123 56,489
- 120,085 353,151 473,236
36,193 2,586 991 39,770
- - 600 600
- - 327 327
- 17,912 189 18,101
4,492 69,502 257,055 331,049
1,059 166,200 28,797 196,056
1,399 65,079 1,082 67,560
15 19,683 46 19,744
13,082 29 - 13,111
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166 2014 108 50
2014 73
167 2014 101
50 2014 67
430
EBITDA 6.9
2015 2015
11 12 31

129 - - - (23) - 20 126

1,733 180 - 47 (974) @ - 985

1,123 440 - - - (833) 35 765

991 143 (52) 49 (420) (81) (36) 504

676 158 - Vi (370) 19) - 486

1,082 470 - - @ (838) (25) 688

46 2 - - 2) ©) - 24

2015 597
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OoooooO
2014 2014
12 31
175 25 - 5 (70) - (6) 129
1,606 159 - 456 (937) @ 450 1,733
347 102 - 1 - (339) 1,012 1,123
310 87 113 317 (23) - 187 991
567 101 - 184 (176) - - 676
74 73 - - - (73) 1,008 1,082
54 1 - @ - ®) - 46
2015 12 31
1 @ -
168 12 180
95 345 440
28 115 143
160 ) 158
119 351 470
3 @ 2
2014 12 31
24 1 25
145 14 159
102 - 102
87 - 87
101 - 101
69 4 73
1 - 1
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2015 2014
6 27
@ €Y
@ (10)
3 6
4.10
50
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Libor Euribor

2013 10 29 Libor Euribor
2013
O) (i)
USD Libor
GBP Libor JPY Libor Tibor Tibor
Euribor
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2014 Libor

Euribor

Euribor

VEB Fortis N.V. Ageas N.V.
Fortis N.V. VEB
Ageas N.V. 2007
VEB

18

SME

Euribor

2014 2015

2015 12
AFM
AFM
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BSA AML
2015

Kifid

N.A.
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ooOoooOoo
Euribor
2015
BSA AML
RNA 2013 BSA AWML
RNA BSA AML
RNA
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ACC
—DLL—

DLL

BPD

FGH

B.V.
10
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264 2014 218
2015
2015 12 31

5,661 2,270 1,094 348 (234) - 9,139
1,371 513 57 29 16) 62) 1,892
18 653 568 302 662 (220) 1,983
7,050 3,436 1,719 679 412 (282) 13,014
2,134 1,123 601 196 (38) 770 4,786
2,520 1,101 277 124 (20)  (1,086) 2,916
116 107 38 7 47 128 443
4,770 2,331 916 327 @ (188) 8,145
- 612 10 1 - - 623
343 526 85 90 a1 - 1,033
171 139 19 15 - - 344
1,766 @an) 689 246 434 (94) 2,869
445 161 101 65 (183) @4) 655
1,321 (333) 498 181 617 70) 2,214
325,194 488,744 40,091 21,665 117,462  (326,455) 666,701
16 487 32 197 2,940 - 3,672
325,210 489,231 40,123 21,862 120,402  (326,455) 670,373
296,086 476,806 35,411 19,501 111,941  (310,742) 629,093
296,086 476,806 35,411 19,501 111,941  (310,742) 629,093
90 56 2,124 2 237 - 2,509
- 631 10 1 11 - 653
322 131 448 2 2 - 905
281,941 98,798 29,656 15,287 475 - 426,157
2015 1 1 4,836 2,816 378 1,270 48 - 9,348
377 556 120 91 10) - 1,134
(1,440) (478) (167) (218) 0 - (2,307)
190 14) ) 32 0 - 197
2015 12 31 3,963 2,880 322 1,175 32 - 8,372
) 2,615 2,612 151 1,092 32 - 6,502
) 884 30 83 - - - 997
IB\R 464 238 88 83 - - 873
3,963 2,880 322 1,175 32 - 8,372
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2014 12 31
5,783 2.416 1,000 313 (394) - 9,118

1,318 552 30 36 (20) @7 1,879

131 825 548 267 362 (241) 1,892

7,232 3,793 1,578 616 52) @78 12,889

2,302 1,164 535 198 77 810 5,086

2,233 1,166 251 104 @173)  (1,049) 2,532

127 87 48 9 46 120 437

4,662 2,417 834 311 (50) (119) 8,055

- 26 - 6 - - 32

1,422 420 131 656 4 - 2,633

354 67 9 8 50 - 488

794 863 604 (365) (56) (159) 1,681

261 105 168 (102) (552) 1) (161)

533 758 436 (263) 496 (118) 1,842

354,315 494,452 37,226 22,953 106,617  (338,284) 677,279

17 684 22 193 2,801 - 3,807

354,332 495,136 37,248 23,146 109,508  (338,284) 681,086

326,699 482,889 32,957 21,862 101,859  (324,051) 642,215

326,609 482,889 32,957 21,862 101,859  (324,051) 642,215

140 39 1,509 4 59 - 1,751

9 32 1 6 24 - 72

322 676 455 1 - - 1,454

289,881 95,192 27,465 16,711 482 429,731

2014 1 1 4,561 2,672 455 842 51 - 8,581
1,469 448 185 657 3 - 2,762

(1,263) (355) (268) (335) ) - 2,227)

69 51 6 106 - - 232

2014 12 31 4,836 2,816 378 1,270 48 - 9,348
) 3,297 2,424 186 1,141 44 7,002

) 1,014 169 101 - - - 1,284

IB\R 525 223 o1 129 4 - 972
4,836 2,816 378 1,270 48 - 9,348
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2015 12 31
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DLL

DLL

DLL

DLL

DLL

DLL
AcC

DLL

DLL

8,873

172

97

225

52

270
DLL
DLL
DLL

w NN

43
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35,041

612

295

699

165

12

435

18

165

2,100

73

29

101

24

)

20

224

28

27
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DLL
227 666 26 7 -
DLL 11 31 6 2 -
DLL 31 123 7 2 -

DLL
9 24 5 ) -
DLL 2 6 1 - -
DLL 12 55 6 1 -
DLL 16 121 8 3 -
(€] 1 (€] - -
DLL 6 31 2 - -
DLL - 2 - - -

DLL
25 54 10 3 -

DLL

1,461 3,989 (112) 189 -

DLL
97 212 56 14 -
DLL 11 58 5 2 -
108 13 53 2 -

DLL
324 683 156 53 -

DLL
53 304 (51) (15) -
DLL 2 37 ©) - -
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DLL

DLL

DLL

DLL

DLL

DLL
DLL
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31

69

2

179

371

180

13,014

126

199

1,112

353
24

967

311

46,956

28

(15)

168

113

2,869

®

49

32

655
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2014 12 31

DLL

8,995 37,553 185 (595)

DLL
165 597 60 27

DLL
81 301 26 6

DLL
169 677 135 55

DLL
61 167 26 9

DLL
8 11 14 )

DLL

ACC
237 545 (30) -
DLL 4 5 2 1
DLL 1 2 1 -
DLL 3 18 @ -

DLL
61 169 24 8
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DLL
205 694 (10) @ -
DLL 13 28 5 2 -
DLL 29 115 4 - -

DLL
11 24 4 1 -
DLL 4 5 2 - -
DLL 15 55 7 2 -

DLL
BGZ

206 2,795 2 2 -
- 1 - - -
DLL 6 27 2 - -
DLL 1 2 1 - -

DLL
21 33 5 2 -

DLL

1,179 3,901 625 190 -

DLL
93 201 51 12 -

DLL
8 56 1 @) -
99 13 73 2 -

DLL
294 706 71 30 -

DLL
58 332 5 ) -

DLL
3 27 2 - -
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DLL
24 112 10 4 -
DLL
75 184 33 4 -
4 1,487 (11) ®) -
- 2 2 - -
DLL
168 341 81 16 -
DLL 6 26 2 - -
DLL
- 1 - - -
DLL
354 952 139 41 -
DLL
191 307 134 37 -
12,889 52,562 1,681 (161) -
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1,588 1,483
944 109
101 84
230 234
3
7 15
77 43
2,947 1,971
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64,547 43,044
396 365
64,943 43,409
2015 12 3,109 2014 12 2,964
7
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11,220 13,565
17,2711 27,592
2,494 4,471
126 120
31,111 45,748
(16) (26)
31,095 45,722
115 240
31,210 45,962
11 26 51
(10) a4
- an
- 6
12 31 16 26
18
2014 206
8
2015 2014
520 712
19 123
1,073 950
1,637 2,117
223 377
3,472 4,279
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2014 14
2014 34
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2015
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5,078

2015
31
707
2015

2014

39
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IAS 39
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IAS 39
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659 2014
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2,819,875 43,152 41,708
148,307 4,961 12,848
- - 573
2,968,182 48,113 55,129

0TC
395,309 5,028 7,626
5,812 87 56
4,062 39 27
3 - -
405,186 5,154 7,709

0TC
2,236,520 33,238 29,369
0TC 101,210 4,135 4,143
0TC 2,337,730 37,373 33,512
67,932 1 1
2,405,662 37,374 33,513
2,782 1 5
558 1 10
3,340 2 15

0TC
2,793 162 127
1,239 95 47
4,032 257 174
1,655 365 296
2,819,875 43,152 41,708
84,006 2,231 41
47,687 1,787 11,161
15,957 939 1,646
657 4 -
148,307 4,961 12,848
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2,545,638 50,172 48,298
158,464 6,317 17,938
- - 1,324
2,704,102 56,489 67,560

oTC
362,705 5,190 6,842
3,990 81 58
4,912 61 42
371,607 5,332 6,942

0TC
1,993,667 39,016 35,237
113,689 4,897 5,199
0TC 2,107,356 43,913 40,436
49,301 1 4
2,156,657 43,914 40,440
3,988 6 10
1,996 15 49
5,984 21 59

0TC
6,409 446 374
3,122 187 138
9,531 633 512
1,859 272 345
2,545,638 50,172 48,298
92,569 3,950 50
44,400 1,571 14,440
19,698 788 3,448

1,797 8

158,464 6,317 17,938
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227 207
3,064 1,928
22,486 24,983
212,685 218,482
25,923 24,078
20,151 18,295
173,899 175,123
7,773 6,744
466,208 469,840
(8,372) (9,348)
457,836 460,492
782 1,295
458,618 461,787
9,348 8,581
1,134 2,762
(2,307) (2,227)
197 232
8,372 9,348
6,502 7,092
997 1,284
1BNR 873 972
8,372 9,348
17,965 18,567

62 2014 86
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183 174 347 334
714 678 1,188 1,213
897 852 1,535 1,547
2014 26
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43 2014 62
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
3 -
- 1
3 1
16 37
2 121
18 158
2014 148
2014 26
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8,872 8,798
18,775 17,370
1,183 857
28,830 27,025
2,967 3,074
25,863 23,951
8,575 7,838
16,443 15,391
845 722
25,863 23,951
2015 12 31 287 2014
334 1,705 2014 2,166 )
2015 2014
12
2015 2014
1,191 2,297
30,053 31,456
5,594 4,740
935 1,277
37,773 39,770
160 2014 60
2015 2014

148 418

297/569



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)

OooooOodd

2015 2014
39,770 46,552
703 1,106
6,219 9,863
(8,431) (19,528)
(335) 1,836
(153) (59)
37,773 39,770

13
3,672 2014 3,807
48

2015 2014
3,807 3,747
(43) 7
37 54
(44) (54)
352 139
(384) (53)
(53) 75
- (108)
3,672 3,807

2015 12 31
B.V. 20% 29%
N.V. 15% 15%
20
2015 11 SE 15.15

2016
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2,117 1,716
63,605 65,817
14,866 15,227
11,628 10,445
92,216 93,205
60,539 61,559
7,603 7,011
14,494 14,817
82,636 83,387
23,225 26,796
386 16
(250) 288
136 304

2015 2014
260 143
260 143
(1) 30
219 173
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1,454 421 184 2,059
79 1 4 84
4 380 54 438
- (239) 12) (251)
©) 11 7 9
- (116) an (193)
(623) (30) - (653)
905 428 160 1,493
1,571 1,450 646 3,667
(666) (1,022) (486) (2,174)
905 428 160 1,493
2014 12 31
1,381 428 182 1,991
77 1 3 81
7 138 75 220
- ® ©) (15)
21 8 11 40
- 17 (80) 197)
(32) (29) - (61)
1,454 421 184 2,059
1,490 1,356 648 3,494
(36) (935) (464) (1,435)
1,454 421 184 2,059
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623 2014 32 RNA
2015 RNA
RNA
2015 RNA

604
10.9 7.5
18 16
13 14 1.6

2015 12 31 RNA 131 2014

30 2014 29
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1,969 5,179 7,148
14 105 119
109 2,400 2,509
%) (722) (769)
(109) (141) (250)
- (1,002) (1,002)
9 1 10
1,945 5,820 7,765
3,292 9,285 12,577
(1,347) (3,465) (4,812)
1,945 5,820 7,765
2014 12 31
2,101 4,800 6,901
13 108 121
121 1,630 1,751
74) (484) (558)
(11) o (12)
(109) (131) (240)
- (914) (914)
72) 171 99
1,969 5,179 7,148
3,314 8,207 11,521
(1,345) (3,028) (4,373)
1,969 5,179 7,148
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2015 2014
452 1,055
4 609
() (1,051)
1) 10
(25) 13
5 (164)
381 452
2014
774 810
(393) (358)
381 452
RICS
2014 84
2015 2014

100%
0%

303/569

44%
56%



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)
oOoOooodn

2015 2014
2,217 1,535
1,500 1,599
1,320 1,495
2,018 1,971

379 101

25 7 6
558 1,853

7,999 8,560

2015 2014

1,206 1,227
488 426
324 318

2,018 1,971
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2014 16
2015 1 2015
12 31
669 ©) (34) 633
116 5 32 153
60 1) (35) 4
845 18) @D 790
IFRS
2014 1 2014
12 31
850 (101) 16 (96) 669
266 (25) 24 (149) 116
41 - ) 21 60
1,157 (126) 38 (229) 845
2015 2014
686 495
108 205
(276) 127
(30) 147
488 426
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18
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2,040 1,162
16,146 16,136
581 708
271 60
19,038 18,066
19
2015 2014
69,675 56,255
96,363 96,572
162,083 162,857
488 2,025
8,984 8,579
337,593 326,288
23 2014 20
20
2015 2014
38,554 41,824
14,399 13,241
113,415 127,792
8,623 6,203
174,991 189,060
21
2015 2014
5,959 5,411
2,543 2,791
25 356 385
(811) (546)
3 6
8,050 8,047
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367
2014 669
1,041 2014 674

5,973 2014 5,108

2015 2014
12,188 14,629
353 688
4,450 4,427
16,991 19,744

23

2015 2014
354 315
412 267
227 212
993 794
315 396
285 135
(207) @172)
(39) (44)
354 315
267 268
231 68
(80) (44)
®) (25)
412 267
212 386
102 61
(56) (26)
(31) (209)
227 212
993 794
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183 2014 80
2016
16 2014 21
2015 12 31 861 131 1 993
2014 12 31 653 141 - 794
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24
25 2014 25
1,648 2014 1,657
2015 12 31

2015 12 31
55 - 7 9
255 an 122 -
(250) - 42 -
41 ) (10) -
100 - 83 -
1,559 (76) (52) -
14 - (13) -
107) 2 - 2
- 10 - - 16
77 706 64 -
636 (39) (122) -
2,390 575 121 27

2014 12 31
54 1 1 8)
437 13) 203 -
(287) - (168) -
3 11 36 -
183 - 262 -
1,754 (89) (33) -
- 3 (58) -
(112) 8 - (114)
- ) - - 9
61 705 (38) -
415 (153) (349) -
2,501 473 (144) (113)
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25
2015 2014
- Q) (©)
- 356 385
349 379
110 116
239 263
349 379
25.1
67
500
2014 2020 250
IAS 19
2014 12 31
ACC
IFRS
2015
2015
ACC
2015 2014
679 673
569 557
110 116
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2015 2014

11 673 545

9 9

18 21

6 3

(22) an

- 26

- (€Y

8 2

2 39

(15) 46

12 31 679 673

11 557 479

5 7

15 19

7 8

(22) an

@ -

1 )

8 66

12 31 569 557

2016

2015 2014

10.1% 24..2%

45.0% 31.0%

3.6% 4.7%

1.1% 0.6%

40.2% 39.5%

100% 100%
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2015 2014
18 21
(15) 19
6 3
26
1 1
10 32
12 31
2015 2014
2.5% 2.3%
1.6% 1.6%
1.6% 1.6%
25.2
95 2014 106
26
2015 2014
15,479 11,902
24 26
15,503 11,928
2015 225
2025 5.00 475 2025
2020
1,500 2025
4.375 1,250 2045 5.25
2014
2026 2.50 2019
2029 4.625
50.8 2024 12 1.429
2013 3.875 2023
1,000 4.625 2023 1,750

5.75 2043 1,250
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2012 4.125 2022
1,000 5.25 2027 500
3.95 2022 1,500 2010 3.75
2020 1,000 2009 5.875
2019 1,000
27
2015 2014
10,402 11,826
46,903 36,429
4,980 5,392
62,285 53,647
678
2014 587

4.10
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2015 2014
103 76
308 237
185 166
596 479
2014
73 2014 75

2015 2014
1,340 1,393
2,050 2,456
38 71
3,428 3,920

28

2015 2014
(76) (94)
512 643
2 2
(39) 11
(175) (196)
25,482 24,528
25,706 24,894
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2015 2014
(94) (575)

18 481
(76) 94)
643 282
¢Y) G4
(56) 86
(124) 533

6 13

44 (237)

512 643

2 29

- @7

2 2

11 49

659 548
(709) (586)
(39) 11
(196) (3,251)

3 11)

18 (14)

- 3,080
(175) (196)
24,528 27,197
2,061 1,692
(1,174) (1,072)
- (3,080)

67 (209)
25,482 24,528
25,706 24,894
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2000 2005
2000 2001 2002 2005
2014 14
2014 27
Tier 1
2014 27 105.00% 26.25 2015 12 31 111.46 27.87
237,961,365 4.3
2015 1.625 2014 1.625
25
2015 2014

5,931 5,823
18 108
5,949 5,931
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30 il Vi
1 Vi
2015 2014
8,002 6,530
1 Vvi 1,131 1,043
1 vi 9,133 7,573
1,500
5.5 2015 22 2015
29 2020 29
Tier 1 CRD IV CRR
Tier 1
Tier 1
5.125
2020 29
5.25
2,000
8.40 2011 11 2011 12
29 2017 29
7.49
2,000
8.375 2011 26 2011
26 2016 26

6.425
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750
6.875 2009 14 2009 11
12 2014 11 12 Libor
4.965 2014
11 12
250
6.567 2008 10 2008 12
10 2038 10 Libor 2.825
350
5.50 2008 27 2009 27
2018 27 Libor 2.80
27 12 27
323
4.15 2008 14 2009 14
2018 14 4.5 5.5 2.0
225
7.375 2008 24 2009
24 2014 24
900
0.76

2017 10 10 2017 10 90
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280
3.75 2009 25 8.7864
2009 27 2009 18
2014 18 3.75
2019 18 90 3.75
125
2004 11 N.V.
10 0.125
20
2014 12
Il vi
2004
- 11
1.5 2016 10 21
5.254 2016 10 21 2016 12 31 Libor
1.5900
Libor 1.5900 1,500
2016 10 21
- v
350,000 2019 12 31 5.556
Libor 1.4600

350 2019 12 31
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v
250,000 2014 12 31
BBSW 0.6700 BBSW 1.6700
250
2014 12 31
VI
250,000 2014 12 31 6.415
3 BBSW 1.6700
250 2014 12 31
2004
DNB
2015 2014
1,043 1,269
- (382)
88 156

1,131 1,043
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31
2015 2014

473 446

75 58

(10) 22

8 (10)

(54) (43)

492 473

AGCO SNC
72.88 65 2014
77
2015 2014

82 100

25 1)

25 1)

12 1

13 -

1,088 1,628

82 98

931 1,394

32 70
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AGCO SNC 51.0
78 2014 67
AGCO SNC 2015 2014

39 39

20 19

20 19

10 9

7 6

1,311 1,240

41 36

1,179 1,128

13 12
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103 112
338 405
75 108
52 71
17,271 18,168
938 1,170
(1,266) (1,535)
82 139
17,593 18,638
452 458
17 20
3,033 3,719
3,796 4,152
603 462
466 681
87 28
8,454 9,520
9,139 9,118
21 2014 21
1.0 5.5 2014 0.3 5.5
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2015 2014
44 69
325 326
545 455
433 402
633 615
7 10
90 198
2,077 2,075
8 28
35 22
11 17
35 40
96 89
185 196
1,892 1,879
34
2015 2014
352 139
14 6
366 145
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35
2015 2014
164 600
599 (568)
(160) 187
603 219
276 2014
2015 2014
639 173
(99) 82
64 37
@ 1
603 219
36
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282 184
369 432
215 494
866 1,110
1,495 2014 1,344 1,253
2014 1,122 40 2014 38
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32 2014
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37
2015 2014

3,194 3,331

394 424

- 500 532

- 9 32
(65) 54

754 713

4,786 5,086

52,885 2014
58,408
2011 CRD 111
2015
20
100
50
50
DRN DRN NYSE RC
DRN DRN
NYSE
DRN

DRN
DRN
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IAS 19 DRN IFRS

100,000
DRN
2015 12 31 2014 10
26 2015 12 31 2014 23
91 2014 97 DRN
2015 2014
1,014 952
249 348
(126) (166)
(100) (120)
1,037 1,014
DRN RC
2015 12 31
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
DRN 90.7 6.2 7.0 7.0 - 110.9
DRN 11.5 7.8 4.5 3.8 3.7 31.3
102.2 14.0 11.5 10.8 3.7  142.2
2014 12 31
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
DRN 101.5 6.8 6.2 7.5 - 122.0
DRN 3.6 12.0 4.4 4.2 5.3 29.5
105.1 18.8 10.6 11.7 5.3  151.5
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15 2,916 2014 2,532
2014
DSB 193
2015 30
39
2015 2014
250 240
193 197
443 437
40
2015 2014
(10) (14)
1,134 2,762
(101) (130)
57 2
1Y) 13
1,033 2,633
4]
10
0.044 0.022 2014 12
2015 168 2014 167
2015 2015
172 2014 2014 SNS
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42
2015 2014
555 79
1) (96)
121 (144)
655 (161)
2015 2014
2,869 1,681
(419) 47)
239 599
(15) @
(288) (753)
2,386 1,278
25.0 2014 25.0 597 320
58 (481)
655 (161)
43
155 2014 327
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2015 2014 2015 2014

360 490 11 68
9 14 - i}

® (144) - (57)
12 31 361 360 11 11
6,822 6,544 - i
829 573 - -
(382) (295) - -
12 31 7,269 6,822 - -
39 23 - -
28 37 - -
10 84 - i
234 234 - -
- 2 - -
244 320 - -
347 358 - -
25 20 - -
372 378 - -

45
2015 2014
7 6
1 1
8 7
382a

333/569



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)

OoOoOoOoOodno
46
54
37
2015 6.4
2014 6.3
W. 980 25 212 - 1 1,218
A. 884 26 189 - 1 1,100
B.J. 884 26 189 - 1 1,100
R.J. 807 26 171 - 2 1,006
H. 807 26 171 - 1 1,005
J.L. 779 25 165 - - 969
2015 5,141 154 1,007 - 6,398
2014 4,993 1,302 - 4 - 6,299
2015 DRN 11,647 2014
12,133 2015
94,600
2015
1.2 2014 1.6
VAT
2015 VAT
288,750 71,500 55,000
32,500 15,000 15,000
32,500 15,000 15,000
7,500 - 7,500
15,000 - 15,000
3,750 - 3,750
3,750 - 3,750
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VAT
w. 341
1.p. 100
C.H. 2015 11 66
L.N. 85
S.L.J. 110
E.A.J. 103
R. 2015 99
C.P. 2015 17
A.AJM. 85
M. 2015 23 24
2015 1,030
2014 1,084
2015 2014 2015 2014
4.9 3.4 2.6 1.5
1.2 - - 0.1
-8 @D 0.7 0.H
- 0.2 (0-9) -
- 2.8 0.4 1.1
12 31 4.3 4.9 1.4 2.6
2015 12 31

%

2015 12 31
R.J. 1.2 1.6
B.J. 0.4 4.4
H. 1.0 1.9
J.L. 1.7 3.3

2015 12 31

%

2015 12 31
A.AJM. 1.0 2.7
M. 0.4 4.9
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oOoOooodn
2015
B.V.
2015 40,950
2015 12 31
A. 12,166
1.P. 6,894
L.N. 4,640 B.V.
S.L.J. 4,050 B.V.
C.H. 13,200
47
2015
106
2015 12 31
DLL B.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
FGH N.V. 100 100
OwM B.A. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
ACC 100 100
LCC 111 VI 100 100
i vl 100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
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ooooood
2015
48
39 2014 23
Cv-BV
VOF Cv-
BV
VOF
CV-BV VOF

2014 2015

2015 2014

® (39)
® @9
® @9
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oOoOooodn
2015 12 31 17
2014
2014 29

2015 12 31
Ccv 25% 25%
cv 50% 50%
FIRST cv 50% 50%
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oOoOooodn

49
12 31
2015 2014
17,271 27,592
20,151 18,295
37,422 45,887
2015 12 31 37,853 2014 12 31 47,540
12 31
2015 2014
581 708
488 2,025
1,069 2,733
2015 2014 12 31 1,075 2,757
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ooOoooOoo
SPV
2.15
81,023 2014 79,940
80,925 2014 80,341 72 2014
71
2015 2014
54 -

5,186 7,289

13,838 10,905

2,563 2,575

21,641 20,769
50

STORM and

STRONG DLL LEAP
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oOoOooodn

ABCP
ABCP
RMBS ABS
3,028
2014 4,153

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1 100 101 30 107 137
255 72 327 377 45 422
463 - 463 622 - 622
1,011 - 1,011 1,363 - 1,363
670 61 731 722 75 797
- 395 395 - 600 600
2,400 628 3,028 3,114 827 3,941
3 - 3 86 - 86
393 - 393 610 - 610
396 - 396 696 - 696
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OooooOodd
2015 12 31
1 46 64 111 .
46 64 111 -
2014 12 31
3 34 618 655 -
- 35 (46) 1) -
69 572 644 -
51
1
2
2015 12 2.
2015 12
2016
1 2. 2
1. 2016
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52

C0SO 2013
2015 12 31
2015 12 31
C0SsO
2015 12 31

246

2016 17
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B . B ' B .
[

L

S.L.J.
AAJ M.
E.A.J.

M

CFO

CRO

2016
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2015 2014
12 31 12 31
* *

1 63,403 7,983,072 42,097 5,300,433
2 860 108,283 940 118,355

16,720 2,105,215 26,784 3,372,373

90,493 11,393,974 109,388 13,773,043
3 107,213 13,499,189 136,172 17,145,417

2,915 367,028 1,543 194,279

115,311 14,518,808 116,493 14,667,634

21,007 2,644,991 19,176 2,414,450
4 139,233 17,530,827 137,212 17,276,363
5 86,476 10,888,193 89,406 11,257,109
6 778 97,958 955 120,244
7 18,589 2,340,541 13,275 1,671,455
8 2,672 336,432 2,640 332,402
9 469 59,052 443 55,778
10 935 117,726 838 105,513
11 4,721 594,421 5,581 702,704
12 57,239 7,206,962 67,313 8,475,380
13 1,381 173,882 1,597 201,078
483,969 60,936,537 498,469 62,762,232
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OoooooO
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
* *

81 10,199 115 14,480

41,261 5,195,173 38,391 4,833,811
14 41,342 5,205,371 38,506 4,848,290

26,722 3,364,567 18,244 2,297,102

486 61,192 362 45,579

88,689 11,166,832 90,349 11,375,843
15 115,897 14,592,591 108,955 13,718,524
16 166,501 20,964,141 182,128 22,931,736
17 57,920 7,292,707 57,927 7,293,589
12 63,424 7,985,716 76,186 9,592,579
2,239 281,912 2,629 331,017
18 499 62,829 545 68,621
447,822 56,385,268 466,876 58,784,357
19 17,332 2,182,272 13,586 1,710,613

600 75,546 600 75,546

5,402 680,166 5,402 680,166

5,949 749,039 5,931 746,772

8,002 1,007,532 6,530 822,192

792 99,721 964 121,377

641 80,708 463 58,296

(3,479) (438,041) (3,235) (407,319)

908 114,326 1,352 170,230
20 18,815 2,368,997 18,007 2,267,261
36,147 4,551,269 31,593 3,977,875
483,969 60,936,537 498,469 62,762,232
23 18,970 2,388,513 17,487 2,201,788
24 45,449 5,722,484 34,155 4,300,456
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oOoOooodn

12 31
2015 2014
* *
764 96,195 764 96,195
144 18,131 588 74,035
908 114,326 1,352 170,230

402
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IFRS

2015 12 31
506

402
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oOoOooodn
1ASB
2011-2013
IFRS 2011
1ASB IFRS
13 IAS 40
2015
1ASB
2010-2012
IFRS 2010 2011
1ASB
IFRS IAS 16 24 38
IFRS
2016
IAS 19
2016
1AS
1AS
2016
IAS 16 IAS 38
2014 12 1ASB IAS 16 IAS 38

2016
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IFRS 11

2014

1ASB
IFRS
2014

12

ECL

2012-2014
25 1ASB
2012-2014
IFRS
2016
IASB IAS 39
2018
FVOCI
IAS 39
FVOCI
12
ECL
IFRS
IAS 39
IFRS
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ooooOoog
2016
1AS
IFRS
FVTPL
ECL

12 ECL



IAS 39

1ASB
IFRS 14
IFRS 15
IFRS 10 I1AS
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IFRS

IFRS

2018

2018

2016

28
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2.2
2.2.1

2.2.2

20 50
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2.3
2.3.1

0TC

IAS 39

80 125
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2.4

IFRS
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2.5

2.6
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2.8
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SPE

SPE

SPE
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2.10

90

2.11

2.23

2.12

12 31
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2.13

2.14

2.15
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90

IBNR
IFRS

LIP
LIP

CRD 1V

2.16
2.16.1
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2.17

2.18

40
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2.19

2.20
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2.21

Projected unit

credit method
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2.22

2.22

2.23
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2.25
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3
Tier 1 CET1 Tier 1
CRR IV CRD IV 2010
2014
Tier 1 Tier 1

Tier 1 2014

CRD IV CRR 2015
Tier 1 4.5
2016 2019

CRD IV CRR
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OOooOoOoOoo
CET 1 Tier 1
2015 4.5% 6.0% 8. 0%
! 2016 - 2019 2.5% 2.5 2.5%
7.0% 8.5k 10..5%
1 2016 - 2019 -
2016 - 2019
1
3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
2016 2019 2.5
2016
CRR
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ooOooooo
2015 2014
25,482 24,528
(126) (119)
5,949 5,931
23 28
224 365
(5,539) (5,248)
2,741 3,229
Tier 1 28,754 28,714
1,488 -
6,373 7,283
5 6
(76) (€))
(1,492) (2,126)
Tier 1 35,052 33,874
15,078 11,738
6 8
(85) -
(596) (481)
49,455 45,139
213,092 211,870
Tier 1 13.5% 13.6%
Tier 1 16.4% 16.0%
23.2% 21.3%
14.7% 14.4%

IRB FVPL
CRR
2014 - 2018

IRB
2015 Tier 1 CRR
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IFRS

12

IFRS
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4.4

473,394 2014 490,627

4.4.1
1SDA
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4.4.2

4.4.3
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4.4.4

Special Asset Management

4.4.5
FGH
2015
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2015
One
Rabobank FGH

4.5

VaR

Tier 1

4.6

375/569



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)
oOoOooodn

12

CFP CFP
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4.7
4.3
4.5

VaR

VaR

VaR
VaR

DNB
VaR VaR 10
97.5
99 VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR
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NFRC

EBA

NFRC
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Libor Euribor

2013 10 29

GBP Libor
Euribor
2014

Euribor

Ageas N.V.

18

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)

ooooooo
Libor Euribor

2013

(i) (i)

USD Libor
JPY Libor Tibor Tibor
Libor
Euribor
Fortis N.V. Ageas N.V.
Fortis N.V. VEB

2007
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SME

BSA AML
2015

Kifid

N.A.
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ooOoooOoo
Euribor
2014 2015
2015 12
AFM
AFM
2015
BSA AML
RNA 2013 BSA AWML
RNA BSA AML

RNA
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2015 2014
19 123
841 817
860 940

2015 2014
74,211 92,848
50,848 69,995
20,138 27,001
8,354 7,792
15,554 19,847
12,319 11,537
107,213 136,172

16,720 2014

26,784

382/569



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)
oOoOooodn

2015 2014
2,915 1,543
115,311 116,493
21,007 19,176
139,233 137,212
66,115 66,360
139,233 137,212
1,487 1,767
6 7
137,740 135,438
20,584 26,395
32,398 32,378
15,089 18,798
42,145 41,194
27,524 16,673
137,740 135,438
43% 39%
57% 61%
0% 0%
100% 100%

5,656 2014 5,361

2008 IAS 39 IFRS 7

2008 7 1
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
183 174 347 334
714 678 1,188 1,213
897 852 1,535 1,547
2014 26
2015
2014 62

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
3 -
- 1
3 1
16 37
2 121
18 158

2014 148
2014 26

2015 2014
25,942 27,638
60,534 61,768
86,476 89,406
82,878 83,774
815 2,476
2,783 3,156
86,476 89,406
52,266 52,157
28,492 30,653
57,984 58,753

86,476 89,406
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2015 2014
- 612 650
- 8 35
; 158 270
778 955
487 531
291 424
778 955
7
2015 2014
- 7,126 5,991
- 11,463 7,284
18,589 13,275
13,275 13,141
5,364 666
(170) (1,420)
646 760
(391) @
(135) 130
12 31 18,589 13,275
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oOoOooodn

8
B.V.
2015 2014
] 97 85
- 2,575 2,555
2,672 2,640
2,640 2,653
2 6
118 4
(81) 20
) 43)
12 31 2,672 2,640
9
2015 2014
2 -
467 443
469 443
- 2015
- 443 443
2 414 416
- (239) (239)
- (134) (134)
an Qan
12 31 2 467 469
- 1,015 1,015
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oOoOooodn

410 410
191 191
(54) (54)
(129) (129)
25 25
12 31 443 443
942 942

10

2014
720 716
215 122
935 838
- 2015
716 122 838
46 209 255
- ) G7)
(43) (56) (99)
1 (©) @
12 31 720 215 935
542 298 840
- 2014

733 128 861
38 31 69
(©)) - (©))
42) 42) (84)
(10) 5 ®
12 31 716 122 838
499 317 816
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2015 2014
1,845 2,020
5 5
2,871 3,556
4,721 5,581
2015 2014
45,177 52,833
12,062 14,480
57,239 67,313
54,491 66,060
8,933 10,126
63,424 76,186
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2015 12 31
2,378,968 34,579 33,557
oTC 2,312,801 34,578 33,557
66,167 1 -
398,381 5,030 7,608
oTC 396,816 5,017 7,596
1,565 13 12
3,340 2 15
5,633 610 463
oTC 4,394 515 417
1,239 95 47
132,266 4,017 11,202
47,687 1,787 11,161
84,579 2,230 41
15,957 939 1,646
15,957 939 1,646
2,934,545 45,177 54,491
2014 12 31
2,125,332 40,385 40,382
oTC 2,078,507 40,384 40,379
46,825 1 3
364,984 5,213 6,839
0TC 363,412 5,174 6,835
1,572 39 4
5,984 21 59
11,278 899 843
0TC 8,156 712 705
3,122 187 138
138,543 5,527 14,489
44,365 1,571 14,439
94,178 3,956 50
19,698 788 3,448

2,665,819 52,833 66,060
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2015 2014
19 123
1,487 1,767
2,783 3,156
158 270
4,447 5,316
841 816
82,878 83,774
612 650

6 7
84,337 85,247
52,213 52,109
85,247 90,602
362 408
2,711 5,252
(3,942) (10,784)
(286) 424
245 (655)

12 31 84,337 85,247
603 642
961 1,679
3,209 1,958
18,138 15,228
61,426 65,740
84,337 85,247
815 2,476

8 35

823 2,511

13
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ooooOoog
14

2015 2014
26,080 24,472
128 92
20,998 19,246
6,679 7,499
1,805 1,313
8,235 5,935
3,625 4,513
41,342 38,506

15
23 2014 20

2015 2014
8,186 8,690
1,176 835

2015 2014
51,965 41,462
42,679 42,600
7,160 5,647
1,735 2,333
12,358 16,913
115,897 108,955
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16
2015 2014
103,942 124,923
62,559 57,205
166,501 182,128
153 267
27,566 27,442
48,379 56,998
55,393 57,284
35,010 40,137
166,501 182,128
17
2015 55
2015 2014
54,817 54,232
187 212
2,916 3,483
57,920 57,927
18
2015 2014
223 240
276 305
499 545
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OooooOodd
26 2014 23 197
2014 217
110 2014 116
21 2014 18 2014
2015 2014
305 528
131 65
(160) (260)
- (28)
12 31 276 305
19
2015 2014
TR Vi 1,853 1,684
15,479 11,902
12 31 17,332 13,586
2015 225
2025 5.00 475 2025
2020
1,500 2025
4.375 1,250 2045 5.25
2014
2026 2.50 2019
2029 4.625
50.8 2024 12 1.429
2013 3.875 2023
1,000 4.625 2023 1,750

5.75 2043 1,250
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2012
1,000
3.95
2020
2019

2022

1,000
1,000

5.25
1,500
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oOoOooodn
4.125 2022
2027 500
2010 3.75
2009 5.875
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20
2015 2014
600 600
5,402 5,402
5,949 5,931
8,002 6,530
792 964
641 463
(3,479) (3.235)
908 1,352
18,815 18,007
2016
2015 2014
600 6,002
- (5,402)
600 600
2015 2014
5,402 -
- 5,402
5,402 5,402

395/569



2000

2014

2015

2005
2000 2001 2002

27 105.00% 26.25
237,961,365

1.625

25

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)

ooOoooOoo
2014 14
2014 27
Tier 1
2015 12 31 111.46 27.87
4.3
2014 1.625
2015 2014
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5,931 5,823
18 108
5,949 5,931



1,500

29

2,000

29

7.49

2,000

26

500

2010

2,868

31

5.5

8.40

8.375

9.94
27

11.0

2016

2015 22
2020
Tier 1
Tier 1
5.125
29
2011 11
2017 29
2011 26
26
2009 27
2019 27
2009
2019 30
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CRD 1V

5.25

6.425

Euribor 7.50

ooOoooOoo
2015
CRR
Tier
2011 12
2011
2009 12
Libor 10.868
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750
6.875 2009 14 2009 11
12 2014 11 12 Libor
4.965 2014
11 12
250
6.567 2008 10 2008 12
10 2038 10 Libor 2.825
350
5.50 2008 27 2009 27
2018 27 Libor 2.80
27 12 27
323
4.15 2008 14 2009 14
2018 14 4.5 5.5 2.0
225
7.375 2008 24 2009
24 2014 24
900
0.76
2017 10 10 2017 10 90
280
3.75 2009 25 8.7864
2009 27 2009 18
2014 18 3.75

2019 18 90 3.75
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2015 2014

6,530 7,204

- (648)
1,500 -
(12) -

(16) (26)
12 31 8,002 6,530

2015 2014

- (39) 11
- 214 262
- 2 2
- 615 689
792 964
964 708

@ ®

607 1,143

@ (58)

77) (824)
12 31 792 964

2015 1AS 39 2015 12
31
707 2014 2,660
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2015 659 2014 548
2015 709
2014 586
2015 12 31
39 2014 11
26
2015 12 31 IFRS 181 2014
185
2015 2014
344 206
373 351
(76) (94)
641 463
2015 2014
463 (92)
160 74
18 481
12 31 641 463
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2015 2014
! (175) (196)
(3,304) (3,039)
(3.479) (3.235)
11AS 19 122
2015 2014
(196) (3,251)
21 (25)
- 3,080
12 31 (175) (196)
2015 2014
(3,039) 488
1,352 1,179
(1,189) (1,088)
(265) (218)
(160) (74)
® 39
. (167)
- (3,080)
5 (118)
12 31 (3,304) (3,039)
2,214 2014 1,842
908 2014 1,306 1,286

401/569



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)

oOoOooodn

2015 2014
18,815 18,007
(600) (600)
(5,402) (5,402)
TTRRY 1,131 1,043
492 473
26,844 25,349
- 1
IFRS
41,280 38,871
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10
0.044 0.022 2014 12
2015 168 2014 167
2015
2014
22

2015 2014
16,720 26,784
21,007 19,176
37,727 45,960

2015 2014
81 115
486 362
567 477

2015 2014
5,178 7,289
6,758 4,333
450 458
12,386 12,080
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23
2015 2014
14,126 12,304
4,744 5,183
100 -
18,970 17,487
6,710 4,802
403

- B.V. N.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- us B.V.

- B.V.

- FGH N.V.

- N.V.

- B.V.

- N.V.

- N.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- B.V.

- N.V.

- RI B.V.

- RI B.V.

N.V.
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N.V.
B.V. Plc
LLC LLC
LLC B
LLC 180
Wet op het financieel toezicht
2015 12 31
N.V.
N.V.
N.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
B.V.
2016
2016
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24
2015 2014
42,701 31,114
2,748 3,041
45,449 34,155
12,853 9,384
25
15,758 2014 15,559
3,155 2014 3,068 FTE
15,224 2014 15,207
2015 2014
1,131 1,136
99 99
26
2015
2015 12 31
DLL B.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
FGH N.V. 100 100
OWM B.A. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
N.V. 100 100
ACC 100 100
LCC 111 VI 100 100
i vi 100 100
100 100
100 100

100 100
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27
2015 2014

7 6

1 1

7

382a
28
2015 6.4 2014 6.3
W. 980 25 212 - 1 1,218
A. 884 26 189 - 1 1,100
B.J. 884 26 189 - 1 1,100
R.J. 807 26 171 - 2 1,006
H. 807 26 171 - 1 1,005
J.L. 779 25 165 - - 969
2015 5,141 154 1,097 - 6 6,398
2014 4,993 1,302 - 4 - 6,299
2015 DRN 11,647 2014
12,133 2015
94,600

2015

407/569



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00ooO0Odoo(Ees92s)

ooooooo
1.2 2014 1.6
VAT
2015 VAT
288,750 71,500 55,000
32,500 15,000 15,000
32,500 15,000 15,000
7,500 - 7,500
15,000 - 15,000
3,750 - 3,750
3,750 - 3,750
VAT
w.w. 341
1.P. 100
C.H. 2015 11 66
L.N. 85
S.L.J. 110
E.A.J. 103
R. 2015 99
C.P. 2015 17
A.AJM. 85
M. 2015 23 24
2015 1,030
2014 1,084
2015 2014 2015 2014
4.9 3.4 2.6 1.5
1.2 - - 0.1
1.8) @.1) ©.7) (0.1)
- (0.2) (0.9 -
- 2.8 0.4 1.1
12 31 4.3 4.9 1.4 2.6
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2015 12 31
R.J.

B.J.

H.

J.L.

2015 12 31

1.2 1.6
0.4 4.4
1.0 1.9
1.7 3.3

2015 12 31
AALJM.
M.

2015

1.0 2.7
0.4 4.9

2015

B.V.
40,950

2015 12 31
A.

I1.P.

L.N.

S.L.J.

C.H.

12,166
6,894
4,640 B.V.
4,050 B.V.
13,200
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2016 17

General Member’ s Council
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Tier 1
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Tier 1

1,196
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1
2
2015 12 2. 2015
12
2016
1 2. 2
1. 2016
2016 2.
1.
2.
2 1. 1
2.
1.
215 194 21
2016
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Contelidated statement of nancial posltion

O Jr Dl O 31 Dipcatrradeie

e millieng of guros oty 20 xld
Agiets
Conh srcd halances ot contial Banis L] Lok 43400
Lo and advances 50 barks i g A5.963
Financial e hetd for trading B 3473 LTS
Financial ekt detlgnated ot far value 9 FRLTY Fi
Deerivatives L 48117 o489
Livaies e sl i€ 00 CUFIDITIETS 1 ASEE1E 45, 77
Availabde for wale Brarcial sascis 12 mm ¥
Ivrsirmards bn sasocistes snd joert venfures 1 171 R
Gezptwl and other intangilis dists 14 AA93 2059
Property and eqapmet 15 7.8 148
Ivapirment progerties n w1 44532
Casfresil Lin BaRsts 193 m
Difered i inarts L 2480 2501
rher snsety L) 19 B0
Honecurvens anseis held for sale LE] i55 I
Taotal aniets BTLITY 0,088
Lindilities
Dise 3 ks m TR ER.DEG
Dhue b CuipSevesty: w 17581 1206788
Dielet e il in hiess F I 189,050
eriwart rewes andd thas trade latslties i LR F ar.560
e lastalineey il L beol A7
Finuaicial Mt b deiignaned 51 Lk valos 1 1851 T4
Perrriunink a L1 o
Cument tan Aahibrey b i) 55
Diefeserindd L s Esdities 14 575 CLE]
Subornated habditees ifi 14:503 1iam
Total lisbiliies G0N HLIE
Fguity
Eiastty Rarbrolbark st boaoal Asbarbanbs i8 25704 TEE
Etpuity matrarmenty ivwed diecesy
- Babatank Contificates mn A5k ER
- Capial Berurities o T LA
1T 11,280
Trutty mnamens ivused Iy ushrcsmes
« Capinl Secunities 30 L 18
« Trust Preletied Secunties Mo ¥ kLI [REL 1043
L\ 1404
Crher nos-cont ioliing iniesesis 31 4ay LEE]
Total equity 41380 88T
Total #quity snd labsdinie aT0ITY an0ns
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Consolidated statement of income

Conpelidated itoement of incame

o phe ywar evident 11 Deemmbey
it rilani of furad Sl 15 Jid
el incame n 13,493 LREIR
Isterest eaperas 3 LELR] 5530
Het interest income EF 2159 118
Ferand commissien income k] T FE
Fer and cammnaion sapenis ¥ 45 Rl
et Fem and commiveion Income a 1,892 1,879
it o atAocianes 34 ET) 145
It income from fncial svsete and labiies st fae vaboe Beough probs o foys i (=] Fil]
Gairn/(oses) on availsble-for-asbe francial ssess 12 148 anm
Daher iewlts ] B 1,180
Incams 130714 LR
Seall genibi e 4T85 L]
CAher scfminairatie pepeeaes A EXITY ELIE]
Deied aitho E ] &43 437
Operating expenies [ RTL} [ 8114
mparmwnt lotees on good] 14 apl n
Loan impaimens chaeges ] 1,033 Tols
Reguiatony kevied E1 B4 448
Operating profit before i 1.869 1,681
Temation Ll 655 a1
et profit 2314 (F1H]
O whvich it et Aabeobnls s e B} 830
(08 wrhich antiibuted 10 holdert of Rubobank Cemsomm 387 -
(04 which aftributed to Capits! Securtin L= Tk
M wrhich atributed 1o Tiust Prefesed Seoumes B 1o ¥ & e
O wrhich amibuted 10 ot wlliney i £l bE] 58
et profit for the year 2,214 1,843

|74 fabobank Adresl Repomn 3015
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Conelidated statement of comprehensive income
Four e pear anvied 21 December

it milan of wurad oty MIE e
Kt ol v e Pt FRLE] 1842
Unweslised profit after Lamstion s the penod trensterred (o profit of lowsif specifc condtons e met:

Fivwign FLneiry A s n

Exchange rate dfferendes £:1] nar
Ervahacrion rreeves - vl ble-bor-na by fnomon! gt .

Exchange rate dfference [11] (21}
Changes st ancciatn 158 L)
Faer vl Changes [LFE] 512
Amartiuation of recliiefed sy B L ]
Trangderred to profit or low L am
Eerdannioen AraEnie - dissreaes |

Fair wihae thiriggers . an
Bvaphacition terenves - Cosl dow hedges

Far waise Chamges ] 655 48
Tranideried 0o ofil oF kg [P |55a]
Hoo-genirofing mterei n

Escfuange rete diTerenies 1m by
Urinpallind profit alter taza o i the peraod et be Saifrrned 1o greds sod lois

Forpign rusrency franckibion e -]

ExePunge rate dffesences ol squty Farased by pultrioiar JE3} 1156}
Briwdmarremet frvenen - Periconn 4

Change st anccisien. ] i
Farr vahue changes EES o
Tatal camprshenuive mcome for the year recogrised dinectly in squity JLEH e
Total compaehensive imoome 1042 L
O whiich Dt e 1o Faesbunni sl iocal Rabobank Tia 1,372
O which astributed o holders of Rabobana Certricates T i)
0 wehvbicty mrtnibuted 1o Capis! Secuntn B 05
O which anribuned 1o Tt Preleared Securitie s W %] Ta
O which sstributed to other son-conkrollisg interorts & (%
Tatil dorsgsah eniive bt 1062 1618

175
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Conpelidated statament of chan g in equity
Equiry

Foufyef Equity Ftrementy Otheroan-

Sxirik i by contralieg
b vl of s Nare  oaod Bobodnis s ety Tty inteerry sl
Balsson on 1 January 2015 Iadsa 11280 1214 473 48T
et e s - ] b 20k
Total compeehentve inoome for the year moogrased direcly o
ety !
Foreign cunency ranalation resenees. 1l ] - - s A
Fevabastion iesenves - A valable-foe cale Anancal anets [k} ] - - + nn
(R huaat by it - A leiated ' . [ .
(Revabastion reverves - Cash flow hedges 1304 - - - [3141]
Remeasmemien reseree - Pendions i = o r n
Total cormge ehensive irmome i#ia - b a3 1,062
Payreesny oo Rabobank Cembones ET) =7
Fas Trunl Perderred 5 LT . - free] ; n
Paymresty nn Capital femuries ] - 1 - im0
hsuance of Caplal Securites 30 * 1.500 + + 1.500
Conts & hauancr ol Cagital Securitiei - [1F] - - [[F]
i i Corelic ol doring ek yase » . i - t 1
Cihver &y £ B (L] Ll
Balssde e 31 Delernber 2015 15706 15,778 137 LLF] A,280
Balaspe g 1 Janusry 3074 IETIN 12853 1.585 A 14,534
Hart st [E - Lk 58 L H
Totsl cormpeehentive ngomes for the jear eosgnived d e iy in
oty L
Fusteagr e y Lanalalion e F . n 0
Pevalstion rewnees - Avalable o sale firsncial sarty k1Y s . 381
Rt bon seganvet « A OCHIDER i - E . an
Rarvihsttien pesmivet « Cau flow hediged [ET) - . . (38
Femeauaemend reveree - Pensiors: [rail - - . o]
Tanal compe ehensive Iroere 1444 - 3 Bo LE1E
Fary oy k Cavtsicatey 1585} - - - 15
Fayments o Tt Prefemed Seouioes 11 1o . - (et e ]
Paypirenats wa Cagilal Secwriiey BET] . (-] . s
Federmption of Capital Securitieon and Trum Prelerred Secutes ¥
and ¥ 30 %71 ] [LLEN] 11,3560
Fabotanl Cemfoates el dufing 1R yoir . g o8 bl ]
Cother LLr ] (3 F4] 183 ELA ] L]
Balinis o 31 Delernbesr 2074 T4 a5a iLT80 124 478 J4.ETY

176 fabobank Adresl Repomn 3015
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Conselidated statement of cath fows

[ T o

¥ Decrenirer

i milan of eurad Malr 20F b
Cash Mowws from apevating activities
Operating profn belfore s chages from comtimuing operatiom: LA 1681
Oyperating profn before tan chasges from o of - .
Arduited for
Won-ash i grveed in opeoting packt befnse faxatien
Deepueciation E ] 443 a7
Depre ation ol op g bk asiets s gt 15,18 Laly w4
Loanimpaimmord chaeges L (F 4] 1610
e e O T SCT T . an
IResull on sale ol propety and rqupreent (18}] T
lnacormat from sancisbes M (AL ] 1145
Ve reenl bssea ooy el 14 #21 32
Harti fron financisl sty snd labifitie ot fi vakos theough prof orloo ¥ Aty (E1]
i iovey] on swilsble-lor-aale fnancial pasty 1 e L11]
Frowidons 4y (P ]
Capitalivenl centi wcll developed saltware and sther avseta 1t e
et chamge in opeesting sty
Dus2 Fricams el i bvsnics FALY 1578 513
Financial saety held For trading B3 L] 14
Derivatves Ll BITE FHBTE
Hirt e i A ial aridets ased Rabw e de-iigrortad a8 Nief vshue &1 [{L1%] L]
Laang aed sedvancei ta customen 144 LAy 1L
Dividerch. recereed from pssoc lrtes and Snancisl st T L]
At e w B rekarg Mo o
Dttt Fwei ] cothirst Btk il s L[ REZRLH IT. A
Daes b antoeners 1% 10504 141
Dot et i inhes B bk 20 L= ] 48,5580
{xther lakalizary I 1 "
B oo passid [y [EET]
Oher change Ty 0
et cash Sow from cperating sctivitie 1584 [LEE L]
Catals fleens fram inveiting activities
Acquittion of succlstes nes of cach snd balsnces st oentral banks sogused 13 [EE7] [L04]
Deapericl ool arisoc i et of cirils and Bolasersd a1 Ceriinal han ks al 54
Disporal of subedianes met of caih and balarces of cordal Banks + k)
AU L O prroseer Ty B sk sl et ) proge s 1514 [P 7% ] 2380
Proteeds from the sale ol pregecty and sgqupment B 1,808
Aenquitition af sadsble-for-ale fnsnclal sty u [ ]
Fro from the sabe and o avaiiabie-Tor-sabe francial assees 2431 15508
Hiet canh Mo from s ing wclivits i) %,508
Cagh Mows from financing aotiines
Pupchase of labobank Cemfaie o] A leati
Sabs ol Bakssbnari Certificates i e
hae ol Capital Secus it (induding costil 1,488 -
Rederprion of Truat Peefomed Secusities Vand V1 (k]
Payreeats o4 Rabohank Crmfemes, Tenn Prbered Seeusities B io 'V anid Capstal Secuintes [LRC ] 11184
Fayrnpati on Senicr Coningan! Malrh L] L]
Redergtion of Caphal Secanies iy N 1o
Froceeds from e of subordinaied Rabslines 1968 2607
Bedemgenn of ushord nated lshdi e L] L]
et cash Mow fom AnasCing activitees L1 1,365
et changs in ok phd balsnce i1 centnal banks REE: ] [FX 5 Li]
Canh ardbalancey st contral bamn st the beginning of the yrar AL 400 A1600
Fwckange rate dHesenees oncah and halsnces of cenad hanks 1038 7508
Cash wrd Balanees At Cerbinl Basis ot the end of the yeal 64,581 43409
The carh oy froem interest pee included in the net cash flow from opesating scihiies
Esterevl revenue 17501 LRETT
Interen enperchie L f L]

1r?
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Notes to the consolidated financial

statements

1 Consolidation principles

Up until 31 December 2015, Rabobank Group condlsted of
The lacal Rabobanks (Membaers), the contral cooparative
{Codpenteve Canirale Ralfleken-Bosenleenbank BA ) and
a number of specialised subsidiaries,

On 1 January 2016, the bocal Baoobanks and Cooperatieve
Cantrale Raifeisen-Boerenleenbant BA entered into

a legal merger, Furthermone, on 1 lmaary 2016, the name

ol Codperatse Ceninbe Raifleken-Bosenleenbank B A

witt changed into Cobperatieve Rabobank LLA, {Rababank),
ore Information on this marger |s included in the Saction
“‘Events after the reporting pariod’, The consoldated Ainancial
statements of Rabobank Group include the financial
infarmation of Rabobank and that of the Members and other
QIOUp CeNmpaniie

2 Accounting policies

The main accouniing polcies used in preparing these
consolidated inancial stmements ane explained below

2.1 General

The consolidated financial statements of Rabobank have

been prepared in accordance with Iilernational Finanicial
Reporting Standards (IFIS) a5 adopied by the Euregean Unlan
Tt ozl idatied lnancial statements have been prepaed

an tha basti of the accounting policies mentioned hereafter
Thee remalning assets and llabilities are accounted foron

a historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated Unless otharaise
stated, all amounts in these Ainanclal statements are inmillions
of Buros.

Mew and amended standards lssued by the |ASE and
endorsed by the European Union, applicable to the
financial year under reviow
Improverments to international Finandial Reporting
Standards cycle 2001-2013

The objective of the iImprovements 14 1o addess non-ungent,
bt necessary issues discussed by the (ASD dising the project
Cyche that began in 2011 on areas of ncansistencies in IFRS
o gmbiguous warding. The amendmants 1o FRS 3and 13
epresent clanfications of, cr adyustments 1o, the respechive

178 Rabobank Amissl Report 2005

standards. The amendments 1145 40 concern changes fo

the & sting requirements or additional guidelines for the
applcation o theds recpuitement s, Thesd improvements havwe
nd brpact on profil or équity and Took effecl on 1 January 2015,

New and amended standards issued by the
Internatienal Accounting Standards Board (IASB]
and endorsaed by the European Union which do
naot yet apply In the current financial year
Improvements folntemational Financinl Reporting
Standards cydle 2010-2012

The abjective of the Improvements is 1o address non-
urgent, but nacessary issues disoussed by tha 1ASE during
the project cycles that began in 2010 and 2011 on areas of
inconsisiencies in IFRS of whiere clanfication of wordng was
tequimed. The amendmenis to IFRS B and 1A% 16, 24 and 38
reprasent cluificationd of, or adjustmeants 1o, the respeclive
standards. The amendments to IHHS 2 and 3 concern changes
1o the existing requiremenis or additioral guidelines for the
apphication of these requivements, These iImpovements have
na bmpact an profit or equity and tock effect on 1 January 2016,

Amendments to IAS 12 Defined benefit plans:

Emplayee Contributions

The objective of this amendment is to simplify and clarify
the admiristrative processing of employee cantnbubions o
confributions from third parties mrelation to defired benchit
penion plans, This amietrdineint s r Enpac | o @ofil o
equity and 1ook effect on 1 latwany 2016

Amendments to IAS 1: Disclosure initiative

The purpase of the amendments was 1o achizve a mone
effickent provasion ol information and 1o encourage compankss
10 ek professcnal adace far determining which infesmation
noeds to b provided in the aanual fenancial statements when
They acpdy 185 1. This amencdment bas o impact on peofit o
equity and took effect on | lanuay 2016

Amendments to 1AS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptabie Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
O 12 May 2014, the Intetnational Accounting Mandards
Bourd [IASH published amendments 10185 16 Tangible fixed
assets and bo |AS 38 Intangible asiet. These amendments
wene Introduced under the title Clarfication of acceptable
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depreciation methods. As there are varlous different practices,
it mesds [0 be clasiied whather it is apoioonate o implement
ncthesds based on revenues fonhe caloulition of the
airprichalion of an aseel, This amendmen hay no mpact oo
pichit or equity and ook eliect on 1 lanumy 1016,

Amendments to IFRS 1 1: Accourting for Acguisitions of
Interests i Soint Operations

Tt admenchinients offer new Quichiliruet on chis simink e
procoiiing of an acquisiticn of an 1w in & joinl buiines
aperation, wharne this operation of the joint bussness operation
conftitutes a cormpany. This amandmeant has no impact on
jprofit orequity and took effect on 1 lanuary 2016,

Improvements to International Financial Reporting
Standards cycle 201.2-2014

On 25 Septermber 2004, the International Accaunting Standaids
Baard (1A58), in the contest of its periodic Imprevemant
process, which & intendec to streamline and clanfy standands,
proceeded to publish the Annual impeovements in Intemational
Fianclal Repedting Standards cycle 2012-2014 'the arniaasl
improvements’). The objesthe of the Mo s e
addreis non-wgant, bul necesiary sued, discutied by 1he
1453 during the peoject cyche, on areas of incomsiiiencies

in International Financial Feparting Standards (IFRS) and
International Accounting Standards (IAS) or amblguous
wording. These iImpgaovemants have no impact on profit o
aquity and ok effect on 1 January 2016,

MNew standards lssued by the |ASE, but not yet
endorsed by the European Union

IFRS @ Financial Instrimerts

I July 2004, the A58 published FES @ Fnancial Instruments as
Thae replacernent foe WS 39 Fnancial Insbuments: Becognition
and Moasurement. The new standard bocomes effective on

1 January 2018,

Classification and measurement

Firancial assets ame Ciassified and measwed according to

tha weary i wisich they ane mansged by Rabobank ag wail

as by Ve type OF comtractoal Nows of cash in Hewe ot
Bath determine whethes they are ncluded a1 amartised cost,
falr vl e with adjustments in the values thereof processed
thraugh other comprahensive income | FVOCT) or theough the
jprofit and loss accownt {FYTPLL In many cases the classification
and measutement will be in line with A5 35, but theve are
ehiviathons with iespect 10 embiedided dervatives and equity
instruments. There are almodt nochanges in the procesiing

of Francial liabilites with emcepiion to certaln habdilkes at fak
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walue whede the ‘esults have 1o be included as equity bacauss
of changes 10 Rabobank’s credit rsk

Impairments

The tules. goveming impalrments appy 10 fnanclal assen

at amoetised cost and FYOC), as well as o lease mosivables
certain landing labdtes and financial guarantees. At the first
booking 4 proviikon 13 @mken 10 the amount af the expected
Empaltrrsgns fom possitse non-payment in ihe coming

13 manths | 2-manths axpaectod it loss' [BOLIL T tha
credit risk increases significartly, a provision will be ieguied
1o the amount of the expected impalrments frem possibe
non-payment duting the especied term of the financial

asset (ECL teim). In detennining the ameount of these
provisions RS 9 wies cxpected Tutung credil losses whilsr 1AS
39 only looks a1 extracrdinary Impalrments for which objective
evidance already exists, bn this way, i is expecied that the
extraordinary impalrments will change pro-cyclically giving
mone extrams results chath positive and negativel, In addition,
the size of the provisions wil be greater because under [FHS 9,
i sddition to the current peovision for posts already in default,
thene ks ali o facilicy foe all ihar ingncial assers cquvalent 1o
Tha size ol thie | 2-manth ECL of period ECL

Hedge accounting

The hedge accounting miles envisage simpifying hodge
accounting by establishing a closer ink to the sk management
strategy and allowing a beoades rnge of hedging insthurments
and risks ta be hedged. IFAS 9 does not explicitly addiess the
subject of macro-hedge accaunting; this & seen as a separate
subject. In ondar to avaid @ possibla conflict betwoen the
cufren] practice of macno-hedge accounting and new hedge-
accounting neles, BRS 9 prosides the option of continuing to
wie the current condifions governing matre-hedoe accounting
frcam IS 34,

Application

The rules govemng classification, measurement and
impairrrenis are applied retrospectively by amending

the opening halance shaet on 1 January 2018, There i no
obvigation to amand [he compaative gunet The cutlook fos
e hechopie-ac coumting conchilions i 1ht ey will Come: into
effect on | lamsary JO18,

Expected impact

Habobank has staned making preparations for the
bnplementation phase, The main imgpact b espected 1o bean
koan impadrments Lot yel possibile 1o ediably sstimate ihe
patential impact, More clarity on this subject is expected in the
2016 financial satements.
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Other standards Issued by the 1ASE, but not yet
endorsed by the European Unlon

= IFRS 14 Regulastory Dederral Accounts

= |FAS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customens

« Amendments bo IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale ar Contribution of
Assats between an Investor and (ts Assoclate of Joint venture

Although thewe new requitements i cumently being analysed
A theld ivpact b not yet lhdwn, Rabobank does nat

axpect the mplementation of these other standasds to have

& slgnificant iImpact on profit o equity

Other changes in accounting principles and
presentation

Changes in presentation

On 31 Docemnber 2015, the net profit atributakle to and the
dividends paid out directly to holders of equity instruments

by the Codparatieve Rabobank UA will be shown as part of
changes to eguity of Rabobank and kocal Rabobants in the
consolidated staement of changes in 2quity and ro langsr

a3 changes o the respective instruments. Furtheimaong, the
dividends paid out ae now spiecified in the movernents and na
kengar the amounts of proht atirbution of the curment fimancial
year. These adjustments have been made in order to rendar the
movements ol the equity of Rabobank Group mode tansparent
and o bring It into line with that of pears. Comparative figures
Tave been adjuited accardingly.

In Secoion 35 Met Income liom Ainancis asses and Iabifives

at lakr value through profit of logs, the desivatives used foe
hadging the interest 12te risk of the labilities designated at

faie valise 3o na bonger included in the frading gatns, but in
thee income freem ather financal assets and labilithes. This gives
o bt aslgh inio thie el ol thee other ndoc ksl lakil gies,
On 31 Docemior 2005, the prasantation of the impainmant of
goodwill In the profit and loss account kas changed fram ‘Other
Income’ o Tmpairment lasses on goodwil’. Comparative figunes
have been adjusted accordingly.

Irsafar as ather insighits prompred reclassifications, the
<omparatre figuies have been adjusted accorcingly

Adjustments in the primary statements of

37 Decemier 2014

In the consolidated statement of income, the Income from
associates has besn presented 64 tod high and the other results
6l 1o bewi. This adjustment has no effect on the total incoms,
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In the statermant of compeehensie income, the sign before
the ‘Exchange differences of equity instruments ssued by
subskdiaries has been inadvertently reveried, The amaunt

of the 'Exchange differenoes equity instruments lvsued ty
subsdduaries’ has been adjusted from 156 10 -1 56, Furthermors,
the ‘Exchange differences’ have been adjusted from 325 to
637, This =djustment has no effect on the total comprehenive
come,

Judgements and estimates

These financhal statements were prepaned on the basis of tha
principle of a going concern becausa there ae no Indications
o the contrary. The preparation of the financial statements
tequies managemant (o mabe estimates and assumprions.
Vit affect the arvsounls repoited Tor assets and Babilives, the
reporting of contingent asses and Ebiiited on the date of
The fmancial staterments, a3 well & the amaunts reported for
Income and expenses duing the reporting period.

Soma accounting principies requiie critical estmates that are
based on assessments and the use of assumptions. Althaugh
managemant bases ther estimates on the most caeful
asrsrment of curnsnt clrumstances and s tivities on the bai
of available financisl data and infarmaticon, the actual redults
may daiale from these eilimates. The fallowing accounting
principles have been [dentified a5 peincipses which kead to

a high degree of assessment and estimation uncertalniy.

Loan impairment allowance

Loan Imgalirmien] alltaances ang recagnised if theds 1

cbyective evidence that Rabobank will ngt be able o collec

all anmvounts due under the original terms of the conlract
Diatermining a provision 1egiuines a sgnificant degres of
Juddgement formslation, based on the evaluation by the
prarnagpemeen of e sk 1t s pordolio, the cunent
economic cireumstances, crodit losses aver the prevous years,
as wel a3 developmenty In financial credits, business sectors,
business concenirations 2nd geopolitics. Changes In judgemanit
formulation as wall & furthar anabyses may lead to changes In
the magnipude of loan impaliment allowance ower time.
Dateernining abjective evidence for decreated Creditwerthineds
and determining the magntude of the recovstabh smount
form pait ol the processes that aee sursmded by nheent
yncartainty and which invalve vaion assumptons and Bacinn
regarding the creditworthiness of the bomowers, expected
future cash flows and the value of collateral
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Commercial real estate

[Due to-weaker marker corditions fior both residennal and
commercial resl estate and the limited numiber of tramiactions,
Thaeret I InC e uncertaingy recuaicing poperty virhaationm
e land holdings. wark in progeess, completed dewelopments
and Irvestmant properties) and property financing. Property
valuations are subyact 1o a number of different assumptions
and va'uathen methods The use of diferent assumplions

andd mat by rmay, due b thir subjectihaly, resall in diffensm
oulcarmis, Mate information on the devalogmients in the feal
estate porifolo are included in Paragraph 448

Fair valwe of financial assets and fiobilities
Irformation on the deremination of the fal value of financlad
assens ard labdte i included in Patagiaph 4.9

Impairment on geodwll

Goodwill s assessed Tor impairment losses by comparing the
recavesabile valie to the canying amownt The most important
assumptions for determ ining the recoverabe valise de inclused
i Secton 14

Taation

‘When determining the tae burden and the ielated curent and
defared tax che and tax credits estimates are wied in oorder
1o @ive a1 an estimaic. Thie fiscal treatment of transactions

5 ot certaln inevery case and t2x retums have In the past
requied appeoval from the o authorities in various counmiies
i somee cades, The o due and tax credits prapoed are based
an all known information, and where relevant, external advice,
Diffarences betwoen the fnal oulcome and the figues adopted
Ihairz ade Shown In the current and defermed ta due and tax
credits for the perod whena cenanty is ganed as to the fiscal
treatment and/or when this tax assessments are impased,

The other valuation principles thal requine critical estimations
are proviskons {Section 23) and consolidation [Secton 47).

22 Group financial statements

220 Subsidiaries

Theit partacipating intenests orver wiich Rabebank raintaing
ottiol e subskdlaries BiChding Siruciuned endilkis) ancd ane
consolidated. Control I exeicsed over a participating Interest if
thee Investor is exposed to, or s entitled to. fuctuating incomea
in 1zspact of thair involvement in the partic pating intersst and
s the opportunity o influendce this income by using thelr
contol over the participating interest, The assets, labifitles and
profit/ing of thewe companies are fully coniolidatod

1K1 Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

Subsidiaries are consofidated as of the date on which the
effective contral 15 transferrad 1o Rabebank and will no

Eerigpor be consohidated a3 of the dabe on which this contid i
Nepminatesd, All tranesc tions, bakinges and unealissd gairs and
Fomses from transactions betwaen Rabobank Group subsidiares
have besn eliminated during consolidation.

Internal liability [cross-guarantee system)

En sccowidonice with 1he Dulzh Firanclal Supisniiion At Wl
o bt Francies] toagichtl, variouws legal entities belanging
1o Rabobank Group are intesnally llable under an intra-group
mutual keep well systam. Under this system the participating
entities are bound, In the avent of 2 Lack of funds of

@ particigating entity 10 satily its crediton, 10 pode the
furds necessany 1o allow the defcient paricipant 1o smishy
its crediton.

#son 31 December 2015, the partcipants ase:

« The Iocal Rabobanis, membsars of Codperatieve Centrale
Ralfiesen-Bosentaanhank BA

=« Codperateve Centrale Aalffenen-Bocienlaerbank BA,

Amgendam

Rababypatheakbank ML Amidteddam

= Raiffesenhypotheekbank NV, Amsterdam

Schietien & Co MY, Amsterdam

D Loge Landen International BV, Eindhoven

De Lage Landen Financlering B.Y. Eindhoven

D Lage Landen Trade Finance BV, Eindhoven

De Lage Landen Francial Serdces BV, Cindhoven

Om 1 January 20186, the bacal Rababanis and the Codperatiove
Centrale Raffaisen-Bosranleennank BA entered into

a legal menger. Furthenmone, on | January JO16, the name

of the Colperatiew Centrale Raiffelsen-los enleenbank

A was changed o Cosperatiow: Rabatank LA,

Mo information on this matter ls indluded in the Saction
TEvents alter the reposiing period’,

222 Investments in associates and joint ventures
Evvestments in associates ane mcognised inaccondance

with the equity rmethod. In sceadance with this method,
Fababiank's share of paofils or losses of an assoclate ae, wbject
1o Aabobank's accounting policies, (#lier the acquisition)
recognised in the peofit and loss account, and its share in the
changes in reserves after the acquisition are recagnised in
reserves. The cumulative changes after acquitition are adjusted
10 fhe cust of the imvesimen,
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Assiscintes aee @ntities oves which Aabobank hus significant
influence and i which i1 usually holds bevseen J0% and 500
of thie votkng rights but ower which it does not exercise control
A joint venture is a1 agreement betwoen one oF mare parties
whemby the parties, which have shared control over the
agreement, ame entitied 1o the net assets ender the agreement.
Unrealsed profits on tanactions between Rabobank and its
ansnciaties and point veniues s eiminated in accordance

with the size of Rabobank’s inerest in 1he assocites and

Jeant vertunid, Unrealied Bodied ane also efiminated wnloss

thee Eransa< tion indicales that an impalrment loss showdd be
recogrised on the asset transferred.

Investments by Habobank in associates inchude the goodwill
scquired. If Rabobank’s shate in the ledses of an associate eqguals
ot ewceeds s intessst in the associane, Rabobank will not
reCogrise any mahe Kt of the ssociate unleds Aabobank ha
g ven undertakings or made payments on behall of the associabe,

2.3 Derivatives and hadging

General

Derivatives genem by comgeise fareign exchange coniracls
cutrency and intenest e futures, forwand e agroamants,
curency and inénes e waaps, and curnency and intenest rabe
aalions pwritten as wall & acogued)

Derivatives can be taded either on the stock exchange or
oear the counter {OTC) betweaen Ratsobank and a client,

All dertvatives are recognised at falr value The fai value &
datsrmingd on 1he basis of ined marker prices (4 small Bid-ask
g applies 1o derbeatives quoed In EUR, USD andfor GBR,
aned mid-prices ate wied), prices effered by rraders, caih Now
discounting madels and optlon valuation modes based on
clrtent market prices and confract prices for the undeying
instrements, 35 wedl as the time vadue of maney, viekd cunaes
i e solatlity of the winderlying sssets and Habilities.

Al derhvatives are inglucded undar agsets i their T value s
|pasitive and under labilities i their fale valee 5 negative.
Darivatives that are embedded n other financial instruments.
aie treat=d separately IF the'r rsks and characteristics are not
closely ralated to those of the undsilying detvative contract
and this contract is not classfied as at Talr vahse, whereby
nrtrealised profits oo fotues ane recognised in the s,

Instruments mar used for hedging

iFRabobank enters into derivatives for trading purposes,
realised and unrealisad gains and kosses are sccounted fior
wnder Met income from financ.a assets and Rabbimes at fal
walue thiough profin o las’

187 Rabobank Al Bepor 2015
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Hedging instrments

Habobank also uses derhvarives as part of asset and labiity
TR MAERE LD MAnagE 15 intereat rate rliks, credin raks

and forsign cumency risks, Rabobank makes e of the
oossibilines prosided By the EU throwgh the carve-cut in 145 358
The carve-out faciltates the applcation of fair wilue porticlio
fedge accounting bo cediain positions

On the date of concluding & detvathee confract, Rababank can
dedignate certain detivatives as: (1) o bedge of the fals valise

of an assetar llability in the statement of inascial podition
(fair value hadgal; (2) a hedge of future cash flows allocable

1o an asset of llablity in the statement of financial positon,

an axpeadted transaction or a firm commatment {cash flow
hedgek of {1} a hedge of a net investiment in a foreign entity
(e invesimae hadge), Medge accounting can ke appbed for
derheativies cetkpnated In this manaer d certaln ceitetds ane me
The crileria devhvatives must satify 19 be recognised an hedging
matruments include the following:

+ foemal documentation of the hedging instrument. tha
hedged item, the objective of the hedge, the hedgeng
sirategy and the hedge relationship before the application of
g acconnting;

thie hedge Iy expected o be effective (in a range of 0% fo
124%] In oMsatting changes in the hadged item’s fair valua
o cash lows allocable to the hedged risks during the entire
repoeting period,

the hadge is continuously effectve from the moment of

is neepsion,

Changes in the falr valise of derivatives that are designated as
falr valis hediges and are effective in relation to the hedged
risks ane taken in the profit and loss account, together with

the comesponding changes in the fair value of the asssts of
wabilities hiedged which ase taken againit the specific mk
Deing hediged.

1 1he hisdge na langer meets the criters fot hedge accounting
tacooeding 1o the falr vahee hedge model], the cumudative
adjusimant In the fair value of a hedged Interesi-bearing
fnancia instrument s amortised through the profit and loss
accaunt over the period 10 matuikty of the rormal term fior this
nienest rate for the financal insirument

Fout hipchgtd of nart Imasitmants in foneign antities, the derivative
& magavuned at falr valoe, wheneby changes in the fair value,

1o the mxtent that they are eifacthve, s taken mp in squity

The charge in the hediged equity instrument as a result of
axcnange-rate Auctuations a2 also i2coanised under eguity
uniil the equity instrument & dsposed af.

Changes in the fairvalie of derivatives That ane designated and
ity ay canh o hedges and that ate effective in telation
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1o the hedged risks are recognised in the hedging resanve
incheded under Equity (see Sectian 10 The InefTective portion
af the changes in thee falr walue af derbvatives ane recegnised in
ha profin and ks account,

If the forecast transactian ar the non-current labdity mault

in the recognition of a non-financial asset of 3 non-financial
hability, 2ny defermed profits of losses included inequity ae
restated at the mitlal carrying amount (cost ) of the asset or the
Habilicy, In all oehes cases, dedesred amounts included in egquity
anp taken b the stalement of incame and am classifed as
Iincoimie o expenses 0 the periods in which the hedged non-
cuirent liability o the forecast transac bon had an effect on the
jprofit and loss account.

Cenaln derivatlve contracts, allhaugh they are econoimic
hedges in relation 1o the mansged gk posinions taken by
Rabobark, oo not qualify or kedge accounting under the
apecific FRS ndes and aee thenefone teated ay derivatives held
for trading purposes.

Thee fair walue of derlvatives held for trading and hedging
ipuarpases Is disclosed in Section 10

Trade ligbilities

Tiahs llabisties ahe maink negative fair valuos of dervatives and
delivery ohligations that arlse on the short selling of securities
Seciities am sold short to eallse gains fmm shos-teem prce
fluctuations. The securitbes needed to sertle short sales are
acquired through securities leasing and securities repuschasing
agresments Securities sold sho ase recognised m fair va'us on
thas reporting date,

24  Financial assets held for trading

Financial assats hald for trading &e fimancial assets acguined
with thie objecthve of generating profit fiom short-term
fluctuations in prices or aders margin, or finantlal assets 1hat
form part of poitfodon characterised by patiama af short-term
jprefit participation.

Fnanclal assets hald for trading ae measured at fair value
based on listed bid pelces. AN related comarehenibee Income is
incheded under 'Wet ncome froim Rnancial zssas and labilities
b fai value through profit or loss! interest eamed on financial
ANt 1 recogniied a8 iNen income,

Drvithends tecetved on financhal asets beld for phackng ane
recognised as ‘Met income from knanclal assets and liabilities at
falr vl v throwgh profitor loss®

All acquisitions and sakes of financlal assets hald for trading
which sequite defivery within a time limit prescribed under

e regul-tions of in accordance with marke! conventions an
accourted fof on the transs ton date

183 Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

2.5 Otherfinancial assets and liabilities designated
at fair value

Rababank makes we of the opion 1o irclsde certaln financial
ansets jother tham thoie hekd for trading) and cerain lakiies
at fai value through prodit or loss. Financlal assats, Including
wenture capital, and llabilities have been placed in this categony
by managemant upan initlall recognition, if {any or all} of the
follow ng criteria are met

o suhoa designation elimingles o substanilaly fediaces any
incaniitont reatment that would atheryite have anfsen
upon maasurement of the assets of labilites or recognition
of profits of losses on the basis of different accounting
palickes; o

thie assets and labilaizs belong toa group of linancial assets
anclfer Anancial Bxbilities that are managed and sswessed on
the s of thelr fakr value in acoondance with a documented
sk management ar imestment strategy; of

the Anandial instrument contains an embedded delvative
fimancial instrurment, urless the embedded devivative
franclal Instrurment does not sigrehcantly atfect the

cash fows oo Wi i evident that sepatie recognition i3

not required

Intenosl erarned on asaats with this chahcation i recognited
as Interesd incoene and intenest due on Bxbilities with this
classihcation s reconrised as intemest sxpense. Any other
realised and unecaitsed galns and losses on the evaluation

of these financial instrumenis at falr value are included under
o from othes fnancial sseets and liabilives at fas value
theough profit or loss’ Al purchases and sales of other financial
assets and liaodities desgnated at falr valie and which hawe
1o b delivered within a period prescribed by regulations or
market comentian e recognised on the ransaction date.

26 Day1 profit

U, at the tere 3 faancial instrument s anieied im0, vabeaticn
methods are used at faif vales, a discrepancy may arise batwaen
the transac tion price and the fair value. Such a discrepancy s
refered to as 'day 1 profit. Rabobank iImmedataly accounts
for this profit under Met income from financial assets and
liabilites a1 fair value thicugh grofit or loss' if the valustion
mmethad i Bated cn otaervable inputs (of scove markes).

H nor-observabile inouts are used, the day | profit is smort sed
ot the femm of the transaction and accounted for as Othar
Fabilithes’ Profit is taken at a subsequant stage if the financial
Instrument concemed has baen sold or the inputs become
whilblia at 3 laber stage
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27 Available-for-sale inancial assets

Management detenmines the classiication of financial assers
i the date of scepuisition, depending on thie puipose for which
Uhet investments ane acquired.

Financial assets that ane intended to be hald indefinitefy and
that could be sold for quidity purposes of In respomse 1o
changes In intesest rates, exchange rates or share prices are
classified as available for sake,

Mallable-for-saie financial assets are initially reoognied a1

fair walue, including traniaction costd, besed on qualed bid
ipricas o values dedived from cash low models. The far valses
of unlisted equity instruments are estimated or the basls of
appropriate pricaleamings ratios. adjusted 1o reflect the specific
cirowmstances of the respective lusuer Any unrealised gains
ansd losses from chunges in the Gie value of svallable-fo-ssle
tinancikad assets ane recognised inequity wnbess thsy relace 1o
amartived interest of mchange rate differences of monetary
assets. |F such financial assets are disposed of, the adjustments
1o fair value are recogrised in the profit and loss account.

Dabt instrurments are impaired if there ae obiective indications
hat the fair value has decreased to such a degres that no
reasen stk adiurmptions can be made that the value wil
iegeyes 16 the carrying amount in the foresecable fulune,

On each reporting date, managemant assesses whelhar there
ae objective indications on the imaaimment of ava lable-for-sale

assels. Exsmples of objective evdence for valuee adjustments ane:

« signdficant financial difficidties on the pan of the ksuer:
- default in raking inedes) of redempTon paymants;
= the disappeatance of active markets fof the friancial asset
caused by financial difficulties.
In the event of impairment, the cumulative loss is determined
Iy the differance bateeer the cost and the cument fae value,
et any previously recognised impaitment. This is transfemed
s Ahies resvabua on teserves In ecuity 1o (he prolit and loss
account. If the impaimment of 3 debt irstrumant diminishes In
a subsequent period and the diminution can be objectively
atiributed to an event that occwred after the iImpalrmeant. the
impairment Is reversed theough the profit and loss account.
Eguity instruments ae impaired f thelr cost petmanently
excepds their recoverable value, In other words, theis fair value
it significamly kwint than thair cost of o than thisir oo
fior the lang tenm, The recoverable ameount of investments in
i sted equity Instruments is determinad wng apprewed
valuation methods. The recoverable amount of listed Enancial
assets Is determined on the basis of market value. kmpairmsant
of equity instrumenis is never subsequently reversed thiough
he profin and loss sccount.
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All purchases and sales made in accordance with standard
marker corventions for avalkzble-for-sale financlal assets are
recodnised on the transaction date All ather purchases and
sabis ae recogniied on the setilement date.

2.8 Repurchase agreements and reverss repurchase
agreaments

Financlal assets that are sold subject to related sale and
repuchade agréements ane intluded inthe faancial statements
whifer Financial assets hoid for trading’ and Weallable-Tor-sake
financial assets. Tha llability to the counterparty is inciuded
wnder ‘Thie to banks' of Due 10 customens, subject to elevance.
Fimancial assets acquired undes reyverse sale and reverse
tepurchase agreements ate recognised as Loans and advances
1 vk, of Loans ard ddvances to custormsrs, wiject 1o
relivance. The difference betwesn the weling price ard
tepurchasing price v ecognised as interest income or interest
expense over the tarm of the agreement an the bass of the
affective Interest method,

2.9 Secwritisations and other de-recognition
constructions

Rabobank securitives, selli and carties various financial assets,
which may invalve a sale of these assets b special pupose
entities [SPEs), which then lssue secunities 1o Investors.
Rabobank kas tha option of ietaining an inieest in sold
secwitised financial assets in the form of subordinated interesi-
oy stries, tubordinated seeurites, spread sccounts, iendeng
S, Cursramless, put opions and call optons, and cthe
construction,

A Francial asset for a ponion of theseof ) Is de-recognised if:
thie tights o the cash Aowe from the asset sapire;

thiz righs to the cash o from the asset and 3 substangial
prarticn of P risks and besefits of ovmership of e assel ane
ransferod,

a commitment o fransfer the cash flows from the asset i
presumed and a substantiz! portion of the risks and benafits
ire framsfened:

not 8l the economic risks and benefits ae ratained o
fransferred, but the contiol over the sset is iransfened

A Prancial hasiity or 3 part thensal i de-necognised il it oee
1o exclat L. after the contractual obligation has been fulfifed,
canceliad, or has expired

i Rabobank retains control gver the asset but does not retain
a substantial portion of the risks and benefits, the assetis
recognised in proportion to the continued involvernent of
Aatsobank, A selated ety |5 slso recognised 10 the exent

of the continued invalvement of Rabobank. The recognition
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af changes in the vakee of the llabillty corresponds to the
teCogninon of changss in the value of the asser

Il & trnsaction does net meet the abowe conditions for
e-recagnitioe, It is recognived as & loan fo which secutity has
Ibeeh providiad,

Tothe eutent that the transfier of a financial asset does not
qualify for de-recognition, the transler doas nat result in the
confractusl ighis of Rabobank being weparately recognived

as defivathaes i iecogninon ol these insiruments and tye
tansfernpd asiit, o4 the Rability atsing fom the tanse,

wene to result in the double recognition of the same nghts or
abligaticans

Profits and losses on securitisstons and sale trensactions partly
aepesed o the peevious cartying amounis of the financial
assens iransharned. The book valuss of thete assets are allocaed
to the scld and retained irterests using the relathae falr va'oes
af these terests on the date of e, Any gans and koases ane
recognised through profit oo kods 3t the time of transfar,

The disterrminaticn of the fas walue of the sold and retained
interests s carried out on the bass of Isted matket prices or
caleulated as the present value of the fulue expected cash
flows cn the basks of pricing moedel that whe into account
various adiurnplions such as credit losie, discount e, yield
curves, payment frequency and other factons,

Hatahank decides whether the SPF should be included in the
consolidaied financial statemant. For this purposa, it porforms
an assesement of the SPE by taking a numbser of factors indo
consideraten, inchding the activives, degition making powers
and the aflocation of the benefits and risks associbed with the
activities of the SPE

290 Cash and balances at central banks

Cash equivalents ae highly liquid short-tenm assets hedd o
meet current abligations in cash, rather than for Investments
of Dther purposes, Such investmants have remaining tems
of s than 00 days from inception. Cash equivalents are
read iy convertible 1o known amounts of cash 2nd subject 1o
an insigrificant risk of changes in value.

211 Offsetting financial assets and llabilitles

Francial assote and labilities 3o alfe and the net ameunt i
ransferred b Lhe staterment of financiel position 16 legal right
o offst the recognised amosnts exists and it b intended 1o
setihe the expected futume cash flows on a net basis, or to realise
thie asset and sattle the llabdity simultaneoushy. This mainky
concems offsetting current account Dalances and dervatives
Thee oflsening of tanes is discussed in Paragraph 2.04.

185 Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

2.12 Foreign currency

Foreign entities

e included in the financial statements af cach eatity

bt Rarbobank Gioap am Corrid in e currency thal best
reflocts the-econaimic reality ol the underlying ewents and
chcwmstances that are relewvant for the entity (the functicnal
CLHTENCY].

The condolidated financial statements e presented in ounos,
wihich b the parent companys lunctional Curency,

The grafit and loss accounis and cath Mows of f:ﬂiqn anfities
aro translated Into the presentation cunency of Rabobank

at the exchange rates valid on the transaction dates, which

Iy appeoaimately equal 1o the average exchangs rates on

31 December, Enhange e differences aising on the neg
imaestmEnty in foreign entities and on loant and other curency
inatruments designated as hedges of these Investmants

ate recognied In equity. I a fareign entity IS sold, any such
translation differences are recognised in the profit and loss
account as part of the profit o loss on the sa'e.

Grondwill and falr valkee adjustments asising feom the acquisition
of & foreign entity are recognised as the assets and labdiies of
the foeeign entity and are rrarskated a1 the closing ane.

Foreign-curmency transactions

Transac tions in foreign cwerences are translated info the
functioral cureency at the exchange rates valid on the
transaciion daies. Translation differences arsing on the
senbement of such transacnont o an the uanslation of
monetary asels and Eabliites denominated in foneign
Culencied are poognned in the pofi and koss Bccount,
Translation differences that qualify as not investrment hedgas
ame recognised in equity.

Translation differences on debi secwities and ather monstary
financial assets camied &t fair value are included under loreign
exchange gaing and lodsed Translaton differsnces on non-
monctary [Berre such as equily instiuments held for trading ae
recognised as pant of the fai value gains o losses. Tranakation
differences on avallable-for-sale non-manetany Il\Ems ae included
I he regalpalion resarves available-for-sate financial assets.

213 Interest

Bttt incorme and e for all ntest-bear g
instruments I3 ecognised in the prefit and loss account on

an accrual basis, wheseby the effective Interest method is
applied. interest income inclsdes coupons relating to fixed
imenest financial assets and Anancial et hald for rading, as
wiell a3 the curvulative premburms and discounts on gonvernment
Uity secutities and ather cash equivalent insturments
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I any boans sulffer impaimment losses, they are written down

T TR T reConeraiahe Amounts, Tha BIResT ncams iaoognmied
hancetorth is based on the edginal discount rabe for the
«calculation of the present value of the future cash flows uwed
1o determine the recoverable amounts. Interest on derdvatives
lhald fior economic hadging purposes is shown sepaately under
intanest income

214 Commission

Income from &l mansgement aClvithes consing mainky of
wandt Trust, fund managemant commissicn and adminktration
ircome from asset management and Insumance brokemage |5
recognised as eamed once The services have been provded,
Commession is genermlly recognised on an acorual bass,
Commisisn fecesved fol negotiating & raniaction, of 18king
I pege it on beball of third partes, bor esample e
acquiyition of a partfolo of loans, shares o olher secuities,
at the sase or purchase of companies, s recognised upon
cpmpletion of the undarlying transactions,

2.5 Loansand advances 1o customers and loans and

advances to banks

Lesaris and advances 1@ customer and lodns and advances 1o

lharks @ non-dariaties with fived o definabie payments that

ae nat listed on an active market. An exception hereto ane such

assefs that Rabobank classifies as held for trading purposes, of

it ally recognised at fair value for which value adjustments

A recognised inthe profit and kess sccount, o as available Tor

wile. Loans and advances 1o customés and barks are infitsly

recognised at fair value, incheding Irantaction coits, and

subsequently carted at amartised cost, incleding transaction

oS

Losans aee subyect to either individual or collective impaEment

aisalyses. & value adjustrment, an allowance for expecied

lemiod an loamy, i recogniued if thete it abjec e evdence

that Rabobank will not be able to collect all amounts due

under the odginal 1enms of the contract. The amount of the

allowance is the difference between the camylrg amount and

the recowerable amount e, the present value of expected cash

flewes, A weell as the expected interest income and repayments,

tha allzwwancs alss includes this amounts 1hat can be cbined

from guatantess and securitles and ane discounted at present

value at the peiginal (aveaga) effective infaedt rate.

Theer allowance fior loans includes lasses i ther ks object ve

evidence that losses are allocable tosome portions of the loan

jporifolio at the reportineg date.

Crampies of cbiective evidence for value adjusiments are

= sgnEicant firancial chfhcitees on the Rt of thie DO

« defauilt in making inteest andlar iedermption payments on
the part of the bomower;
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+ loan renegotiations;
passibliiny of bankrupscy o financlal 1eomganisation on the
part of th besronver;
changes in bomrowers’ payment statud,
changes in economic cincumstances that could cause the
barrowes 1o default.
For each sepatate busnass unit, the losses are esiimated an
the basis of the credit ratings of the bosrewers and the value of
the collatersl provided 10 1he bank, with coniderstion given
1o the actual economic conditions under which the barnowers
canduct thelr activites. The carrying amount of the loans i
recuced through the use of a prowision account, based on
what the bank considers the most likefy scenario, and the kass
i recognised in the profit and boss account Provishons for the
impaitrment of expectid baan loses ae made a3 soon as s
enlorcEmen] process s compieted, the security provided has
been malised, when virtually no ather moans of recovery ae
avillabde and kn tha event of a formial cancellation of a debt.
Any amounts subsequently collected are added under the
e ‘Loan impaiment charges in the profit and loss acoount.
A5 500N as the prosgects 'or continuity have recoveled and
arnears have besn cloand a5 agrood, the loan I ne kanger
considensd impained (not fully collectiblel, Management
continually assesses these mnegoliated loans toensune that all
criteria are satishied with 3 vievs 1o expected future cash flows,
Hon-performing koans ae loans thal meet at least one of the
follow ng criteria:
= These are matedial loans i anears by more than 90 days;
= Itk likey that rhe dabtor will fall 12 fully pay their dett
[principal sum, Interest of fees] if the bank would nat resort
to thie enforcesment of its secuity imerests [if present),
regardiess of the number of days of the amount in ameas
The genenl prasdsion corstiutes the piedsion adopted for
e portion of the portfolio that semains effec sy impahed 45
i tha reparting peariod but which hag not yat been ident hed
as such [IBMR: incured but mot reported) in the bank's sk
systems. As bafoee, Basel § paramaters, adjusted fo the IFRS
gudalines and 1o current developments, are used hae in order
1o determire the provision, An important facoor in determining
ihe general provision i what Is known 35 the Lods Mentiflcation
Pariicd (LIPY Lo, th pavicd Banwesn th time o iodl oy occun
at the chents company and the time the bank has recosded the
Rorss vmnil I its sk syiberns, The LB s ewpeessed In monith and
waries between portfolos
i each r2porting date, management assessss whether thars s
civective evidence that reclasediad loars previously recognised
a5 availabre-for-sale asiets have been impaired,
Fol exposures classifiod a1 corpoeate expdsunes under CRD
IV, expoduies ale measured in accordance with the 'ore
diebor’ principle. This principle entails that the appeoved limi
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fior a detsbor apphes 1o the sum of all exposures - including
dafivatives, guarantess and the ke - of the delbios group in
which the deliod has been eladfied. Debtor groups include
all el who fonm phiet of th economsc entity in which
legal entities and companies aze alfillated with the same
ceganesation, In addigion, the majority sharehclders alse form
jpart of the econamic entity, The one debior” pnnciple applies
aerers all eniities the exposwies of the debior group mus be
ngheded Foar all grous divisions,

2,16 Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwil!

Goodwill is the amount by whach the acouisition price
paid for o subsbdiary o associate excesds the lair valug on
the dazie Rybebank acquised its thane of [he net asse1s and
the cantingent Babilitkes of the entity acquined. With each
acguistion, the cther minority Intedeits afe recognised at
falr wal e or at the proportion of the Mamifiabie assats and
labilities of the acquired entity. Impakment tests are performed
annusally or - it indications so dictate - mone fequently o
detetrning whithet impaiment has occurmed.

Software development casts

Conts related to the development or maintenance of software
ae recognised 3 an expense at the time they are inoured
Costs dimctly Incured in connection with identifiable apd
unique softwars peod ucts ower which Rabobank has contmd
and that will probably provide economa: benelits exceeding
ther costs for longer than & year ane recognised &5 goadwill
and ather intangible assets, Drect costy include employes
oxpenses of the software development tearm, financing and
an appropriate portion of the relevant overhead.
Expenditures that improve the performance of softwane
compared with. their oniginal speifcations e added 1o the
afigingd o081 of the softwane, Softwahe development costs
ana recognised a4 assets and amastised on a linear basis over
a petiod not exceading five years.

Other intangible assels

Otfer infangioks assets are mainly those dentified thigugh
butines combnations. Thiy ace amoetised ower thair terrms.
Rabobank peforms an imgairmient et every yeat based on
axpected futeme cash flows An extraordinary Impalrment loss it
taken If the expected future profits do not justify the book value
of the asset

Impairment losses on geodwill

Duting the fearth quartes of each inancial yoar, of mase
frequently il indications of impasment exiit, goodwill ik tlested
for impadrment by companing the recoverable amount with
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the catrying amount. The highest of value in wse on the one
hand and fair value less sellng coses on 1he ather determnss
the recowerable smount. The definizion of cash Now genemating
uits depends on he type of company aoguiied,

Tha walise of a cash flow geneating unit 1s arrved at by
determining the present value of the expected futume cash
flonws of the cash flow generating unit in guestion at the interest
rale befone tax

Ths s irmpoetan assumpikons used in i cash low modiel
chapend on the input data which reflect differant inancial

and economic variables, such as the risk-lree interest rate in

a country and a premium reflecting the imherent nisk from the
entity concerniad. The varables are determined subject o revew
by management knpalirmenis of goodedll ase mcluded undsy
Trnpairment kises on goodwil'in the slatement ol incorme:

Impairment losses on ather iIntangible assels

O each reporting date, Rabobank assesses whethear thare

ate indicathons of impairment of cther intangibie assets

i such indications exist, Fnpalrment teiting s carniad out

1o deternine whether the canying amaunt of the othet
Inmangible assers b fully recoverable, An imparrment foss B
recognised i the casrving amaunt scoedt thi iecoviralle
amount, Goodwill and software under development are tested
for impaimrment each year on the reporting date or moe
frequently if ndications of impamiont exist, o determine iFany
extraordinary reduction has occurred in their value. bmpakment
lesses and reversed impasiments of othel imangible acses are
included in ‘Other sdministratve sxpenses’ in the profit and
ko ACCoUnL,

217 Property and equipment

Property and equipment for owrn wse

Equipment (farcwn use) is recognised al historical cost net
af accumulated depreciation and impalrments if applicatie.
Proparty {for own use) repiesents malnly offices and ks

alsn recogised at cost sy accumulates depeeclation and

impalermants if applicabla
Each assat is depreciaped 1o s residual valie over 13 astimated
wsedul life:
= Rand Mot dhepreciated
© Busksngs P
Eguiprment, inchuding
+ OOt SUpTREN 1+ 5 yoary
© e e e vehibes A Byean

Fabobank every year assesses whether there are indatang
ef impalrment of propesty and squpment. B she carmying
amaunt of an asset exceeds it estimated mooveraole
amount, the canmying amount is iImmediately writben down
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1o the recoverable amount. Impairment kosses and reversed
impairrments of propedty and equipment ane included under
‘Oriher admindstrative expenses’ n the profit and ks account,
Gadne and kosses on 1he disposal of propety and equipment are
detmined m groportion to their camang amaeunts and taken
inta account when determining the operating result

Repair and maintenance work is chamed to the profil and

lemss socount at the time the relevant costs & incurmed,
Expindiluses on extanding of increasing the benehts from
fand and bulldings cormpared with thelr original bensfits ans
<apitalised and subsequently depreciated.

218 Investment properties

Irvestment properties, mainly office buildings, are held for their
fetg-tenin resial g and are nol used by Rabolbank of i
subsidiaries Investment propeities ane recognibed 4 long-tem
iveestments and included In the statement of financial position
at cost. net of accumulated depreciation and Impairmant.
Irvestment properties are dapreciated over a term of 40 yaars.

2.19 Otherassets

Waork in progress

Wik in progeess i included in 'Other assetd, Work in progress
relates to commescial eal estate progacts as well as sold and
unsa'd howsing projects under construction or planned and

& cadrked at cost plus alocated mienest, net ol provisions as
necessary. Instalments involced 1o buyers and customears are
deducted fram wark in progress i the balance for a profect s
egative (The amount of the ivoiced Instalments exceed: the
capitalived couty), the balance of that praject i recognised as
Crthaor fiabiligles’

G3ing and hesses ae Roognised Based on the percentage of
coim phetion method gheen the contimeses transier of cwneship
Fvwotved. As e constiv Lon work advances, Rabotssnk
transfers contral and maberial risks and benefits of ownership of
the worki I progress in ils curment state 1o the buyer.

Building sites

Buliding sites are valwed at cost, including intesest allocated
ang additional codts relating 1o sie scquisiion and prepaation,
Mo imterest i afocsied for land which ha no specihic
disignalion under a goning plan, IF there is no certainty that
1he land will be developed The price of land does nof incada
the conditional requisement which depends on the future
reclassification of the land In question. For kosses expected
upon the sake of the land, the carrying amount of the shieis
subject boimpainmen.
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2,20 Leasing

Ratobank as lessee

Leases relating to propesty and equipment under which
wirtually o'l tisks andd benefits of ownerhip ane translered 1o
Rabobank are classified as finance leases, Finance leases ans
capitafisad at the incepbion of tha keatse at the fair value of 1he
legsed Fssets or at the present value of the minimam lease
payments i the present value i bwer Lease payments an
apportioned between the lexse labiliy and the finance charges
30 0% 1o achieve & conitant re of intenest an the remaining
balance of 1he labilty. The corresponding leasa liabilities ae
inchaded under 'Gther labilices' after the deduction of fimance
changes The intenest components of the firance charges are
charged 1o the prefit and loss accouwnt over the feim af the
Eeage, A vangitile fved asset acquired undser a leawe agresmsant
I dlepreciated oved ths drselul Die of the st o, if shores, (e
term of the lease,

Leases under which a considerable portion of the ks and
benefits of ownarship of the assets ane retainad by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Opermting lease payments (less
any discounta by the kessart are charged 1o 1he profit and ks
account on i linear basi over the tem of the leae

Rabobark as kessor

Finance leases

M assaty ane leased under a finance lease, the presant vabue of
the lease payments is recognised as a recelvable under Loans
and advances 1o banks' ot Loans and a0vancas 15 Customess.
Thie differencs betwiten thie gross receivadde and the preaent
walue of the recevable is secognied a1 uneamad Arance
Income. Lease incorme s necognised as Interest Income aver
tha term of tha lease using the nal investmant mathod, which
riesuilts i @ constant rate of metum on the investment.

Operating leases

Assets leased under operating leases are included In the
staternent of financial positon wnder ‘propesty and equipment”
The assets are depreciated over thelr expected usefid lives

iy line2 wyith thise of comparable items of propermy and
equipment, Rental income iless discaunts granted 1o lessees
and wite-dawn) 1 recognised under Other rewly’ on a Faear
basks owed the term of the lease,

221 Provisions

Provisions are recognised if Rabobank has 2 presant obligation
{legal or constructive) as a resultof 2 past event, if it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be requited (o senis the
clvigation and If 2 el estirmate can be made of the
amaunt of the abligation, It Rabobank expects a peovision 1o
ke reimbursad, for example under an Insurance centract, the
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eimbursemeant |s recognised as a separale asset but ony Il the
reimbursemant is virrually carcain, The provisions are carriad

at the discourited value of the expected future cash flows

Thet shifivions wo and rebeas of provisions is shown i 1he profn
and loss account under Thber administratiee oxpentes’

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions comgpetie payments unde’ redundancy
st hemies and ciihier ot dingcthy arbutete 10 s ufing
pregramimed, These costs an accounted Tor during the paricd in
wihich a legal o actual payment obligation arses for Rabobank,
adetaded plan has boen prepared for redurdancy pay, and
there are realistic espectations amandg the panies concerned
{hat ihes receganisation will be implemenisd,

Tax and legal fssues

Thee prrvision far tax and bagal ksuwes b based on the best
possshle estimates avalable in the reparting period, taking into
account legal and tax advice. The timing of the cash outflow
of thess prostsions 1§ uncertain becawse the outcoms of the
disputes and the time invalved ame unpredicable.

Other provisions

Thils Bem inchudes provisions for onerows contracts, onedit
guarantees and oblgations under the term of the depaosit
qgusrantee schomao,

2122 Employee benefits

Rabobank has various pengion plans in plice based on the kocal
condilicns and practoed of the countnes in which it aparatied
In general, the plans are financed by payments to insurance
Conmi panias of trustee administened funds as determined by
partodic ac tuanial caloulations. A defined benefit pension

lan (s ane that incorparates 3 promise 1o pay an smount of
pension beneht, which is usually based on several faciors such
as age, number of yoars in servioe and memuneation A defined
conibution plan iy one i the context of which Rabobanic
iparys fived contiibutions to & separate entity (a persion fund)
and acqulres no legal of constructive obligation if the fund has
insufficient assets to pay all the benefiis to emplayes-mambers
of the plan in espect of servded in curtent and past periods

Perston obilgations

The chfigation under the defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit pension obligation in
the reporting pencd after the deduction of the fair value of
fund investments, This delfned benefit obligation is calculatesd
anmagally by independent actuades based an the peojected
unit credit maothod The present value of the defined benefit
obligaton is getermined by the estimated Fuluze outflow of

185 Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

cash furds based on the interest rates of high-guality corporate
bonds with terms which appeoach that of the comesponding
cisigation The majarnity of persion plits M6 Caree-aerage
plars, Thee conts of thise plans Le The net pension chamges
for the period after netting off employee contributions and
interest, ae included undier Saff costs] Mat inberest expenses
of income are ca'culated by 2pplying the dscount rate at the
bBeginning of the year for the aeet of liabe ity based on the
chitfined benefit pension plan,

Acruarial gaing and ladies afing fom actual developmants
of 3 tuarial assumpbions ame recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Defined confribution plans

Undar defired contribution plans, Raboban k pays contributions
inter pubdicly or privately managed peniion insurance plans

o a comipuitony, contraciual o voluntary bals. Once the
cantributions have bean made, Rabobank has no further
payment obligations. The regular contributon are costs for the
waar in which they are due and are includad an this basks under
“Stafl cosys.

Other post-employment obiligations

Some Rabobank busiress units prosdde oiher postemployment
allveances. To become sligible for sich benefits. the wsual
reguirement is that the employes remaing in senvice untl
retirement and has besn with the company a minimum numbsar
of years, The expected cosns of these benefits are accrusd
dufing the years of setvice, bated on & system smilar to that for
chefined benefil penyion plans, The obligations e valued each
yoir by independent actuades.

Variable remuneration

The conts of watlable remunetation pasd unconditonatly and

i Eath ane ecognied iH the year inowhich the employes
rendars the services. The costs of conditicnal payments in

cash are included in stafl costs in the profit and Ioss account

in the pariod during which the employees services are
recelved, which equals the westing period of the cash payrrent,
The Bability s recognised in other Gatvlities. The sccounting
vreapment of aquity inirument-based payrents it disclosed in
Paragraph 223

223 Equity Instrument-based payments

Remuneration for services rendered by dentified stadf is made
i the form of cash payments based on equity instruments that
aie wmilar g0, and have e same charscleristics as, Rsbabank
Cortiheatss The costs of the sendces iecesed ane based on the
awaided equity initruments’ falr value on the awasd date and
ama recalculated annually at the value appiicable at the tme.
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The coits ielated 1o awarding equity Instruments ate
inchaded In staff costs in the profit and loss account during

The employess contract, in the year of sward and the veiting
jpericd of the equity instruments (faur years in totall. The liabiliy
s recognised m other Labilities,

224 Tax

Cunent tae recehvablas and payables ae offiat I thee

i begally enfoeces ble right 10 offset such inerms and il
sirmiuliansous Ireatmant oF sembamant i inTended, Dofeired T
assefs and liabédtess are ofet if there 5 a legally erforceabde
thight 1o offset such itama and if they telate to the same tax
authosty and arise from the same tax group.

Irendsians ane formead in full for deféned tax labdities, using
The Hability method, adising Trom emponey diferences on

hat repoeting date beteesn the fax Bases of the assets and
liabilities and thelr carmying amownts for financial reporting
[DHRIpDses.

The main temporary dfferences relate to the depreciation of
tangible fived assars, the revaluation of cerain financial assets
and labilities, including dervatives, prosisions fof pensians
and athar post-emplaymant bonelity, peavisians far loan koues
and ather impairment and tad kses, and, in connection with
business cominations, tha fair values af the net assety acquined
and thelr tax bases, Deferred income tax assets and Rabilites
are measured at the t&s rales that have been enacied o
substantively enacied on the reporting date,

Deferred 1oy asems ae recognised 1o 1he extent that it i
prodaable 1hat futune taxakle profts will b€ avallable. agains
which the termporary differences can be utilisad,

Provishons are formed i respect of tanable temporary
diffarences associated with investments in subskdisrias,
asociates and intenests in joint ventures, unbess the timing of
e pewier sl ool Bhee lemgodary dilferences can be comiolled ang
it s probabila that the temparany differences will not reverse in
thee foreseeabie future,

Tamas on peofit are catculated in sccordance with the tax
lagistation of the relevant jursdicton and recognised as

an expens 0 the period inwhich the peofit is realised The tax
effects of carrying forsard unused tee logses e recogniwed

au an a1 it in probatale that futune xabie profits will be
avallable against which the losses can be utilsed

Defermd tax asets o delemmed tay labidities are included Inoe the
revaluation of avatlable for-sale financial assets and cash Fow
hedges that ae dirsctly taken o equity. Upon reaBsatian, thay
ame recognised in the profit and koss account togethes with the
tespective defermed gain of ko
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2.25 Due to banks, due to customers and debt
securities In ssue

Thiess Boarowings e initally recognived af faie value Le.

The ssue price bess direclly allacable and non-recurring
transaction costs, and subseguently cartied at amortised cost
inchading transaction costs.

Il Rabobank repurchases one ol Bs own debit Instraments, it

Iy de-recognised, with the difference betwesn the carying
amount of a labiliny and the considenlion paid being
recognised in the proft and 1044 accdunt

2.26 Rabobank Certificates

The proceeds from the issue of Rabobank Certificates are
availabie 1o Rabobank Group in perpetulty and are subordinate
1z a1l laksilivies anct v The Trust Prefecred Securities and 1he:
Capital Securitios. A% the payment of planned distibutions i
fully discretionary, the proceeds from the [ssee of Rabobank
Certificates are recognised as equity. As a result of this, thel
dividends are treated a5 pait of equlty.

2.27 Trust Preferred Securitles and Capital Securities
Thie Trust Profened Securities and Cagetal Securings are
mecognised a3 Equity’ because thehs Iy no formal chiigation
1o {reipay the principal or to pay the divdend. The dividends
paid on these nstnements are shown s part of equity.

2.28 Financial guarantees

Firancial guasanies contracts require the KEued 10 CoMpensare
the hokde dot & loss the birner Incurs Because o specified debios
falks to mest s obligations in accordance with the tms of

a debt security. Such finandal guarantees are recognised the
first fime at fair value and subsequent’y at the value of the
discountied oolgation Under the guoraniee o the higher value
Al st thime, e arrcmsn s reduced by the alisady secognibed
cumulativa resl teshow the accounting peinciples for

the income.

2.29 Segmented information

A seament s a distinguishable componeant of Rabobank that
engages in providing products or services and is subject 1o risks
and roturns that ane diffevent fram thows of othar segments,
This means that they are segments with different risis and
retums which are reviewerd as pant of the strategle management
of Rabobank and for the purpose of making business decis!ons.
The primary repotting format for Rabobank 15 the busness
segment, follwed by the geographical segment.
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2.30 Business combinations

iBumness combinanans are acopunted for an the basis of the
scquisition method, The price of an scquitition i determined as
her e Lary imunt of equivasent agresd for the stquidtion
of the bissiness combination, plus costs directly relating fo the
acquisition If app/icable. Goodwill represants the difference
batween the price of the acquisibon and Rabobank mtenest
i thee Fair value of the dssets, kabilites and conditional
abilities scouired. Gooowil is caplialived and reoogntued

ay an intangible assed. For each business combination, the
minority inteeests are vatued agamnst the share of the company
acguired in the identifiable net axsets. Direct acguisition costs
ane directly chamged 10 the profit and loss sccownt.

231 Disposal groups classified as hald for sale and
discontinued operations

Growps of assels that am separated out and classified as held
fior sale are valued at the cairying amount or, if lower, their fair
value minus the estimated costs of sake. A groun of assets {or
a tieed asset] is split out, classifed as hald for sale when the
catiying amourt will primaily be realived by means of a sales
TARSACTON 35 opposed 10 continued yie This is solely the
il Il the aale B extromaly likaly and the gioup of asel (o

a fined asset] to be hived off Is immediately avallablo for sale
v its current concition, In addition, the management mart
Tharve commitied feself 10 the sale, whaoneby the mipectation

15 that the sabe be complatad within one yaar after the time
al classification at hidd Tor sale. Il a group of assers classied
ay hiekd for sale represents a key business activity o key
geographic region, | is clasiifed as discontimped operationt,
The Eatter are gecsented separtedy from comprehansive income
arsing from continuing operations.

232 Cashflow statement

Cash and balanoes at central banks inchude cash resouces,
money market depasits and deposits at central banks. The cash
Now statement is preparad using the Indlrect method of
calculation and provides detalls of the source of the cash and
Ihalances at central banks that bacame available during the
wear as well as thed application dunirg the year. The net cash
flerw from aparating sctivities is sdpested before teation for
eermes (m thee garchit and loss-accou and changes n lems in e
statement of fmancial position which do nat actually genarate
«cas* flows during the year.

Thee cash flowes from oparating, investing and financing activities
aie stated separately. Changed in loans and receivables,
riterbank deposits, due 1o customers and debt seourities

i Bsn ars accaunted far under cash ews Trom operating
activities Investmaent activities relate te acqubitions and
disposals and repayments on financal Investmenty, as well as
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the acquksition and disposal of subsidiares and progerty and
equipment The procesds from the issue of and payments

o Rabebank Certteates, Tiust Preferred Secusities, Capital
S, Senion Contingent Mabes and wibordinated llnbille,
quaalify & financing activities. Changes on account of axchange
rate differences are eliminaled, a5 ane the consolidation effects
of the acquisition of associates.

The difference between the net change presented in the
statement ef cash fows and the change i cash and Balances a1
contral banks pratented in the statemient of inandial position i
e to enchange rate differences.

3  Solvency and capital management

Rabobank alms 1o maintain a proper kevel of sohlvency Fos this
Pufpose a number of sohency ratios ame uiilised, The prircipal
ratos are the commaon edguity ter | ratio (CETT), the tiar 1 ratia,
the total capital ratio and the equity capital ratio. Rabobank
e (1 onwmn Infemal objectives that extend beyond the
minimaem requirements of the supsnduons, it takes market
expectations and davelopmaents in BQISEATon and reguiations
ino stcount Rabobank Wrives 1o be better than athar hnancial
institutions. Rabobank manages its solvency position based on
poky documents The solvency position and the ohiectives am
poriodically on the agenda of the Risk Management Commiltiee
and the Balance Management Commitize of the Execulive
Board and Supensiory Board.

The 'Capital Requinements Regilation {CRAY and ‘Tapital
Requirements Divective IV (ICRD IV together constitute the
European implementation of the Basal Capital and Liguidity
Accond af 20100 These rubes, which became effective on

1 banaary 2014, are spplied by Rabobank.

Rabobank must compdy with 3 nember of minimum sohsency
poltions as stpulated under law. The solvency positon iy
determined on the basis of ratios. These mittos compare the
opualflying capital (total capial atio], the ties 1 capital (e 1
ratol and thecorecaoiial icommon equiy ter I rabio) of the
Bank with the total of tha risk-adjusted aswts. Effective

1 Fatviary 2004, the minimum requined pencenisges ae
datermined on the basis of CRD WACRR For 2015, the qualitying
capital, tier 1 capital and core capital remain suisject 1o the
minimesm of 8%, 6% and 4. 5% respectively. The |egal buffers
below are applicable as from 2016 These buffers will gradualy
itcrease until thie year 2219, Rabobank s aleesdy allowing for
Thaesa chingies in ity capitad planning. The ke bilow show
the minimium kegal buffers based on the plinnied final situation
undor CAD WACRR
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ooty W el il Liwip e grivetials
Misimaum capital bidfer
Tatal

Cira Tar? wapyeal
Weninar 015 5 i B
Capital cormenvationbuffer’  3018-20% b L3% L5%
Weniream + copatal
conenvation bufle TilFs £5% -1
Coungencyrical butfer! 6219 0% - 2:5%
Syttermia Hak Buffes J016-301% i ETC i

Their efestrmilmation af the isk-swakahted dasets B based on
separate methods for credit risk, operational rsc and markat
sk, The risk-wealghted assets are determined for credit risk
purpses in many different wirys. For most assets the nsk wesght
s determined with refererce 1o intemal ratings and a number
o chasicieristics ypsecific o tha ssset concemmsad, For off-
halance shoet lem the balance shiset equivalent B caleuated
first an the basts of internal convension factars, The resulting
equivaent amounls are then also assianed rsk-weightings.

An Advanced Measurement Appioach model is used 1o
detarmine the amount with respect 1o the risk-waightad assets
for operational i<k, With the market tisk appeoach, the general
ekt rek i bedged, as well a4 the sk of open positions in
fansign currencie, debt and equity instraments, as well a3
commadites. n the abos lisked below sccount has been taken
of the mansitional CAR provisions.

iy viliane of worr s Al
mmmlﬂ 215453 L]
Exgected dvidends AL} nm
Hababank Lrrdcatr S ES ]
Part ol non-coniroling iniesesii treated in

sl capual L] H
Reverery 24 el
Deduiction 15.524) 15240
Tranutan guidince FEIT E¥I]
‘Commaon Eguity Ther 1 capital 18,754 714
Capd L Seciritons 1488 -
Grandisthered imshsmenls BIr Tl
Hen-conibsalling indermcis ] [
Chedusctines (L] m
Tranuitan guidance 11483 [FREFLT]
Tier 1 copitad 15053 A1,HT4
Part-of subordrated Rabibties treaced a1

qualibing capasl V507 11,738
Hon-ronteolling nermds L3 L]
Dedyactinn L] o
Teaniition guidands L] aan
Qualdying capital ELELH] 45,139
Rk woighed assets ETET ] 1870
Cosrweson Ecuitty Teer 1 aabior 13.5% 13.86%
The | rasties L 1w
Tetsl capitaleste FIE s
Eaquity capisl ratio’ T4, T
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The deductions consls mostly of goodwdll, other intangible
fived asses, defered wmay liabdites which depend on future
piafit, thie 1R shortfall for eredin risk adjustrments and
adjustmants 1elating to curmylative profits due 10 changes

o thee bank s cradit nsk an instiuments isseed at market

value (FYPLL In accongance with CAR, a numbser of dedectiors
ate adjusted In the Tiamsition guidance, as these adjustments
aie wat 1o be phased |n afeer foe years for the pediod J014-2018
Thie Trean sticn guiddnce’ Conslits mainly of goodwill, ather
intangitie non-carmént assets, defedred L labilitles depending
o future peofits (|2 non-termporary diffesences) and the IRB
shortfall for credit-risk adjustments

The additional tier 1 instruments lsued by Habobank prior o
2015 do not comply with the new CHR ieguiements. They will
miaid pandiatheding’, This rizans that these inaruments will b
phuased aut Team the cefnition ol solvency tatics, in line with
The satiery mequiements.

4 Risk exposure on financlal instruments

4.1 Risk organisation

Rababank Group manages tiks a1 varou leveds, At thi

highast level, the Executive Board, under the supenviion of the
Supervisory Board, datesmmines the risk strateqy it will penue,
the rise appetite, the policy frramework as well a5 the limits.

The Balance Sheet and Rk Managament Commitiess ars the
advisory and executive committees of the Evecutive Board,

The Supsrdsony Board regularly assesses tha ritks anached

T Thee activities and portiolio of Rabobank Groug. Thie Chigf
Risk Officer, whé i a%o a Mamber of 1he BExecutive Board, iy
responsible for the risk management policy within Rabobank
Giroup Hesponsibility o the gk policy wethin Habobank

Group is speedd acnoss two diectorates Risk Management is in
Chaige of U poficies relating bo inlerest raby, maro, Tguidity,
cutmency and operational risdks, as vwell ag for the policy lor cradit
risks at porticlio level, Credit Risk Management 15 responsible for
the credit risk acceptance podicy at ibem level Furthermaore, the
group entites practise independent tksk management.

1 These pruffers wil phase in duirg the years J016-2019,
Thee ctaantercyclical batler iy capprd &t @ masimun of 25%
by mind couritrbes, il udireg e Nethes barads, the ooundercyclical
buffer for 1EE has been et a0

2 The equityfcapiinl rathas i calculated by comparing the items retained
catrunges and Rabobark Certficaten 10 the risk-weighoed assete
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Risk appetite

Idantifying and managing risks for (05 of0aNSAT0N S an oGy
recew ot Aabobank Fore this purpose an integeated ik
imanagement sirateqy s applied. The rmk management CyChe
inchedes determining risk sppetite. greparing integrated fmk
analyses, and measuring and monitoring fsk, Thraughout this
process Raboband wses a risk strategy aimad at continuity and
designed 1o prolect profitability, maintain solid baksnce-sheet
o ond protect ils identily and regatition,

4.2 Strategy for the use of financial instruments
Rabobank's actiities are inherently related 1o the use of
fimanclal instruments, including derdvatives. As part of 115 servce
Mabeabark takes deposits from customerns with different tenns
paying both feed and variable imenesl rates. W arensprs o
earn Intetedd ncome by investing these funds in high-vatue
A%0es as well a3 by making loans 1o commercial and retall
lbowrowers. Rabobank: siso aims 1o increase these margins
through a postfolio approach of short-term funds and the
allocation to lnans for long-er peniods at higher intarest ranes,
al the wame time keeplng sufbcient cash resources 1o mest all
[y 1hat mikghn fall due

Rabobark improves i intardt income by achisving fonal
margins after deduction of provisions ard by Issuing loans with
avarkety of credit ratings and associated mik profiles. Mot oy
does Rabobank have a crodit sk on the loany showm on the
lbalance sheet. Rabobank atso provides guarantees, such as
lerress of credit, leress of parformance and other guarantes
documents which invohe a credin risk,

43 Interest rate risk in the banking environment
TInteresl-rate fisk in the banking envitonmient efers to the rak
that the financial results andfor the economic value of bank
o, irvestment books and capital books i adversely affeted
by changes in mtenest rates on the money and cagital- markiets,
Bank books contain Bnanclal products and elied devivatives
witiich ame held In ceder 1o ganeraie Interest rate incoime and
the stable growth thereal, Investment books consist of inancal
instruments which are hald for strateqic purposes, inchuding for
he management of solvency ik, intesest tate risk and lguidity
tivk, Capital bocks contain financial instrumenti manced with
hat baanks o Capital

Rabobark accapts a certain amount of interet rata risk in the
barking environment, as this constitules a fundamental part
«of banking, but at the same time the bank also aims to avold
unexpected material fluctuations in the financial result and

e evonamic vishse a4 a result of Berest iate M ualicin,

Theit Execusloe Board, owsesoen by the Supesvisary Boasd,
thenefore annually appraves the risk appetite for interest rate
sk and the corresponding njemest rate risk lamits.
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As part of 113 interest rate risk policy, Rabobank uses the
follow ng two key cntena
= eqiikty &t risk, duration af equity; and
= incor 4 sk the wiinesability of the interes? Income 1o

a graduad increase or decreate in intenedt rates cier the nest

12 months.
Intarest rate nsk at Rabobank acises as a result of discrapancies
it The rraturities and tedme of loans and funds, optian ridk, basy
ik and yiald-cunas tisk. Ay bd@nest rate ik o which chents
ang expotid a3 8 edull of an Inceasa In thel obligation dus
1o mierest e movements has no effect on the level of rsk
Rabobank 15 exposed ko Any negative effects arising from this
ExposulE are regarded asa credir sk
Al groag kevel, Rabobank's inberest rate risk is managed by the
Aster and Liability Commines Rabobans Gioap chaied by the
Chief Financial Officer, The Central Treasury i respansibie for
rmplementing the decidons of this committes, while Geoup Risk
Management s respansible for measurernent and reporting.
Rabobank's interest rate risk arses primarily fiom mostgages
provaded and basiness koans provided with a long feed-
intenest period, Thess mangeged and loans are financed with,
among ather Things, Cuktomears’ auings, Customens’ curment
sctount balanads and with funding pravided by professional
money market and capial maret players, Measurements
of Intevest rate ik are not anly hased on the contac helly
agreed data. but also on customer behaviour in the inberest
rate risk modets that are wsed. Account is therelare taken of
the sarly redempiion of martgages, and demand deposins,
such as balances in immediately callable varlable Interest
savings accounis and credit balances in payment accounts and
business curnent aocounts, are modefled using the replicating
partioiio mathod. This method ts used 1o select portfolios
cf meaney and capital marke? instruments that mait closely
teplicate the Behaviour of the balance sheet ilerms,
Thee difindion used bt managing miemesl rale fisk vares from
the IFRS defiriion of equity. For intenost rabe risk managemant,
the economic value of equity is defined as the present value
of the assets l=ss the present value of the llabllitizs pliss the
present walue of the off-balance-sheet items Throwgh the use
of hedge accounting and due o the fact that a lage portion
of this Bsalarce thaot is ated at amartised cos fin (FRS wormi)
anvid g fraam b inherent countisparty rak thenfone does
niat change in value, the effects of the calculated impairmants
oo [FRS capital will be lamely restricted to an impact on int2nest
Income. Paragraphs 4.3.1 and 4.3 2 provide further details cn
“Incormie at ik and Eguity at rid’ trends
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421 Income at Risk

Ircome at risk iy cabow ared once a maonth based on a standard
nterest-rate-tendithity anahyir, This analysis shows the

maln deviation, in a negative seme, of the projected intenmes
ancome over The next 12 months a3 a result of 3 scenaria in
which all money market and capital market interest rates
apabualy Increase by 2 percentage paints and of 2 scenario
i which all monéy market and capital market inlenen mtes
giadually decrease by 2 percentage points. The projected
rhenedl rabe Incom |5 baked on a scenario in whikch all
interest rabes and other rates remain equal Theoughout the
whole of 3015, Rabobank's interest income was vulnefable

10 & decraze in interest rates. On 31 Decamber 2015, the
incomme at risk amounted 1o only EUR 19 million. Thes was

also the Irighest value measured in 2015, The income o sk
Ieinig a0 lonw B ity duie 1o he Basc prermiue that intesest
rates will ne kenger show a signficant decline when they

ame already (partially) in negative temitory. Ror this reason, an
31 December, it was assumed that the eurs atenest rates would
anly sea a dacling of a maxmum 2 basis points instead of

A dechne of 200 basis points, On 31 December 2014, 3 decline
af o maxirmism af 2 batls points wad alis mplemented.

The effecti on intereal profit may be greater if not all infems
rales ncrease of decrease equally.

Thee kzaw InEedest mte environment received extra atbention
duming 2015 For a bank In genaral a low interest rate
environment ks challenglng for the profitablity. Obligations
wiithaut race of interesr, a5 1he squity and cuent sccoum
Ibalances, are bess profitablie in the event of kow Inferest rakes.
I 2015 the interest 1ate was aven negative on the shart part
of the curve. In addition, a iow Interest environment (s often
accompanied by a flattening of the curve resutng in that

a bank rakes less predit on the tmnsformation of shor-tima
aalalipabiains o onges lenmn absets Soenaric amalysls shoms thal
a further interest rate decling and flatening of the curve ha
nagative consequences for the interest income of espedially the
tetall business in case of unchanging margins. The impact of
this increases If this unique situation continues or il the curve
bacormes moe nagatiee

A1 Becembae 7 ecemiber
2015 L

3 bpdeclirn 3 bp decline
" [}
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432 Equity af Risk

The equity ar riskor duation of equity indicates by whart
percenage thie econamic value of egquity will Tl il the manisy
market and capital market interest rabes increase by one
percemage point. The Executive Boand has w67 a lower limit

of 05 and an upper Hmin of &% for this pupose. Additional
lemiis pply for the basis pont senstivity of equity and the
dhalta prafile for equity. In 2015, equilty at risk rose from 0.4% o
24%. This rive was masnly caused by an increass In the namber
of modlgagh, Morljegs extensions snd cuitomers shift in
preference towards konger fixed-interest periods.

A1 Db 1 Dppermibay
Kars A
pF oY (758
4.4  Credit risk

Credit nsk s the sk that a countenparty is unable 1o mest

a financial or other contraciual obdgation vis-3-vis the bank
Cradin risk by inhetent to granting loans. Positons in tradeable
asseti such i bonds and shares ae alio subject to credi rivk.
Habobank restnicts 98 credit risk oxposuee by setting limity

for loans o an individual counferparty, or a group of
counterparties, a5 wel as for lpans 1o countrles, The fou-eyes
principle is a key factor when granting loans. A multl-level
commptTee strsctune i an place ro make decisions on magod kan
applicaions The Compaen] commimee i chosen on the Bayls
cf the size of the loan. Decisont on the Wigay [oant are made
derecthy by the Executive Board,

The credit fisk exposure relating to each irdoadual boamower &
further sestricted by the use of sub-lirmits 1o hedge amoants ot
rirk, 1yl all of i hy e adiscboned in M staternent of inancisl
ponition, and the use ol daily dellvery rive imirs for tading
fema such as forwaid cunrency contracts Modtof the nesulting
itams are tested against the limits every day,

Once a loan has been granted, It s continuatly subiect to ceedit
management as part of which new information, financial

and athier, 1 reswed, The creda imits are adjusted whiss
neceuany. Rabobank abraing collatesal of guarantoes for thie
majarity of leans

447 Maximum credit risk

The rable balow $ets Oul The maximiem cradit risk to which
Habobank is exposed on the reporing date in espectof the
various categonies al 15k, without taking inio sccount any
collaterall of athes meksunes Tar res g ting credit risk it Jlso
shows the financial effect of any collateral provided or ather
types of credit risk reduction
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I some cases the amounis stated deviate from the camying
amaounts because tha outstanding equiny INSTIUMENTs are not
ncheded (49 the masmum credin risk

s U gross CAPT ik e rk reduction
stk e 2008 $51T Jars 2014
Canh ard balances b ¢ereal Basi M 38000 L] e
Loun ard sdvanoei 1o banks ETRIT] 45961 E30 s
Deriwat e a1l S0.480 B e
Losna and sdvance ko curiomers aiasis 4,007 o ]
Avalatie fre-sale frmraial 455ty 2t 1mA0 % =
Subkstal 838,71 BaE,140 T Lt
Creclit reluted and contingent Lstsliies SLInk Sy e s
Tl TOLOET HORTRT s L1
442 Lenging
Rabobank has a dgrificant market share o private jecios
fending: these kan ta private irdiiduals account for 45 of
private sectod lending. Thase loans have a low risk profile as
eyidenced by the actual losses Incurred, of B4 basis points.
In 2015, the proportion of the private sector kending alocable
1o the lood and sgriculbual sectorm was 230, At year-end 2015,
The proportion of prose sector lending allocatde 1o Trase,
inchuritry aad sendoet was 28% The 'cand ta trade, indusitry
and sarvices and loans 1o the food and agricutiural secton
ae spread over 2 wide mnge of mousties in many ditferant
coundrics. Mong of these shanes ropresents mare than 10% of
the total private sactor lending,
by milant o eures 005 e
Tetal loans and ady ey ASEANE 481,787
O whith: 1 gereemment chenty 1155 135
reverr repuchae B anasctions and securities horowieg F k] IR
iR rale heckpes | hedge acconrsmg) RUST 11,616
Leana o privats clients LFLSE amm
Thin can be brokes down grographicaily ai follows;
The Metherands BIRE LY LY A Tin
Fest of Europe FILTT] 1Y FrEF] 2
Hcrth Amweric AL ey FTRE ] W
Latr Ameria 1LH1 bl 11,273 ™
hsla A0 ™ 9,234 Fod
Austraka s L1T% L4 T
Alica fT . M o
Tastal AI61ET 100% AT 10
Rrenkdown of loans by business sector
Peieate indivschant 207867 duw 0788 e
Trache, ivctunibsy and wereioe T F1s 136,004 o
Food ssd agri BT 1% L0 FilY
Tatal A26.157 100% AR TH 100
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443 Denlvatives

Rabohark sets strict limats far open positions. in amaounts as
well as in farma: IFFS0A Dnternational Swaps and Darivatives
Associaton) ssandasds apply of o master sgreament including
equbvaent e has been concluded with (e counteipey,
and I the jurisdiction of the counterparty permits effsening,
the niet open postion ks monitored and neparted. This credit
sk Is managed as part of the general lending limits for chianis.
‘Whese needed, Rabobank cbiaing collateral or other safequands
with respect 1o credit risks inkerent in these ansactions,

Thee eredit risk exposure represents the curnent fair value of all
QPN defivative Cantracls showing a posithwe maiker value,
taking iInto account master netting agreements enforceable
fzncler Law,

186 Rabobank Amssl Repoct 2005
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4.4.4 Collateral and credit management methods

The credin rsk Rabobank s exposed oo s eestriceed in par by
cvtaining collateral whete necessary. The amount and nature
of the collatesal requited depends partly on the asessment of
The credit risk of the loan 1o the countemarty. Rabobank Todaws
grrdalines for the purpose of accenting and valuing different
types of coflateral. The major types of collates! ane;

Resiidential martgage collaterad;

Maregage collateral on immaable propary, pledges on
movable progerty, inventones and recelvablas, mainly for
business loans

Cash and secweities, mainly for securities lending activities
and revedse regrurchase ransactions.

Thi management monitors he matkot value of collataral
cislained and reguires additional collateral where necessay,
Rabobank also uses credil derivatives to manage credit risks.
Rabobank further Emits its exposure to credit sk by entering
It master nefting amangements with counterpanies for

a significant wolumme of traivsac tions, In general master
natting amangéments do not losd o the offwiring of asees
and labilities included in the statement of nancial podition
bocause Transactions are uswally settled gross. The credit rsk is
lmited by master netting arangements, but onby 1o the extent
theat if an event o cancellaion ooours, all amounts involing
the counterparty are frozen and settled net The total credin
sk expodune af Rababank from derivatives 10 which offsetting
arrangements apply s Fghly sensithee to the closure of new
tiansactions, the lapse of asisting transactiens and fluctuations
I markiet interest and exchange rates.

The tanls below shows offiats which have been applied 0

the conselidated balance shoet [IAS 32 Ofserting) and offsers
which Bave not been ageplied in ihe Consolichaled Balsnie
shipat, Tha remaining affunts comlyt of wecuritios Rababank had
received from neverse repurchase transacbions and secusities
Habobank has provided in redation to loans for repunchase
tranzactions
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445 Off-balance-sheet financial instruments

The guaraniess and standby letiers of credit which Rabobank
prevides 1o thisd panies in the event a client cannot fulfil ns
abligations va-h-vis these third partles, are expoied to credit
ik, Documantary and commerncial letters of cradit ancd written
undertakings by Rababank on behalf of cliants authorise third
{parties to draw bills agaimi Raoobank up to 3 foeed amount
subject o specific conditkns, These ransactions ane backed

Iy the delivery of the underlying goods 1o which they relate
Accorgingly, the gk endposure of such an instaument i less than
that of a deect loan,

Cioligations io sue loans at a specific inlerest rate for a set period
ame included among the lendar s ocbligations. They ane sccounted
fic a5 such, unless these obligaticns do not continues after the
pancd expaciad robe nesdad 1o camy ul suitable accepranca
procedunes. After That period iy are teated 4% anRctions
avcording to slanckied maket conventions. Tabobank s exposed
1o eredit risk when it promiies [ grant lending tacilities. The sim
af such losses Is kess than the totad of the snused commitments
Ibecause the promises 1o grant credit fclties are made subject
1o the clients meeting certan condifons that apply o loans.
Rabioban k monitons the 1e3m 1o exply o credit priamises BesCaire
Ry« tesbm, COmemimens ane qendrally e iat e winh a highes
ik than short-tem commiiments

197 Notes to the consakdated fAnancial starements

4.4.6 Credit quality of financial assets

in its fimancing approval process, Rabobank Grow uses the
Rabobank Risk Rating, which reflects the risk of failure or the
probability of default (PO} of the boan relation over a perhod

Gf one year, The tatile befow shows the [oan quasty (afper
diduction of the bad-dobt provison] of the loan-rekted
talance sheet ltems The loan-guality calegories are determinied
o the basks of the miemal Rabobank Risk Rating The Rybobank
Risk Rating consksts of 21 perfarmance rtings RO-A203 and

S afault ratings (01 -Ck8), The perfodrmancs rtndgs ans

finked to the probability that the client will default within

a period of one year, whetelry the rating is determined, in
principle, on a cyclically neutral basis. 01-D4 ratings refes

1o default classifications, 01 reprasents 90 days' arrears; 02
indicares a high peababilty that the debios 15 unable o pay:

D3 indicates tha debiods mab iy to meat its cammitménts

atvid that thetr peopet es will most Bkely be sold odf; and D
Indicates bankruptcy status. The dafault ratings make up the
1ot impaived exposure. The ‘viinerable’ categaorny consists of
performance ratings which have been cancelied but which
Fave not undemone Impairment.
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447 Forbearance
Rabobank has developed a policy for Menitonmg it cemency
paifolio every quartes, This porifolio corsists of the cusomen
of Rababwank far wharn forbearsioe misrures have been put
in place. The méasutes undes thal ngme comprise contesslons
1o debitors facing orabaut to face difficultias in mesting thesr
financial commitments. A concession refers toeither of tha
fallowing actiony
« A modification of the predous terms and condTions of
a coniract the debtor i unable bo comply with due tails
Fnancial difficulties (‘bad deot’] in order 1o alkow fior sufficient
debt senaceability. A moddfication that would not have been
granted had the debtor not been in financia difficultye
+Aiodal o pan Gial refinancing of a bad debi contract, wiech
would not have boen granted had 1he debior nat been in
Francial difficulty,
Examgdes include postponements of repayments and
autensions of the term of a facility. The rationale for the focus
on thix porticlio derves from the concems of Europsan
Tegulators about the detenomtion of the quality of the portiolio;
it s feared 1hat forbearance measures might camouflsge this
datedicention of the porrfolo as debton are able 1o meet
thair financial abligations for langir petiods a6 o eult of the
concessions. The identifcation of forbearance measunes for
1he corporate postiolio s hased on the purens Loan Cuality
Classification framework, with forbearance moasutes onby
applying 1o the classified porifolio. If forbearance measures
are appdeed 1o @ debio, the debror falls, by defininon undar
the superdsion of the Special Asset Management department.
Lastly, itemis i the fosbearance category must be repodied on
for up to twaoyaars after thelr recovery from ‘non-performing’ to
‘perfarming’, This period of wo years Is referred 1o as Forborme
wder probaton’

448 Trends in the real estate porifolic

Rabobank’ portfolio of commenclal neal estate In the Netherlands
s managed by FGH Bank and the local Rabobanks

The commercial real estate market showed some signs of
regovery in 2015 The demand of eal estate users for effices and
Iusingss premides incteased slghthy although it rermnains low

hmll'u-udnl_#
O 31 Dacombar 3015
o ehewwnr 51 et Pnsleingg ot

Irrvintrraent gty of Pty legient

Tosed drveatment pd op=sriy

Propery de 36 i ot Ering Bl
Propesty devel A property ey

Totad progicty divelopment

189 Mates ta the consaktated fAnancial statements

frosm a historical perspec tive. The supply of ermpity buldings ts
decraawing, bath for offices and retall space, This 15 nat the resul
of an increated growth in demand, bt s due to 3 combBination
o b FaL Do e Bnidiatbaes bo convert vacant bulding;

ared oy bl of new housing devaloproent. Henwaver, rontal
peices ane shill under peessure in areas outside core locations in
lame cites. This has ked bo an increasingly visible cemancaton
bebween hopeless, dissdvantaged and high patential properaes
Leang wistem Dencls such as germcgaaphic ageing, e New Way
el Woiking' and onllne shopging e 3l important facton in this
ceyelopment. The pressure on retall propaerty will continue for
1he coming yeass, in particular cawsing difficulies for mid-market
retall chaing. This i In contrast 1o the positive demand on the
Enestment skde, in which these i significant actwity fiom both
aormaile and inemnational investoes. Low nterest rates and
limited netunng on other ivestment segments & stimulating
Emvestments in real estate, All real estate wegments are in demand
among irvestors. Under the cument markat conditians, the
guality of the commeanclal r2al estate portfiolko ks showing signs
of stabilisat on, especially in the second half of the pesr wherehy
1he alore-mentioned division in e market shows dfferences at
sub-serof level.

Within Rababank Group, rmom attenticn had Been paid 1o

1he management of the commercial real estate portiolio in

the Metherdands. Stes have akeady been faken in recant

yoars o tighien the financing, revision and apprmisal policies.
At the baginning of 2015, within the context of Ore Rabobank,
& wishon that will see the burdiing of Rabobank's activities o
create optimal customer service, it was disciosed that FGH Sank
wold be intagrated with Rabobank 35 a centre of expertise,
The pieparations for this process ana in full swing. The table
prowddes insight Into the commercial real estate loan porfiolio in
e Methedands on 31 December 2015,

The Propeerty Development segment B presented separately.
Th lending by Rabotkank in Dhis subesector was eatnoly low
with EUR 1.9 billian (3014: 2.3)

The cosnmsercial real estate porifolo of Rabobank in

the Metherdands fell agaln In 201 5 This was mainly due 1o
repaymanty, disposalufwrite-downs, the sale of leans and

a lower ik appsatite,

G e fpan

Nt ko perizneng.
pertinka fani Prowrsont: chargen Weite-clowm:
T LE 1 SES L] Ly
TR 1814 1048 4 anr
21533 S080 1838 134 i
(2] 44k e ) LH
1,1 iy L3 ;] L]
1885 Ay a3 n [ 2]
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* Thes table above only pieienis the ipecifc cosiy ol cedes losses and specific prosision.

Ir recent years, the developments in the markset caused

a significant deterioration in the qualiny of the portiolio, which is
ieflacted i the Increased level of conts for credin losses, The year
2015 has bebee charac tetted by & chear biluscation of the
petiifolic. On the one hand, the Increased interest from investon
s cawsed some sub-marksts 10 botiom out of 10 even show
signs of recovery. Tha peovisions already made in respect of this
jpart of the portfolio peoved 1o be adequate On the other hand,
structisral probilems in other sub-markets has caused conbinuing
Igghearr costs foe credit lodses

Mezarly the entine teal eitate portiolio autside the Netherlands

s provided by ACC Loan Management. This portfolo s being
gradually scaled down, In 35, the additional allocations to

thie prondsion for credit kosses for this portfolio were Fmitad
{EUR 40 millian). Rababank expects to make a fiew furthar
iprewvisions in 2016, Attt ot a lower level than in previous years

4.5 Currency risk in the banking envirenmaent
Cumency risk s the rsk that the banks financial result and’

of economic value will be negatvely aflected by changes m
exchange rates

Rababaank iy exposed w the effectof fucluations in exchange
rates on bts Anancial position and cash flaws. In the trading
environment, curency risk, ke other market riscs, b managed
an the basts of Value at Risk {VaH) lmits set by the Executive
Board, In the banking emvionment, there is a currency risk in
the banking boois and a translation sk

Curerdy riik m the banking books is the risk thal mandests
irseif a1 the meenent receivabies and labdinies arg not covensd,
st 10 which cumency Auctuations may have a negative Impact
an the fingrc al results of the bank. Rabohark's palicy | o hilly
hadge the materlal currency risk on the banking books.
Translation risk becomes evident when the bank's consolldated
balance shest and results ae prepaned, wheneby all iems in
foreign currenches mus be valued in ewos This makes the
financial data sensitive 1o exchange e Tuciuxtions. Trandation
ik manifests itiel in two giffarent ways within Rabobank:

00 Rabobank Annwsl Repon 2015

« Bachange rase fluctuatons can potentially afiect the value of
cansohidated entities of which the functional currencies are
Fial U,

Exchange rate fluciuations may allect the wobency tiliod

of Rabebank as 2 result of differences In the exchange rate
camiposition of the capital and the risk-welghted assets.

Translation risk and curmency fsks in the bank ng books are
monitared and managed on the basis of 3 policy which serves
thee prima purpose of pretecting the Commean Equity Tier | ata
agairat the ddwerse effects of exchange rate wolatility,

46 Liquidity risk

Rabobank is exposed to liquidity risk Le. the risk that the bank i
wabile 1o reet all of its (relpayment obligations in good time,
a5 wedl a5 1he risk that the bank is unable o freflinance asiers
ol reasonable prices of &t all. This could happen i clients or
professional counterpartied suddenty withdsaw mon funds than
mipeched, which cannot be met by the bank's cash nesounces
and when salling or pledging asets or bormowing funds from
thisd partes also providos ne solution.

Falscbaanih b bty tecomgisesd Hguicding rlak as & imajor sk
type. Rabobank herefone has a policy whaneby the tern of

the funding matches the term of the loans granted. Long-term
Eoans must be financed through Tunds entrusted by customess
or long-term funding through prefessional markets.

Liquidity risk is managed on the basis of three pillars. The first
of thiese pillars sets arict lemits for the aulgding cash Nows
within the wholetale Bankeng Butiness Among other things,
Rabobank measwes and repor ts on a daily bBasls whal iIncoming
and oitgaing cash flonws can be expectad during the firg
twelve months A limit framework applies here too. Inondar 1o
be prepared for potentlal crisks situations, a number of detalled
contimgancy funding plans [CFFs) are in place, These CFPs are
included inthe inlernal 1es procedures,

The second pillar 1§ used 10 malntain & substanial buffe of
Fiquidl assets, be addition ta the hands held at central banks,
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these assets can be used 1o borrow from central banks, used

i rEp0 ransac nons of in order (o sell diesc thy in the market

i arder 1o immediaiely generate Bguidites The e of the
Rty Duaffer 15 relaned 1o the risk 10 which Rabobsnk iy
axpoied through it balance sheet. Rabobank Group hai
internally securitised a portion of its kan portiolio which maans
it can be pledged from the central bank and therafore serves

a5 an additional lquidity buffer, Since this concerns intemal
seuifisatany, wobely o Ry puorposes, thiry s nol visials
in tha econamic balance sheet but are includad in the available
ity buffer

Thee third pillar entails the restnction of iquidity sk through

a prudent fundng palicy aimed at meeting the financing
ieguiiements of the grouph units at acceplabde cost
Divessification af sources of fundirg and cumrencies, feibeding
of the funding instruments applied $no a hands-an iretor
elations approach are key lackors, This prevents Rabobank
Group from being cverly dependent on a singha source

off fumding
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Furthermong, scenario analyses are performed each month

1 calculate the possibla conseguences of a wide rangs of
st soenanot Mot only markel-wpeciic woenadios, but akio
Raplaabank-speciie, o well ax & combination af e scenasios,
are analysed. Monthly reports on the liguidity position of the
Group as 3 whole ate submitted 1o the Dutch Central Bank.
Thess reports are prepared in accordance wath the guidelines
deaen up by thit suservesony authority

Thie talsle balow shows the nan-ditcounted labilities of
Rabobank grouped accouding o the temadning liquidity
period between the reporting date and the expected contract
repayrment date. The total amaunts do not coraspond exactly
with the amournits in the consolidated staresnent of inandial
podition because this Table i bated on nen-discounted cash
flows related to bath principal and future mienes! payments,
‘Diervatives and olher trade llabililses” have ol been analysed
cn the bashs of the contraciual due date, becawrse they are not
essential for the management of bguidity riek and for ieporting
v the Rabobank management

b ez & i Ot hpresctrnd
Cin ¥ December 2015

Linbifities
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Drae o cundaeery Febh bl
Dbyt s urities In fsvse 187
Coahet listsliziey (pacloing empioyes benefity 1411
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Financial guarariess 15432
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it b ks LA
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Finarcial Labsfities devgnited o lak vabes 38
Subnrdnated lLshiities

Total Arsnalsl Nsbilities FEFET
Financisl guaramess 11828
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The fabile balow shows the grouped assets and llabilities of Rabobark according to the period remaining between the eporting
dare and the contract repayment dace. These amaunts correspond with the statemen of financial posiion.

Cantract repayment dote

Lezg sham I rvewerie Livager than
vy mhilanns o euros Ot dherruaral 1 movive T | v 1 Sypoan §yean Teeal
G " Dnperribes 301 5
Financiel assety
Canh st balances ¢ £rvtril Bank AL e 1384 ] . - Lot
Lo and acvances 80 banky AT FINED] 157A 1,000 L] n.ang
Financiil st held for trading 144 57 139 1,689 123 3472
Finanglal sty debgrated ot far vahae L} wr 11 LLE] 1,000 FRL L
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Dot 6 CursReTIETS: PRI At 108 VLER 12550 A 137,558
Doetot s nthes b e "z AL FrE 60,730 EETLT] 174,951
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The ovarview presented on the previous page, has been
compased on 1he bass of conmacrual informatian, No acoount
e Been mhen of the actual amaunt of the vanows Baanoe
shinet |berms This b taken into account fod thie day-1o-day
managemaent ol the liquidity risk. Customer savings ame

an example Under contract, these are payable on demand.
[Experience has shown that this s & very stable sowce of
leeney-term financing that Rabobark hat & its dispesal,

Theet sesulationns of Uhe supervisory authority abso fectorn this in,
O 31 Decarrbar 3005, an the basis of the liquidity eriteia sot
Iy the Dutch Central Bane, Rabobank had 2 substantial liquidity
surplus. This was the case throughout 2005, The average
ity surplus was 23% (2014 26%] of the total 1-momth
lepuility requiremznt. On 31 Decermibes 2015, the surplus was
155 (2014; 73]

Thie Bepudlity requiremants 1o meet payments under finand lal
guarantees ate contiderably levwer than thie amaunt of the
lizbilities becausa Rabobank does not generally expect that
third parthes to such arrangemeants will draw funds. The botal
cuistanding amount incontiac mal obligations fo provde credit
dioes nat necesssiily represent the futume cash resouice neads
of Rabobank because mary of these abligations wil lapse or
Terminald withaut hinancing being required,

47 Market risk in the trading environment

“Wharket righ bn the trading envitonment’ refers to changes in the
value of the trading book as a resubt of, among other things,
chamges in interesn mies, credin spreads, fofeian cumencis

and shate prices, Analyses of the market risk in the bank book
ame included in Pasagraph 4.3 ‘Interest-rale riik in the bankirg
environment'and Paragraph 4 5 ‘Cunency risk in the banking
enyirnmant’

Al the consolidased level, the risk |5 represented by the Value at
ek (WaRD, bask point sensitinaty and event fsk, The Exscutive
Baard annually ratifies the risk appatite and the comesponding
lumits. These limits are converted Inio limits: at book level

and are manitored cally by the market risk managemant

and event risk limits, an extrermely detalled systam of trading
controls pes book 15 in place. including rotation nsk (e rsk that
1 yiedd curve will shifil, defta bmits per bucket, nominal

Bemiits amdd the maximem number of Conracts, This risk position
I reported to the senior management on a daily basls and
discussad in the vanous risk management committess on

a manthly besis.

The Walt ineticatis, bused on ane year of histoscal markes trends,
the mgdmurm bess Tar o given reliability level ard hevizon

under normal marke: conditions. The internal Voft modet

forms an integral part of the risk management framework at
Rabobank. This internal model has alse been approved by DNE
1 dheterrnine the solventy reguirement fon madket risk in the
vracding book Rabobank has opted 1o apply aVal based on
historical simulation for which one yeas's worth of hintoric data
ks wsad, The VaR 5 calcubaned oves Time hosizons of both one day
and tan days. For interral sk management purposes, Rabobank
has opted for a conficence leve! of 97.5% Funthermore, the Val
with a confidence level of 99% s also calculated on a dally nass.
A sgnificant sdvantage of aVal model based on histosicsl
sirmukarion & That no Fiumprion s nesd 10 b madi with

régard to tha disttibulion of patontial value adjustmants for

the warkous financal Imruments, A drawback is that a choice
nasds o be made with mgard ta the perins ol hiskonical

market trends which could potentially affiect the amount of

1he Vall as calculated. Based on the requiremenis Imposed by
the requlator and fedlowing our cwn research, it was decided

1o use an hstorical period of one year, Back testing is used in
orler 1o 1241 the actual oulcomes on a regulat basis in order

1o deterrnine the validity of the assumptions and parameters!
factoes used incalculating the vail

The table below presents the compedition of the Val. The Valt

it divided intoa number of companents. A diverity advantage
s pchiwed im this case by the GDpoSing posiions of vanous
books which partially cancel each ether out. The avoerage VR
roze fiom ELIR 3.8 million in 2074 o EUR 4.8 milllion in 2015,
The Vak remalned wall within the lmit of ELR 40 million

dzpartments In sddition to the Valt, basis point sensithity theoughout 2015

Va1 dey,77.5%)

in milfipen of purcs Irdenent [ Crrenies Thaes Commodine  Dévendfinetion Tatnl
2015+ 31 Deceniber 43 12 04 04 ol [1E ] 51
04K - avmragpe 43 L 03 Lk ar nfis an
2015~ bighest LT ] o o uw ar e L%
015 howein 15 o7 ol 02 [ ¥] [ 15
2014-31 December i o (1] 07 a3 [1F] iz
044 avesnge 15 13 (3] T a4 na 15
3014- Bighrat 184 2 09 2 a9 e 13
014+ haweik 4 o oo (3] al L M
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Im addition o the Vall, there ane savaral other key risk indicators.
Thee Interest rate dela indicates how The valus of the rading
Ibook positions changes il the yied cune moves in paralie) with
a | bays paint increase, The table below shows thee poiitions
far each magsr currency.

b il s 2015 004
Lura (1] o
155 bt ) nx
Britrsh penand [N oz
hes ot 00
Total in4) 05

48 Operational risk

Habohark detiney apesifiona ek as the risk of losses incusied
ay 3 mesult of ingdequate or dysfunctional internal praceises,
people and systems. or as a result of external trends and
davelopmants. Potential legal risks and reputational riaks are
considerad in the asessmant and management of cpeational
sk,

I measuring and managing opetational sk, Rabobank Groug
aperabes withen the parametens of the most advanced Basel

W ap=proach, the Advanced Measurarment Approach, ko the
managemant of operatloral risks, Rabobank follows the Thee
lines of defence modal as prescribed by the EBA.

The bank's cperational risk policy ks based on the principle
that the prirmary responiibibty far managing opesational ik
R with thie fiest Bine and 1hat thes mut be integrated o

the sirtegic and day-1o-day deciion-making proceiset

The purpose of operational tisk management ks to identify,
mEasure, mitigate and manitor varows types of operation|
ke Thee ik quantification process fupports the managemaent
tespanisibile for pricaitising the scliom to be underiaken and (e
allacation of paople and meaunes

Within Rabobank Grown, the departments invobed in the
primary processes of the bank foom the Tist line of defance’
They ae fully iesponsible for day-to-day risk acceplance and
for integrated risk mansgement and mitigation acooming 1o
he estabilebed mak appetne, The risk management funcliens
within the group enmies and withan Bk Managomaent sogether
constitute the second line of delence’, The rlsk management
functions hawe a manitoning mbe with ragard to risks and st
“thiz first line of defence” with respect to the way inwhich they
manage risks. in addition, thay enort on the risk piofilz (o the
managemant and 1o the Execulive Board, independently from
e st line, Ingemal audits form the Thid ling of delence’

A grou kel 1he Non-Financlal Risk Comemirmes (NFRCI s
respansible for formulating polficy and setting the paramaters.

4 Rabobank Amnssl Repon 2015
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In addition, Tsk Managemsant also reports each quartar to the
WFRC on changes In operanonal risks an group level, A numbss
of rlsk managemant commitbeds have been estatdnhed within
The group’s entities, Their responsibiftes inclede monitoring
oparational risks (including sistem continuity rsks 1T secunty
visks and fraud risks) of the relevant enting

The yearly risk management cycke consists ol ameng olher
things, a group-wide Rk Sell Assessrrent, inwhich the e
impartant openational risks ane inventoned and, if the riis fai
caitsido the risk sppetite, ket which millgating médiued ate
ldentified based on swcenano analyses with senor managers of
the enthe Rabobank Groug, In onder to gain inslght inbo the risk
profile of the group,

49 Falrvalue of financial assets and labilities

T ferlienaing talvhe shacrct the falr value of Bnancial mstramenis,
recognised at amartised com on the basts of the valisation
methods and assumptions detalled below. This table is Included
because not all financial instruments e recognised at falr valus
b the balarce sheet Fair value represents the price that would
have been eceived fof 1he sale of an asser of that would have
een paid in ordes 1o transdes a lsbility in o sandard 1anaaction
conducted between markel participants on the valuation date
Fou Balr vavue misa e ment Habobank assumes tat the
transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the labifity b conducied
b the key maske: [or the asset of llabikty. Alternativedy, in the
most advantageous market if there i no key market,

Mharket prces are not available for 5 lasge number of the
financisl asse1s and llabilines that Rabobank holds of kuses.

For financial intruments for which no market prices am
availabde, the fair values shown in the following table have
been estimated wsing the present value o the results of other
estimation and valuation mothods, based en the market
conhilleris on the ieponing dabe, The values produied

using thirse mathods are highly sensitive 1o the undilying
assumplions wsed for the amourts a5 well a5 for the timing of
future cash flows, discount rates and possible madket iiliquidity.
The following methods and assumptions have been used.

Cash and balances at central banks The D vabue of cash
and batances at cental Banks 15 assumed 1o be almest egual to
thair carrying amount. The Jumpnion i used for highly Biquid
Investments and akio for the short-term componen of all other
finarcial assets and llahilines

Loans and advances te banks. Loans and advances o banks
abko inClisdes interbank placings and ILems o be collectadl

The far wabues of floating mie placings and ovemight deposits
are their cairying amounts The estimated fair vatue of fosd-
ntenest deposits o based on the present wilue of the cash Mo,
calculslad on the bashs of appropriate money marke! infedet
rates for debts with comparable credit risks and terma 1o maturity,
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Financlal assets and derlvatives held for trading (120l
assets and deswatives hedd for rading are carred a1 fair valee
lbased on avarlable quotcd market prices, P quotod marke
prices ane not avallable, the Tar value b estimated on the bass
of discounted cash Tow models and option valuation models.
o darivatives, the bank factoss in counterpanty sk and its o
creditworihingss: tn estimanng countsrparty nse, Mabobank
wies thie Latest masket data, including CO% curves and Manis
‘Carlo smulations. Ancaher facio: that s tken oo socount

i Tuncling valuation adjustmants (FYA), PV concennd the
valuation diffesence between transactions hedged by securitles
and trensacticns not hedged by secwities. Collateralised
transactons are valued by means of a discounting curve, based
i e cvednighl incen: sgaead. Non-coRaneralised vansactions
ane walsed by means of a discounting curve, Based on Euribed
Libar plus a spread which reflects the market conditions
Financial assets designated at falr value Thewe financal
assets are canied at falr value based on quoted market prices it
avallable, If nodt, they are estimatad from comparable assets on
the market, or wsing valuation methaods, including appropriate
dicounted cash flow modeds and oalion valuation madsls.
Loans and advances to customers. Thi Llr vali of e
lzand it eftimated an the baiis of & calculation of the phedent
value of the cash flows accoeding o current market rates o
sirmidar loans, taking also inio accoant the creditworthiness of
the counterpaty, For variable- interest loans that are seviesed
tegularly and do not vary siencamly i teong of credin sk, the
fair walse it based on The carnying amount wniil maturity,
Avallable-for-sale financlal assats Avallabio forske
financial assets are measured at %ir valiee based on listed
market prices. B quoted markot prices are not avallablie, the fair
valug i estimated on the basks of discountzd cash flow modets
and option valuation models.

immilicn of wura

Carih o] Balanees o0 Contral Basi
Lisire and scfvancrito luinks
Lo v s NS RO CUSIOIIERS

Do 1 ik
Do 1 fursdemrests
Dot ogunities in 5w
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Other financlal assets For almest all ciher financial assets the
CAPTYING amount &5 3 gocd approstmaton of tha fair value
Due to banks Loans sid sdhvances 1o Banks abko includes
kvterbank plackgn, iterm (o be collecied and deposils. The fai
values af laating rate placings and ovemight depasits are their
carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fsed-intemst
depasuts (s based on the present value of he cash flows,
caleulated on the pasis of valid maney marker inbeet rate fos
chebits with comparalie credit rivks and tamms 1o mauiily,
Trada Habilltlas The fir vabue af trada lakdities s baed an
avallaibde quated market prces. f quated market prices are nal
avallabde, the fair valus is estimated on the basis of vahuation
modeds,

Financial liabilities designated at fair value 11 (00 walus
of thie Rabilites 1s based on available quoted marker prices.

M quoted masket prices.are not avallabie, the falr value i
eslmates on the basts of discourited cash Mow models and
cption valuation models.

Due te customens. Due tocusiomars [ wdes cunent
accounts and deposits. The talr value of savings and cument
account balanges that have no specific termination date

ane asiumed 10 e thi amount payabis on demand on (e
reporting dabe Le, Thiit carmydng amaunt on that date, The fak
walue of these deposity 15 estimates from tha present value of
the cash fiows on the basis of curment bid rates fior ingenest kar
similar arrangements and teams to matunity and that match the
items to be measured The carmying amount of variable-interest
deposts & a good appeoximaton of thesr fair value on the
repor ting date

Debt securities issued by Rababank "he falr value of thae
Instruments is calculated using quaoted market prices. For notes
for which no quoted maket prices are available, 3 discountad
cash flow moded i used on the bass of a curment yed cure
appropliale i the term o maturity,

F ] FL

Campng amoant Faitwohar  Camang amcunl Fairveiue
L] Ll AL800 43,400

LR RIR RS 45,083 A5,

asLms 86,237 &31,787 ATH18

5008 LLTE R LA

7503 22H HI6,288 131,040

Irasn 1TBATY 18000 50,058

15503 16553 s (RN
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Thee above stated figures represant the best possible estbmates
by managemant o the basis of a range of methods and
assumgrions If a guoted madker price b available, this s the
et estimate of fair value,

i no quoted market prices are avallable for fad-term secunibies,
aquity Instruments, derhatives and commaosdity instruments,
tabobank bases the expecied fair value on the present value
o this future cash fows, discownied a1 market rates which
coreipond 1o the crédit ratings and termd 10 mdbuily ol

The investmaents. A modelbaded price can also be uted 10
aaterming fair valua,

Rabobank folkeews a policy of having all models used for
valuing financial instrurments validated by expest staff who are
independent af the s1aff who daterm ine the (a3 values of the
financial imtruments,

ir dhestdmiining markes walises of Gl vades, vadious facbon
have 1o be consibered, These factan include the time

value of money, velatility, underlying options, warrants and
darivatives, credit quality of the counterparty and other
faciors. The valuation process has been dedigned in such
away that market peices 1hat are available on 3 peviodic basis
ane systimatically uted This systematic valustion procoess

Tk proveed its worth during the credit ernis Modcations to
assumptiors might affect the talr vabue of inancial assets and
Wabilitie+ held for trading and non-trading purposes.

dev iz o earos

O 31 Decembes 3015

Assrty

‘Cah ard balances st concral Bariy
Liara and schiances to basks
Financial marty held For trading
Financial musaty demignated o1 far vl
Derivatrees

Loun and sdvancr to cuslomen
Hovalabie ¥or-sule
Assochaies otk vales
Hosie el idncts held for aibe sl o ] eyt it

i asnets

Liabsifities

e b banka

Dose o cunsnemeeny

Dot dd irithe. in biesy

D ancl nther trade Lutulis
Financlal Ushiifies desgnatied ai bk vales
Subisdnated b
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The talle an the naxt page llustrates the fair value hierarchy
wsed in detenmining the fair value of financial asses and
labilities. The breakdown |5 as follows:
= Categony - Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assels or liabiises: an ‘active market' is a market nowhich
transactions retating to the asset or Lability ocour with
suffickent frequency and at a sufficlent voleme in oider 1o
provide pice infarmation on a permanent basis,
Category I inpits othes than quoted prices included in
citegany | that are observable for the assal of Hability, #1her
directly {le. as prices) or ind rectly [Le, derived lrom prices);
+ Category 1 inputs fior the asset or Rabdify ot based on
obsenable market data.
Rabobank determinies for recunent valuations of financial
instruments 4t (i vabue when traniees betwesn the variou
categores of the fal-value hisrarchy oocured by resiseasing
the categoty at the end of gach reporting pevicd. As of
31 December 204 5, cument receivables and Nabilities whose
carrying amount ks eqgual to their fair value are presented
i category 1. Comparative figures have been adjusted
SCCOIHNgly.

Catrgery | Carbegpory J gy 1 Fotal
R L H ]
A EL] 31,333

1385 el ] 3472
M LIy uarh 158

] 4TI 785 amn3

. 13661 HILETS Aiah, 237

EIT aiil L] b ]
- v s 48

= 155 155

- 2 nea Harr
ST IS Fal ] MM
L50% 152358 HL53] 128477
5Ta 881 naa ELRE]
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Canh mred halances st contral Barnin

Lowres e sdrances o banks
Financial giets held fer trading

Financial sviety dimignated o fr wafuy
Deerivarirers

Loz s dbvanged B Cuglimerd
Avalabde bl Brons il avety
sy i i vakee

Kz cuarert gineti berld Do dade meed cln i

Liabifities

Dot s ks

Lk b cuoemers

Dbt i ithes: in busse

Doetiwint b ] et Rtides Ilirtufiness
Finan lal Batsdities chesiatect ot fake vales
SubonSaate labdies

Thee potenitial effect oafore taaton, i moe positive reasonable
assumplions are used for the valuaton of the fAnancial
Ingtraments in category 3 on the profit and loss account, s

16 (2014 108) bnd on equaity 50 (2074: 730, The patential offect
bafoee taxation, if mone negative reasonabie assurmptions ame
wiedd for the valuation of Airancial instnements in category 1on
thie profit and boss account, is 167 (2014: - 101) and on equity
-50 {2314 -67)
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Categery | Categery § Canegay 4 Fetal
1409 - 43400
- 45312 44 5.5
1059 1 1 4am
1iE 230 1,753 4338
] 553046 108 56,449
- 120,085 53150 473138
W 248 o W,
- 00 00
- . 7 7
- 17412 185 E8, 1601
4452 23402 058 11,049
L 186,200 8797 196,055
139 5079 1,063 0,540
1% 19.68] 40 T4
11082 B 1311

Caregory 3 of the fimanclal assats at fal value inchudes private
equity intesests. Privale equity Intemests amount o430,

A ggnificant nan- percelvabie Input fod the waluation of e
intanaits i4 the multsplier. The multipher is dotermined at the
tme the interests ane acauires and is applied to the EBMTTWN,
The average wealghted multiplies s 59, with a bandwidth of -1
and &1 of the multipliar.

L] Fat v
Balmiean (hangen thamges Trmden  Paireron
Flmusry meoipordfedin  rooeperotedin oo 71 Cecernber
nmiliang of warar k] praiitorioas EHEY Ao Lol Satiarmapnty gl } 215
Agiate
Financial s held for rading 139 & Lhi] - - 13
Financial s detbgnated o1 L e 1733 130 A7 15T 1] . a5
[l revy 1,123 430 - . B [LELH k1 TES
Avadabledor-wade Eroncil aiet =l 14§ L] L] [adi imi 111 ko
A soaiaes otk vk -1 -] 158 [l L BRI ® L]
Linbifities
Deeriviitives il othes tede Ritelite 1z 4M (4] (k= 5 628
Finangial kbt ies. deuggnated 51 lae ke EL] ] 2 o . EL
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Thee tatsle shows mosements in the financial instruments which
are wiated a1 fair value In the seaement of financial positon and
whilen ane classfied i Categoey 3, The fair value adjustments in
Category 3 which are ngheded in egquily are socounted fat in
Tha revval uation reserves for available-for-sale Bnancial assets.

Ir 2015, thare were significant transfers to tha amount of 507
lbetwean category 1 and category 2

Tz vl Foar vobus

Ealmnoe on chamges Changes Traners  Bolenceon
lanuary incorposaredin  iRcoviensnagin o draes B Decemsber
e milicn of purgy bl ] prefifor eas mquity  Perchaner Saky Lrtipragrity catrgony Adid
Asiets
Financial sidets held for rading s a5 5 i [ 12
Financial awiess designated o1 fer vehoe 18060 158 " A5E 19571 [L1] 450 1,733
Dl st bt 7 a2 . ] . [EE ) LK1 1133
Anvadatde o wuile B d it o ar 113 nr i . iar L
Anpociaten ot dain vaker 547 m s 1w 1141 - = L]
Linbifities
L and piher irade Ta 7 - + * x3j 008 1083
Financial Habwities desgnaned o1 G vk 52 I " [1]] . (-4 L 48

Thee @maunt in total gains or kosses presented in the profit and
Bt sccaunt for thie period relatng 1o the assets and labilites
herld in Catégary 3 until the end af the epating peicd & given
i Tha Fedlawing talbda,

Fair value changes for financhal instruments in category 3 incorparated in profit ar foss. :
1 milicns ef euras Regognlind  Denecognbed Tetal

O 3! December 3015

Asirts

Financial miseti held for irading 1 m -
Financial guests deshgnated st far vahs L] LI Rl
D riwartreri L1 HE 47
Avalablodor-cale francisl aspets i 1% 143
Aoy ot Lak valus 16 [Fi] 158
Linbilities

Diesiwribwrs andd othes s Radsline 18 E4 &
Financial labdities deugnated o lai vale 1 ] H

O 26 Dherabes 018

Assets

Financial saes held for trading Fil I F=]
Financial iibeis dethgnated i R vlus 145 id 159
Eorrhvatives 6 - 16
Avalatie dpe-sale Brarcal fasets & F ar
Aaseatiiton il ladi valse A1) E R[]
Linkifities

Durrortrves and thet wacde lakslities 4 F m
Financial iatséithes ceesignased at tai waliss 1 : 1
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Thee fioliowing table shows the changss in deferred peofit of the
financia assets held for mading. These wana inmally rcognised
at a vahee determined using & valuation technigue based an
dats Input nod sufmtantiated by madket prces,

e vl o e o] F
Opzning halance ] n
Addioe .

Arroitisation aj [
Change i qm
Closing balance k] w

410 Legal and arbitration proceedings

Batcdank Groep it ac v in 3 begal and regulatons envitanment
that exposes it 1o substantial dsk of Arigation, As a result of this,
Rabobank Groep s invalved in legal cases. arbitrations and
regelabory procadures in the Metherands and in other countries,
i hdling the Uindted States. The most ieievant legal and
regialatony clalms which could ghe fee o labsity on the part
of Rababank Groep are described below 1f it sppears recessary
cn e basks of the apglicable reporing cmerts, prossions ae
made baded en current infocmation; dimilar types of cade aie
apouped together and some cases may alio consiat of a number
of clalms The estimared Iosy far each indiddual case (far which
it bs possiblo to make a useful estimatel 1s not reporied, bocause
tabohank Geoep fesls that informaticn of this type could be
datrimental po the outceme of individual cases.

Whisn detetmining which of the clalms the lkefihood of them
leading 10 an oulflow of funds 18 highar than Rty percent,

and therefore an estimate is made of these lossos, Rabobank
Groep takes Into account a number of fac tors. including {but
himited 1) the type of claim and the underlying facts, the
precedural progess and histary of each case, nulngs fiom legs!
andg arbitration bodies, Rabobank Groeps expeience and that
of third parties of similar cases (f knawn), eadler sottlement
dscussions, third-party saitlements in similar cases (where
krowin), avallable Indemnities and the advice and opinlans for
leqal advyisoes and other experty

The esiirmate potential losses, and the axistng provisions,

are basd on thae currently available informaticn ard are

Hiar b rvistn et subdect o juckpermaents and @ numbser of
diffamnt assumptions, variable and known and unknown
wncertainties. These uncertainties may include the inaccumacy
ol incomipletenass of the infonmation available to Rabobank
Group [espacialy in the early stapes of a case) in addition,
assuinplions nade by Rabobank Geoup abrout the futune
nuilings of kegal ar cthet inances o the Dby scthons o
attitudes of supervisory bodies or the perties oppoting
Rabobark Group may furn out to be Incosrect. Furthemmone,

i Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

esthrates of potentlal losses refating 1o the legal disputes

At Freuently mposaibhe 1o phocess usmg STATSTCal oF aThar
cuantitative analysis Instruments, that are ficquently used to
make judgements and estimates They are than subgect 1o a stll
greater kevel of uncertainly than many other arsas whaee the
gioup nseds to maks judgements and estimatss,

The geoup of cases for which Rabobank Group determines that
the rive of future outfloves of funds is highet than filty percent
wiill ¢ hange fresm i o dime, as il the cases for which

an edtimate can bé made and the eilimated poténtial loss foe
thesa cases. In practice the results achieved can turm out to be
cansiderably higher of lower than the estmates of potential
bosses in those cases whene an estimate of this kind was made.
Nit-addition, lsses may occul in cases whene Rabobank Group
estirnatid that the risk of this oocurmng wat low

Rabobank Groep may settle legal cases or regulatony
pracedunes of invedligalions before readiving an linevocable)
fine ar datermination of lability. They may do so in order 1o
avoid costs, management effcrt at this level, or other negative
business conseqiences andfor regulatony of reputational
consequences of continung vwith the disputes relating 1o
Elabiliny, sven I Rabobank Group & of the oplnion thar 1t kas
amuments to defend Mself against such Rability. It may abo
di this when the potential consequences of losing a case aie
dispenportlonate io the costs of a settemant. hurthermons,
fabobank Group may, lof the sams reasons, compensabe thisd
parties for thed lesses, even In sifustions whete Rabobank
Group does not bafiewss that it (s begaly requined 1o do w

LiborEuribor

Rabobank has neockved @ mumber of requests in recent yoars
from: requilators in varlous counities ic ksue documents and
aithes information in relation to various ssues, including ksues
related 10 the provision of satements for Lying down intenes
fate benchimarks. Rasobank is cooperating, and will contine o
codperate, with the regulatoss and authorities invobved in these
ghobal Imvettigations.

Om 29 October 2013, Rabobank entered into a settlement
agrearment with vatious authorites in relation 1o thelr
Investiganan into the histoncal Lisor and Eunibor submission
proceiie of Rabsban e, Additional infermation is avallabie

o Thet bank's codpordte veelnite, All amiowidy payalie under
this sattiement agreement ware fully pasd and accountes for
by fabobank in 3013, Additionally, some of these settiement
agleaments rquired Habobank to (1) IMprove measures

o 1o continue thelr implementation; and (il 1o cooperate

o & continwows Basls with angoing Investigations inla the
eandiact of Rabomsani and of i1y curment and farmes armpliogees
and representatives (including managers and disecton) in
respect of the manipulation, atterm:pis of manipulation or
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mutual cooedination between bands for establishing Interest
rate benchmaris, Rabobank contimues 1o comply with all s
abligation under thess witlement agreements

Rabobuark, slong witha lasge number of ather panel banks

and inter-dealer brokes, has Been mentioned in conmeclion
with a numiber of class action suits and individua! civil court
wases rought bedore the Federal Courts in he United States.
These proceadings elate 1o the US Dollar (LISDY Libor, British
Pownd Seerding (GEP) Libor, Japanese Yen (Y] Libor, Tibor (note;
Rabobank was At amember of the TIBOA panal) and Euribar
In 2014, an Argentinian consurmer protection organisation
lbrought an alleged class action sult against Rabobank in
Argenting in relabion to USD Libor. Aaboband has a's0 been
sumimared to appear belore several Duich couris in civl
jproceedingd reliting 1o ELRIBOR, Furthenmone, vanous
rclivicduals shd entities have made a fumber of aBsgaions
melating to Euribor inletters to and legal proceedings against
Rabobark andfor an lish subsidiary.

Since the aliaged class action sults and civil proceadings lsted
above, which have been brought befose the courts in the US or
elsewhere, are inninsically subject to uncemamiies, it s difficult
o et e putcormes. Rabobank takes the stanca that it has
substantive and comvinging legal and factual deferces dgainst
Thesa clabmi Rabobani has theintention foconfinue "o dafead
itself agadnst these clalme,

Fartls

“The Danch Investers’ Association’ (VER) has siusd a sumemons
SN e company farmerly knoswn as Fodtes MY, (currently
tragfing s Ageas N, the wdenwiitans involeed = including
Rabobark - and the former drectors of Fortis NV The VEB
states in this summaons that investors were misled by the
prespectut publithed by Ageas NV inconnectaon with s nghts
st in September 2007, The VEE states that the mnpact amd
titks of the sub prirmae crisis far Feets and ims liquiity positien
wezhe misrepresented in the prospecius and has requested
Adeclaratory judgement stating that the dafendants acted
Mlagitimataly and must therefore be hald liable for the loss
allegedly suffered by Iivestors in Fortis. We maintain the view
hat the aforementoned lossof EUR 18 billkon has not béen
pregserty substantiated The proceedings concern 3 settiemen
of collecthve loss, which means that the court will only rule on
The question al whather the delendants, including Rabobank,
are llabbe, Depending on the autcore of these proceedings,
It willl bacome chear whether separate ioss proceedings ak o
be expected. Rzbobank s defanding itself against the claim; at
present. however Rabobank |4 unable 1o assess the cutcome of
harist 0F ary subsequent proceedings,

210 Fabobank Aviesl Repot 2015
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Interest rate derivatives in the SME segment

Rabobank provides incesest rate derhatives for business
custoriers whio wiih 1o reduce the i mte fek associated
with wariabie (e.g, indexed Euribor] lowms, Such an Interes: mte
wWap profects customens from riding inberasl rabes and helps
buiinessas to keep thelr Interest payments at an acceptable
el

Four busimess customers whio have both 3 laan and an inberest
fale derivative, the bank (ielassessed the individual pesition

i M4 and 2005, If a closed ntenest dale dervative no kanges
suits the customer's reguiremients, the bank and the customer
set out 1o find a solutkon which iy acceptable to the customer.
Solutions vary from adjustments to the transactions o
termination or [partial) compensation Each of theie schunions
s ailor-made, which misans that 3l te crcurmtances of a case
kencvwm 10 Rabobank, a5 well o kncwledige of the cormpany
caniarned, e consdened in 1he assessment, In Decermber
2015, Rabobank rook note of the conclusion by the AFM that
tha banks' revaluations of the interest rate dearlvatiees ara
umsatisfactory, |t has found shorcomings during its own testing
of the revaluations Rabobank i currently weorking with the AFM
o a witadle solition 1o the situaton that ha ansen.

Hababank is ivwobved in ol proceadings in the Nethardands
relating to interest rate derivatives. The majority of these
concern individual cases. Inaddition, there Is a pending
callactive acton agaimst all Rabobanks concerning accusations
with regard 10 nterest rate detivanves, ncluding SCcusationg
with regard o Eunbos Rabobank will defend |tself against all
these clabms,

Funthermore, there are pending complaints proceedings against
Habobank regarding Intemsst rate defivatives broaght by Kifia
{Dutch Financiad Sevvices Complaints Authonmy, whick, in
lanuary 2015, opentd wn enguiny window lon businesses with
intemat rate dodnatives)

BSASAML

In 2015, Rabobank concluded a wiitien agreement with

the Federal Reserve Bank of Haw Yodk ana the Mew York
Department of Financial Seraces Under this agreement.
Rabsbank s requined o amonget sthar things, impeowe the
BSASAML [Bank Secrecy At Ant-Money Launceding) framework
for it Amancan company, b 2013, Rabohank, N A, (RNAJL

a group company, almaost entinely cwned by Rabobank, agreed
10 a Consent Order with the US Office of the Compiroller

of the Curency with regard to its B34 AML programme.
American authorities are investigating the BSAMAML complance
prograrmme of ANA a5 waell 14 1he historncal conduct and
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practices involved and have. in this contexi. reguasied
GOCUMENTtN and o IAfoIMation 1o be submemed 1o Tham
Bath Rabobank and BNA are peosiding their lull cooperation ta
i ineestigation,

5  Business segments

Theit Basiriess sogpmints Rabobank uses inis teg ting s
dafngd From a management viewpaint, Thiy maand that the
segments ane reviewed as part of the strategc management
of Rabobank and are used for the purpose of making business
decisions with different risks and retunns.
Mabobank dislinguislses live major business seginenis: domesiic
sl banking: whoalessle banking and imernational il
lbanking; leasing; real estate; and other segments
Domestic retail banking mainly encompatsas the ac livites
of the local Rabobanis, Obwion and Roparoo. Wholesale
banking and iematonal retal banking suppodts Rabobank
Gwroup In becoming the maiket leader in the Natherands and
focuses on the food and agibculiuml secton at infemationsl
level, This segment develops Conporane hanking activities on
a ragional Batis and in additian conteals giobally apérating
divisions such as Treasury Rabobank Group, Markats, Acquisition
Hnance, Glohal Cospoeate Clients Bépart Hnance & Poject
Finance, Trade & Commodity Finance and Financial Institutions
Geoup, The segment also actively involes International Direct
ftetail Banking and Raba Private Equity. Intetnational retail
lbaniking opetations [l urder the Rabobank label, with the
exrepton of ALC Loan Managemant. in the keasing sagment
CLL - b5 responsible for leasing activities and offers 2 wide

Fid Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

range of leasing, trading and consumer finance products in the
Dunch hamiz marker Mamdaciusers, vendors and disiributars
arz glabaly supported in thelr sales with products refevant to
atse financing DLL opetates in Euregean markets with the
car leasing comipary #thlon. Real estate activities are reporied
umsder the real estate segment. The oode activties are the
development of housing, Anancing and a5set management.

n thee Dute b rmarket, Rabo Real Estale Group aperates through
ity BPD el Beswionds Imasstment Managément brands.
Fusthesmoes, the segults of FGH Bank are mecognised undr

the real estate segment. The segment Ciher within Rabobank
includas various sub-segments of which no single segment can
be listed separately. This segment mainly Includes the financial
tesuilts of assocaies (in particular Achmeg 83} and lead office
cperations Thede 26 0o cusTomes wiha represent mode than
a U056 share in the total revenues of Rabobank.

Tramsactons between the vanious Susiness segments ane
conducted under regular commercial terms and undes

maiimial market condition: The dividend to the amount of

264 (2014 203) that was disbursed to the local Rabohanks

iy, &5 opposed 1o previods years, no bnger incleded under
et income of th domestic ietall Banking segment,

Cithar than from opevating activities, there i no othed

material comaeehensive income batween thr business
segments. Allowing for the way in which the segments ae
repodtad intemally from the 2015 accounts onwands, the
cansequences of hadge accounting e ro donger included in
Tha consclidation effectuhedge accourting, bul instead unaar
Other segments.

The financial eporting principles used o the segmeants are
dentical tothose doscribed in the ‘hooounting policies’ Soction.
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For 1he year enced 11 Decomies 3013
Bt LT M 5061 0 1,054 4 ki o] - 8135
Hert dee and eormminilon ndore [ | 513 57 x (1L-] [154] 1,002
(R irgormes mw 3] San | H} L [FFi] 1580
Tl incarss TS e e L gy [he ri] Lona
Sealf cemty. FRESS LR EL] eadi it (K1) ™ 4.Tas
rher adminisirative pperaes pA ] L e (FL] [ AL ] FALL]
Deprec ation e nor ] 7 ar 18 i
Dipefaing eupendei AT FALY] 16 n7r [} 1] LRE - i} @145
rparrent lovess on goodwil - 1k 1] ] - - wl
Loam impsimeens chaeges 343 528 a5 ko g - 1,033
Fyutatuny levirs E] (e 14 15 e
Bparaking profit befors tazation 1 72k L1 Ha A L] 188
Tsntion 4485 Ll 1% &5 [{1EH] (P25] B55
Wt prafis 15318 [R5 3] CL] Rl 1] 7 (] e
Bniness seqment ascts Eral ) L S0 V0655 17461 20455 L]
rrilmesai i osasstalen i) 4HT i3 7 1540 = 3872
Tatal assets EEES L ang,rn 42,123 31,843 120,407 13364580 ST 3T
Bustiness seqmens lsbdities 008G ATHA0E 35401 19.551 LLLE S L g3aTan 239.093
Taotal lisbilities 296088 476808 BER L bR L] LG K 2] (310, 7423 29,0958
v Tment s EHOpETTy Sl Squipiment 0 L] 2124 2 ar 1,509
it rmenil & Lingibie and mtang e asets - &3 ] ' " - &3
Gondwil axl m &R 1 2 - o]
Privane weriog g pesrtioka 150 AT RESE 15287 a75 - A605T
Tl
benbingand
Dovmsnic wevai!  dnnewmanoal Orer  Conroldstion

b milien of wured benking  srtall beniing Leesing  Realwurate Agmenls fiecty Teeal
Vabw acljenirrenis in lnans sl steenses s oulomen
Dialance on 1 dsnuery 2615 A8 A e 2T AR - 8.8
Losn impairmont chisges bom ioam and sdvances o
cuoTEn ar ] 5] # (] = 11848
‘Write-dhowen of dedsuled loans during the yead [HAS0 TR &) sy (L] = (L3071
Intrrest armd wilee s tmer o |43 o X ] . 197
Dalsacs oan 31 Decomnibier 2005 w8 2,880 a2 1975 b = narz
ativiidug! vibes pfuntmest [specifc sllwanoe] 1515 1813 151 (X ar . B500
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Tatal L LElD 312 1475 b+ = 4,372

23 fabobank Adresl Repomn 3015

452/569



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000000000000000dn(Ees923)

OoOooogooo
et e ol Liviset e i [T T p— [H I ep— P i
e
Borling and
Domedcrehed  ipmaionad Omer  donmbdavon
i milan of furad Banbiig  hrial bankiag dnsiing Al ritile ATl wligcls Tatal
Frar ihe yrar énded 11 Dpcwmied 5314
st WY DETEST HRoDeTe: Lk ] FELLY L] 53 L35y - EALL
Wt et v £ o b e 158 553 e L) (F ] (2 1] 180
Cribare brecran m ars Ha T my L RE] 1
Tainl incarss Taid 5790 1578 e (E+1] [P 0] 15880
Sealf comty 2353 ied 255 [1: ] HH & Lo
Drher aciminstrative eeperse Ly Tes Fill Ll e 1040 n8ag
Deeprec atios nur & iz L] aa hF a7
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et prafiy L] Tim 438 (FLAT] L] 11183 1,841
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Iasereit and other sduslmenss & 1] [ e - - ETY)
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Geographic information [country-by-country reportingl  within a particular economic envienment within spacifc

abohank operaies i seven main geographical areas, geographical kcarions/aeas. The allocation is based on the
Thet country of domicile of fabobank is the Netherlands Eecation of the indnddual subsidiasy fram which the transactons
The datmation below s reponed by distinguishable Al nitlated

components of Rabobank that provade products andior seraces

On 31 Decernber 2015
Aeprrage
PRATTENT
o S ol inrereal Opetiag G
conimund emplaprey el before nubuidiey
coton oy Mg o i3 Ty of DpeTTEn InFTE ] Tamatio revetved
Ths The Lol Ralwsbrdis, Dicwerathl et ] abhing, Wieabe-ake a5T1 15061 200 Fi .
twtherlandy  Metheranch  Rahohank, DEL Ctwion,  besking and inteenational retail
Friesland Tebecheden  hasking, Leasing. Real earaie
Masnchangij NV,
shohymotheskbank,
[Rabo Real Extane Gomap
Crhar Tiange [l Rabobank, labo Leming Wholmale banking snd i L1 H Es | Fu ] -
Eurogons [Real Exiate Group inesnational reisd benking, Red
LT e
Redgium L fsbobunk, Rsho Leaning, Wholevale banking and ar o E L -
Real Dstabe Group Iviernational retsl banking, Read
Ebe
Gty AL Rabotank, Habe  Leasing, Whobriale bankng and Fr] L 1 a -
[Real Eriabe Group imternational retsl banking, Resl
i
Italy 4, Rabotank Leming Whalmale banking and 2 165 Eo ¥ -
imternational retal banking
Laumembourg  DLL Rebo Rew Edtane Leasing Feal eitans 1 [ F) L . =
Grewp
Iredanc A Bshobhank, ACE Lraning Whalsale hanking e das = i -
Lo M [ tictual 1ot Larbossy
Frndard o Lesaing ] & 2
Aciiria [L1 Leasing T ] 1 - -
Pomagal (£ Leasing 3 1] ] -
Spain 1. Rabotank Leading Whaleuale bunking and 4l 1685 n & =
inteerational retsl bankong
Rawt of Linfed ML, Rabobank Leaning, Wholsisle kanking snd oy (5] F T -
fumpe Kingedom Imernational retsd banking
Iraoey
Fursdtmed
Moravary M Leaning 11 n [} -} -
Sewden i Leddineg E ] 123 7 1 .
Dierrreadd ID4A, Rabo Aral Evtate Ledaing, Fral stals L] 4 L C11] -
Group
Swizeriend  DLL Leiing - ] ] a &
Resibd oL Leaiifg 12 L1 & L] -
Poland oy Ladning 18 1 (] ] &
Crech Rab Real Enee Group  Resl Alale (4] 1 (11} " .
Figmiidic
Furgary o Lesiing & n a
Rioimiainia (L1 Lading v 2 - L .
Tuthey IDii, Babodbank Leilg, Wherlsisle hankkng and 25 54 6 3 -
imernational retal barkng
Heth Unned Stited  DLL, Rubolbank, Rabe Ledding, Whalsiale inkkhg and LA5 150 (L F] )
Amemca Real [1tate Group imernational refsl binkong, Red
e
Canads DLL, Rababank Lesding Whalrisle hanking and L 1 i1 F] 58 14 -
interrational reisl barking

N4 Rabobank Aozl Bepon 2015
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Ty
Sevcurg By whnrese Opesating [l
Gerogropive contnied  empleyeri  gnolr Befonr ulsicies
] Eoundry Moo o rubnidiory Fype of aperatons operetiant infFTE famation Favatwn reveiard
Lasirs Meon 11 Leasing " ] ] t -
Arrrria
Capman Rabphank. Netsorlesa b Ranikimg anaf - - -
Istands internanonal retal berkng
Ciradies Rabihank Witserdein b Ba kg s o (}] £ 2 -
imeenational retal barking
Brazd DL Rabotank Leasing Whalssale banking sl i Lo 156 13 -
Chile DL Rabolbank Leaying, Whalewle Banking snd al o {31} ny -
imernational retsl bankdng
Aggeenna DAL Leaiing 1 ar ] i
Hsly Inclia DAL Rabobank Leasing Wholesale banking snd : L] iF] L] L =
Srgapore (AL Rabobank Learing, Yiholriale banking and & L] an ¥ &
rternational et bk
Indoneda Rabsobank Welsoderiale Banking and LL] [ALH {15} ] -
intrenational retsl barking
Mabrala Habehans. Whaolesale Lanking and 13 ' 2 = =
intrenaticnal retad barking
Ching DL Rabiobnk Leanifg Whalriale binking ind LB ] 3 4 il =
inteenational vetad barking
South Kovea  DLL Leasing 4 34 & =
Lipun DL Laaing i = + -
Australa Auritralia [LL Rababank Leading, Whobeiale banking and m T 188 & .
Mew Zeafarad  DUL Rabobank Leasing Whalesale banking and we m 113 EH
Imerratonal reusd berking
Ciihes Masariiiun. Rshobuank Wholssale Banking and 1 1 1 - -
Keres Irteenationsl retel basking
1014 44,958 sy 48 o
Per 31 december 2004
Aepriigd
Ak
Ingoume from ol infemal Ciperating Sovemment
Crugroaiee prat ] e R Y ey sulbigbes
lzcalon Coundry Morew o ity Fypr af aperatony epsneefaan) nFIE faxation Pt wetererd
The The Local Rabet Tk retil hanking, Wholeiale a59%F 7555 hL.-] [59H =
Hetherdandti  Metheraeds  Rabobank, DL Dbwinn,  bhasking and insersatinnl remil
Fricilard Feherhoden basking, Lessrsy, Real ritaie
Sagthapgij WY,
Rarbodrapothaekbank,
Raibc Read Extane Gronp
D Fisnie L Raboibank, Rabo: Leasing Wholesale banking and L] 7 o 7 =
Fursone Fral Evtabe Groun intrenational retsl banking. Redd
courtiey ritahn
-] [LL Rabobank, Rabo: Leasing Whalesale banking and a8 N E3 L] -
Real Evuans Ghoug imnernational it Baeking, Redl
FeTTT
Cermany DL Rabobank, Rabo Leasing, Wholesale banking and L1 &7 135 117 =
Resl Evtats Group international retsl basbing, Ned
eugte
Ty AL Rabobank Leasing Wholesale banking snd Ll T Fud ] -
irterrational el Bekiag
Lumembourg (AL Rabobank, Rabo Leswing Whaleale hanking snd ] 1] L] L] -
Regl Dxtans Group international retmsl banking, Red
e
Ireland 4L Rabotunk, ACC Leasing Wholesale banking snd FEY i Lo £ -
Loan Maragemens imiwrnational retad barkong
Firkandd (£ 18 Leasing 4 H ] i &
Aaniria DL Leasing 1 ] ] - =

Fi k] Matas ta the consakdater Anancial statements
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Sy froe wmrea Opeating e
Grogropine connnied  empkeers | pnofir befor uldices
xafion Enisndry Homw of ubnidiory Fypw of aperatons opevetian; inFTE faaation Faratwn rereverd
Pomugal o Leasing 3 1] 1] . -
Spain DLL Rabobank Leading, Wholeiale Lanking and &1 169 F 7] & -
imternational retal bamking
Rt of Uinited DLl Rababank Ludning Whalrsle banking and Fiitg L] ja m -
Furops Kimgciom mtwrrational retel basrking
o
Eurcsone
Marawy [LTY Lesting ] n 3 T T
Saredan (e 1] Leasing Fal LLH] a * -
Dotk MLL. Raba Read Extane Leding, Feal eitars 1 n a L] .
Group
Swimedbind DL Leasing 4 5 2 -
(LT (£ 18 Leiaing 1% 55 7 2
Prland ML, Rahohank, lank  Leaning Whalswale hanking aned s Lyt 2 ¥ 2
BGI iner reathonal ieted baerdong
Creth Rabo fleal Extote Grsup Fioal eataie 1
Mgl
Hurgany DL Leasing L] ar 2 -
Raimarila {18 Leaing L] 2 ] . -
Turkey i Rabobank Leming, Yhalmalr banking snd F L 13 H H -
imernational retsd banking
herth UnBed Slate  DLL Rabobank, Rabc Leasing, Wholriale banking and LM 1¥¥ e 4:+] -
Amesea Real Fraabe Group International retal banking. Resd
edlale
Canads 4, Rabobank Leasing Whalruale kanking and 1 HH b 2
imernatonal retsl banking
Ltirs Mesice DL, Rabathank Ledaing, Whalnile bankmg and & 58 ] (L] -
Amesca international retal barking
Rarbecbumnk Whaolesale Banking and - =
Idland imterrational retsl bimking
Clarnenn [Rshobuank ‘Whalsasle hanking snd w 1] n 7 -
Iftefationdl ictsl baskang
Brasl DLL, Rababank Lessing, Wholsislc hanking and e Tod bl | -]
imerrahonal retsl barkong
Chile: DL, Rabotank Leasing, Whinlesale banking and 58 13z 5 (ri] .
irdreratinnal il Bieking
Aggeriing DL Rabobank Leaaing. Whaolesale banking snd 1 ar 2 -
irerfationsl retil baeking
finis Inalia 1. Eeshokuank Leazing Whalsxale hanking and | 192 o 4 -
e national ietsd baekisg
Sngasere  DLL Rabobank Lesaing, Wholsiale banking and 1 4 1 4 .
inernational retsl bariong
Indonesia FRabobank Wholesale Banking and & 487 L] CEl] -
intrrnational netad bieking
Walrus Fateobank. ‘Whalesale Banking and & H Fl = =
el onal retid Deeking
China DL, Rabedhank Leiing Wholoiale binkng and 1] 141 1] L]
international retsd bamlong
South Koeea DLL Leasing L] . 2 - -
Japan DL, Rabodank Leadirg, Winlsiale banking and " 1 - v .
imerrational retsl bariing
2 i DL, Raboiank Leding Wholeiale Ganking and 354 a2 RE & .
Mew Deafarad  DLL Rabolank Leasing Whaolesale banking snd L0 or 134 E =
Chhes Masirithss Fabodank Whaoileua le banbing mnd e . - . -
Irter st bl ietml buiedhirng
13809 33,561 1,281 [RLT} =

i 1] fabobank Adresl Repomn 3015
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Additon o property  Aditions [o property
sl egupeentond o squapenen oned
rranghle pisels etangdis priem
O 17 Diprmreabeir O B Drribaer
k] S

oy miliang of earos
The Metbilarichs 1,538 1,883
Db Durcrone couniiies - il
Rest of Durops (non-Luozone) 13 s
Heorth Amenica 24 s
Lastim America = 3
L T 15
Ak w 43
rther and| corantidarion effects - -
Total 2947 1971

&  Cashand balances at central banks

i miliang of mras eI A

Cash B&l T

Deepruns ol oetesl basks ather Lhas

imandstory reverve depositt SRAM 43310
el 547 AL

Musndstony reserer deposins s cranal

hanky o] b

Taotal cash and halandes st cenmal banks A, &1, 400

Thetp avebiditps rinamum fidaiwg 1 b hsd o the Nathirdandi for
thie month of Decernber 201 5 was 3,109 {Decomber 2014: 2564,

7 Loans and advances to banks

v malliony of waray M0% b E]
Deepousy with othes banks TR LSS
Revarie mpurthase traniacliont and seiusties
borrewing sgrermeniy 17an Iren
Loana 148 4.7
Dthes LFo] 11
Geraax duw from other hanis 1nan &5 Tan
Lews: ipan imgpabment charges loar and advarces
1o Basks (i1 (1]
e R
Peclags A isets (453 M

Total laans and advances to banki R3]
Loar impainres sllosance kans sed sdvisces fobanks
Ralance on 1 January b 1]
Loan impaimrent chasges lnsns and advances 3o
bank

ey (L]
White-chorwn o el audtech osar haring e yaae . wn
CRhes charnges s f
Balisse o 31 Detommbar 15 Ll

The Baan impatimienst chamges of the loans and advances 1o
banks @2 included in the profit and koss account undes Loan
Empairment charges, Thie gross carying amount ol 'Loans and
athvances o Banks' whche value adjuiimants wens stablibed
on an individual bas's is 18 (3014 206)
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8  Financial assets held for trading

v muliions of rures FLE Jad
Purchased osrs. I 3
Shoitaesm g L W 133
Gewemmnd bondi 1074 Lh
‘Dhher deon sevw e 1837 FALE
Ecuily intitnaments m W
Total 3,472 4,279

9  Financial assets designated at fair value

o mallizn of wwrcs HatE A4
favrmmend bonds - rl
Ot el SCiafitied ™ 2454
Porchased oeni 1.0 1,090
‘Ventune capital [Bguity imsrument) an I
e pegoaly Silrasenld (Fo] 455
Tatal FaL L EFH]

The change In the current year i the falr value of the loans
designated as being at fair value with adjustments in the
profit and loss accownt that is allecable o the changes in the
credin risk Emounts 1o 5 [2014:14], The curmularive Changs
20 (00 - 34} Ay changid in Bair valué and calculatad by
dscounting future cash fiows, When sefting the discount rate,
Account §s taken of expected losses, inuidity mark-ups and the
sk margin

Mo use i made of credit derlvatives 10 hedge the lozns
designated a1 fair value

10  Derivatives and other trade liabilities

Derivatives are used at Rabobank for the purpose of mitgating
al least a portion of thet lang-teim risks arlsing fron the bank's
waricrss operstions, Examples of this inglude infemess-rle swaps
used torhedge interast rate rises arlsing from the difference in
maturitles between assats and labilities. Anoiher example ane
cross-curtency saaps, which e used to hedge the ouerency
risk b0 which the bank is exposed afier ssuing debt matruments
in foreign currencies, Thee tank's hedging policy i designed

o i it income within The risk apsetite framawordk,
Dreriwatbies e used for hedging puiposes, bul are abo
contracted for the banks customerns
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10.1 Types of derivative instruments used by Rabobank
Fosraard currency and INCEREsT fate CONTIACHS e contracsal
abligaticng 10 recehe of pay & net smound based ot changes
i exchange or mlerest rabis, of 1o purchase or sell forign
<utrency of a financial instrument ona futune date a1 2 fixed
specifiad price in an arganised financlal market. Since collateral
fior forward condracts i provided in the foim ol cash, cash
equivaents of marketable securities, and changes 'n the wikie
of fomwansd contracts are setled daily, mainly via a ceneral
coumerparty chaaring house, the ceodi disk i love The credil
sk exposura for Rabobani is representad by the patential
«<ost of eplacing the seaps if the counterpartes default

Thee sisk t5 monitorned continuoushy against current fair valus,

a partion of the notonal amount of the contacts and the
Hicpueliny i thve enarkets. As part of the credin risk managemsent
process, Hababank employs the same maethods ko evaluating
couniompartes a1 it does for evaluating s own ending activities,
Forwvard rate agreements are mdividually agreed forward
interast rate confracts under which the difference between
acontractually sgreed inteest e and the madkat ate on

4 future date has to be senled in cash, based an a notional
[pincipal armount.

Curency dnd inlenes e v ps e commitments i édchangs
ane st af cash floves foe anodher, Swaps antal an economac
exchange of currencies of nterest ates (such as 3 fued rate
dor ane or move yarlable rates), or a combination (L2, 3 cross-
curency intesest rate swap) Except in certain curency swaps,
sy tiarsler of the principal amount takes place.

Cumency and intanast fate options 3 cantracts under which
the seller (known as the weiiter) gives the buyer (known as

the holder) the right, enta Eng no obdigation, to purchase (in
the case of a call option) ar sall (in the case of a put option)

a specific armount of forcign currency of a specific financial
Bvbrumnen on of befons an agived date of chaing an agiesd
period a1 a price 481 in advance. As cansidetion for acoeoling
thee curmency of mterest rate risk, the writer ieceives a payment
iknown as a prermium) from the holdes. Options are traded on
exchanges or bebwean Habobank and clients (0TC). Rzbobank
anly expased 1o Credif isks 35 an option haider and only up 1o
he carrying amount, which is equivalent to the fai value,
Crodie dafauly swaps (CO54) e insrumants by moan of which
tha seller of a CD5 undettakes to pay an amount bo the buyer,
This amaiunt Is equal o the boss that woald be incurred by
Ihadding an underlying reference asset ifa specific credit avem
wele tooocur (ke the materialisation of a risk], The buyer is
under no obligation o hald the underfying reference asset.
Thee basver pays the selier a credit protection fee expressed in
Ibasis points, with the sixe of the fee depending on the credit
spread of the reference aisel,

218 Fabobank Amiesl Repoc 2015
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10.2 Derivatives issued or held for trading

The derivatives held of ssued for rading are those wsed 10
hedge economic ks but which do nat gualify 5 hedoe
accounting Instruments atd derfvatives that Corporate
customers have contracted with Rabobank o hedge interest
rata and cutrency risks, for example. The resulting exposures are
Lamgely mitigated by entering into reverse positions with one or
mone prafesional counterparises, within the trading Fmits set

10.3 Darlvativies held as hedges

Ratbobank contracts variows Financial derhatives thal sene to
hedae economsc 11k, including interest rate and currency
risks, whach qualify as a far value hedpe, cash fow hedge or net
imestmant hadge.

Foir valuwe hedges

The main cormpanents of the fair valee hedge 21 Rabobank

ane Interest rate swaps and Cross-curency Interest rate swaps
wihich sarve as protection against a potential changa in the fair
walue of fiwed-income financial assats and habilities in both local
and foreign cutrencies. The net fair value of these interest rae
swaps on 31 Docembar 7015 was 9,374 (J014: -13,869}% The nat
Hale walutr of the crosa-cuniency swaps cn 31 December 2015
wias LGS0 2004 39000

Rabobank tests the hedge effectveness on the basis of
stailstical regressive analysls models, both prospectively and
retrospectively, At year-end 2015, the hadge elations wese very
affgctiee within the range w1 by 145 39,

Thie IFRS Ineffectiveness foe the year ended 31 December 2015
wark 130 {2014; <164, Tha resull on the hedging instrumant
amounted 1o 1464 (2014: <5, 2411, with the resutt from the
nedged position, allocabile to the hadged rsk, amounting 10

=1 336 [20T4: 507E].

Cash flow hedges

Rabobank's cash Now hedges comsist mainly of cross-curmency
interast raie wwaps which sarve to profect against a potential
change in cash flows from financeal assets in forelon cunencies
with fioating inberest rabey

FHabobank tests the hedge effectivenass on the basls af
statiztizal regretsive analyiis madily, both prenpsectively and
et o pec hvely, At year-end 2015, the hedge nelations wene
wery afiective within the range sat by 145 30 On 31 December
2015, the net falr value of the cross -curency Intedest @ie swaps,
classthed as cash flow hedges was -707 (2014; -2 660).

In 2015, Rababank accounted for an amount of 659 [2014: 5438)
alted tanation in égquty &5 efective changss in the (air value

of dereatives in cash flow hedges. In 2015, an ameunt of

=700 (2014 -588) alter Taxation ol caih fow hadge resenet wil
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reclassified 1o the profit and loss account. Gn 31 December
2015, e cash Mo hedge reserves a5 parnof equiny woallesd
<30 [2004; 1) aher taation, This amount fluctuates aleng

with thie (i wialue of the detvatives in The cash Now hedges
ared I accounted fos in profit orer the term of the hedged
positions as trading profit. The cash flow hedge ressrve relates
1o & large numbes of derivatnes and hedged positions with
different tedms. The maimum 1eim |5 26 year, with the lagest
concentrations exceeding fve years, Thie IFRS Inelfectiveniess for
Tha yearanded 31 Decamber 2015 wai 181 (2004: 185),

Netinvestment hedges

abobark uses foreign forward-exchange contracts 1o hedge
a partion ol the cuent y ranslation sk of netinvestrments
i oreign entitkes The net [uir value of these foreign forsand-
exchange contracts on 31 Decembier 1015 was 4 (2014 8)
On 31 December 2005, futures contrace: with a nominal
amount of 657 (J014: 1, 797) were designated as net investment
Ihadges. These resulted In exchange gains and losses of <6 Tor
thie year {2004: -B7), which are defisrmed in eqguity. A total of 22
wind made in withdrawals from squity durbng the repariing
year (2014 105) For the yeas ended 31 December 2015,
Rabeobark g no inafec tvoneds msulling from the mat
Iimwestment hedges.

Fil Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

10.4 Notional amount and falr value

Alchough the notional amount of certain iypas of fnancial
natruments provices a besis for cempaning instruments that
aig included in the statermien) of (nancial position, i1 does

nad necessarly roprssont the related future cash fows of the
faln values of the instrumenits and therefore the exposure of
Habobank o credit or exchangs nsks, The nominal value s

the amount of the asset, reference rake of indes underlying

a degivative financlal inermient, which repeesends Dhe baok
on which changes in a defivative inanciaf initrumant’s wilue
ane maasued. It provides an indication of the volume of
trnsaciions execuled by Rabobank, but i5 not a messure

of risk exposure. Some derlvatlves are standandised In terms

of notional amoun o setthement date and are specifically
desigrad for imding en acmve markers seock exchanges),
Oither dervatives are specifically constiucted for Individuat
clients and not for trading on an exchange, even though they
can be traded at prices negodiated betwean buyes and sellers
(OTC instrsmentsy

The positive talr value repeesents the cost for Rabobank to
teplace all coracts on which it wil be entitled 1o recelve
gaayment N 3l CoUnterparihes wte 10 dhefaulr, This s 1he
atandaed miethad in the induitry ko calculating the Sunent
credit risk exposure. The negative fair value represents the
canit of all Rabobank contracts on which IF will have 1o maka
payment if Rabobank defaults. The totals of the positive and
negatke fair values are diiclosed separately In the statement of
financial posizion, Dedvatves ane pos it (a15e1s) of negative
{Habdities] as a result of Aectuations in market or exchange rates
i ielation ko thelr contract values. The tatal contract amount
oe notional amount of derivatives held, the degree 1o which
thess iNFLMents are positive of negative, and hence the total
fain walue of the dervative financial assets and liablities can
sometimes flluctuate significantly,

Thie fofloning 1alvke shoma the notional smaounts snd the
pailtive and negative fair values of desivathee contracts held
by Rabobank
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v miliens of eeros

Balsnce o 31 Decembes 2015
Dietivart rers Buried e maading

Corrtwirt b Baricd ik hupclgen

S positiis shaies and bonds

Total derivathne Brancal avsertySabili Gy ecognised

DCheriawt it sl Foor trasiing

Curtenry devivition

Unlisten] trafieable contrmoty [0TC)
LNy TR

Cuinenry options - porthased snd soid

Listed tradhaable contracts
Cutieniy butures
Total gervemcy deivatives

Indrreut ride dinriwidrees

Urndisterd ftadedble crandincts [TC)
InRere L PRl Siaerk

OTC inbenrid rae gl
Total OTC contracts

Lhted tiadeakds contiacty
Inseresi rabe panpy
Taotal interest vate des vatives

Crmc cevvatives

Crpcbe thedaidT vmaps.
Tetal ietutn Sivag
Tatal credit denivatives

Eruity ralroseniidinds Oerdva i
Undnbed frsfeabde poriacis (OTC)
Dipione - puschasesd s pokd

Livhd tadeakle contract
Options - puschyeed wnd vk

Total squity e e
rther derrvativey

Total derivathee Branial

Cheriyar v Baricd an bemddges

Doeiisativis dhesigraitod a5 Law vae hdges

Currenay iswaps and éreriiegurescy intereal fabs dwapi
Infmrest rate pwao

Dottt e ot i il o bpdgins

Cunrresury iwiagri and creridi-oriency Infeeedl rabs iwa
Cierivrt s chavuifieed 4y el et heciges
Currency Suses conracts

nd Fabobank Amicsl Repoo 2015
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Loty Wit e | LeriHaptd gepveehare

by millicns of ey

Balince on 31 Decembes 214
Dttt o Baried e Riiling

Coerivart o Baricd s herclgen

Shiorm postions shares and bonds.

Total derivathrs Srandial aisetsSabill e meognised

Deerivatives Baelel For tfing

Curmeney derivirtner

Uniipaed sradieable coanfracts (OTC)
Cumenay vaaps

Ciitreniry optin - grorthased and soid

Listed tradesddes contracts
Cuniemy Sfarri
Total cerpency devivatives

bndirreal rale cesi nakrers

Undiyied §1acdiealale comiiachy [OTC)
Isterest rale Swi
Taotal OTC contracts

Lintedd tradsable contract
ImSerest rate yaraps
Total interest rate des vitives

Lred cermvatives

Creds default vaaps
Testal iretust swagr
Total covdit danivatives

Erpurly matromerdiindes envainesy
Urligsed tradeabile pordracts (OTE)
Cpicnat - prshanesd sn okd

Listed tradeable contracts
Opthonat - puschaed and vk

Tatal equity iitrumentiindes derivatives
Other derrativey

Toral derivathes Aranisl

Coeviwari bves Belal a baedges

Cotiiwtives desigraned 81 Mar ss'ue hedges

Cumeniey iwagrs and ereris gurenmey ineres L oale dwipi
Isderant rabe pwan

DTt ddesagrantind i Cinils Tl bpdigins
Curronuy i snd ceoria-cariency Indeeedl sile dwag
Deerivartber chyvuhed asnet rreestrsen hedges
Currency Ssuses coniacts

Frl Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements

1¥kac

2,704,182

1068

45913
7T

L5LeET
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2,707.358

45000
1156857
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i

LT
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11  Loans and advances to customers

i milicn of wuros M Jald
Loans inftiaibed by Ssbobari;
Lisiret b gowersemmend B

< It wm o7
okher 20 1518
L &0 pritwiste clmsts
- enrcralty Toam Jeanh
- O TREES P
- hease prtiht] 24078
- reverie repurchase transactions and securities
L e By Lot 151 RIS
v (e a0 e TTLEs 7R
. rther phr} L
Groas lnand s sdvamsoe 1o Dastomers WhI08 65840
Lestic boan imnnakimen [ aliswanos e amd sdand e
I3 cuntomen [LE ] [Tl
ASTANG  AS0,487
P Lisaid o] st TR 1,24
Total loans and ad ARLATR 481, THT

Loar inmpa et allovande loans s advenons B DT

Balance on 1 snuary ST B
Losass inapadimvent chasges foom e snd sdvances io

LU 1134 L
Wirite-clown of detauled loars daring the year [FR =4 [EFFR]
Interest and pther changes e 21
Total loan impairmen sllowance loans and

‘sdvances fo cotomens 372 %340
iartiis! vabest edpstrtiesd (ipecihic allomarde) S50 b E]
[ b acd] fenet it r i (E]
13MA L2 e
Total loan impairment allowance loans and

‘advances to oaiomers B3T3 %340

Gireria caimying amount of laan whose value
srfptmenty were pishlnhed on s imdieidusl s irasl 1R 547

abohank azquirad financial ano non-financial assets during the
wear by taking postession of collaten! with an estimated value
ol 62 (2014 86), I b thr iy of Rebolbsank o sell these abiits
in the seanonably foneseeatdo Fulsi Yields am allocatod 10
repay the sulitanding amount

Reclassified assets

I 2008, basad on the amendments 1o 1AS 30 and IFRS 7,
Reclassification of Anancial assets, Rabobank iezlassified

a numbor of Finkncial piiees bold Mo trading” srd Availalle. foe-
sl financlal assety' 1o Loans and adwances 10 customens’ and
Loams and achvancet io hanks

Rabobank has identified assats to which this amendmant
applies, wheraby the intention has clearty shifred from
hxkding the securities for the near futwe as opposed 1o

selling of tracking them in the shoit 1erm. The ieclassifcations
wefi fTeCnecd a8 of 1 July 2008 31 theslr fale waling 21 The time
Thils note prowides details on the impact of the eclanifications
at Rabobank.
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The talle balow shows the carrying amounis and falr values of
the reclassified assens

P Decernber 2615 FF Devesmiyer 2074

Carrpiny Ciwrying
neilion of pusn ongunl  Farvaive  amoust  Foirvoler
Firaracial anseis beebd (o
ang reclisabed 10 e 133 174 jar k)
Awhlable-for-uie Anancial
wits rechasefied 1o lnans Tid L1 ) (AL ] 111
Tonsl hnaneisl sicees
redlaabfied toboarm LLH] L5 L] 1847

i ihe reclassification had not been made. nat profit foe

the assets held for trading would hawe been 1 higher

{014 26 highes]. The changs in the equity position n 2015
would have bean 43 more negative (3014: 62 mode negative)
o the e lassifcation af the available-foi-sale inancsl assers
Fund mat Besen carritd Sl

Folowing reclassification, the reclassifed financial msets made
the following contribution to operating profit before taxation:

ot e v i | Dipprialan

AHE Fal]

L 3 -

Luar g ¢ R . 1
Operating peafit befors taxstion on

vailassifiod Braniial assets Bald lor rading ¥ 1

Wit infere inoromes ] ¥

Loar impasTsen chaeges 2 121
Dparabing peaRt bilors thaation s

rectaasified svailsble-for-vsle fnsnclsl sceets 1. 150

Loar Impalirment changes include reversed Impalrments and
rec oy tubsequent 10 witte-down 10 the amaunt of
3 (2014 148) and Impairments to the amount of 1 (2014; 26)

Finance leases
Loy g advances 10 cusbmimers also includies ece vdlies
fream Fmance bease, which can b broken down as follown

i vl ol s M5 arla
foiripa bl b graai investmen in

frarcr based

Wt gresdeg | e BETE ars
Lingged thisd | year B leas thas § e (18] LEE RG]
Limnger than S prars 1,183 85T
Tital revedeables feam gross investsent

in fimanen lease IE B30 Irous
Uneamed determned Snarce inoome fram

Brarr base 2967 woma
Wt invevtmant in fimancs beasey 5881 Taes1
Wl invelinenl in fiador naso

ot euyeediveg ¥ peat AsTS TaIA
Lowgrer thass 1 year bar leas thans 5 pesrs. (LT ] 1539
Longer tham § pran. (L) ke -]
Wt invevtmant in fimancs b sy I5AE1 1,851
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0n 11 Decemiber 2005, the provisions for finance leases
inChedad 0 value afustments amounted 1o 287 (2014 334)
The unguatanieed sesidual walues accruing o the kewor
amounted 1o 1,705 (2014; 7,166], The contingsnl i
paymanty recognived a8 income in 2015 ware nil (014 nill.
The finance leases chiefly concern the kease of equipment and
«ars, a5 well as factonng products,

12 Available-for-sale financial assets

by milans of euras 2215 e
Shart term gowirnment papers Lis L
Gzprramaend boands 03 1488
Db dedon senarites 558 4, 7d0
Frpuity indroments i 137
Tatal avsilable-for-sale financisl sueets mam 770

The imipal-ment of avalkabde-for-sale Brancial assets amounted
1o 160 [2014: 60} and & recognised in prafit and loss account
under Met incame tiom financial assets and liabilitizs at fabr
value thiough profit or loss.

by miliang of euras s A

0 i [P
Francial st 148 il

The changes In available-for-zale financial assets can be baoken
diowm a5 foliows:

M milons of euros 2005 For
Cipeniineg halance mrm 6,553
Funeigr eactangs drrmaoes e 1,100
Akdition 6219 9,883
Déspotsh ksl sl irpinyrment] L] (195
Fair valism changey Lax) 1808
b changet s i ]
Closing balancs AT 19,770
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13 Investments in assoclates and
Joint ventures

T cattyineg amimity of thit Bvesimiings in assocaies and
Jolnt ventures b 3472 (2014; 3.807), Thesa joint ventumes ane
addressed in Section 48, Joint ventunes.

¥ A o dres NS A4
Drertireg talanc e 3807 3,747
Foreagr exchunge differrmcey [£5] 3
Panchases ar k)
e 4+ [L2]]
Shary of profe of anccishes e 1%
Divladznacht el o [snad capiial repopments, |30 [131]
Bvaban e 5] 75
Githar - =1}
Taital 16TR 1Ao7

The main assoclates in tarms of the size of the capial interest
held by Rabobank include:

D 1 Dipcwrnboer 3015 Shawboklog  Wstngechis
Thie Herhedands

Achimea BY. oy e
Eurrn N, 1% 5%
Ghlde Wenture Capital Wi Various

Rabobank holds less than 20% of the voting righits kn Equens,
bt has significant control in Equens. For example. two
HRabobank represenativgs are Members of the Supenssony
Board and analher is the Chaitman of the Audil & Complance
Commitiees, Due to Rabobank’s subitantial stake in Equansy, this
stake s classified as an associate’

O 3 Wovemibear 2015, Rabobank entened Info an agreamsant on
the basis of which it is expected that the minorty shareholding
of 15,15% in Cquens SE (Dquens) will be reduced 10 8 minority
shareholding of approsimabely 6% Woeldiine will Trandgler the
majar past of its Financial Processing & Software Licensing
activities i Eguens and will become the majory shareholder,
It is expactad that the concluskon of this transaction will ke
place in the fist half of the 2016 and may result in 3 book
prafit, the magnituce of which will depend an 3 variety

of circumitances 31 th mamont of conclugion. Ribobank

will Bt She pessibility fo sella part o all of the nemalning
shareholding in Equens fora perics of three years after the
conclssion of the transaction.

Achmea i a stategic partner of Rabobank for insuance
products, Iimerpolis, a subsidiary of 1he Achimes Gloup, works
cherusly with Tha iocal Rabobanky Achmisa® head olhoe K
located in Zeist, the Methedands. Mo Fisted market piice ks
avallable for the interest In Achmea The Interest in Achmea is
walued zcconding to the equity method
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et pnaier-d rErut Liris e e il b i [r N p— Pl
FAs— 2015 14
Canh srcd balances st certral Banin FARES 1700
e LR G587
Banking credit partislia 14864 15,337
Cither ssaty LA oA
Total assets FEINE #1205
Iraurance relsberd proeiom Lkl 81549
Loana wnd funcds borrosed L it ] TAan
e listslivies faatg BT
Tatal liabilities BLATG £1,387
evenues FTET] 36,7
Resuk From conbinuing aparations. 186 "
Resisl Troem Siscomisiussd operationy .
Dher compehsnse income 354 AR
Total comguehenive income i34 ]
by Higeeirales 2315 M4
Rersul P £ onlinuiceg exceeraliom o1 141
Resuk from di imazed operations sfter
L]
Mt prafit F 141
(Hhes comprebesniss incoms Ly kL]
Total compe ehnsive mnme FiL] 7

14 Intangible fixed assets

Sl Dubay
develoged wnlargibie

wrmfeny of urar Caadwmil Ao anrf Fotal
Yot mraded 31 Cecesniaei J015

Dpariing Dalance 1454 a3 isa 1058
Fonpige snchungs differences ] ] i (7]
Additions 4 L H 418
Digreriabi = 2345 2l 12511
Mhes o 1] ? ]
Deprecation = (LA} Le] nsm
g el L2 H (L] & I6s
Clasing balance " 4aa e 1,493
Coit 5T LASY 5 3657
Arrumulated depeecisbon and Srpaenenty [ 1,083 (L1 (PR
Wt carrping srmodunt 5 433 60 1493
Yiear pradedd 31 Decessder 3114

DOipening halance 158 424 182 1,901
Foveign encharspe differencey n | 3 &1
Aiddiiona 7 13 i1 33
Dangronealy - o (a1 [1}]
Onher n a n 40
Deprocation i L] 1187)
Irpairnt (£ ro] = 1
Closing balancs 1454 an LLE ] LOSS
Cent LA 1,55 i b4
Acrumulried depreciaton and e parTmers L] 933) 2] 11435
et carvying amount 1454 Az iaa Losy

234 fabobank Adresl Repomn 3015
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Goodwill ks reviewed for Impairment by comparing the canying
amount of the cash genarating unit includeng goodwill veith
the best estimate of the valee in we of the cash generating
wanit, For this puipose, this Lt esismate of the value i ue
datsmined on the basis of cash flow forecasts iv used AL as
taken from annual medhim-term plars drawn up as part of
the annual planning cycla. The plans reflect the management’s
et patimates of market conditions, markel reatrztions,
dlscount rabes [eloee Lakation), Qrovah B ogeerations, #ic,
IFtha oulcame shows that theie is no significant difference
babeeen the fair value and the carrying amouwnt, the fair
value i assessed m mare detail, with the elevant share

jprice being used for listed companles. In addiion, valuation
imodeds arfe dsed whic b are similar 1o the bniikal recognition

ol §h dcquisiton, peer reviews, etc. The waluation models ae
tested and inchide the develapment of the activites sinte the
acgiuistion, the mos retent INCome 3nd &xpentes foecasly
draan up by managamant, as well as updated forecasts,
assessments of discount 1ates, final values of growth rates, et
Pear rentews Include an assessment of the pricedeamnings ratio
and price/carrying amodnt ratio of similad lsted companies,
of simiar marker Ensac o, Assumplions are genarally
based an exparionds, mansgomont’s bast estimabed of futuwe
dosopments and, f aalable, exterral data

The imipaisment of goocdwill of 623 (M004: 32} s related

1o RNA and is recognised in the ‘Whalesale banking and
international retall banking'. The outlook for the futue
prefitabiling of RNA deteticianed during the first half af 2015
Thee koan portfolio of ANA has developed less fiveumabdy

than expected. The development of costs and siricter capital
requinements a5 a wosult of increased rogulatony pressurne atso
fed 10 a deterioration in the outlook for BNA duting the first
shx manthi of 2015 These elements, in combination wih the
tecent chosune of same units, gave an indication of potential
mpairrment of the goodiill. The test ra establish whether this
potential impairment had occurred, resulted In a downward
ad|usiment of goodwill (of ELR 604 mscn], This was mainly
the result of the decline in growth pasameters from on average
10095 1o 7.5% far the peat five years, & deciine of the muliiplar
used fod caiculaning the present value of the discounted cash
flews aftes the forecast pafiod) frem 1810 16 and a fise in

et clisconen facio from 3% L 14% The ecovernabile value
of approzimately USD 1 6 bilion is based on the eitimated

falr vl e less the costs of sale and is a Category 3 vahsation
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acconding bo the falr value hiedarchy. This i becaise somea
inpias fior derermenng the recoverable value consist of non-
chervable marke: data. On 31 December 2015, the rermaining
ekl I respect of RNA amounied 10 131, AL year-and
2004, the value in use was higher than the camying amoum,
Thiere wixs therefore no reason to cakculate the falr value less the
conits of sale at that tima.

Imapaiments al salvware developed in-house and other

i Langibile aasens are nob individually maleial The wtal
impairments of soltware dewelopad in-haute was 30 (1014.29)
This was mainly caused by the fact that the sofiwase b (parthy)
na longar wied.

15 Property and equipment

L and
o e of eurs buildngs  boapment Tl
Vit peaciend 11 Degernsser JUTS
Cipening balance L] LR E] k.
Fomengn eaxhange difoemo " 15 118
Porchisey i 14D 2550
[apoah 7 man (]
el -
Dwpreciation ] Ay (2501
[eprecistion ol operating e
Ansen - (100N 1,000
Diher q 1 10
Clasing kalance 1,945 EAIG T 765
Lor L 9285 iR
Revurmalated depeeclabion ard
S 11247 (1465 RLE LM
Nt carrping amaunt 1,045 5430 768
L owd
el el e builfings  Fgipment Fetai
Veme pradert 11 Derermoer 2014
Diperibing lrilance FAl] LR &1
Foneg enthunge diforences 1 108 1
Purchases 1 1530 1751
Dusperaaly L] sty L]
Imparmenl i1 [L1] [1}1]
Depreciation ] [LEL [4m
Depiecialion of operating lease
marty 3 [ 1k
Diher LEr] LEL] L
Closing balancs 1068 AT 7148
Cou g a7 LK1
Ko rulated depeeciation and
mparTen s (Lee% AT
Hut carrping amaunt a6 5179 7148
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16 Investment properties

Irvestmient piopertios ané stated al oot

ey milions of euros i ld
Digsertieny Ll 453 1,055
Penchases 4 L]
Ealss (L2 105T)
[Depure ationy [y L0 ]
Ipar—enis. [Fi] ]
her L ] L]
Clasing balance k] 453
The fair wiue spproad the 9

(014 afnymey e A

Cou T £ L]
Ar Ltec depreri | e L] L]
et vy ng amount 281 53

External valuations of the investment operics were
parformed by duly certified extemal parties in acoordance

with RICS valuation standands of ofher eguivalent standards.
Thee kvwestrment properties ane valissd, for the determination

af fair value, on ihe base of the methodologies whih ane the
most aporopiale i the proporty in question. This includes the
ducounted cash flow valuation mathod and the capitalisation
basad on net nitial yields Tor comparable transac foes,

[t the internally valued eal estate mwestiments in-house eal
estate enpertise i wsed. In 2014, 84% of apprasak were canled
aut by centified stalf of Raba Real Estate Group, Investment
properties wilued Internally dne typloally measwed uiing

a discounied cash flow valuation 1echnique,

F o1 A
Lwtermal vakiasseng 1 +Hu
Inneread valuatons L] ]
17 Qther assets
dervilfian of waro it Foli A4
Pecerabides arcd prepsgreenty anr 1,533
Aacrud iAledes 1500 1599
Preciout mutah, good and
e himi e reLE 1123 1,455
Redl enians prosins & 1577
Argruod income e 1k
Emplayee benefits s ¥ L]
Dby wnisens 558 1,853
Total othet misets 1.0 8,560
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mry el Beareowl Fumeeit i Pl ilire s
i il o orod b Pl
Buildi f equali fands 1205 1227
Wik in progs A [h]
Complrird developrments fre] il
Total el estute projecis FXIT 97

Real evtaie stocks are valied at the lower of cost ar net
realisable value. The net recoverable walue of the buiiding sites
and equaisation funds is thee highest of the direct viekd amount
and the indirect yieid amount, The direct yield amount is tha
estimated value ol sale ke the estimated costs of completing
the sale The mdirect yield value is the estimated yield based
an oedinary business operations less the estinated costs of
comphatian and the eslimated costs Recessany to complets e
sabe, whistely the eatimated cash flows are discountied at the
weighled average capital bake. In determining the weghtod
average capiial base, the bank factars in expected capital,
teming of cash flows, operational sk and certaln conditions
spedific 1o Rabobank Real Cstate Group.

Aabobank uses aurssmaents and estimates 1o deteming both
chinect and indisect hec owerable value, In deberminkng dinsct
ani indinect yield, risks related o cument Lnd apesdtions. sites
not subject to a zomeng plan, and equalisaton funds, Including
demographic trends, locaton, use and the elzbomtion of
davelopment plans and administrative deciion-making, are
incorparated on a locaton speciic basis a5 much & possible:
Foaf incividual Iocathons this results in expecied movements in
land and house pricey, expacted mamging per home, and othat
wariables, which ulimatety determine the direct and indirect
yhald amount.

Foal imclividhual plots and sines, ths nel econsiabile value i
datormined by compating the direet and indimct yield amounts
with each ather. For plots of laind ready far construction and
current land operations, net recoverable value is generally
equal to the indirect yleld amount. For the other categories,
bath the direct and the indirect yie'd amount may have bean
decisive in datedmining the nel necoveralye value, Linder such
circumutances th dirsct yiekd amount is generally ujed mone
citen the longer 1 tales to begin consbnction,

The risk of deviations from assessments and estimates ks
generatly greates for sites not subject 1o a 2oning plan than
fior sites which are subject to a 2oning plan, whaneby the
sk al deviations funther neieases if 1the commencement ol
canstraction i expechod 1o be delned
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Ir 2015, the net recoverabde value of all current land cparations,
sites nob subgect (0@ 2oning plan and equatsation fumsds

wird caleubated and compaisd with the corfying amount

Thils mesultisd g transher o proniskors of o 1onl ol -2 2004; 15)
A nogathve carrying amaunt may anse, for examgle, if Fabo Real
[Estate Group has committed to devaloping real estate, whereby
the propetty, acooeding to current estimates, i koss-makmg and
1he lass |5 greated than the amount capitalised a3t that lime

Baignoron | Adadtiona’ Wihdwowals'  Halenceon J7
e iR o Aanuany 2015 Aelagd omfef chasged  Deveribes NS
Micveimresy o i uons for geoperty progeds
Fslring sites and squsliaton nch e (]} (L] LA
Work in progeess L 5 12 153
Completrd devrlopments L] @ (L] 1
Total 5 L] i 80
Beloewe e [ FRS 11 __ AT Wittty Balanceon JT
rmilieng of meras Jonuary X014 kv change relee  nitferchanger  December 2714
oot et = o O S0 8 T 0 DSy EsimsCl
Bulding iites and eoualaation bundy 50 (L1 L] el L
Workin progress 4 i1l 2 1494 18
Comgleted developeneny L1l - [#1] Fi -]
Tatal (RLH (LF 1 13 |224) B4s
Workin progress 20 Debt securities inissue
A milians of aroy 2015 o4 o il o emzs 2008 a4
'hr-mhl::w-m-ﬂ uncher = R Centifs ateued depanit 38554 41,834
Cormwresicial paper (L& L2410
Comerenisl resl estane i developmens
indinpregren i o Baonaty 113415 17,752
A d e e Dihar deot wrrurte BAE 08
COHTETACTRIN [l il Total deht securities in o 174,991 184,060
Prebrwedeed 1ramis T cowrsresrial ieal
mataie [ho] [14%
bl " B¢ 21 Other liabilities
e ot ' s fiaee My Mria
18 Due to banks PR P S
Alira Hileseil 2513 2.7F!
14
drmalicny of wuroy 1) b = = ey =L
o DOther mitj [LEt]
Fimsdl-term dopeity ia144 (IREL]
Repurchaw sgrepments. L1l Ha Pemviinn foe ay | pevi : !
Total athe: daist oh G ¥
Wineellansnia [lshatie 10 oihe hasky m L] . s
Tartal diss 10 Banks 19,048 1068

19 Due to customers

Iy milicns of gures a5 A
Cuterml siounily ERATS 56,255
Drpoty varth sgroed maturity Lt 512
Deepirrs sedecrmabis 85 ROUOE T6HZ0E3 163857
Repuschinie agrrements L] ho
Cher dus to customen L agm
Tastal dhise 10 natamars 17581 1XIRE

D tocustarmers alse includes balances at central banks
amaurniting to EUR 23 billion (2014: 20)

AT Matas ta the consakdater Anancial statements
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22 Financial Habilities designated
at fair value

Thee chaange 0 The fair value of the financial kabilites
dasignated a1 fair vale, thatis stuibutable 1o changes in

tha credit risk of Rabobank itself s a gam of 367 (2004: loss

af 669 The cumulative change in fab value of structured

mafes stribatable 1o changes in the credit ek of Rabobark
amaurits 1o 1 041 belore taned {2004; 674} The book valw

of the ftructuned rotes 5973 (2014 5, 108) lower than the
amaurnt Rabobank s obliged to 'epay 1o the hodars of the
structured notes. The change In fair value that is atiributable to
chamges in credit risk §s calculated by establisking a ratio (o the
change i the credit spread of the non-siuctured notes swed
Ty Rabaank

bnmiliang of saras 215 ad
[Seructund] noted LA~ ] HETS
Cither ek securiten 54 L2 ]
[eposty wrh agresd mabunty Lrin] L i
Totsl Amddicial Habiktes deslgnated 81 bilf vabos 6991 15,744
23 Provisions

b milhans of ruras I a4
RETIRAE#IAG Piiin 354 ns
Prerriion For tas snd legal haues w12 o7
e 7 m2
Total provivions 193 T84
Change i st mere a3 fohrws:

Hestrsturicg proien

Openisg halancs L1L] L]
Additkora 285 13%
Witkuwah (L] na
Hebeunes (L] a4
Closing bebance 354 s

Pogpeisian P e aeaf begal biaues

Ogrniong halance 27 2468
Additiorn 234 ]
‘Withdeawalh (L] L]
Redriries 1 {151
Closing balance anz 287
e

Opening halancy m ]
Atk L] L1
Witk awalhh ] (e
Neleamay [L1] (384
Closlng balance 17 nz
Tonal peowisians aay Tod
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In the additions deducted fram the prafit of the restructuning
Erowision, an amownt of 183 (2014: BO) s included for

The rearganisation pragramme of the local Haboban ks

This recegahination pravithen conalsts of future payments
relating to redundancy pay and other costs directly attributable
12 the morganisation programme. Thase expenies ame included
when a redundancy scheme is drawn up 2nd communicated o
stakehoiders. The espacted outflow of funds will accur in 2016
Approsimatedy 16% (20014: 2196 of the proviion fa tax ard
bagal Issued relates 1o tax claimd The prondilan for tax and legal
insues by based on tha best possible estimates avallablo at
year-end, taking inte account kegal and tax advice. The timing
of the cash outfiow relating to these proviskons is uncartain
Becawie the outcome of the disputes and the time involved are
wnpiedic lable,

Thi item Cithes” Includis provtsion ol onemoos Coninects and
credit guaranioes.

oo irpaimoen slowarcen

. L rir ot I-%  Longerihan
v rrifisrt of wwnes e o 5 porcry Tetal
O 18 Dwcwrhes 3015 e 111 1 el
©in 30 Cecemhes 2014 453 LChl . T8

24 Deferred taxes

Dafered tay ssens and labilites are maaswed for all 1emposry
chiffengnces uding thit Nabiliny” méhod, The eifective 1ax rale

in the Methattands for measuring defened tax s 25% (2014;
25%0 There wene no changes in defened tax assets and
fabilities resuthing from changes in the effactve tax e In

the Methedands. No dederred tax agset has boeen iecognsed

for whussd Lax Jowws tolalling 1,648 (2004 1,657 Thews canry
Forward bogies melate fo waroul tae vatharities and their tarm e
maturity s largely unimited

Dafarred tax assefs tecognised In respect of carry forwad
Eosses can only be utilised I taxable profits are ealsed n the
futuie On 31 December 2015, there was a realistie expectation
ihat sufficient taxable profits would be generated within the
apphicable poriad,
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I miRaaE e dured

Fer 1he ywar @niked 11 Decsmiber 7015
Penunny snd ofher pod-soployment aliowance
P T I

Firuaricial Matalities a1 fair vahas

Cihe rowvisiona

Viedgireg of mneies rabe Hsk

Carybermard keiars
Gecaeherlll gl othas infargitie maste

Revabaation esenves for avadable-for sabe fnarcial st
Revabastion reurnan - Caah fow hedge.
Progeerty and egapment, inclading eaney

Catves temporary diflerences

Tatal

kv miliang of maras

For the year ended 31 Decembes 3014
Pefiiasn wrd other pou seplop

Impa ety

Financial Mebedities a1 far vabues

Dthes provisionn.
Hedgging of wtwresd rate tivk.

Carvy Pormire krises
Cezaetwll and ather iMirgithe akich
Revabastion neuerves Tor avalablefor-cale Snarcial aputn
Revabastion vesenss = Canh flow hedges.
Proqerty and ropapment in kading e
(e temperary diflerences

Total

25 Emplayee benefits

b miany of waras 2015 Foo
Ermgslayre benefits - ety m 18
Emploee benefiis - kabdites i1 L]
et penilon Rabilices iTt] B
Pension plasa 1 e
Dahes EFpliyes benefs 239 1]
et pension Babilites ETT] 0

25.1 Pension plans

Rabtabamk has placed its peniion plan with Rabobank Pengon
Funel, Thir sehema i 3 collectne defined ontribution plan with
a penisionable age of 67 end a target accrsl pecentage of 2
[Each yazar Rabobank deposits pension contributiom into the
Rabobank Pension Fund based on a fiwed system In anattempt
1o achiewva the farget pension acciual for serices provided
during the year of service based on a conditicnal career-average
fahan witl a conditional indexation Rataobank will luwiull:.r and
doehnilely cormplicd with all it pension abligations by paying
the annual pénsion premium Rabobank thercfore has no made
financiad liabllities with regard to undetly ng membership years

Fr Notes to the consakdated fAnancial starements

L fin Prare W Sy Pl il il
Oferred Dilprree! Dedarred Taxan sty
fow an ety For bl o rhanper e
35 - r L
55 " 3] -
a5 . 42 s
a1 1] 11g -
na - L] -

1550 e (L]
£ - 1 -
onan i - F
] . = id
” e L =
38 (i3 ({11 -
2,388 575 m ar
Defered Deteres Deferreat Tam on oohey
Ber diuehy Faw erhall b mr chageri  campreliviihe iacome
54 1 1 1]
Ay na i -
ATy + [ ek -
L] 1" " =
L1 o Hy =
1754 \E% {3 ¥
1 154

in [l - (EL]
mn + = 8
a1 b (= -
4% s 1] =
500 an nagy mu

and already accrued pension mghis in the context of the ikl
transfened. Rabobank made a one-off payment 1o the armaunt
of 300 \owards the ceeation of an indéx deposit. In addition,
Habobank will act a4 a guaranior during the period J014-1030
for the realisation of the faigel pension acorual fod the services
providiad during this period up 10 a maximaem ardunt of 250,

The new pension plan qualifies as a defined conbribation plan
wneder 1A% 19, Rabobank’s obligation is limited to the presnium
payments owed, less praviousy made payments.

Asof 31 December 2014, the Friesand Bank and ACC Loan
Managemest pendion chemes stll reemain as defined baneht
pensian plars, with exception 10 a few ey small plans.
These aie carear-average defined benelit pension plans,
administered by a fund o citherwise. The assets related 1o the
plans maintained in a furd are held independently of Habobank
as8e1s in separate funds managed by trustees. The oblgations
aie wakied gach year by independent sctuaries based on the
mmisthod prescited by the IFRS. The mast recant ac Tuasisl
valuations were performed at the end of 2015, The tables
relafing to the weighied averages of the man actuarial
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assumptions and the future premium payments in 2015 relate
10 Thase Twa pensian olans, The t2ble showing invesiments
i plan assers ase based on the penskon plan adminigened by
AL Loxn Managesment

it il o il M4
Froierit vabor of lisbite adminidored by funds. Ll LhH
Faair wadize: o plan avwets 9 7
‘et habiliies iia e

Movarments in plan assets and liabilities;

et il o furol s aola
Proardd vabor of liakfbe adminndered by funids

Predent vathos of enitherreras on | lausry [k ] =
Exchunge rte d ferendes ] 0
Hart inbereed incoere 1] o
Iracraates In emiithernents during the pesr [ 1
P s by e empdny . -
Benefity paid [FF] LLE]
Penson plasy amendmen - pi)
Cumalmenty . i
Dher ] P
Acouatial gains snd kpsses shing Irom changes.

b demegrickic mdumittion I n
Axtuaarial gaing and s arting omochanges

b el RO (133] EL
Prosend vahse of lishilties held ina fund aa

11 Degember L] 673
Faer v oof plan siiets

i v of didets on | lanusry £y o
Ewcbunge rare o Hesenoes 5 7
Rt intefedt bncesv 15 19
Pasaid T 7

Bencteypaid [F] L{H]]
Transder of scorued banedityand costs. in -
Crhes 1 5
Artaarial rewlt ] -2
Fair vafiss of plan sssetr on 11 December o 557

Estimated premium contriibutkons for 2016 are appeoximately 6
Man assets have been allocated as follows:

s A
Shaers and sllematiees 0% Mam
Iteresh bearing securitee S £V
Fizal wuiste e 47
Canh wred canh equvalenis (8T [T
Dthe Lo T
Tatal 1o ]

230 Rabobank Aanwsl Repon 2015

EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000000000000000000dn(Ees923)

L L R Pl Hitreita Pl

The costs recognised in the consalidated profit and loss
Focount are shown in 1he @hie below

o Ml of dn ars ald
gl o kbt £ ] n
et o plen aveb (1E1] LLL]
Covts based onthe pesiod of employ daring

1he yeaf L] 3
Penean ploe amerdire=t . F
L gaingl on di . st anad costy 1 1
Total deit of defined lens i penion plans R L)

The weight=d averages of the man actuarial assumptions for
the waluation of the pensson provsion |defined benafit pension
plans) as at 11 Decermber ae shown in the able below {in %

et yeark

Pl Fol
DEscoun rats 1% 13%
Wage infation 1% 6%
Frice inflation 1% L

252 Other employee benefits
Other employee benefits mainly comprise labiites for lutue
Fongesanvoe awards for an amount of 95 (2014; 106)

26 Subordinated liabilities

I milligns of wurce i FE ]
Asbobank 15479 s
Dthes M F)
Trital subradiimated lakad gisy L] LR L]

In 2015, Rabobank lssued four subordinated bonds in AUD and
USDE Thee ALID 325 million bond matutes in uly 2025 and has
a coupan rabi of S00% The AU 475 milion bond matures In
July 2035 and has a varlable coupon rate, Rabobank is entitlied,
bt not opdged, to early repayment of these ALD bond loans
o 2 July 2020, Tha USD * 500 milion bond matures In August
2025 and has a coupon rate of 43756, The LISD 1,250 million
Bond miatures in August 2045 and has a coupon rie of 5.25%,
En 2014, Rababank istued thaee fubardinaed bands in GER
Euios and B'Y. The EUR 2 billlon bond matunes in May 2026
andd has a coupon rate of 2 5% Rabahank B entitled, bt not
ciiged, to early repayment of this band koan in 2019, The GEP
1 bilfion bond matures in May 2029 and has a coupon rate of
4525%, The MY 508 billion bond matures in December 2024
and has & coupon rate of 1429%
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Rabohank ksued three subord inated loansin 2013:a EUR
1,000 million oan with 3 fmed (nterest mie of 3875% and

4 matutiny date in 202% 3 USD 1,750 milllon loan with a fied
Rrvlerest file ol 4.525% and 4 maturily date In 2023; a0d a LISD
1,250 million oan with & feed interest sate of 5.75% and

a maturity date in 2043

In 2012, Babobank issued theee subodmated loans: 2 ELIR
1,006 million loan with a fwed interest gte of 4,1 25% and

4 malurity date in 2022 0 GBP 500 million koan with a feed
interedl rate of 5,25% and a maturity datein 1037, and a USD
1,500 million oan with a fived Interest ate of 3.95% and

a maturity date in 2022 In 2010, Rabobank isswed a EUR
1,000 million loan with a fived Interest mie of 3.75% and

a maturity date in 2020 In 2009, Rabobank hsued a EUR
1,000 million oan with & foed [nfenest e of 5875% and

a matutity date in 2015,

27 Contingent liabilities

Credit related cantingent liabilities

ALl granting llabsities iepresent the unused poions ol
furdi suthadded for the granting of credit in the toim ol loang,
financia guarantees, letters of credit and other lending related
fimancial instruments. With megard o the credit sk exposure
fram credit grantkng fiabilities, Rabobark is potentially exposed
1o klasses amouniing to the unused portion of the awhorized
funds. Thi 101al expected boss i lowar than thie o1l af 1ne
uiused funds This b because credit granting fabilities are
subject o the chents n question continuing 1o meel specific
standards of creditworthiness. Financial guarantees represent
inevacable undertakings that, provided certain conditions ane
miel, Rabobank will make payments on behalf of clients if they
aie unable tameet their inancial obligations 1o 1hicd paries.
Rabobiank also enters into credit arrangements in the Torm of
cradit facilities made avallabla to safegquadd chiznts' lquidity
requirements, but which have not yat been drawn upon,

The contingent liabilities Include guaranteas for providess of
collective and individual pension savings phens, as required

by goveinment autherities. The likekbood of an cutfize of
Tesources embodying sconomic Benefits iv very low,

I milans of euras 073 Fl]
Financial guarariee. 10403 1.4
Credit grarsing Rabiltie 2,508 A
Listiiers uf cresil 4580 L% )
Crodd related contingent Babsilites 62,285 53,847
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The contrac tual commitments relafing to the acquisition,
cansiruction and development of work in progress and
InRsbmient poper ties amounts to 678 (2014; 587),

Furlaabarik |s vendved In 2 manbed of legal and setbeaion
proceedings in the Retherlands and ather coumtties, including
the United States, in connection with claims brooeght by

and against Rabobank Group arsing from its operations.

Feur additional informatian, please refer to Paagraph 4.13, Legal
and arbitration proCeedings’

Liabélities retating to operating leases

Rabobank has concluded various operating lease contracts as
basses, maindy with wespect o properties, informathon systems
aivid cars Thee fulure nel minimwen lase paymenis undes non-
cancellable opemting leases can be Droken down as foliowes

v g of wwvos SJONF i
ot Lty | e L[] kL
Listes thaas 1 et bt rt gter than & pran e Eie)
Laver than § peas s 188
Tetal labilities relating b operating leaiei L1 ar

Thit ot pesched future minimum lease payments receivble
from sub-leases are 3 (2014: 3), The openting lease expenses
ae 730014 75} Thete are included n Uther admnistrative
experses' in the stalement of income.

Payments receivable from operating leases

Rababank has condluded various opetating lease cantracts
a5 leason, The fulum menEmum base paymenls el
from non-cancollable operaling leases can be broken down

as fioliows:

n maline of woros Hif a4
Heox Laer chan |year 1340 1.3
Lo thavs | et But Pt later Than 5 pean 1E50 24565
Larter than § pean. an T
Total PR ’

leaies Aak 5920

Mo contingent lease payrants werne recognised as assets
churtinie] U wisat undor i,
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28 Equity Rabobank and local Rabobanks

Equity Rabobank Group

ey milions of euros HrE ld
Forsige cumtency Bamalation rewerees. Tak L]
arvabartion sruer for avadable-for-wle Snsroad

assety 511 3
Pt T r 1
Fervabastion rruerven - Caih Ao hedgn (5] 1
Remeatusemen reseree - Penalons [LFst] (15
Rrtained carningi 54ar 4518

Total reserves snd retsined sarnings st pear-end 25708 4,094

Changas in the resared ware a5 followe:

ypmalieng of euros Pl it
FOreiyn CLEncy Daannn [esenes

[o—— 4y 12t
[ e rave ol erra g bt e The ear L] -
Clasing balance el 1] L]

Revabagiioraeteners - Avalable forale Anancall

dasEts

Opering bislsncn LT E=)
Fomeige pwcrangs diffcroncey (L] i
Changes ot ssLoCies (1L20] A
Fisir wadh chaicpin [1F2H] 533
Amartinatinn of reclensifed sty & LE]
Transderred vo profin o kas a8 rEkd]
Clasing balanis r 843

R haThoe deservag Tor a5 soiaee

Cigrening balance ] EL
Twir wabum changey - (k]
Closing balane X 3
Revabartioe ieieny - O flow hacdges

Oipening halance n 49
Fair walhum changey a5 i
Transderred o profit or boss [ [Sae
Closing balance 39y "
Remeaiamsense ieseree - e

Oipeninng hislance (1120 s
Changes sl sxssiste ¥ L]
Fwir wabum changeu 1] CLET)
Re-epiry (LT T e B
Closing balance sy 1198
Hetarted Fansngy

Cipening halance Fo R arier
et proda 2561 14592
Paytrests 04 ety srtrisenis (A7) nom
Rty < : {n080
Cithar ur [Fl
Closing balanie FLYE TSR
Total reverves ird retained earnings 35,704 IV T
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29 Rabobank Certificates

By thee pa i 2000-2005, Rabobank issued member certificates
as part of 113 member loyalty programme, Thede wete o

insaes (in 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2005} under which member
certificates ware only made avallable to members of lacal
Rabobanks and were traded once a month on an infamal
market On 14 lanaary 2014, the cerifficate holder mestng
appreved the propoded change in aider 10 lacState o Euonest
Amdterdam listing. The Rabobank Cetificalies have been lsted
on Eurgnext Amisterdam since 1T lanuary 2014, Since the slock
exchange listing, Rabobank Certificates are atso available to
no-Rabobank members. Thes has increased tne markaiabdty of
This Instrurment.

Ralsobank Cerificates represent privale parkicipation fghts
ksl by Habobank via the toundation Stichiting sdministrate
Kantoo Rababank Cerfifcaten and belong 1o the Common
Equity Tier | equity of Rabobank.

The initial share price on 27 January 2014 amounted to 106 00%
{EUR 26250 On 31 December 2015, the share price amounted
1310 1A% [EUR 27.87) OF the total 737,961,365 cendficales,

an average of 4.3 million wase taded vy day an Euromma
Amaterdam during this period

The distribution pald per certificate in 2015 was ELH 1,625
{2014: EUR 1,625]. The Executive Board s entitled not & pay the
distribution. Unpasd distributions will not be pald 2t a later date.
The amounts lsted 'n the table bebow are based on the nominal
walue of EUR 25 per Rabobank Cenificae. Cawn Nows arising
from chandges during the year in the Rabobank Certificates are
incliaded In the consolidated statement of cash flows,

I mlliam of pure a5 e
Changes derng The yearn

Dipening balance 5931 LF b1
Aabalard ot e

The year m i)
Clasing balanos 5949 580
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30 Capital Securities and Trust Preferred
Securities Il te VI

‘Capital Securithes and Trus Prefened Securiibes 1 to Vi can be
lbrcken down as Fallow:

i milian of roros SO Sold
Capial Seguritiey B0 Bt
Trusd Prederved Secur thes 0 oWy LA L
Total Capital Securitien and Trusg

Prafurred Spouwritionll ta VI #1313 TATS
Capital Securities

All Capetal Securities are parpetual and have no expley date.
Tee distribuation cn Capizal Securities per issue s as fallows:

Equity Instruments Issued directly

Issure of EUR 1,500 milion

Thee distribution is 5.5% per vear and is made payable avery six
months i arears as of the lssue date (32 January J015), for the
tirst time on 29 Juns 2015 The Capital Secutities ae pemetual
and first redeemable on 29 June 2020,

Capinal Securithes e reCognlied as equiry, as thent ik no
formal sblgation 1o wpay the principal o 16 Bay tho pedadic
dvidend. These Capital Securities coemply wath the currens rules
e CHUY B ane ©RR recuirements, with megarnd 1o anditional

thor 1 capital, The conditions include the requirement that the
seculites must not pay starer Interest and mast absoub bosses
if 3 cermain wigger i reachad, In that case, the relevann armowent
will b detrited from the principal. The debiting will occur

@ 3 oo fata bash with ather addikonal tier | instrumenty,
Thils instrement hat two triggaen: One at Rababank Group level
and the other at the level of Rabobank with the kocal Fabobanks
{Local Rabobank Group), For Rabobank Gioup, the tngger is ot
A COMMOn equity tler | iatio of T3, and for the Local Rsbotank
Group at 5.125% respectivehy, this senes of Capital Securites
absorbs losses from that point arwards As of 29 July 2020,

amnd sussect to Capial Securites not being redeemed aarby,
the distribution is set for a further fveyear period, but without
a siep-up, based on the S-yaar suo swap rate + 5250

Isswe of USD 2,000 million

Thee elintribudthon i 88009 jier yasie and 15 rmade payable ey six
months inarears as of the hsue date (2 Novemibar J01 1), for
the first time on 29 Cecember 201 1. The Capial Securities are
iperpetal and First redeemable on 29 June 2017, If the Capital
Securities ae not redeemed early, the distrbution s set for

a lurther frve-vear period, but without a sEp-up, Based on the
15 Teeanury Benc himark Rate plus a 743% mark-up
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Tssue of USD 2,000 million

The distribution s B.375% per year and & made payable every
4 aiatilhig [n arreaed as al the lsue date (26 lanuary 201 1), Tor
Uhae flest thimecm 26 Juby 2001 As of 26 luly 2016, and subpect 1o
Capital Securities not being redeemaed early, the distribution is
set fora further five-year period, bt without a step-up, based
o the LIS Treasury Banchmark Rata phus a b4 Z25% mark-up

Isswe of EUR 500 million

The distribution & 5.94% per yeat and 15 made payable annually
in arrears as of the issue date (27 February 2009), for the

first time on 27 Fabruary 2010, As of 27 February 2019, the
distribution will be made payable every quarter based an the
thaee-rmonih Euidaon plus am amaweal 750% maik-up,

Issue of USD 2,868 miltion

The distAbution i 11,00 per year ard 18 made payabée every
six months In arrears as ol the hsue date (4 June 2009, for the
first time on 31 December 2009 (long first inteest paiod],

As of 30 Jine 1019, the distribution will b= made payzable every
guarter based on the thies-month USD Liboe plus an annual
10 B68% mark-up.

Tisune of CHIF 750 million

The distribistion i 6 875% pef year and s made payahle
anneally in arrears ay of the issue date (14 July 2000, for the fist
time on 12 Koverniber 2002 (shoet first Intedest period), As of

12 Novernber 2014, the datribution will be made payable every
s mantha based on the s-month CHF Libor plus an annual
A565% mark-up. The sue was rodeemed on the earlietl
regemption date of 12 November 2014,

Issue of GBP 250 million

The distributian is 65673 pet year and B made payable every
Alx oS 0 aereas a5 of (e sdue date (10 June 2008], o
the first time on 10 Decomber 2008, As of 10 June 2038 the
distribution will be made payable every six monihs based on
the sie-mionth GEP Libor plus an annual 2825% mark-up

Issue of CHF 350 milllon

Thie distribution i 5 50% par year and is made payable annually
Iy arrears an of U baue date (27 hene 20080, bot the [est time an
A7 June 2009 As of 17 June 2018, tha distribution will be mada
payable every s months om 2T June and 27 December based
o the six-month CHF Liboe plus an annual 2.80% mank-up,
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Isswe of ILS 223 million

Thee distriburion is 4.15% per year and 1s made payabie annually
W arnears a6 of the mwe date {14 July 2008], for the first time oh
14 Juby 2005, Asof 14 July Z018, the distibuticn will be made
payabla annually based on an indes related 1o the interest rate
jpald on Israall govemment bonds with tarms between 4.5 and
5.5 years plus an anmvsal 2.0% mark-up.

Issue of LSD 225 million

Their éfstribnation is T.375% pid wiar dnd s made payable @y
sl maanths In arreans from the hsue date (24 September 2008),
for the first time on 24 March 2009 The ssus was redeemad on
the earliest iedemption date of 24 Maich 2014,

Isswe of NZD 900 million

Ther distribuation o (he NED Cagital Sec unities eoualk the
ang-yoar wwap Interest rate plus an anmsal (O7E% mark-up and
s made pavable annually on 8 Cetober, until 8 October 2017,
As of B Getober 2017, the distribution wil be made payabile
every quaries basad on the 90-day bank bill swap Intesest rate
iphus an equivalent mark-up

Theet el of peafit made by Rabobank may influence the
alistribution an the Capital Securities. Shoukf Rababank becama
insolvent, the Capital Securithes are suboedinate ta the rights

«of all ariher (current and futuwe) creditons of Aabobank, unless
the rights of those ather creditors are substantively detemined
alhennTe.

Equity instrumants issued by subsidiaries

Isswe of NZD 280 million

Habobark Capital Secumtes Limiled has ssued capital
segurnibes, the distribution of which cquals the five-year swap
nleiesl 1ale plus an anndal 3,75% manc-up and was sel al
B.TBEA% pod annurm an 25 May 2000, As of thir s date

{27 May 2008), the distribution s made payable every quarter
i arrmars, for the fiest Urme cn 18 June 2006 (short first infedest
period|. As of 18 June 2014, the distribution will be mada
jpayable every quaner basad on the five-year swap interest plus
an annual 3.05% mark-sp. As of 18 June 2019, the disinibution
wiill B macde payable every quarter based an the 90.dyy bank
bl swap nterest rate plus an annual 3.75% mark-up,

Isswe of EUR 125 milllon

In Movermiber 2004, Friesland Bank MY, ksued parpetual Capital
Secuities. These ae undased bonds listed on the Euroneaxt
stock exchange, The bonds ars subordinated 1o a8 the bank’s
ather present and funee BIITHES, For Supenissy purpose,
the bond lsan qualifies as part of the bank's com capital
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The distributian on the bond loan & linked to the yield on
Duch 10-vear governmant bonds plus a maigin of 0.1 25%,
enashmum B The Interest rEbe 14 rewe on a quadierly basis
Entereat payments mu be defered if, 20 days prior 19 the date
of paymenl. 1T s krown 1hal payment af e will carse the
solvency ratio o drop below the minimum capital required

oy the supervisony authority. In addition, the bank may decide
1o defer intenest payrents The bond wais redesmed on the
eailiest redemption date on 3 December 14,

Trust Preferred Securities I (o W

In 2004, four tranches of non-cumidative Trust Preferned

Secumities wess issued.

= Rababank Czpital Funding Trust 1ll, Delswate. 3 group
comparny of Rabobenk, iseed 1.5 milion ror-cumulage
Trursh Profensd Siecuritis. Th mipesc bed distribution i
5.259% up to and Including 21 Qctober 2016, For the
periad 21 October 2016 to 31 Decembear 3016 Inclushee,
the expacted distribubion i squal to the iInterpolated LUSD
Libar rate for the period, plus 1.5900%. The compary has the
right ot to maks a ditrbution Thereaftar, the expecied
distiibution is equal to the three-month LSO Liber tate plus
| S000%. The todal proceeds fiom this ldue amounted ta USD
1500 milion. &g of 11 October 2016, thase Tiust Preferned
Securities can be epurchased on each distribution date
twhich s once a quarter] afler prior written 2pproval has
been securad from the Dutch Central Bank

« Rabobank Czpital Funding Trust IV, Delsware, & aroup
cormpany of Aabobank, seed 350000 non-curmatabive Trust
Prefemed Securities. The expected distribution is 5.556%
up toand cluding 31 Decembear 2019, Thereafte, the
evpected distribiition & equal 1o the ss-manth GBF Libor
ke phes 1AG00%. Thie campany has the right not 1o make
o dibiibution, Thie latsl preceeds fiom this e amoied
£o GBP 350 milkon, As of 31 December 2019, these Trust
Prefened Securitles can be repurchased on each distribution
date fwhich Is once every halfyear) after peios written
approval has beer secuted fiom the Dutch Central Bank

+ Rabobank Capital Funding Truat V, Delawase, a group
compary of Rabobank, isved 250,000 nen-curmudative
Trut Prefored Securites. The expected distribution is the
three-month BESW rate plus 067003 up to and including
11 December M114, Thetealtar, the expected distribution
Is equal to the three-month BESW rate pluy 6700
The company hias the fght not 10 make a distibution
The total proceeds from this Bsue amounted to ALID
250 milon. The die was isdeemed an the sarliest
redemgiion date on 31 Decembes 2004,
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+ Rabobank Capital Funding Tiust W, Delaware, a growp
company of Rabobank, ssweed 250,000 non-cumutative Trust
Prelened Secuites The expected distribution s 6415%
up 1o and mclucling 31 Dicembser 1014, Therealte, the
epected distribution ik equal 1o 1he three-month BBSW
rate phes 167005 The company has the right not fo make
a distribution. The total procaeds from this ssue amounted
o AUD 250 millian, Thie ksue was redeemed on the sarliest
mdemption date on 31 Decemben 2014,

o the Trust Prefermed Securitles lssued in 2004, 2 payment

s required i & distribution is paid on ttems of a moe
suborzirated nature {sech as Rabobank Certificatas) or on
e af the same rank (pani passul with the provision that
s payment 1s regquiied i the DNE ob)ects to such paymant
g, IF Rabobank Goup's solve rdy ratio is lower than B%)

I Rabcban Grou p rmakes a prof, Rabobank can enher pay o
nat pay compensation on thesa items at ity own discretion.

Trast e
b miilhan of surdi -1 M4
Changes. durng the: pear

Dpniieny bialance 1043 1,265
Repaamenii 3 (£ F ]
Lxchiange rete df o otth ] (51
Closing balance {8k} (R b

31 Other non-controlling interests

This Aem ieates 1o shares hekd by thind partkes in subsidaties
and other group companies

kv milians of wros i Al
Diperiieny halance LEE] L]
] b | EL]
Exchange rate dfeences inm ¥
Erstitiey i et = a {HH
fevalk - avalable-dor-upie fnar . -
imher ] LRk ]
Clasing balance 422 473

The Rabsobank subsidiaries with the largest non-coninciling
interpdts are Do Lags Landon Participacoes Limitads and AGCO
Firsatepe SHC. Both entilkes are acoowled fod in the segrient
Laasing

[De Lage Landen Participacoes Limitada is based in Porto Alegre,
lrazil, and Rabobank has a capital and woting nght imtenest of
TEEES, The now-comiralling Inberésts with regaid 1o his entity
Amaunt ta &5 (2014 77). The bollowing Rrancial data apply:
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_mtimiral e o S——tt e it tn LT
D Lage Lavscion Puasticipustizery Limitac 2008 T
Bavenie LF 10
Wt parohe 5 (LA
Other compieie nures income E

Total compeehandve income ki i
Peirli amrilinaddic 16 ehird fanties 12 1
virdecacty puid 1 -
Financal msem (i 1,618
ther saets LE) W
Financial Habdites 531 1,554
Orther halbslinkes L] o

AGCO Finance SMC s located In Beawwals, France, and Babobank
Buas 3 capital and voting gl imerest of 51,00 The non-
canalling inteesns with rsgand 1o this emily amaunt 1o

78 L004: 671, The fellowing inandlal data apply:

RGO Finance SNC P b
Revenusi ] 34
Wt penibe 0 3
DFEhes CompleReE e INCOIme . -
Tistal omgeeienilve INCome -] s
Prule antiilnialle 1o ehivd james -] 9
Dvicdrsch i id ? ]
Financial mise 1A 1,240
Oithar sisets 41 15
Financisl lahdities. Lire ANEL]
Drther kablities 13 12
32 Interest
¥ rialliadh of e s M
e nzame
Cash wed balances a0 oesoml banis 108 ma
Lisaerq il Selbvanoet 1o Bk kil £
Financul asety held for tradling kL] g8
Financial asets desbgraied ot far value 53 il
Lisard and sdvances 10 cuslomers (T TR
Avaiitie. forule f laswett aie LI
Ceeriwatives beeld 8. econamic bedges nzeal s
Dther 4] 138
Total Intevest incoms 17581 a3
e e e
Do imbuanka &5 4%n
(Cirher tracde Rabdliney L n
Dit D LA ETiEE] 31719
Dbt ecurtties in s LM 4152
Cither kabebthes L] a2
Financisl lubslities desgnated ut far vakss ] 551
Cher & L]
Taotal Intedest cupense & A54 #520
Het intetmsl incoms 3,158 118
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Capltalised interest atinbutable to qualifying assets amounted
10 20 {2004: 210 Thee average Intedest e appled in
chptiarrining interest charges to be capitalied ranges between
10 e 5,59 (2014 b twesn 035 and 55%1

33 Commissions

e mallien of wuras FL Al
Fer and commisskan ncoms:

RSl Il egeEnL 34 &
vt pormmi uont e L]
Lemaing a5 435
Purhase aivd sabe of othed Anardial docts sl

hanfirg fery 433 -0
Paymessd servioes [LE] L1k
Custodial feet and 3e0Umies Mies T L1
Crher tamimnsion ingorme 0 198
Total few and conmmdselon Incams. Lo77 LO75

Fee andd commaizisn sxpane

Purchase snd sals of othes finanoial s L] 1
Paymes servioes 35 1
Cuntockal deey and sscurkien serwioe i 7
Wanahing fess. EL] 4n
e £ OIS Sk SR Pare E ]
Total few and commivion expenss 185 e
et e and Commission inooees BT LATH
34 Income from associates

e miilien offeuray e A
Rabobenk vwe of profit of associstes 52 119
[ L il | i sl (2] ]
Income bomancciates e a3

35 Netincome from financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss
kv il of mares M5 A4
I from finandial avirts s kabiltar bl for
vy el Freorm cevhvatbers Badad oo iyuaed for sradking 18 £ie ]

Veingiat [T i il Skiets el buitbalinass 3t Fisi
vt thidugh Erofit & bidi and dédivitived aeilia
hedge the infenest rabe ik of other financial Eshiities

ot wlue 554 | 548
Cher ] 187
Tastal ingams froes insncisl svann snd lisbiline st

Tali walus thigugh prafin of boss. L] ne
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The financial assets and llabilities fsied in the above table are
combined into pordolios. ProfTs from thase insorements must
b conudered i conjunctian with each othet, Total ncome
from Enancial asiets ard labiBties a1 falr value through prehit
o lods shows a batance of 276 (2014 2) in relation to changes
in tha fair value of the other financial llabilites designated

al fa'r value that s attributable to changes in the credit risk
and hedge accounting. The changes in fair value of the ather
financial labilites dedignated at Lairvalue that can be assigned
1o the chianges in Aabobank’s Credit Ak 4 shown undes Crher
Segments and In the above table under incomae for oiher
financia assets and llabilites at fair value theough profit or
boss and derivatives used 1o coves the interest rate risk of 1he
ather financaal lakil ties 2t fair valee. The results relating to
Thee appication of hexdge soounling an dfwn wnde Orves
Segmirtity and in the above tabile under BesaBs o hnane il
assets and llakitkes held for trading ancd darlvatives held or
ftsued for trading.

v il &f wures o b
inaoera from st i airusenis L) m
e I S IR ] L)
v [ Rereige curmenitin L an
Other i 1
Total inooese from financis! aisets and abilives at fair

walum through peafit or loss B03 10

36 Otherresults

i millign of yuras Fdbg Fots
Heal eriste activites Bl 184
Zentsl memme fT 412
ther s L]
Totsl ather results a55 L1110

Enirme from igal estatie attieilies inchudes pojedl ncanse af
1,495 {2074 1,344}, peojoct changes of 1,253 (2014- 1,122 and
impairments of <40 (2014: 38}

Rental income |ncludes operating lesse income and rental
income from lvastment properties. Operating lease income
Includes income of 1,373 (2014; 1,977, depreciation charges of
1,002 G0 4; 914] and other costs of 2 (2014 703} Renial income
fraam inveitrmant properties includes income of 50 (2004; 24,
chepreciation ol 11 (X014 10§ and ather costs of 32 (3004; 7).
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37 Staffcosts

ey il of uras s Ayla
Wy aml wadaney 1194
Saciel seourity it o caaby b
Persion coats - debned I 500
Pamzizn eonty - defined beroft pernions plans °
Crihe poud -serploymens proviskons: (1:25]

T

Fid

Jegpek

Drthes il oosts

Tatal utaff covts 4, 4,088

[Expressed in [TEs, the average numbser of intesmal and
extemnal employess in Rabobank dunng the year was 52885
{20014: 58,4081

Ir 2011, fellowing the implementation of CRO Il and the
regulations governing rednined remuneration palicy,
Rabobank Group adopled an amended remuneration palicy;
the Group Remuneration Policy, This palicy is updated on
areqgular basls and has, 3 of 1 Jareary 3015, besn adjusted to
inchade the prostilons under the Dutch Act on Bemunaration
Paliches ko Financial Cormpanies. iniofar as employess (n

the Netherlirgs ane sl eligiphs for vaiable semungrtion,

it M amounts 1o mand Than (on Jersp 0w group
employees) 1% of the fised income. CrAside the Netherlands,
any varlable remunaration never amounts bo mare than 100
«af the fixed income. Insofar as identfied staff jemployees who
«<an have a matedal influence on the tisk profile of tRabobank
Group) are eligible for vanable remuneration, it £ awarded for
such a perlod that the raks sssoclated with the underlying
bumsiness activities s adenquiataly taken into account. Payment
«of a significant portion of varable remuneation s theeeforo
dafarred. The immediate poetion of varlable remunemtian iz
uncondithanal, whereas the defermed ponion i conditional.
Thee deferred portion vests aftes thiee years I the corditions are
mel Among othes things, it is assested whether there has been
a significant reduction in financial perfarmance or a significant
change i sk management 3l Rabobank Group amdion
business wnkt that puts the ciroemstances asessed when the
telewant variable remunaration was awarded in a differsnt
perpeciive. Inprinciple, the right 1o any provisionally allocated

LAt Lpses whn thie s1all member's employment sndi,

507% percend of both the disect and the deferred portion of the
variable rermmaration i allocated in cash. The cash companent

«of the direct portion is immediately awarded following allocation.

The cash component of the defened portion is awarded to
employess only afte vesting {after a perlod of theee years)

27 Nobes to the consakdated fAnancial starements
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50 of the direct and the deferred poetion of the vaiable
remuneraton s Aocated in the form of an instrument
{irstrurndnl compantnt) Le, the Dedeteed Bemunciatian

Mot [DANE The value of 8 DAN (s linked directly 1o th geice

ef a Rabobark Confcate (ACT as listed on the NYSE Eurcnext.
The instrumient companent s canverted into DRMGS at the

time of alocation on completion of the performance year.

The number of DRMS 15 detesmilred on the basis of the closing
ralies for Fabobank Certilicates, a5 taded on the NYSE Eufoned
chuting the fersl Tove trading days of February of each year.

This thewefore iepresents both the instrument component

cf the derect and the deferred portian of the vanable
remunieration. The final nember of DRks relat ng to the deferred
i Do s esstabilis hed on vesting lafter a period of theee years)h,
The payment of the instrumant companant is subject 1o ane
year refention period, Alter the end of the retention period,
The employee receives, for each DRM (or a parion thereol)

an amount in cash that comespands with the value of the DRN
at that moment

Payment of the cash component of the varable remunegation
s measured In accomdance with 1AS 19 Employes benefits,
whiereas payment of the DRNs 15 measured In accorcance

with IFRS 2 Share based paymants, This immadiate poiion of
the varable remuneration is recognised in the periomance
year, whafeas the defered portion s ecognised in the yean
boforr vesting.

The sarme sysiem alo apolles, in beoad temms, o non-identified
staff, although no deferral palicy applies 1o thie firg 100,000 and
both the immediate and the deferred portion are pald fully In
cash, which meaans that no LDENs are awarded.

On 31 December 2015, the costs of equity instrument-

Eased payments were B (2014 100 On 31 December 2005,

& llabifiny of M was iecognised (2014 23), The costs of variable
remuneratsn paid in cash wene 91 (004 570 Thie niember of
DAMs outstanding Is presented n the fallowing table.

i s a1l Hrld
Opeenirgg bulanie L4 L
Awarded darng the year 25 T ]
Paid dusiong the year g L]
Changes brom prowioen peer fioar (LF )
Clasing balance 17 LILL]
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Lt B i ] sLrrimaple iy wng ek B o S—— Fasgn.cn ey [ TF]
Thee vatue of a DRN is knked direcily to the price of a Rabobank

Canificace. The estimared paymeanis 10 be made for e vaiable
remunerion e shown 0 the fallowng able.

O 31 Desoembes 3015 Fearof payment
i et o eares 008 2047 o8 Jore 2000 Tetal
Variskle rermonasbicn, eocuding Dt Lt L+ 12 ] - 1109
DRMs 1.5 78 a5 13 17 113
Total 1023 108 114 1608 1.7 142.2
o 1 Pevembes 2008 Fearof payment
b miliang of wurai A yitH] My M e Tetal
Variatle remunerstion, eocding [y 1.5 aa [ *] 75 - 1320
RN £ 11 i 42 53 15
Total 105.1 1658 108 ns 5.3 1515
38 Other administrative expenses 41 Regulatory fevies
Other administrative expenses increased by 15% 1o The reguiatory levies consist of bank tax and bavy, contributions
EUR 2,916 million (2014: 15311 Domestic retall banking saw 1o the natonal resoluton fund and 1he reaciution levy,
an increase m other adminktrative expenges due to higher Banks operating in the Mathedands on 1 Ociober of the year
contibumions to presvtiions for reomganisation and legal costs under review ale reguied 1o pay bank 12 There a2 mwo e of
I 2004, extiisr administrative expenses fell by EUR 193 million Rean tme A sate of Q0% for cusrent labifities and o rate of 0.032%
due 40 the partial release of 3 provision paéviously oreated fod for lorgy-berm liabilitees, based an the balndé o0 December X4
5B Hank, The rapnaining ELR 30 miBan of this provision was In 205, Habobark Group was charged a tofal of 163 (004 167
released in 2015, En 2015, the bank levy in Ieland amounied o4, In X015, the

contribution 1o the Matlonal Resol utkon Fund amaounied to

172 {3044 0). The resclution levy, a ane-off vy imposed by the
39 Depreciation Duteh govemment on the Dutch banking industry i connsction

with thit raticnalsation of SMS Reaal. womied 321 in 2004,

i it e 2015 2014
Deprecation of property sad equ e 40
Deeprecation of imangble saets 183 197 42 Tﬂms
Total deprecistion 443 437
i miions of ewros Feli E Tt
CamTenl Wome o
Rrparting aid na
40 Loan impairment charges m,,::,H n 1
Dfewtied tuss (H] [144]
i il s 2005 2014 Total tanms 648 11611
Lioana and scvances 5o banks [RL] ihE
Livaiaa e By 0k 00 CUSTOMERS 1134 272
st sl weite-dawren nak 13w The tan on the opeating profit of Rabobank differs as follows
Credi releied babdie L 2 from ihe nominal amaunt based en the Dutch corporate
Othes msets [13/] 13 pp——
Tatal lnan impairmant dsarges 1031 1,833
i Mo of euros 018 arid
Dprating profit oo Tawation 1ne 1681
Fan ewprrps incorme [LiE ] [247]
Won-ieteities eapeniss AL 59
T latdes nist retognile i provend yean 115 12
Othes =L s
R 1278
Toan ealendanedd o a b cute of 15.0% {1074: 35.0%) sa7 m
[ffect of diflerent tar cates anclather non-
rescuieTiony tam gain of loases “ =1
Carporste Laxes &5 11811
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43  Non-current assets held for sale

The non-current astets held fof wale amount 1o 155 [2014; 327)
imalnly compeise valous types of eal eitate {nohding
residental and commanciall in a vasiety of countres ard
recognised in the segmeni Asal [state, The book value i
expected 1o be realised through sale rather than throwgh
conimued aperstian. The real estate ¢lassibed as held for wie
ale rgtly unbgue GhEects Then 15 olbsn no aclive madket

far sirnilar real @state ot the same iacation and in the same
condition. A large number of paramaters ane used for the
valuations of the vanous tyoes of propesty imestments, wher
|possible based on axlsting contracts and market data. A certain
lewel of assessment and estimation s unavolkdable It is fod this
feason 1hat all non-cumant asses clishied o 'held for sale’ are
classfied in Category 3 The parsmeters used todetermine the
falr wahee of the properly inesiments depending on the tyoe
of real estata, include: the current and expactad markat ren?
ipet Y, current and expected funme vacancy rates, the location
of the property, the markatability of the proparty, the average
discount rawe, development budget and any credit riske

in mlliovn of euros

Ly

Cuistandng # Brginning of year
Prowided during the pear
Rrderrres] il prar
Cithar

Loans as of 31 Decenbser

Dhue4n bk ancl dhs 1o cuaboman
Chitsiaradng at begianing ol the year
Rrrcetord tutirg The gear

Repad during the year

Other

Debts i ol 31 Decemnbeer

Othes llabilties
Credi e ity

insaant] Loy Pl
Incarme

MEL IMERESTinoome

Fov rid eocsrmision incterm

Trackng ircome

Cthaar

Tetalincame from tramactiom with related partios
Eapreares

Ivierest expense

Few and commisiion sopomar

Impaismenty

Toesd ferrm s -

with relaned parties
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44 Transactions with related parties

Tt patied ane cenwdercd melated if one party exencises contral
o had spnihicant inflpence oves The otiser paity with regand

12 himancial o oparating dechions. In the normal cowre of
buniness, Rabcbank conducts a wide varety of transactions
with related entiias which invoive differant types of loans,
depasits and ransacticns in farcign currencles. Transacthong
Bt telatied parties alv includes ansacoions with
ansociatis, ponsion funds, jeint wenlumes, the BExacutive Board
and the Superdsory Board Thete transaciions are conducted
against commercial terms and conditions and matket prices

In accosdance with LAS 24.4, ransactions within Rabobank
Group are not disclosed in the comsolidated lmanclal
AL

In the normal course of Rabobank’s business operations,
tanking EransaCtians afe carried out with related paias,

Thase inwolve loans. deposits and transactions in foreign
cumencies. These transactions ae conducted apainst
commercial terms and conditions and market prices.

The wolurmes of re=lared party traniactions, year-end outstanding
palances and the comesponding income and expenses durng
The wiar 2 iesentad in thi falliwing tibde, Transaclions and
balances outstanding with membess-of the Executive Board and
members of the Superdsany Bosird are disslased in Section 47
Transactions with pension funds ane disclosed in Section 25,

Impesimanty in aisacates ﬂtﬁl’rdalrdpwﬂu
ol il ik ] Jore
el 430 (] L]
L3 L] - -
1] i1 - L]
381 pl] 11 mn
AR 50 # -
B LTk - =
n L] - -
AT 6,822 .
1 ril -
Fl ] ar . i
1] B4
4 EE1] 5
J -
244 320 -
T 158 -
a3 ) -
aTR b - -
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45  Costs of external auditor

inmilicn of wuros 218 a4
Financial sistermens ki 7 ]
Dthee madil engageeents ' 1
Crthier nosn-gudit sareice o s
Tavtal L 7

I thee year undad reviaw, the audit frm Ernst & Young
Accountants LLP in the Netherlands invoiced the abowe
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Expenses related to membsars and former members of tha
Superdsory Board womal 1.2 (2014: 160 This includes VAT

and employess contributions panable. Ie sddition 1o the

ol ol Mernber of the Supserviseny Boad of Rabobank

The rermuneration also depends on the rodes in the vanous
committees. The composition of thata committess o detallad
i the Annudl Report. The mmuneration stuciure for 2015
{enchus v of VAT and other charged) i

amadnits 10 Rabolbank, 115 subsidiaies and ather companies | L
3 i pun Chaiiman  Chaimas Menmber
It comsolidates, within the maaning of Section 383 of Book 5 ey ke 4750 0500 S50
2 of the Dutch Civil Code. These amaounts do not inclisde foes A Commaies L0 14000 1500
for financial statements audils, other audit engagemants, jac Rk Commitoee 11500 15,000 5000
consultancy services and other non-audit services charged by Aoty Compntiny T30 : ioond
4 L Cooperaites haues {ommiies V200 - 15000
other auditors and cabes Bt & Yourg busingss units Appolmtménts Commiise 175 5 1750
Brmureralio Comertee 1754 . 3750
46 Remuneration of the Supervisory
Board and the Executive Board
The members of 1he Supervisory Board and the Executive
Board are livted in Section 54 of these consoldated fnancial
atntements, Rabobank e lushvely regards the memibier of the
Executive Board as key management personnal, Tha membees
of the Executive Board are among the Mentified staff as
disclosad in Secthon 37, In 2015, the remuneration of memibens
and forrmer members of the Bxacutive Board amounted 1o
Gal (IO 4; 53]
Bedemption of
Ferobken dafrrdoa perat FETTLe O
drdminnnch ofeuem Foted edarary d i = Citfuer Tafal
W. Draie ] 3 ne - 1 11
A Bruggink 84 m (L 1 1,168
lid Aacttn an i n¥ 1 1100
LEN. R a7 m m 1 1,008
. Magel a7 16 m 1 1,005
JL vaen Muwanhuisan L e ) LLH) - nel
Total 2015 5141 54 LT & %398
Tetal 20148 s 1,302 . a . £,299

Ab year-end FHS, theee wes a 1ol of 11647 DANs outstznding
with mambers and fodmer mambaers of the Executive Boand
{year-end 2004 12,133 pieces), The peralon scheme for the
members of the Brpcuthe Board is classified as a collacibve
dafined contribution scheme. A= of 1 January 2015, the
madimum Income on the basis of which the memibers of the
Executive Board can bulld up a penskon amounis to ELIR 94,500,
Any Income exceeding this amodnl (s nof pensonable, Ay ol

| Jarvuary 2005, the membes of the Exeoutive Board theredon
recaten an individual pention contribution

210 Rabobank Anrwsl Report 2015
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Thee table balow shows the remunemation (excduding VAT and

ather charges) for indnidual members of the Supervisory Board.

i houond of e Remunersion
W Db M1
P Asher onk g8
b, e Palen | mpoanily seppesd doven on 8- 112015 &8
L. Deghe a5
B Geasbumia 110
LA van de ke 10
R Tl (Vice CRairnan s of 1-4-2005] Lol
CF, Yesiman iin oo unti 1 Macch 3015 7
AAIM Kamp 5]
WL Tiompetes [in offce oy of 13 September 2015] F
Total 2015 1,030
Total 2014 N.084

Al Rabobank, the Chalrman of the Supervisary Board holds
a numbier of roled which am related 10 the coopetative
These roles are specified in the Annual Regort.

1 milicas e wuray Enrvutue Boand  Superoary Baand
Loars, pdvances and guaraniees Fo-lR ] F-l g HA3 S
Cutstanding o | Janusey [Es 4 A LE
Frirgichrib L riny U yras 12 ! ' %]
Redeemed during the pear 2] ina |n (LAY]
Retductann on B of leavng offos - [L-¥{] fi] .
lretrouie on sccount of Laking office - 1A ad i1
Gutetanding cn ¥1 December 43 e 14 ERS

Thee hoans, advances and guarantaas of the memboers of the
Executive Board inalfice on 31 December 2015 and 1he sverage
iberes rales weie a3 follows:

Cuistormfiyy  Mreroge nfeees!

der il of mara Jeam oty [ )
On 3% Decembes 2015

R D’ (¥] E]
B Warttin o4 i
H. Hagel 1] 14
L vy Wi hidiiren (5] A3

The laans, advances and guarantess of the memberns of the
Supesvisony Board in office on 371 Decermber 2005 and the
aworacge interedl Rt wani i followi

vl e aran Jaas et i
10 1% Dhecermibie 2015

A M Eamp 1 a7
WL Trampetier o4 LL]

241 Notes to the consakdated fAnancial starements
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At year-and 1015, the members of the Supervisony Board not
Fsted in the table nad not ieceived any |oans, advances o
grasrantees Theoe transasctions with moembers of the Executive
Bowrd jnd Supereiony Board were campleled 0 pesonon
Tha basis of emplayee tetms and conditions and/ar market
rates for the Suparvisony Board. The rates depend in part on
the currency, the agreed fived-interest penod and the time the
tratsaction was completed of the Bme a new faed-Intete
1erim Becormes eifec tve

Several meembers of the Dxecutive Board and Superdsony
Board have Invested in Rabobank Certificates i person andfor
theough theit own pension BA. At vear-end 2015, this involved
biv gl 40,950 cei tilicates.

Mumber of flobabank
Cerrifeane
O 3 Drcerraloes BOIS
A, Bruggink LERL
LR, ks s Witk 6,80
LM, Degle AEIG i penion B,
SLL Grastyra ADD  mperpion LY,
£ M wun Dialleny Lk W]

47  Main subsidiaries

At the year-ond 2015, Rabobank Group conshts of 106
independeant local Rabobanks in the Netherlands, memibsars
of the central organicaton Cotpemtieve Ceatrale itaiflelsen-
Boerenleenbank DA, and o number of speclalied subsidiares

O 31 Decermbes 3015 Share  denngeichn
War bobnidsiers

The Metherlands

CHL ntematenal B 16 oo
Rusba Vinltgoedgroe BY. L] s
Teiunk M, 1500 s
T Baboanbey B 150 2]
Dibrwicem WY 160 {18
Ashohppotheskbank MY, 10 T
Rl Merchan Bani Ny, 1005 Ty
Rnttrienhpptherkban MY 1o b
Dttver Eurazons qoustries

ACC Loan Management Limired 16 s
Horth America

Aahabank Canitsl Funding LOC Mo W 160 o
Asbabank Cesital Fundng Tus Bio W 16 i
Lmerri Armenca Hokdngs inc L] s
Astralia and Haw Zealand

Ralssbuiik Aisrala Lisaed 1% 5]
Rababank Hew 2raland Limited 1 oo
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All subsidiaties listed in the table are consolidated. In 2015,
none of the subsidiaries expetienced any significant reswictions
i thee paymient of dhadendy o the iedemprion of ksans and
repayment of advances. The eption of sumidiaries 10 pay
didend 12 Rabobank decends on variows facton. including
lecal requiatory requiremants, statutcry resenves and finarcial
parformance.

Rababank will not corsolidaie seweral structued &nl e

in the “Whedensade banking 2nd international retall banking
Buiness’ e I 10 does retain mone than hatl of the wling
rights. Thesa struciured entities are nof consolidated because
the relevani activities are managed by a third party subject to
acontract,

fabohank doas have control over sevenl entities in the
segpmeti] Leaing' s pait o its vendor lexsing operabon, even
theigh B retaing less than halt of e woting rights because
contial is not determined based on such rights, but rather on
managemeant pastichpation

48 Joint ventures

Wirtualy all joint venlures ate entitied of Fabo Real Evtate Group,
Thettle tkal camying amonnt i -39 (2014 -73).and are valued in
accordance with the equity method
Rabo Feal Estate &voup often puts partnenships in place for the
development of integrated residential areas, commearcial real
astate and the implementation of fund and ssssr management
acthvitlies. In the majority of cased, ach pankipating membaes
of the partreeship hat a deckive vate, and deciions can only
lbe passed by consensus, Thie majarity of these partnerships
therelinee gqiralify 35 Jomt Amangements.
Each partnership has s own legal structure depending an the
ey did regquaiemenls of e
parties concerned, Tha legal loem (Busingss sthecbshe) typacally
wied b the Dutch TV-BY' structure {3 limited partnership-
private Bmited Azbility compary) o the VOF structure {genaral
partrership) or a dervative therecf or related structure. In the
acass of OB, the rlik of
A participating party 14 genenlly limitad to the Haued capital
amd thi parners s only entitied to thi A8t assets from the
entity. In the cane of general partnerships (VOF], each party
haary, in principle, unlimited liability anc
lhas, in principle, a prooonional dght to the assets, having
cognizance In the obligations for the llabilities of the enfine
On the basls of the legal form, o CV-BY structure qualifies as
& Joint ventuie] wheveas s YOI structure quakifies as a joirt
aperation’ It Important o note that the oomnine beal teems ang
athar mlevant facts and circumstances may reult in a diffarent
sconchsion,

247 Rabobank Annwsl Bepon 2015
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Lince a separate legal structure is established for each
parnership Inwhich the pankipating parnes changs ano
sEparate projects se nol ol 3 substantial sire, Rabo Real Estate
Group did nat maintain any matedial joint armangements in 2014
and 2015,

Arull o joed vemiunes a1l FoE]
Profi or keas from continuing oporaticns 15 i
Poat-ta it o bos i i op =

Wt praft

Bither comprehensee iIncoms:
Total omwgas hensive some

R

Contingent assets and labilities

Rabo Real Estace Group entered into the following
CEmImalmienls:

= with resgand to real sitate projects, an 11 December 2015,
cammitments with third parties frcluding suboonioe o
and architects) have been enténed into ta the amount of
V{2004 T

with regard o comme:cial real estale projects. no
commitments swith subconiracton and achilects have baen
erfened inlo [2014: 290,

The guincpde joint ventunes inlerms al the size of the capital
interest held by Rabobank include:

O XY Donrrdies 301 Sheew Woting sighhy
The Hetherlands

Assl esare developesent comparny De Wealandse

Teom OV, Morter 1w

s v s Wsafrort V.

Hijfmeges 50 -
ms‘rmmc\'.m Sl s

49 Transfer of financial assets and
financial assets provided as collateral

Reverse repurchase transactions and securities
borrowing agreements

Reyera repurchase tansactions and secufities bamowing
agresments concluded by Rabobank &e included wnder Loans
andd advangir 1o Banks'or Toans snd sdvances 10 cuilomary’
and ay per 31 December amount to:

o mallumt of warin HHS Mila
trars and sfaaneetn banky 1 FiA L
L3 snd Sdvances {0 Customens 15 LA
Tetal purch ctio s

ithen b ing ag 17432 A5 m0T
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Uinder the tesmnis of the everse repurchase ansactions
and securities botrowing agreements, Rababank secaives
collateral under conditions that enabile it 1o re-pledae o
iesel] the colataral 1o third partles. On 31 December 2015,
the total fair value of the securities recetvad under tha
terms of the agreemants was 37853 (31 Decambar 2014
A7 50}, |n accordance with [he agreemeant 120ms, & porion
of thie seiuities was re-pledged or sold as callaseral

Tt transacihons saete effected subyect o e nodmal
condilong fod standard evenie opurchage transas tond
and sacurities bormowing agreements. The securites are not
recogrised in the statement of financial postion because
almost all the associated iksks and benefits accue 1o the
couterparty. A receivabile borecognised a1 a value eguilvalent to
the arrount gaid as collateal

Repurchase transactons and securities lending
agreaments

Repurchase tiansactions and securities lending Jgreements
concludad by Kabobank are included under D 1o banks' and
Tue o customery’ a3 of 31 Decemiber totalled:

e milions of earas FE) Fol
Duie b sk 581 =]
g 1o cundara. b Loy
Total repurch d e B 1,065 733

On 31 December 2005 and 2074, imenest-bearing securities
with a carrying amaunt of 1,075and 2,757 respectively wene
proveded as collateral for repurchase agrsments and Ehe ke,
Thir counterparty retains the right 1o seif os re-pledge the
seculities, These fransactions were performad subject 1o the
madrnal conditions for standand repurchase transactions and
secuiities lending agreements. The bank may prowide of recelve
secuithes o cash a5 collateral i the vabue of 1he securities
<hanges. The securities are not de-recognised because almosdt
all the associated risks and berefits accrue 1o Rabobank,
incheding credis and market risks. A &zbility Is recognised at
ayalue equivalent o the amaunt recelved as collatsral

Securitisations

As part af the financeng activithes and lquikity manegerent of
Rabobank Group, and In order to reduce credit risk, cash flows
from certaln financial assets are transferred 1o third parties (trus
sale transactions). Mast of the financial assats subject Io thesa
tiansactons ae mortgages and other kean portfolios that ae
anafered toa spechsl purpose vehick: that i sbsequently
consnlidated Aer ascuatitisation, The asets continae ta be
iecogrised in the statement of financial position of Rabobank
Group, mainly undar Loans and advances fo customens.

M3 Nobes to the consakdated fAnancial starements
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The secuiitised assats ane measured in accoedance with the
accounting policies referrad 100n Paragraph 215

Thie catiying amount of these financial atsets 181,023 (2014
792400 with the comsspanding [kbility amowming 1o 80,925
(R4 80,34 1), Approcimately T2% (2014: T18) of the iransherred
assets ame securitised internally for liquidity parposes

Carrying amount of inancial assets provided as
securlty for {contingent) labllities

The adsats nefenied 1o balow have bedn pledgad a6 security
for {contingent) abditbes (with exception to repo transac tons,
securities lending and securstisationsd with the objective of
providing security for the countesparty. H Rabobank remaing
v default the counteiparties may wse the securlly (o setlls

Tha debr
v g of wwvos My i
Cimh e tslances ot contial banis 03 =
Loars snd sdvanor fo banks ERE Thea
Loans and afvances to customers LEE 2 HUS
Kivad b T e Vo arel-al isiild 2581 2575
Tkl 21,847 19,768

50 Structured entities

Consolidated structured entities

A siructured entity i an entity which is structuned such that
woillng rights or covnparable nghis do not constitute the
desiinani facior in derenmining who sxercies control aver the
entity, Habobank wses structuned entites. n ordes to securitie
miorigages and ol koan poftfolios as part of i1 inancing
activities, liguidity management and In arder to reduce credin
risk. The lpans are actually transferred o the structured entities
Cremn-asset securitikation is handled by RaboAgi Finance (Hanestl,
Cibvion [STORM and STRONG), DLL (LEAR} and Athilen (Highway)
A waell a8 having prosded cash facilitees, Rabobank also acts as
a swap coamterparty for all own-asset socwrithations.

Rabobank acts as a sponsor in Nieww Amsterdam Racenables
Covporation. Neuw Amsterdam 1siues ARCP in varkous
curencies and provides Rabobank Customens accass 1o Bquidity
theaugh v commancial papser market. Rababan k provides
advice and managies the peogramme, markets ABCP, proviches
canh facilities and/or credit risk enhancements and ather Bacilities
for the underdying transactions and the programme [1self.
Habobank consclidates the own-asset securitsation vehicles
and Nieww Amstendam because it s exposed 1o o entited

1o Nuctuating Incorme ineespect of B invalwemend in hiews
wfitith I addition, Ralabank alsa has the option to inlusnce
the armount of the invesloes incomie by viflue of having control
over the entitles.
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Non-conselidated structured entities

Mon-consoldased srructured entites refeds o all stuciused
entities oves which Rabobank has no control These Intetests ane
comprived mainly of deb weourities in a secunitiation wehicle,
ancheding RMBS. ABS and CDO and private equity inlerests,

Thee amaunt of these debt securas b almost abways limited
when compaied to the vehicles total assets.

The folicwing tabde thosyt the nature and risks of Rabobank 'y
Eleredty In non-Comiciidisied structueesd entities, The makimurm
o poue [0 otk in respact of the inténests in non-consolidated
structuned entities s 30728 (2074 4,153), which ako includes
confingent llabilithes

irmulhen aerm
Cn 1 Deterrdser 2015 10 31 Ceerrahes 2000

Andeti recagaiied by Robobank Secunitutions Cuhet Toldl  SensiHations Other Teaal
Financial st held for trading 1 0 o1 n o 17
Hnancial saes delgnated o far vaue 55 T aar thrd A5 wz
Deesiwatrees As3 . a3 a2 . £
Loana and advance 5o cuslomens 1411 - Lo 15 1] - 1488
Avurdabbe-do-sarbe Rrancisl assets &0 o m LF 7 Eed b
e in sl . 15 395 . o ]
Total f il grined by fskobank 2,400 N oo runa nar 1,041
Linbilities recogniied by Roboabank

Depsivartions ] - ¥ B - [ ]
] i . L] w1 . min
Tatal lishilities recognived by Rabaokank ET - EE T - 1T
Ircome fram sponicsed, non-consolidated struetumed entitias in
wbiien Aabobank Bokds no intee:

Foe gt
D AR Carrying armeuril of

brillont of wuras mvome edesrrt lcame Citter reiadtn Toralincome  ranifered otsets
Om 31 December 201%

Securitivation ] 4 2] m -
Assel manaqgement + = - = =
Total 1 an 10 m .
O 1 Eecemiber 2004

Seuilitionl 3 kT &IE 55

Aavet managoment 15 It [y -
Tastal 1 w8 573 i -

M4 Rabobank Anrwsl Report 2015
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51 Events after the reporting period

Afer discustions betweers

1, Codgrera tkrve Cenirale Ral e Bosenbsentank BA,
Amsterdam;

2 The coopenative member banks of CoBiperatieve Centrale
Raiffessen-Boerenleenbank BA.

decided an the tespective mestings ol the members’ councily
ol the banks concerned (7 on 1 December J015 and at

the General Meeting of Coopeatieve Centrale RaiPaisen-
Boetenleenbank BA on 9 Dacemnber 2015 to enter into a egal
mienger as of 1 January 2006

Onve of the consequences ol he deckions taken was that the
formiet bank (1) received the asoers of th banks refened 1o (7]

under wniaersal tigle and the Banks refiered 1o (7] ceased fo exis,

Cuping the aforemen ioned Genenal Meating, the bank (11 in
connection with the mesger, decided to change its name to
Cobperatieve Rabobank LA as of 1 famuary 2006, The legal
meger has no bmpact on the consolidated hgures

52 Management report on internal
control over financial reporting

The management of Habobark is responsip'e for establishing
amnd mantaining adequate Internal control over financlal
feparting. Managemean & alsa responsble for the pieparation
and fair presentation of the comalidated hnanclal statements,
Rabobark's internal control over Snancial ieparting 18 3 process
designied 1o provide reasonable assumance regading the
rellability of financial repoeting and the preparation and fair
presentation of fimancial stacements for external purposes in
accardance with International Financial fe=porting Sandads as
adopted by the European Linion

All intemal contral systems, né matter how well designed,
hana inherent limdtatons. Duee o the inhanent limitations,
internal control over Ainanclal repodting may not peevent or
detect misstatements. AL the sarme time, fuluse projections

<n the basis of any evaluation of the effeciiveness of intemal
conirol s sUBfect i this ik that the central moatunes may
becone radeguate bece of changes n corditions, of Thal
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
datetigraie.

The management has assessed the effectivaness of the
internal control over financial reporing @ Babobank as of

3| Decemoer 2015 based on the ramework set oul in 3013 by
1he Commiites af Sponsodng Deganisations of the Treadway
Commisskon (TG00, & defined in Internal Contiol - integraled
Framework. On the basi of that assessment, management

25 Nates ta the conwukdated fnancial statements
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canclidad that, as of 31 December 2015, the Intemal cortiois
o the inteenal financial reporting in Rabobank pronde

a reasanable meswne of certainty based on the criteria
esliblishied by COG0.

Errs1 & Young Accouniants LLE which ha audied the
cansalidated financial statements of Rabobank for the Anancial
wear anded 31 December 2015, also examined managemeant's
asgpyment of the eifectivencss of the mtemal contne over
financial reporting in Rabobank. The report of Ernst & Young
Mccauntants LLP & inchuded on page 146

W Dealjer B.L Brouwers

Uz, 17 February 2006

53 Approval of the Supervisory Board

The publication of these hnancial statements was approved

by the Superdsory Baard on 17 Febiuary 2016, The financial
starerrents will be presentad 10 the Genesal Mearing, 1o be hild
o 20 April 2006, Tos adoptian, With regarnd 19 the adoption of
the inancial staternents of Rabobank, the Aricles of Association
state 'The resolution oadopt the financial statements will he
passed by an absolute majority of th vabes valdly cast by the
General Members Councl’

On behalf of the Executive Board
W Daijer, Chadnman aod CROGR,

B.C. Brouwers, CFO

LI, Delkor, Mermber

BJ. Martin, Member

. Magel, Member

AL vam Misuvenauizen, Membur

On behall of the Supervisory Board
W Dakker, Chalrmar

B Teedlink, Vice Chalmzan

LR Asscher-Vonk, Secrerary

LN, Degho

SLL Graafsma

AALMW Kamp

EAJ van de Mense

M. Trompettar
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Annual figures

Statement of financial position of Rabobank
(before profit appropriation)

immilicm of muros L O I Bpowmiber 2073 £ 11 Beprmbee X4
Agidts

Canh ard balang s st £ et al Baris 1 LEE L A30eF
thori 1esm gowemmeant papers 2 [15] A
Professona securilies ransactions. 18720 IATEA

Cihes lsani and sdvirdes Lo bk A0 100,368

Linar mnd safvanceren banks ¥ plaoir k] LE_ R
Pl sevioe lerding IS 1543

Privmte apctod lendling 115510 ThE &Rl

Frofessona wecurfies ransactiony PR LEATL-]

Lizaria e afva Aot 0O CUSINTHTS 4 [EEL] 1arrz
lndered braring wtwrtan i [ EE] B A
Shares ] T s
laberedti i g ioup Cdmpaniss E 18555 (B
(CRhar equity ivwdimenty B 28%2 S840
Goodwell srcl oiher Intangible st # &3 A
Tawragy ke il misens 13 LEL] LEL
her mseti 4] arn L8
Deeriwatves [F 7am 67318
Prepy and 0 i AT 13 1380 1,598
Total aeseis AR5 A9 A0F

254 fabobank Adresl Repomn 3015
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bvmilicns of wuros Hate O I Bpowmiber 2073 £ 11 Ewprmbee X4
Linkifities
Prodevscnal secutithn ranasctions L1 (F!
Oihes linbaliies o banks 4381 Jaae
Dl b Bawiks 2] AraE 38,508
Sarviregi My TE244
Perdesons WeCunities manasTiong ARk 3
Ot duse 10 CusIEMErS SRR LG
Do b tunzormen 15 115407 108955
Dbt vecurities in v 5] 180300 LLrAFL]
Cnhver latilinkes I 53920 51927
Detiwat o 1z #3414 o188
#ccrush and dedermed ncome iam FE o)
Preian F-] Ll 5

AT A2 444,070
Subewrnated lshiime 1= LLRE LEL.
Capitad L] L]
Premium 407 5802
Fabobhank Cemfomies pL 55940
Capitad Segurtiey BT 635
Fevaksation reserves e ]
SLahidiey ieereed (1] &E3
Dther rewrree AATH 335}
Froft Jor She e ] 1,353
Exguy 3 iBans (21
Iatile equity capital 16,147 LIRTTY
Total equity snd Kabilites LR ] AL AR
Contrgent liabir FH {LUE 17488
Ireencable G iktien 4 AT AT MO5E

255 annual figures
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Statement of income of Rabobank

Fond i e anhind 20 Chewdrribeey
i milicon of woras

Hars S
braria s 10T INEHEETL 08 el COMTU fess
aridl ethei ety inledeits sfosd Lo T8 TaE
Crthes ressits after tan 144 =
Nt prafia 08 1,352

Mrepared In accoedance woith Section 2 of Article 402 of the Dutch Civil Code.

158 Fabobank Adviissl Repocy 2015
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Notes to the financial statements

of Rabobank

1 General

Tt firancial statements of Rabeobank, o credil sk as
mafeiiad bo in Section 111 of the Financlal Suparvisian Act,

have been prepared in accordance with accounting policies
genaally accepted in the Netherlands and comply with

thie financlal repaorting requirements included in Part @ of

Book 2 af the Dutch Civil Codie, With one exceplion, these
ACCOURTInG policies ate the Lame a5 these uied In propanng 1he
consolidated inancial statements of Rabobank Growg, which
have been prepaced i sccordance with fntemational Financial
Reporting Standarnds (IFRS) as adopted by the Europein Unlon.
Thee exception s the valuation of participating intevests {and
Joint veriures). The partclpating interasts are vahssd at net
asset value, The terminalogy of the following acceuniing
pobCies 1 cerived from the consoldated fnancial statements.
Fabobank Group, the Codparaticwn Ribobank LA [Rababank)
and the legal entities and companies that foem part of the
geoup, Is an inlernational financial services pravider opemhng
an tho basis of coopentive principles. On 31 Decomber 2015,
tabohank Croup comprisad 106 independent local Rabobanks
{with 506 beanchad) in thie Nethesdands, members of the central
organnation Codperatieve Centrate Ralfenen-Socrenteenbank
BA and a number of spacialised subsidaries On | lanuary
2016, the local Rabobanks and the Codperatiove Centrabo
Raiffetsen-Boerenleenbank 3.4 entered Into A legal manger
Funtharmore, on | lanuary 2016, the name of the Codpertieve
Centrale Rallfelwen-Boerenleenbank A, was changed inlo
Cotperatisve Rabobank LA Mose information an this maber
s included In the Secton ‘Events after the moparting perod”
Raboabank has ity reqistered offce (n Amsercam,

The accounting policles applicable to the financial staberments
of Rababank are sat out below,

2 Accounting policies

The main accotmting policies used in preparng these financial
staIEments are axplained betow.

21 General

Thr ecmsridated inancial statements of Rabobank have
been prepared in accardance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standaeds IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

57 Nates o the inansial siarements of Hababhank

The consolidated financial siatemants hawve been prepared

o the basts of the sccourting palicles mentioned hameater
The fesrnalning dasets arad Habilaies e accounted for on

3 historical coit badis, unless othanvine stated. Unldds atharwlse
stated, all amounts in the financial statements am in millions of
eunos These accounting policies contzin several references 1o
ndividual Income statement items. The profit and lass account
4 prepaied In accondance with article 2 of Article 402 of the
Duch Civil Code. The alorementisned Income sTatement itemi
are not included herein, Insolar as other insights peompted
eclasiifications, the compamtive fgimed have been acconinghy,

New and amended standards issued by the |ASE and
endorsed by the European Union, applicable to the
financial year under review
Improvements to International Financlal Reporting
Standards cycle 2001-2013

The chyective of the iImprovements i to address non-ungent,
it necessany Issues dsnussed by the 1ASH durng the project
cycle that began in 201 1 on arcas of irconsistencies in FRS
ar ambiguous wording. The amendments o FRS 32nd 13
represent ¢lasfications of, o adjurments 1, The respective
standaids. The amendmants 1o 1A5 40 concern changes to
e Exriting requirermends of sdditional guidelines for the
application of these eequirements. These Improvemants have
na impact on profit or equity ang took effect on 1 January 2015,

New and amended standards [ssued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
endoried by the Eurepean Unlon which do nat yet
apply in the current financial year
Impravernents to nternational Financial Reporting
Standands cycle 2000-2012

The ekyective of the Imgavements is to addrass non-

g, Bl necetiary baum disousied by tha IASE during

et projec | Cychiss that began n 3010 and 2011 on areas of
Incenslstencles In IFRS o where clarification of wording was
reqquited. The amendments to IFRS 8 and 1AS 16, 24 and 38
represent ¢lanfications of, or adjestments 1o, the respective
itandasds. The amendments to IFRS 2 and 3 concern changes
1 the edating requirements o additional guidelines s
application of thase sequirements. Thews improsements have
ngdmpact on profit or equity and tock effect on 1 January 2015,
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Amendments fo 1AS 19 Defined benefit planz:

Employee Contribretions

Theit objective of this amendment |8 o simpiify and clarily
her pdemintirative processing of employes contribution o
contibutions from thid pasties i ielation to defined benefit
pansion plans This amancment has no impact on pofit or
equlty and ook effect on 1 January 2016

Amendments io IAS 1: Disclosure initiative

Thett purpose of thi amdEndments wias 10 achiovs i mone
afficient prowision of information and 10 encourage com pansas
1o seek professional advice for determining which information
maeds [0 be prosedad inthe annual financial statements whan
they apply 185 1. This amendment has noimpact on profit o
equity and ook effect on 1 anugry J016,

Amendnents fo IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clanfication of
Accepiable Metheds of Depreciation and Ameriisation
On 1.2 May 2014, the International Accounting Standards
Baard (1A58) published amendments to A5 16 Tangible fixed
assets and 1o 1AS 35 Imangible assels. These amendments
weie intreduced undes the tide Clarfication of scceptakie
depreciation methods, As thene oee various dilferent practices,
it s B0 b clarihed whether it is apmooriate toimplement
methods based on revenues for the caloulation of the
depreciation of an asset, This amendment has no lmpact on
prefit orequity and took effact on 1 lanuary 1016

Amendments o IFRS 11: Acoourting far Acquisitions of
Interests i Joint Operations

These amendments affer new guidelines on the administratve
procassing of an acquisstion of an nmtenest in 3 joint business
aperation, whee this epemtion of the joint busines apention
Loty o cormgany, This amendrsnt has no imgastt an
prefil of equity and 1ook elfect on | January 2016,

Impravernents fo international Financial Reporting
Standards cycle 2002-2014

On 25 Septernber 2014, the International Accounting Standasds
Board (IASHL in the conteat of it penodic improvemant
precews, which & intendes to treamiline and clafy nandand,
procerded o publish the Annuil impeovwements in Intematicnal
Fnancial Repoting Stapdards cycle 200 2-2004 {'the anmies)
improvemends’] The objective of the improverments is to
afdress non-ungent, bit necessary 1ssues, discussed by 1he
1453 during the project cyche, on areas of incondistencies

in International Financal Beparting Standards (IFRS) and
Irn@rrations Accounting Standaeds (1AS) or ambiguous
warding. These improvementi have no Impact on profit or
equity and took effect on 1 January 2016,

258 Rabobank Amnssl Repon 2015
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New standards issued by the LASB, but not yet
endorsed by the European Unlon

IFRS @ Financial Instruments

En July 2314, the A58 publinhed FRS 9 Financial Indtrurments as
The replacermant fod |AS 30 Financial Instiments Recognition
and Measurement. The new standasd secomeas effective on

1 kanvuary 2018

Classification and measurement

Fimancial asiots ane classifed and meatuied according to

the way In which they are managed by Rabobank as well

as by the type of contractual fows of cash In these assets.
Boih determine whether they are included at amortissd cost,
fals valee with adjustmenis in the values theseof processed
Vhirnugh other comprebensive income (FYOCT of Twaugh the
profl and loas accowd (FYTRLYE In many caes the classiPoation
anvid measwemant will ke in ling with WS 25, but thete are
deviations with respect to embedded derhvatives and equity
instruments. Thane ame almost nochangas in the processing

of financial llabsdities with exception 1o certain llabikbeas at fas
walue where the results have 10 be included as equity because
of changes 1o Rabobank's crodit ridk

Impairments.

The rules govemng impaliments app'y 1o fnanclal assets at
amortised cost and FWOC) as well as 1o lease recaivables, certain
lending llabslities and financial guarantees. At the fikt booking,
& prenrion b taken 1o the amount of the sxpecred credin losses
fram podsible non-payment in the coming 1.2 mionths (13-
months expected credit lowy’ (ECLY, If the credi fisk incraates
significantly, a provision will be reguired to the amount of the
expectad credif inses fom possibée non-payment during the
expecied tenm of the financial aset (ECL term), In deteimining
e armoun of thise Erovinions FRS @ uses expetied

fubure cedin kouses whilst 1A5 39 anly looks a1 extracrdinary
impalmments for which objective evidence alieady exits

I thvis waay, it bs expectad that the extraordinary impairmsents
will change pro-cyclically gving maore extreme results {both
positive and negativel In addition, the size of the proviskon

will e grester becawss under IFRS 9 i addition 1o the cuten
prewation for poasts aready in defauly, thene i ako a Bciliny for a0l
ciher financial assets equivalent to the size of the 12-month ECL
e perioed FCL

Hedge accounting

The hedge scoounting nules envsage simpifying hedpe
atcounting by establishing a cloter ink 1o 1he nik mansgement
strategy and alkwsdng a beoader fange of hedging Insiuments
and righs to ba hedged. IFRS 9 doet not explicitly addiess the
subject of macro-hedge accounting; this 5 seen as a separate
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subject. inorder to avold a possitde conflict betweean the
curent practice of macro-hedge accounting and new hadge-
sccounting nies, [FRS 9 peosddes the aption of continuing 1o
it the Current conditiony géaverning midra-hedge sccounting
fram 145 39,

Apphcation

The tules governing classification, measurement and
Impairrmin s ang agglied retrospeciivaly by amenching

Tha opening balance shesd an 1 Januaty TR There i no
abligation to amend the compamtive figures. The outlook for
1he hedge-accounting conditions is that they will come Into
effecton | lanusry 2008,

Expectod impact

Rabobark has started making prepatations for the
imphementation phase The main impact (s expected 19 beon
loan impaimmients. It is not yat possible to reflably estimate tha
ipotential Impact. Mone clanity on this subject is expected in the
2016 tinancial statemeants

Other standards issued by the IASE, but not yet

endorsed by the Eurapean Unian

= [FRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

= [FR% 15 Hevenue fmm Cantracts with Customerns

+ Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28: Sale o0 Contribution of
Assats batwesn an Investor and (s Assoclase or Loint veniune

Although these new requinements are curtently betng analysed
and their impact is not yet known, Rebobank doed not

oxpect the implementaton of these othor standasds to hae

a shgnificant Impact on profit or equity

Judgements and estimates

These firanclal statements wene prepared on the bass ol the
principle of a going concemn because there are na indications
1o the contrary. The prepaation of the financial statemenis
requiies managemeant to make estimates and assumgtions
that affect the amounis reported for assets and Rabilites, the
tepaiting of conmingent assets and lizbd ties on the date of
tha fenairscial statarmente, a5 wall a1 thes ameunts reportod for
incoarie and enpenies duing (he epociing perod

Some accounting principses requine critical estimates that are
lbasad on assessments and the use of assumptions. Althcugh
managemant bases thair estimatas on the most careful
assessment of curent clrcumstances and ctivities on the basis
af guailatile financisl data snd information, the sctual results
may devate fom thewe eatimates. Thie fallowing sccourting
jprinciples have boen identified as principdes which kead ta

a hign degeee of assessment and estiimation uncertainty.
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Loan impakrment allowance

Lown impatiment allowances are recognised if thees is

o ective evidence that Rababank will not be able 1o collect

all prmvourds due under dhe oiginal tenms of the conliscl.
Datetmining a peovision iequines a significant deglos of
Judgameant formiclation, based on the evaluation by the
management af the risks n the koen portiolio, the curnent
ecanomic clrcumstances, credit losses over the previcus yoas,
as el s denaslopmeny in fnanclal Credils, business secion,
bBuiiness concentrations and geopoltcs, Thanged in judgemant
formulation as wall as furthar analyses may lead to changes in
the magnitude of loan impairment allowance over time.
Datermining objective avdence for decreased creditwor thiness
aid deteimining the magniiude of the ecovelabls smount
farm part af the procesces that ae surrcunded by inhsment
undertainty and which involhve vanous assumpbions and Bacion
regarnding the crecitwarthiness of the borawers, expected
future cash flows and the value of collateral

Commerclal real estate

Due to weaker market condibons for beth residentisl and
commerclal real estate and the lirmited number of taracions,
Vhird i increasod uncartalnty reganding piogarty viluationg
(e land holdings, work In progress, completed developments
and ingestment progerties) and property financing, Poperty
waluations ane subject 1o a number of diffierent assumptions
and valuatkon methods. The use of different assumptions

and mathods mny, dus oo thelr sebjectiviny, result in diffevent
ClrComL

22 Capital Interosts

221 Subsidicires

The subsidanes (e, those compan es and other entitles
{including special purpase entities) in which Rebabank has
deract of indinect conteol o financia’ and operatonal policy,
am staled at net asset value, Subsidiaries are included from
the date on which Rabobank obtains coningl, and ceases to be
includad om the dzte that this control ends

222 Investments in associates and foint ventures
Envrdtimeshty i adsociates and joint venused are massured a1
it sl villuee, In accordance with this method, Riboianks
share of profits of kwses of an associate ae. subject to
Rabobank’s accounting pofcies, [afer the acquisition)
recognised in the profit and Ioss account, and 115 shase in the
changes in resenes after the acquisition ane recognised in
reserves, The cumubative changes afler acquisition sie adjusted
16 1he €041 ot Envedtmient

Agocialed areentities over which Jabobank has significant
influence and in which it usually holds between 0% and 50%
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of the voting rghts but ower which it does not exercise control
A JOInD vEnTue IS 30 agrecmient DEIween Ong of mone parie
whemby the parties, which have shared contral over the
agreement, ame entitied 1o the net assets under the agpeement,
Unrealisea profits on tansactions betwesn Rabobank and it
associstes and point ventutes are giminaled in accoedance
with the size of Rabobank’s inteest in the associates and

Joint veniunes. Unreafised losses are abo eliminated unley

the: eransac tian indicatet 1hat an impairment loss should be
recogrised on the aset tandarmd,

Irvestmerts by Rabobank in associates include the goodwill
acquired, IF Rabobank's shase in the fosses of an dssaciate
equals or exceads it intemst in the associate, Habobank will nat
recogrise any mode loises of the assoclate unless Rabobank
T, givens undertakings o made paynents on behall of

That dsiociate

2.3  Derivatives and hedging

231 General

Derivatives gener ly comgrise foreign exchange contracts,
clatency and mierest 1a1e futures, forward 1A18 agreements,
curency and interest e swaps, and currency and intorest e
aplions [written 3 well a scquined),

Darivatives can be taded eithar on the stock exchange or
ower the counter {FTC) between Rabobank-and a client.

All danvatives are iecognised at falr value The fair value s
datesrmined on the basis of listed masket prices (a small bid-ask
fange applies 1o derivatives quoted in EUR, USD and/or GOF,
aned mid prces ane uied), prices oifened by Iraders cash Now
dincounting madah and option valuation mode’s based on
curent market prices and contracted prices for the underlylng
Insrsments, 35 wel as tha time vatue af money, yield cunes
and the wolatiity of the uncelying asuets and liabdlities

All detivativas are il uded under st 1§ iBein lar valoe s
penitive and under Rabilickes I their fak value ks negative.
Derivatives that are embedded in other financial instruments
are treatad separately if ther risks and characteristics are not
closedy ralated to those of the wndarlying dellvative contract
and this contract is not classfied as at falr value, whaeby
unealised profits of kosses are recognised in the resulis

Instruments not used for hedging

It Rabobank entes Inbo derivat s for trading purnoies, realsed
and urrealised gains and losses ane accounted for under ‘et
ircome from fAnanclal assets and labiktes at fair value through
jprefit or boss’
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Hedging instrments

Habobank also uses derhvarives as part of asset and labiity
TR MAERE LD MAnagE 15 intereat rate rliks, credin raks

and forsign cumency risks, Rabobank makes e of the
oossibilines prosided By the EU throwgh the carve-cut in 145 358
The carve-out faciltates the applcation of fair wilue porticlio
fedge accounting bo cediain positions

On the date of concluding & detvathee confract, Rababank can
dedignate certain detivatives as: (1) o bedge of the fals valise

of an assetar llability in the statement of inascial podition

(fair value hadgal; (2) a hedge of future cash flows allocable

1o an asset of llablity in the statement of financial positon,

an axpeadted transaction or a firm commatment {cash flow
hedgek of {1} a hedge of a net investiment in a foreign entity
(e invesimae hadge), Medge accounting can ke appbed for
derheativies cetkpnated In this manaer d certaln ceitetds ane me
The crileria devhvatives must satify 19 be recognised an hedging
matruments include the following:

+ foemal documentation of the hedging instrument. tha
hedged item, the objective of the hedge, the hedgeng
sirategy and the hedge relationship before the application of
g acconnting;

thie hedge Iy expected o be effective (in a range of 0% fo
124%] In oMsatting changes in the hadged item’s fair valua

o cash lows allocable to the hedged risks during the entire
repoeting period,

the hadge is continuously effectve from the moment of

is neepsion,

Changes in the falr valise of derivatives that are designated as
Falr valis hediges and appsear effective in relation (o the hedged
risks are recognised in the profit and koss account, nagethear with
the comesponding changes in the fair value of the asssts of
iabilities hiedged against fod the specific risks covered

H 1hee edge no longer mels the criberls bor hedge sccountinig
{aceceing 10 the fair vahse hedge mode), the curmidative
adjustrment in the fais value of a hedged inteest-bearing
fnancia instrument ks amortised through the profit and loss
account over the perod 1o matuiity of the nomal term foe this
merast rate for the financial indrumsnt.

Fou hedges of nat investments in foreign endities, the derivative
s rmeasured a1 fair value, whsnsby changes in 1he fair value.

e the extent that they ane effective, ane taken up in equity,

The charge In the hedges eapety instrument 35 a el of
ewchange-rabe fuctuations are abo recognised under equity
undtil the equity irstrument is dsposed of.

Changes in the falr valve of denvatives that are desigrated and
cpualily s cash fiow hedges and that appear elfectve In relation
10 the hiedged riso ane recognised in thi hedging resene
incheded under Equity. The ineffective portion of the changes
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in the fair value of derivatives ase recogrisad in the profit and
logs account

I thee forecat transctian ar the non-curment |lability eaabs

iy {hae pecogrision of @ non-linancial assel of & porefinancis
Rubiility, any defarmed profils of lossed included in oquity ane
restated at thie nitial carmying amaount (cost) of the asset ar the
hability, In all other cases, deferred amounts mcluded n equity
are taken o the statement of income and e classified as
o Of e peendes 0 Lhe periods bnowhich ihe hidged noo-
cwirent liability o the faracait trania ficn had an effect on the
profit and |oss account.,

Cartain defivatve contracts, although they are economic hedges
in reflzton fo the managed risk positions taben by Rabobank, do
1w gualify fon liedoe adcounting uider e specilic FRS iules

amsd ane therafose eated as dermaries hald for radng purposes,

Al part of Rabobank’ ek management, vaious risks,
incheding inperest rate and liquidny risks inherent in morigage
loans granted and savings deposits ralsad, that arlse-at kacal
Rabobarks ae transfeimed 1o Rabobane by meaans of inter-
company knans and derivatives To hedge those nsks, Rabobank
enteds into dervative fnancial rmnsactions with extermal
parties, applying nedge accounting in the consolicated
financial statemant. As & iesult of thir randon, thods ki pie
presenibed in vanows forms in the statement of Anancial position
af Rabohank Combined they mpresent the hedged ikem with
iespect i thie hedge in the company fnancial statement fior
which hadge accounting ts applied in conformity with Dutch
Accounting Standard 290

234 Trade latdivies

Tradia liahiktes ar malnly negative falr vahsos of dervatives and
dalivery ohligations that arlse on the short salling of securmias.
Securities ane sold short 1o @allie gaind from sho-term price
fluctuations. The securiies nesded 1o settle shart sales ane
acquined throwgh secunitses lasing and securithes repuschasing
agreements. Securities sold short ase recognised at falr va'ua on
the reporting dais.

24 Assets held for trading {trading portfeolio)
Firancial assets held for irading are Anancial assets acquiied
with the abiretive of generating proft from shor-lerm
fluctuations in prices or Baders’ mangins, o Gnanckd assets that
form part of podtfolos charactarised by pattems of short-lerm
profit participation.

Financial assats hald for trading are measured at fair value
based on listed bid prices. All related compeehensiae Income i
Incheded under ‘Net mcorme from finandclal essets and labiitles
Al 1A% valuis IHMth Fu'ﬂ'll o s intersdt sadned an inandial
assols Is recognised as inleneit income.

M1 Notes to the financial statements of Habobank

Dinddends received on financia assets held for trading are
tecognised a1 ‘Met income from Anancizl assers and Babilines
ait fak walue through profit or loss!

Al acaubsitions and sales of Fmancial assets held for trading
which recqsine difivery within a time [imit prescribed ander
th regulations or inaccordance with market canventions ae
accounted for on the transaction dats,

2.5 Otherfinanclal assets and liabilites designated
at fair valua

Aabobank makes use of the option tokrchide certaln Ainanclal
as5e1s {other than those held for trading) and certain liabedtes
at fak valise through profit or loss: Financlal assets, including
weriiure capital, and liabilites have been placed in this category
by management upan initlal recognition, if fary or all) of the
follow ng criteria are met:

= surch a designation eliminates o subrstantially reduces ary
Inconsistent treatment that would othersise hawve ansen
upon mesuiement of the assets or labilites o recognition
of profits of Insses on the basks of differant accounting
palickes; o

thie aaets and llbifnies belong 0.0 group of hnancial 235615
andies huancial Rabilities that are mandged snd atsnised on
the bass of their falr walue In accondance with a dooumented
risk managament ar im@stment strabegy, of

the Anancial krstrument containg an embedded dedvative
firancial instrurment, unless the embeddad devivative
francial insourmenn does nod graficanly affect the

cash flows af i 115 evident that sepasate recognition is

not required

Intarest eamed on assets with thés class$ication is recognised
a5 inferest Income and intenest due on Rabilities with this
classification i recogrised as interest expense. Any other
fealised and unreslised gaing and losses on the fevaluation

of thewe financial instruments 31 Fair vabiee are included under
Tncorne from other nancial assots and liakbilities at far value
theough profit or loss, All purchases and sales of other financial
assels and labdities desgnated at falr value and which have
1o pe delivered within a period peescribed by regulations of
market convennion are iecognised on the tansaction date.

2.6 Day 1 profit

H, at the tme a financial instrumant s entensd inho, vaheation
methods are used at fale valwe, 3 discrepancy may arkse batwaen
the transaction price and the falr value Such a discrepancy i
refered to a5 ‘day 1 profit] Rabobank immediately accounts

for this peafit under Net income from financlal assets and
Hiahilities o tairvalue through peoit ar less), IFthe vadiation
method i based on obsetvable inputs (o active markets),
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If non-obsandable inputs are used, the day 1 profit s amortised
el the term of the rransaction and accouned fod as Orher
Bsbilities”. Prohit s taken ot a subssguent siage if the Ainancial
instrument concemed hat been sold or the nputs become
wisibda at a later stage.

27 Available-for-sale financial assets (investment
portfolio)
Mansgement determines the clasification of financial assen
an (he date of acquisition, depending on the puipote i which
the Investments ane acquired.
Financlal assess that are intended to be held indefinitely and
that could be sold for igquidity pLrposes of in resporse 1o
changes in Intetest rates, exchange rates or share prices are
classifien i available for wie,
Aillatba-fot-waie hnanc B asse ane initially ecognised a7
falr vl e, Including transection conty, bises on qualed bid
prices or values detlved from cash flow madels The fair valses
of unlisted equity instruments are sstimated on the basis of
approprate peicefeamings ratios, adjusted 10 reflect the specific
coumstances of the respeclive ixsuer, Any unrealised gaing
and losses fiom changes in the fair valus of avallabbe-foo- sl
financial assets ant recognised in equity unleds they ielate 1o
amartised interest of exchange rate differences of monetary
assets. If such financial assels ame disposed of, the adjustments
1o falr walue are tecogrised in the profit and loss account,
Debt instruments are impalred if thele ae chiective indications
that the Fair value has decreased 1o such & degres that po
reascnable amption can be made that the value will
recove” 1o the carrying amount in the foresesahis future.
On each reporting date, managemsant assesses whather there
are ohjective indications an the Impairment of avalabie-for-sale
assets Examgries of objective evidence for value adjustments
e
= wgnificant firancial difficildtos on the par of the e
+ default in making interest or redemption payments;
+ the disappearance of active markets for the fnancial asset
caused by financial difficulties.
In thee eyent of impainment, the cumulbative oss is determined
b the difference between the cost and the curent fai valus,
Beas any proviousdy recogrised impaitmant. This is ransdered
fram the revalwiton reserves In equity ta the profit and hoss
account, it the impatmment of A debt Instrument diménishes in
asubsequent pariod and the diminution can be objectively
attribwted to an event thatoccurred after the impalmant. the
impairment is reversed theough the profit and loss account.
Caguity instruments aie impaired if theis cost permanently
excecds thivle recomerabile value, In othier winds, thil B value
s signihcantly ket than thalr cost of [ower than their cost
fior the long term, The: recoverable amdownt of investmernts in
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unisted equity instruments §s daterminad using approved
waluation meshods. The recoveralda amount of Rsted financial
a95e1s i determined an the basn of matket value Impalement
of equity initruments s never subsequently reversed thiough
Thie profit and boss sccount.

All purchases and sales made in accordance with standard
market conventions for avalable-for-sale financlal assets are
recognised on the transaction date All other purchases and
sakes are tecogniied on the senisment date.

2.8 Ropurchase agreaments and reverse repurchase
agreements (professional securities transactions)
Fimancial assety that are sold subject to related sale and
tepurchase agreements ate included inthe financial statements
uneder Financisl assets hedd Tor trading’ and wailabla-for-sale
financlal avsess’ The llabdlity 1o the counterpasty i nchded
yndder Tue to banks' o Thue 10 custame s’ subject toelevance.
Fimancial asiets acquined undes reversa sale and reverse
repurchase agraements ate recognised as Loans and advances
1o Danks, of ‘Loans and advances to customears, subject 1o
trelevance, The difference between the seling price ard
repuchiiing peice I recogniied s interel Incame o infenedt
eipeirvie e thie term of the kgpeement an the basis of the
effpctive indomest method,

29 Securitisations and other de-recognition
constructions

Aabobank sacuritises, sells and caries vanous inancial assers,
which iy Invobag 4 Sale of these a5sets 10 spediall purpose
entithes [SPEs), which than issue secuntiey 1o investors,
Rabobank has the option of retaining an intenest in sold
secuilised financial assets in the form of subordinated interest-
iy SIrips, subpidlinated securities, spread accaunts, Serdcing
i, cuatanless, pul opliois and call options, and cthes
canstrattions,

A Fnanclal asset jor a potlion of theweof) is de-recognised i
the rights to the cash Aows from the assel explee;

the rights to the cash Ao from the asset and a substantlal
partion of the risks and banefirs of ownership of the asset are
franstesmed:

a commimoent 1o transtey tha cagh ows from the asset iy
presumed and a substaniial portion of the ks and benefis
are Warsfemed.

not all the economic risks and banefits ae retalned o
transfemed, but the contiol over the assat Is ransfemed.

A financial labiling o & part thereal i de-recognised If it ceases
10 exist Le, after the contraciual abligation has been lulfilled,
cancelied, of iy expired

H Rabobank retaing control dvier the asiet but doas not istan

a substantial portion of the risks and benefits, the asset is
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ecognised in proportion to the continued Involvement of
Rabohank. & related kability 5 also recogrised 1o the extent

of the centinued iwolvement of Rabobiank. Thie recognition

of changes |n the value of the latilay comepands 1o the
recognition of changes in the value af the awmet.

¥ 3 tansaction does not mest the above conditions far
de-recognition, it s recognised as a loan for which secunty has
been provided.

T thviz extent that the ranvler of o fnancial asset doss not qualify
for do-recognition, the transfor does not miull in the contractual
nights of Rabobank being separately recognived as dervaties

i recognition of these instrements and the transfetred asset, o
thie Hability arising from the transfer, weee 10 result in the double
iscogqiition ol the same tighits of cidigations,

Presfies and losses on securitsations and wale ransacrions pay
depend on the previous carnying amaunts of the financlal mets
Tnandfeied. Thiste ate allocated 10 the sold and retaired interests
an tha basks of tha relative falr valees of these Intevests on the
date of sale. Ay gains and bosses ate recognised thiough peofit
af loss at ine time of transter

Thee fair value of the so'd and retained intenests |3 based on
aruted marier prices of caltulated an the peesent valus of

Thi Tutune Expicted cath Nows on the basis of pricing madels
that take info account various assumptions such as credit
fesses, discoami rates, yield curves, payment fiequency and
other factors,

fabohank dacides whether the SPE should be Included inthe
consolidated hrancial statsmant. For this purpese, it padorms
an assessmen: of the SPE by taking a rumbeer of factors into
consideration, including the ac trdtes, decsion making powers
and thee aliocatkon of the benefits and risks assoclated with the
activities of the SPE.

210 Cash and balances at central banks

Cash equivakents ae highly liquid shon-tenm assets hedd o
mgt current abligatiens in cash, rather than for investrments
o piher purposes. Such Invesiments have remalining teems
of less tham 90 days from inception. Cash equivalents are
ieadily convertibhe (o known amouwnts of cash and subject o
an imsignifcant risk of changes in value,

201 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Frrancial assets and Habilities ane affset 2nd the net amount iy
transferned to the staterment of financial position if a legal right
1o offset the recognised amounts exists and It s intended 10
seTile the expected fubure cash llows on a net basls, or to ealise
e assel and settle e labdiny sirulianeoushy. This mainky
concernt affienting cirrent Account halances and desatives
Thee offsatting of takes is discussed in Paragraph 2,23

M1 Notes 1o the financial starements of Habobank

2.12 Foreign currency

Foreign entities

e included in the financial statements af cach eatity

bt Rarbobank Gioap am Corrid in e currency thal best
reflocts the-econaimic reality ol the underlying ewents and
chcwmstances that are relewvant for the entity (the functicnal
CLHTENCY].

The condolidated financial statements e presented in ounos,
wihich b the parent companys lunctional Curency,

The grafit and loss accounis and cath Mows of hmiqn anfities
aro translated Into the presentation cunency of Rabobank

at the exchange rates valid on the transaction dates, which

Iy appeoaimately equal 1o the average exchangs rates on

31 December, Tramslation diffsiences aising an ithe net
imaestmEnty in foreign entities and on loant and other curency
inatruments designated as hedges of these Investmants

ate recognied In equity. I a fareign entity IS sold, any such
translation differences are recognised in the profit and loss
account as part of the profit o loss on the sa'e.

Grondwill and falr valkee adjustments asising feom the acquisition
of & foreign entity are recognised as the assets and labdiies of
the foeeign entity and are rrarskated a1 the closing ane.

Foreign-curmency transactions

Transac tions in foreign cwerences are translated info the
functioral cureency at the exchange rates valid on the
transaciion daies. Translation differences arsing on the
senbement of such transacnont o an the uanslation of
monetary asels and Eabliites denominated in foneign
Culencied are poognned in the pofi and koss Bccount,
Translation differences that qualify as not investrment hedgas
ame recognised in equity.

Trandlation diferences on debt securktes and other monetary
financial assets carried at Lar value ane included under foesign
exchange gains and losses, Trandation diferenoes o ndn-
maoanctaly items such as equity Instruments heid for trading are
recognised ay part of tha fair value gains or losses. Trianslation
differencies on avallable-for-sale non-monetary |tems ane
ncluded in the revaluston reserves eposed under Touiny'

213 Interest

Bttt incorme and e for all ntest-bear g
instruments I3 ecognised in the prefit and loss account on

an accrual basis, wheseby the effective Interest method is
applied. interest income inclsdes coupons relating to fixed
imenest financial assets and Anancial et hald for rading, as
wiell a3 the curvulative premburms and discounts on gonvernment
Uity secutities and ather cash equivalent insturments
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I any boans sulffer impaimment losses, they are written down

T TR T reConeraiahe Amounts, Tha BIResT ncams iaoognmied
hancetorth is based on the edginal discount rabe for the
«calculation of the present value of the future cash flows uwed
1o determine the recoverable amounts. Interest on derdvatives
lhald fior economic hadging purposes is shown sepaately under
intanest income

214 Commission

Income from &l mansgement aClvithes consing mainky of
wandt Trust, fund managemant commissicn and adminktration
ircome from asset management and Insumance brokemage |5
recognised as eamed once The services have been provded,
Commession is genermlly recognised on an acorual bass,
Commisisn fecesved fol negotiating & raniaction, of 18king
I pege it on beball of third partes, bor esample e
acquiyition of a partfolo of loans, shares o olher secuities,
at the sase or purchase of companies, s recognised upon
cpmpletion of the undarlying transactions,

215 Loansand advances to customers and
recelvables loans and advances to banks
Loars and advances to cuslomen and necehvables lnar and
athances to banks ae ron-dervataes waith food or dehinable
jpayrments that are not lsted on an active market. An coception
hereto ame such assets that Rabobank classifies as held for rading
purporses, of Initially recognitsed at fair value fior which value
Sdpamants s recognises in the: proft and lods scoount, of &8
avarlabyis for sale. Loans and advances 1o cusiomasts and recehables
ang initially recogniyed 31 fair value, Incuding trantaction costs, and
sutwequently carfed at amortised cost. inclsding transaction costs
Loang are subyect to esther individual or collsctive impament
analyses. A value adjustrment, o prosvision for cxpected loswes on
Boans, by tecogises I thee (s objectve evidince that Rabobienk
will not be abie to collect all amounts due wndar the ariginal
terms of the contract. The amourt of the provision [s the
difference between the carrying amowent and the achievable
amaunt Le. the cash value of expacied cash flows. As well as
the specied interest income and repayments, the provsion
amaunt ako Includes the amaunts that can be obtained from
guararteds and secuities and ang catculated at pressnt value ar
the original laverage) effective bosrowing rate.
Thee peceedsioon for Inans includet lnsies if then i objecthe
ayidence that losses are allocable to some
Exampres of objective evidence for valae adjustments are
« sagnaficant financial difficudies on the par of the borower;
= default in making insefest anddar redermption payments on
the partof the bomowet;
«+ |Ban renagatiations;
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+ passibifity of banksupicy or financlal ieorganisation on the
padn of the bormower:

= changes in bormwers payment st
changes in economs circumstancss that could couse the
Barrawes 1o defaul

Fou each separate busnass unit, the loses ama estimated on

1l basis of the credit ratings of the borrowers and the value of

the collateral provided 1o the bank, with considerztian giwen

16 the aciual economie conditions underd which the bormoesers

conduct their ac it The carrylng amount of the laans i

recuced through the use of a provision account, based on

what the bank considers the moat lkely scenario, and the loss

Iy recognised i the profit and boss account. Provisions for the

impairrment of expected loan losses are made as soon as the

enforceman process s completed, te secwity provided has

Beeh realived, when viciually no alfisr means of fecowsny e

avallalde and in the event ol a formal cancellation of a debt

Ary amounts subsequently collected are added under the item

‘Cradit loss costs’in the poft and koss account. As soon as the

prospects for continaity have recovened and amsars have baen

cleaied as agieed, the kaan 15 no langer considersd impained

{mat Tully collectitde). Maragemont oontinually ausesees thise

renggotioted loans 10 enuee that all criteda are satished with

aview to expecied feluee cath flows,

Mon-perdorming koans #e loans that meet at least one of the

follow ng ciftera;

« Property loans with airears of more than 90 days:

« Ir ks likey thar che debrar wil! fail 1o fully pay their dabe
{principal sem, interest of Tees] If the bank would not resart
to the enforcement of its security interests (F present],
regatdiess of the number of days or the amount In amears.

The genemnl prasion corstifutes the provision adopted io:

the partion of the partfolio that iemaing effectively impained s

it It repnting period but which fas nof v been identfied

as duch BIMR: incunied but not mportid) in the bank's ik
systems. As befose, Basel | parameters, adjusted 1o the IFRS
guidalines and 1o current davelopments, are used hem in onder

1o deterrmine the provision, An important facoor in determining

the general provision i what s bnown as the Loss dentificaton

Fediod (LIP} Le. the peticd Detween the fime 3 lods event oocurs

al e chent's company and the tme the bank has recosded the

Ross evenit In Its sk systermis, The LIP b5 expeessed In mantha and

varies between portiolios

Om each reporting date, management assesses whether thare is

civective evidence that reclassified loans previously recognised

as pvailab'e-for-sake assets hane been impaired,

P exposures classified a3 corporate exposunes under CRD

B, exposuenes e measunsd in poooedancs wirh the 'ore

dablar’ pindipbe, This pinciple antails that the apgeoved limil
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fior a detsbor apphes 1o the sum of all exposures - including
dafivatives, guarantess and the ke - of the delbios group in
which the deliod has been eladfied. Debtor groups include
all debaios who fonm phiet of th economic entity in which
legal entities and companies aze alfillated with the same
ceganesation, In addigion, the majority sharehclders also form
jpart of the econamic entity. The ‘tne debtor” principle applies
aerers all eniities the exposwies of the debior group mus be
ngheded Foar all grous divisions,

2,16 Goodwill and other intangible assets

2 16.1 Goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwdll ks the amount by whacl (he acguisition orice

jpaid fer 3 subsidiary ar asociate exceads the lair value an

the: date Rabobank scquined its shane of the net assets and
The contingent Rabilitied of the entity acguined, With each
acquisition, the other nen-controlling interests are recognised
at fair value or at the proportion of the identifiable assets and
Rabilities of the acquired entity. Impakment tests are performad
annwally ar - il indicatiens 4o dictate - mo'e frequently 1o
e whether impatment has ocourmed.

Software developrnent costs

Cants related ta the development or maintenance of software
ane recognised as an oxpense at the tirme they are incurfed.
Costs ditectly Incurred in connaction with identifiable and
inique softwane products ower which Rabobank has contnod
and that will probably provide economic benelits exeeding
The costs foe longer than a year ane recogiised a5 goodwill
andd ather intangible assets. Direct costs includo omployes
expentes of the softwane development 1@am, financing and
an appropriate ponticn of the rekvant ovweihess.
Cxpenditures that improve the perfarmance ol software
compared with their cregingd specifcations ane sdded 12 the
atiginal cost of the software. Softwane development costs
ame recognived as assets and amasiised on a linear basks over
a petiod not exceading five years.

Crherintangible assefs

Orher incangible assers aee mainky Thase dantifod throuwh
business combrnations. They ane amontised over Uhelr Berms
Rabobank performs an impairment el evany year based on
expected futune cash lows. An impaliment loas s taken if the
expected future profits do not justify the carying amount of
the asset

M5 Nobes to the financial statements of Rabohank

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000000000000000dn(Ees923)
Oooooood

P ity s

Impairment losses on goodwill

Daming 1he fourth quarter of each financal year, or more
frequenitly il mdications of impaimient exist, goodwil is tewed
for impatirmen) by compading the red overalzlie amount with
tha carrying amount, The highest of value in wse on the one
hand and fair value less selling costs on the othes determines
the recowerable amount. The definition of cash flow generating
undts depends on the type of company acquiled,

T walise e b canh Mhore QEnerating unig s armasd 0 by
diatormining the present value of the expec ted futume cath
flows of the cash fow generating unit Inguestion at the interest
rat= bedore tax

The most impaortant assumptions used (n the cash flow moded
dhepend on the inpul data which ieflect different financial

AN SCONoMIC VIRXBleY, (uch 35 Che figk: free TanesT (e in

a country and a premium reflecting the inberent sk from the
entity concemad, The vansbles ame dateimined subject bo
raview by management. 'mpa rments of goodwill are included
ureder inpairments of goodw I In the statement of income,

Impairment losses on other intangible assets

O gach repofting date, Rabolsing assestes whther thers e
Endicatians of imgatnent of athey intangible assls, If such
indications exist, impalrment iesting b caried out to determine
whether the carnying amaint of the other intangible assats

ks Fully moovesable. Animpaiement loss b recognised iF the
canying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Goodwill
and software under developamient ane wesred (o impasment
each year an the repofting dabe of mane HHI.I'.'I‘IH! L
inclications of imgaiment exist. Impalrment losses and feversed
Impairmants of other intangible fied assots am included in the
profit and 1055 acoount.

2.7 Fixed tangible assets

Equipmant [Far own use) i recognibed al histoncal cost net of
accumulated depieclation and impalrments i applicabla.
Propedty {for own wsel mainly consists of offices and is

also recognised at cost kess accumulated depeeciation and
impaiermenis if applicable.

Each aasat is depreciatod 1o 08 nedidual value aver T8 gatrmatied

sl |ifie;

« Land Mot chepeciated
« Wslcingy 13- O yran
Ergnpment. inckading

© o e LR 1+ 5 years
+ i0mer equiperan and vehichr 1 Eywan
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abohark every year assesses whathar there ama indications of
impairrment of Engible fied assers I 1he carrying amount of
an asset gxceeds it estimated recaverable amount, the carrying
amaunt is immediately witien down 16 the recoveratle
amaunt. impairmaent losses and reversad impairments of
tangible fived atsats ane Included in Tither admindstrative
expenses’ in the stiatement of income. Gains and losses an the
disposal of tangible fved ssets me determines in proporiion
10 thelt catrying amaunis and taken inta sccownt when
diatermining the aperating nbiull. Repalr and maimlenanca
waork ts charged 1o the profit and loss acooend 3t thae time

the relevant costs are incun=d. Expenditures on extending

ol increasing the benafits from land and buldngs compared
with thew edginat benefits are caniialiced and subsequently
deprecisted

2.18 Investment propertics

Irvestment properties, mainly office balkdings, ara held for thair
long-term rental income and are not used by Rabobank or its
subsefiaries. investment properties are recognised as bong-1emm
ivdestments and inchuded in the statement of financial position
atcoit, net of accumulated depreciation and impalrmant.
Irnstment properties dre depreciated ower a term of 40 years.,

2.19 Leasing

Robobank as lesee

Leases ralating 1o property and eguipment undar which
wirtually 3k fisks and benefins of swnerhip are ransfered 10
Rateabank are classified a5 fnance leases. FInance |eases ane
capitalived a1 the Inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leazed assets or at the present value of the minimum lease
payments if the presant value is kower. Lease peyments ane
apportioned botwesn the lease labifity and the france charges
40 a3 1 athhevis @ oomitand idle of inderesd on the remaining
halance of the Lability, The corresponding leass liabilithes ane
incheded under 'Other Kabilities' after the deduction of imance
«<hanges. The interest components of the finance charges are
charged 1o the profit and loss account over the term af the
lease A tangible fied asset acquieed wunder a lease agreamant
is depraciated over ithe useful life of the asset or, f shomer. ihe
Term of the kease,

Leases under which a considerable portion of the rivks and
henehts of ownarthip of the aswnts am refainad by the lesor ae
wlassified as operating leazes. Operating lease paymends (hoss
amy discounts by the Bgsor) are charged 1o the profit and hoss
Accounton a linear basks over the term of the leae.
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Ratobank as lessor

Finance leases

H asets aie leased unded 3 finance lease, the present vabue of
The legse payments is egognised a3 & recehvable under Loans
ard advinces 10 Banks’ of Loans and advances 10 wstomerns’
The difference between the gross recelvasia and the presant
walue of the receivable is recognised as uneamsed finance
come, Leaws incorms i recognised A nterest (noomss aver
thie betrn of thi lease tsing the net investment mathod, which
reules Ina constant rate of nelurn on the investmant,

Operating leases

Assets leased under operating keases are included In the
staterrient of financial positon wnder ‘popednty and equipment’
Thee assens dne depreciated over theit expected usefi lives

b lirwr i Eh Ehe of eormparabla items of propety and
equipment, Rental income (less discounts granted o ledsoes
and write-downs) i recognised under Cther results’on a lnear
ks over the term of the lease.

220 Provisions

Prontiians ane recognised i Rabobank has a present obligation
{kegal or constructive) as a result of & past event, if It is probable
That an outllow of resources will be iequired (o sellia the
oixigation and if a reliable estimate can be made of the
amaount of the obligation. If Rabobank expects a peovision o
be retmbursed, for example under an insurance confract, the
reimbursemant |5 iecognised a5 & separte assel bur only il he
red mbrEment s virtually certain, The prowisions are carred &1
the diseounted vak of the expected future caih Rowa

Restructuring

Restructuring provisons compeise payments under redundancy
sthiines and ciler coss dirlly sl talde (o resticiuing
programmaes Thede coath and accounted for during the periad in
which alegal or actual payment obdigation arises for Rabobarnk,
adefa lad plan has been prapared for redundancy pay, and
there are realistic expeciatians amang the parties concerned
that the receganisation will be implemenied,

Tax and legal sues

The prowvisian for b and begal msues s based on the best
passdhla atimates avallable in the mpoting perlod, taking into
account legal and tax advice: The timing of the cash outflow

of these piovsions B uncenain because the outcome of tha
disputes and the time involved ae unpredictable.

498/569



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000000000000000dn(Ees923)
Oooooood

Fismmpi f g—y Pl

Other provisions

This Rem cludes provesions for enerous coniracts, cradit
guaramest and obigathens undes the terr of the deposit
isaranes s hema,

2211 Employee benefits

fabobank has various penson plans in place based on the kool
conditicns and practces of the countres in which it operates
in general, the plans are fingnced by paymients o inurance
o panidd o Wruiles sdministened fundy a4 determinad by
penodic actwarial calculations. A defined benefit penskon

iplan (s one that incorporates @ promese [o pay an @mount of
pension beneht, which s usually based on several factors such
as age, number ol years in setvice and temunsiation A defined
contibulion plan iy one in the contex al which Rabobani
pays ficed contibutions to a separate entity (a pension fund)
and acquires no legal or constructive obligation I the fund has
insufficient assets to pay all the benefis to employes-mambers
of the plan In respect of service In current and past periods.

Fension obiigations

Thee obliggation under the defined bene it pension plans ks the
present value af the dofinod banefit pendian abligation in

the reporting pericd after the deduction of the falr value of
fund Investments. The definad benafit abligation s calculated
annsally by independent actuaties based on the peojecbed

nanit ciedlit method The present vatua of the defined benedfin
ablgarion is getermined by the estimated fnuse ounflow o
<oy funds based on the interet rtes of high-quality comporate
bonds with termd which approach that of the corfetponding
obligation. Tha majority of pension plans ame career-average
schemes. The costs of these plans k2 the nat penslon chasges
for the period less employes contributions and Intesest, ae
inchatbed under ‘Staff costy, Net intenest expenses of income
ang cakcutated oy applying the discount rate at the beginning
of thie year for thie asset o lability based on the defined bonchit
ipension plan,

Actuarial gains and kxsses anising from actual developments

al agctuarial assumptions are recognised in the consollidated
statement of comprehensive Income.

Defined contritution plans

Under defined contribution plans, Rabobank pays contribitons
it pubicly or privatedly managed pension insurance schemes.
N 3 compalsory, contracheal of voluntary basle. Once the
contiibutions have been made, Rabobank has no further
payment obligations The egular contributions ae costs for the
wear in wihich thisg ane dus and aee inchsded on this basis under
Elaff comsl

M Notes to the financial starements of Habobank

Other post-employment obligations

Soma Rabooank business units provede other post-employ mant
allewances To become eligible for wich benefits, the wual
tegutement b that the smployes remalng in sendce wnikl
retirement and has besn with the compary 3 minimurn rumber
of years. The expacted costs of these benefils are accrued
durfing the years of senice, based on a system saimilar to that for
defined benehit pension plans The obligations ane valued cach
year by ndependent aciuaries

Variable remunenrtion

The costs of varabie remuneration pad unconditionally and

I cash are recognised in the year in which the employes
tenders the services. The costs of conditianal payments in

cash are included in s1a6 costs i the pralt and Iass account

in the penad during which the employee’ services are
recebved, which equals the westing period of th cash payment.
The Rability s recognised in ather abdities. The accounting
tieatment of eguity instrument-based payments is dsclosed In
Paragraph 332

2.22 Equity Instrument-based payments

Ramuneration fof services redond by dentifed st i made
in the foem ol cash payments based on equity Instruments that
are smilar 1o, and have the same chamcteristics as, Habohank
Cerificates. The costs of the serdces iecesved are based on the
awatded equity instrumenits' fair value on the award date and
are recalculated annually a1 vhe value applicab'e a1 the rime.
The coats of the awarded equity inatruments are included In
ataff costs in the profit and ot acoount in the period dunng
which tha employes’s sendoes ane recelvod, which eguals

the vesting paiiod of the 2quity mstruments. The labdity is
recognised in ather liabdities.

2323 Tax

Cumgrt tad receivabies and payabdes ae offsot if theme

it & lagally enforceable rght 1o offset such iters and
simuftanaous teatment of setthemant i infended. Deferred tax
as501s and llandites are offsal if thare is 2 legally enforceahis
vigint 10 offset such items and o they relate 1o the same tax
Aty A arisd Frcem E L EIx g roup

Provions ane formed bn full for deferned ta lablies, using
the labdity methad, atsing om temperary differences on
the reporting date betwean the tax bases of the assets and
Habilities and their carrying amounts fod financial reporting
DuTpoLes

The enaln temparary differences relale to the de preglation of
tangibibe fsed sty the myalustion of ceain inanc lal aswels
and labdlities, Including detivatives, prodisians for pensians
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and athar post-employment benefits, peovtibons for loan losses
amg orher impalrment and @y ases, and, in connection with
lbutiress combainatons, the falr values of the net resen scquined
and their tax bases, Deferred Income tao assets and Rabilites
are maasured at the tax rates that have been enacted ar
substantively enacted on the repanting date.

Deferred tax assets ae recognised to ine extent that it is
jprobable that futume taxable prohit will be available, agains
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Prendshons ang formed in respect of tiaable lempotany
differances assoctated with investmants in subsidiarias,
associates and interests in joint ventures, inkess the timing of
thee reversal of the tempodary differences can be controlied and
it i probable that the fempenany differences will not reverse in
tha fereseabie future,

Tawes on paofit ane calculabed in accordance with the tax
fegistation of the televant jurisdiction and recognised as

an expansa in the period In which the profit 1s realised. The tax
effects of carrying forward unused tax losses &e recognised

a5 an asset i |t is probable that future mable peofits will be
avallabie againgt which the losses can be uhksed

Deforred tax assets o defened tay abdites ane included for the
revalugtion of available-for-wale financial assets and cash Fow
hadges that ame directly taken 1o equity, Lipan realsation, they
ale recognised inthe profit and kess account togethes with the
1espective deferred gaim of kst

2.24 Due to banks, amounts due to customers and debt
securities Inlssue (Including subord|nated liabilities)
Theitde bofiovng are indftially recognived at fair value |

the Issue price less directly allocable and non-recurring
ransaction costs, and subiequently camed at amortised cost,
i hading tramsaction cosis.

I Aalobairk tepuicivases ong ol iy oven debl insburmasnis, i

I de-recogrised, with the difforence botween the carrying
amaunt of a labily ard the consideration paéd being
recognised i the peofit ard loss account.

235 Rabobank Certificates

The proceeds from the xsue of Rabobank Cartificasss are
availabsia 18 Rabobank Geoup in pepatuity and ane wboedinate
tor @l Habil e ancd 1o thee Trust Prefermed Securities and the
Capital Securities. As the payment of planned distributions &
fully discretionary, the proceeds from the issue of Rabobank
Cerificates are fecognised as equiny. As a result of this, thesr
dividends are treated 35 pam of equity.
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226 Capital Securities

Capital Securities aze recognised as Equiny’ bacausa thete 15

i farmal allgarion to {repay the principal sum or to pay the
dividend, The dividends pald o9 these indtruments ane shown as
part ol equity.

2.27 Financial guarantees

Fnanclal guasanies contracts require the lssuer 1o compensate
the halder far a logs the ier incurs because a specified debitos
faik ba maeet Bs obligations in accordance with the tarms af

a delbt secwrity, Such financlal guarantees are racognised the
first time af falr value and subseguenty at the value of the
discounted oodgation Under the guarantee or the higher value
the first time, the armoon ks reduced by the already recoanised
cumulative resull 1 shew e accouning pencipies lor

The income

3 Rabobank Group solvency and
capital management

Thie mtios that apply 1o Aabobank Group ane et out belaw.

Rabobank aims 1o maintain a proper kevel of solvency Fore this
purpose 3 numibsar of sohency ratios ae ulilised. The principal
ratios are the commaon eguaty ter § ratio {CET1), the tier 1 atia,
the botal capdtal ratio and the equity capital ratio Rabobank
wses its own Intemal cbjectives that extend beyend the
minimum requirernents of the supervisors. It takes marker
expectations and developments in keglikation and regulaions
e sccourt, Rabobank sirves 10 be better than ather imancial
Inatitutions. Rabobank manages its solvency position based on
poicy documants The solvency pasiion and the obgectives ae
periodically on the agenda of the Risk Management Commities
i Lhe Bakance Managurnent Coanmitiee of the Executive
Board and Superviary Board

The Capital Reguirements Regulaton {CRA} and ‘Capital
Requiemsants Diecthe IV (CRD VY together constitute the
European implementation of the Basel Caplital and Ligusdity
Accard of 2010 These rubes, which became effective on

1 Janaary 2004, are applice by Rabobank

Rabahank st comply with a member of minimum sohwency
positions a3 stipulated under law. The solvency position

i datermined on the basks of ratios: These r@tos compare
the qualifying capaa {total capital ratio), the tier 1 capital

(nier 1 ratio) and thecorecapital (common equity ther | ratia)
o thee Bank with thie tatal of the Ask-adusted s
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[Effective 1 January 2014, the minmum required percentages
ane determined on the basis of CRD WORR. Far 2015, the
qualifyng capital, tes 1 capital ard cone capital rerain wusject
L I ke iy oF 8 6% andd 4.5% respi vely, Thee egal
Ibuffers below are appd cable as from 2016 These buffars will
gradually increase untd the year 2019, Aabobank is already
allwing for these changes m kts capital planning, The table
belaw shows the minimum legal bufers bated on the planned
fingl sipgation wider CAD ICAR
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Teetal
CETH Ter captal
Manimeam ok LS L] [l ] [ =]
Capitsl cownervation buMler ' 2016 201% 15 L5 L5%
Menisream + copstal
wonsersation buffer Talrim 6
Counteroptlscal bufer H016-331% - 25%
Syshemmar vk buffer Folor s irs pi-

The determination al the tsk-weighbed aisets b based on
separate methods for crediy sk, eperational rise and markse
ik, Thie risk-weightod asiets are dotormined fof cridit ik
jpuarposes in many differend ways. For most assets the nsk weight
s determined with iefererce fo itemal ratings and a numbsr
of chamcteristics spocific to the asset concerned. For off
lbalance sheet Hems the balance sheet equivalent s calou'ated
first on the basis of internal conversion factors, The resulting
equivaent amounts are then alio assigned fsk-weightings.

An Advanoed Meapsurement Appioach model is used 10
determine the amount with respect 1o the risk-waighted assets
for opetational sk, With the market risk approach, the genieral
markiet rek 15 bedged, as well a5 the risk of open positions in
forelgn currencies, delbt and ecquity instraments, a3 well a3
commoadites, In the rabo’s listed below socount has Disen Laken
of the mansitioral CRR prowdsians

1 Thewe buffers wibt phase in duing the years 10062009,
Tha countercyclizal buffer is capped a1 8 magmum of 2.5%,
I vt courmres, inclucing the echertands, the ocurtercyclical
Emiffer dor 016 has Beer 1ot a1 (96

M4 Notes to the financial starements of Habobank

Joif Felld
Bartginesd sarnings 25487 M5
Expesctid dividends n2e [k
Rabwbarih Certibeates (2117 5830
Pt of mom-conieolling imberesty treaed oy
dpalifying capital 3 »n
Lt 4 A4
Dedectons (183 ] %L1 ]
Trureaithosn guadans L 115
Coerenon Equity Ther 1-capital TR FIRAT
Capsal Lecunities 1488 -
Graeatt a5 8373 7263
MonCofinaling imeseis 5 &
Chochataona. (-] L]
Tianaition guadano: (1] (LI
Tiwr 1 capital L. H 3haTa
Pt of peborcinabed Habdites trestes] an
usalitying cacital 15078 s
Mondontioling intea L &
Duhactiona. m -
Tranaiton guidanos 1596 481}
realifping capital an,488 45,159
Rish -mesghted atiets 211,092 MLAT
Comemaen Dgueety Tiee 1 ratic s Ihes
Toer 1 rain (LT [T
Tortal rapital ratia s s
Ly capstal ratio LLE A

The deductions consizt mostly of goodwill, other intangible
fived assets, defered ax labdlines which depend an futune
profit, the IR shortfall for credit risk sdjusaments and
adjustments ielating 1o curmulative profits due 19 chanpes

In the banks credit rsk on instrumants lsswed at market

walue (FYPLL In accondance with CAR, a number of dedections
ane adjusted in the Tamition guidance’ as these adjustments
are w21 10 be phased in after free years for the period 2014-2018,
Thie Tranubon guetance’ Consists mainly of gaodwill, ather
kndangitde non-curment assets, defeired tax Habilities depending
o future pealits {i.e. non-termporary difiesencespand the IRE
shortfall for credi sk adjustiments

The additional tier 1 instruments issued by Aabobank prios 1o
2015 do not comely with the new CRR equiemeants, Thesy will
rid grancdiatheding’ This means that thete ingrumants will be
phased out from the Gefinition ol yolvency ratios, in line wish
the statulory requitementy.
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4 Risk exposure on financial instruments

4.1 Risk organisation

Rabobark Group manages ks sl various kevels, Af the

Tagtsest bevel. the Executve Board, under the supedvision of The
Supernwsony Board, deterrmines the sk strategy it will pursue,
1he rsk appet te, the policy framewoek as well 25 the limits.

The Ba ance Sheet and Rk Mansgement Commitiees are the
-bd\'hﬁl!f' and ewecutive commitlésy of the Executive Board.

Thett Supdrdsary Board regulatly assesses the riks attached

1o the acthatios and portfolio of Rabobank Group, The Chisf
sk Dfficer, whe b atso & Memiber of the Executive Board, s
responsible for the risk management policy within Rabobank
Groun Respansbility fos the ks policy within Rabobank
GRoUp 18 Spread Acnoss Dwo dites tonates. Risk Management i in
hange ol this polb e telating to intenest rabe, market, liguidity,
Curency and operatkonal risiks, as webl as for the pelicy for credin
iisks at portiolio level, Credit Risk Managemsant is responsible for
the credit risk acceptance policy at ikem leval. Furthermare, the
gioup entities practise independent risk management.

Risk appetite

kdantifying and managing risks lar its organisation is an ongoing
pocess at Habobank. Foe this pumpose an integeated ik
managemant strategy s applied. The sk management cycle
Inclsdes detemmining risk appetite, preparing integrated sk
analyses, and measuring and maonitodng sk Throughout this
pracess Rababank uses a risk strategy simad an continuity and
designid 10 protect proftability, mamin sold balince shaet
ratho and protect its identity and roputation,

4.2 Strategy for the use of Ainancial instruments
Rabobark's actwities ae Inherently related to the use of
firarichal rsstruments, including dedvativs. Rabolank accepts
daposits from customars at flued and variable rates of interest
for a varkety of terms and akmi toearn inberest maging an these
funds by imesting tham in high quality assets, Rabobank alsig
alms to Increase these ma'gins thowgh a portfolio apgeoach
of short funds and the aliceation to loans for langer terms at
Iigghiear iriberest rates. at the same time keeping sulficient cash
TEsounce to meet o) payemants that mighs Become due.

A firther ohjective of Rabobank Is 1o inomaw 15 interest rale
result by obtaining above-average mangins, after the deduction
«of provisions, and by granting loans to commercial and retall
borowers with vasious credit ratings These risks apply not
anly 1o koans recognied in the swiement of inancial pasitian,
Rababark alio gives QUarantees, such ag eoers of cnsdit, heriers
of performance and other guarantes documents.
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4.3  Interest rate risk in the banking environment
Tierest-race ik in the banking environment’ iefers o the ik
that the financlal results andfor the scanomic value of bank
boolks, imvestment books and capital books i adversely affected
by changes in interest rates on the money and capial-matkets.
Bank books contain financial peoducts and related detivatnes
which ane held i ceder 1o generate Interest rate incoime and
the stable geowth thereal |Inveitment books consist of financial
instruments which are held for stregic purposes, including for
The maragement of sobaency Hisk, inberesl rate ridk and liquidite
sk, Capital books contain Ananclal instruments financed with
the bank’s own capital
Habobank accepts a cenain amount of interest rate risk ir the
Banking endronment, as this constinrtes a fundamental part
of banking, but a1 1he sime Dme tee bank alio sims 1o avoid
i e bt st Nuetuations in the Bnancial result and
The pconomic valise o 2 result of intenest fate e tuatbons,
The Executive Board, overseen by the Supervisory Board,
tharefore annually approves tha risk appetite for intarest rate
sk and the comesponding interest rate rish imits.
s part of its interest rare ik policy, Rabobank uses the
follewwing two key crteda:
= edquity at risk, duration af equity, and
= incoms 3t nsk; the wuimerability of the inteest income 1o

i gradud increase or deciease In infenest rates over the nedt

12 rvoaviivs.
Interast rate risk at Rabobank arises as a result of discrapancies
in The: rratwries and tetr of loams and funds, option risk, bess
ik and yiekd-cunve risk. Any intenest rate tiik o which clkents
ame exposed a5 @ resubt of an increase In their obligations dug
1o 'nierest iAte movements has no effect on the level of rsk
Habahank it exposed i Ary negative effects arising from this
exposune are regarded a5 o credir ik,
Al o kel Babobank’s interest tate rivk is raniged by the
Asson and Liabillsy Commaities Rabobank Giouap chaied by the
Chief Financial Officer. The Central Treasury s responsible for
implemaniing the decisicns of this committee, while Gioup Risk
Management is responsitle fod measuremen: and reporting.
Rabobank's interest tate risk arises primarily from morigages
provided and baiiness kans provided with along fleed-
imanest porod, Thoee morgages and leans are financed with,
among cihet things, cusfomens' svings, customeny' cufreni
account halancas and with lunding provided by professional
money market and capital market players. Measurements
of Interest rate tkk ae not only based on the contRctually
agreed data. but also on customsr behaaour in the interest
rate risk modets that are used Account is therelore taken of
the eatly redemption of mortgages, and demand depodins,
such as balincas in immediately callable variable interest
sawings accounis and credit balances in payment accounts and
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business cunent accounts, are modelled using the replicating
ipertinlio method. This method s wied 10 select portfolos

o maney and capital market i tnements that most closely
teplicate the behaviour of the bakince sheel llema,

The definition used for managing ket rate risk varies from
thee IFAS defintion of equity. For interest rate risk managament,
the economic value of equity is defined as the present value
of thie astens less the present value of the labestes plus the
sl value af the off-balince-shist l1ems, Thrcragh the usa
ol hedge dccounting and due 10 the fict that a Bege potbon
of thie balance sheet |5 stated a1 amortised cost {in [FRS terms)
and apait fram the inherent counterparty risk therefors does
et charge in value, the effects of the calowlated lmpalrmments
G FRS capilal will be lagely resishcied 1oa impact on intenes

AT

4.4 Creditrisk

Credit risk ks the risk thata countenparty Is unable tomeat

a financlal or other contractual ob¥igaton vis-d-vis the bank.
Credit risk i Inhetent 1o grantng koans. Positons In tradeable
asseni such as bonds and thares are also subject to credit ek
Raboabark esnhcls i85 credit gk exposurs Dy secting limas

for loans 1o an individual countspadty, of 3 group of
coynierparties, a well as for loans 1o couniries, The our-epes
prneiple i 4 hey factor when granting laans. A multl-level
commitiee strscbume 15 in place to mako decisions on majpos loan
applications. The competent commitiee ks chosen on the basis
al the size of the ioan. Decissens on the Wigest loans are made
directly by the Executive Board,

Theit ciedit fisk experure sealing to each indnadual bosroner is
further restricted by the use of sub lmits to hedge amounts at
ik, mot all of which are dischoses in the statement of financial
position, and the ueeof daily delivery risk limits for tading
it such a3 forwadd cuniency cantracis. Mot ol the resulling
i arie ested againal the lemity eveny diy.

Onoe aloan has been granted, It is continuatly suloct to credit
managemant as part of which new infformaiion, firancial

and other, Is revlewed, Tha credit limits are adjusted where
necessary. fabobank obrains collateral or guatantess for the
majcty o lnans

Tha imasiesm crodit sk incurred in the reporting perad i e
even! Dhat courerparties fail to Fil thel obligations in iespect
af financial instiuments, withoul taking into accoun the fie
value of the collateral cltained, Is 473,394 [ 2014: 490,627,

441 Denvatives

Rababuark sers st imin lor open positions, [n amounts &
el % in e 1 PRS0 (international Swags and Deriatives
Assoclation) standards apply o a master agreemaent including
equiva‘ent terms has been concluded with the counterpanty,

M Naotes to the financial statements of Habobank

and If the jurtsdiction of the cowntenparty penmiis offseiting,
The RetT open positon 5 montoeed. This credin risk & managed
ay pait of the general lending lmins for cliems, Wheee necded,
Farbapbank obitaing collater? o other safeguinds with sspest
1o onedit risks inbanent in these transac ton, The coedit ik
exposine represents the current fair value of 3l open dernvative
confracts shawing a positive market value, taking into account
master neting agreements enforcoable under L

442 Collaters! and crecit management methods

The credit risk Rabobank & exposed to is sestricied in part by
pistaining collateral whete necessary. The amount and nature
of the collateal reguired depends partly on the assessment of
e credid risk of the loan to the counteiparty. Rabobank folows
auedsiines fod the purpese af accenting and valuing diffemsnt
types of colateral, The major types of collatend ane:

= Residential morigage collateral;

= Mortgage collateral on immowable property, pledges on
manable progerty. inventones and recelvalles, mainly for
business loans;

Cash and secweiiies, mainly for weurities lending Cctivities
and reverse mpurchase Transaclions.

The managémant manitor the madkat value of collateral
chtained and reguires additional collateral where necetsary,
Habohank also uses credit derivatives 1o manage credif risks.
Rabobank furthor kmits its exposune to credit sk by enbering
Mo master natling ammangements with counterpanies for

& significant vol umme of amsac ions. in general, master

netting arrangements do not lead to the offsstting of asets
and labilizies inchedaa in the statement of fnandcial pasition
because transactions are uswally settlod geoss. The credit rizk is
Fmited by Masier netting arangements, but only 10 the ectent
that if an event of cancellabon ooours, all amounts invelving
the counterparty ane fregen and setibed net The tatal credit
gk eepdsum of Rabobank fom derivatives 10 which offieiting
arrangamients apply Is highly sensitive to the ciadure of now
nanzactions, the lapse of existing transactons and fluctuatons
v market interest and exchange rates.

4.4.3 Off-balance-sheet financial instrumentts

Thit quaramtieed and stanchy letters of crodin which Rababank
forcvichees for Dhiac paethes i e everit a client canimo Tuliil s
cvigations vis-3-vis theda thind parthes, am exposed (o cradit
tisk. Documentary and commercial latters of credit and written
undartakings by Rabobank on bahalf of clents authose third
parties to draw bills agairst Babobank up to a feed amount
subject to specifc coraditians, These transactions & backed
oy the delivesy of the unde:lying goods tawhich They relate.
Accordinghy, the sk expodsue of such an instrument i less than
that ol ddirect oan
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Obdgations toissue lnans at a specific interest rale fod a set pariod
aeincluded among the lender’s cbiigations, They are accourtad
fies 4% such, unless these obligations do nat continues altes the
jpeicd ewpecied b be needed fo cairy out suitsbde scceplance
peocedunes, After that period they ane treated a5 tansactions
accouding to standard market conventiors. Rabobank s exposed
tovcredit #lsk whsen It promises bo grant lending foiaies. The size
o such ksses is less then the o6l of the unused commitments
Ibecause the promises 1o grant credi facilithes are made subject
e the clionts maseting certain conditans that apphy' 1o leand,
Rabobank moninors the torm io expiny of credit prosnises because
fcng-term commisments are generally associated wiha higher
risk than short-term comam tments,

444 Forbearance

Hatiobank has deveiooed & policy for moniiong its demency
partfalio every quarter, This portiolie comsisty of the customen
«of Rabobank for whom forbearance measunes have been putl
In place Tha maasures under that name compItse CoNCEssions
1o debaoss facing o about 1o face difficulties in meeting thes
financisl commitmenss. A concesson refers 1o evhed of the
following sction:

= A modifcation of the previous 12 and conditions of

i contract the debior b unable 1o comply with due ta its
financial difficulies {'bad debi’) inordar 1o aliow lor sufficient
debt serviceability. A modification that would not have been
aranted hag the debaor not besn in financial diffculng

A otal or partial refnancing of 3 bad dett conact, which
weuld net have been granted had the debtor nat been In

financlal difficulty.

Bamples include postponements of epayments and eatendions
ol v vy o Faciliny, Thee ratoriabe for te focus o this portiolio
derves from the concerns of Eurcpean mequlatorn about the
detercration of the quality of the postiolia; it is feared that
frebearance measwes might camouwflage this deterioration of the
iparifolio a5 debiors are able to meet thelr financial obfigations for
longer periods as a result of the concestions. The identification of
febearance measwies Tor the corporie portfolio s based on the
current Loan Quality Classfeation framawerk, with faceannce
measmes onty appiying to the Clssiied portfolo, ¥ forbearance
magiapes ae applied 1o a debicr, tha deblor fals, by definition,
under the supendsion of the Special Asset Management
dapartment. Lastly, tems In the forbearance category must be
teparted on for up i hwo years afles thelr recoveny from non-
perfonming o 'performing! This period of e years i eferned o
A% Fedbonme wndis probathon.
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4.4.5 Trends in the real estate portfolic

Rabobank's partiolio of commercial real estae in

the Netherdards s managed by FGH Bank and the lkecal
Rabobanks. The cammercial real estate markel showed some
signs of recovery in 2015, The dermand of neal estate wiers Tor
cffces and business premises ncreased sghtly, although it
remakns low rom a vstorcal parspective. The supply of emply
b ldings is decreasing, both fior offices and retail tpace This is
nol the ol of an creased growth in demand, but is due

1o b combination of e Mcon: sxtea Initathaes 1o convert
wacant bulldings; and low levels of new housing developmant
However, rental prices are still under pressuee in areas outside
coe lncations in lange oties. This has kzd to an increasingly
wislble demarcation between hopeless, diszdvaniagad and high
potential propetiss Long tesm tends such as demographic
agmng, thie Rew Wy of Waotkingand online shopping e

all important fac o in this development. The pressune an
retall property will continue for the coming years, In panicular
causing d ficufthes for mid-market retall chains This ls in
confrast to the positive damand on the mvestment side, In
which these |3 significant actiaty from Both domestic and
intennational investors. Lo intenest rmtes and Imited neturm
on glher investment segments are stimulating imestments
inreal estate, Al real estate segments ae in demand amaong
investors. Under the cument market conditions, the guality

of the commerclal real estase potiiodo is showing signs of
stabdlisation, especially In the second half of the year, wheteby
the aforementonad divsion in the markst shows difierences ag
sub-seciof keval,

‘Within Rababank Growp, maore attention has been pakd to

the management of the commencial real estate portfolio 'n

the Netherands. Hieps have alieady Been 1akan in recent

yiarg o tghten the financing, evition and apgrokal policies
AL the Reginning of 2015, within the comext of One Rabolank,
avidion that will smo the bundling of Rabokank's activitie: 1o
create oplimal customer service, it was disclosed that FGH Bank
would be integrated with Rabobank a5 a centre of expariise.
The peeparztions for this process ate in Al swing

4.5 Currency risk in the banking environment
Curency flak i the rtk thar the bank's fmancial et and/

o economic value will be negatively affected by changes in
et hange rates,

Rabobank is exposed to the effect of fuctuations inexchange
ratas on ifs financlal posttion and cash fiosws: In 1he trading
environment, cusrency risk, ke other market rigks, s managed
on the basls of Value at Risk {VaR) bmits set by the Executhve
Board, In thee banking snvimonment, thees ks a curency rsk in
The banking booics and a tanslation rish,
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Curency risk in the banking books s the risk that manifests.
irseif a1 the mament recaivalies and llabides a1e not coversd,
dise 1o which currency fluctuations may have a negative impact
ool U Pottc fal results of the Bark, Ratsotusnk hedged the
curency fek in full in the banking books.

Tianslation risk bacomas evidant when the bank’s consolidated
Ibalance sheet and results are peepared, whereby all itamss in
forelan curmencies must be valued In cwod This makes ihe
financial data sensilive to-exchange e Tuciuations Transtation
itk manifests itielf in bwo different ways within Rabobanlk:

Exchange rate fluctuations can potentially affect the value of
consobdated entrities of which the funciional ourrencias are
THOL EUrOs,

Exchange rate fluciuations may Jfiect the solwency it

of Rababiank 0% a result of differences in the exchange rate
compositian of the caphal and the dsk-welghled assets,

Tianslation risk and curency itsks in the banking books are
monitoed and managesd on the task ol & policy which serves
1he prime purpase of protecting the Cammon Equity Tier | ratio
agalngt the adverse effects of xchangs rate volarilicy

46  Liquidity risk

Habahark is exposed 1o liquidity risk (e, the risk that the bank K
unable to meet all of its (rejpayment obligations in good time,
ay well as the risk thar the bank is unable ta {reffinance assets
at reasonable prices or ar all This could happen f clisrt or
professionl countenperties suddenty withdtaw more funds than
expected, which cannol be mat by the bank's cath resources
and when selling or pledging assets or bomowing funds fiom
Third parties also piovdes no ol ution.

abobark has long recognised liquidity ridk as & major sk
e, Rabobank therelore has a policy wherebry the term of

e Funding matchies the berm of thie koans grantse. Leng-tesm
Beans must be financed through funds entrusted by customens
ol long-temm funding theough professional markets

Liquidity risk s managed on the basls of three pillars. The fimt
of these pillars seqs sirict Benits for the outgoing cash fiows.
within the wholesale banking business. Among other things.
Rababark measues shd eports on Ad!ll'y Banis whal incoaming
] ouilgpoing Cash Tlows can bt expected during the first
twelve monthe. A lmit framework appies ham too. Inordar to
Ibe prepared foe potential crisks sitvations, a number of detalled
contngency funding plans (CFPs) are in place, These CFFs are
inchedied in the internal test proceduses,

Thee seconed gillar is wsedd 1o maintain g substantial bufter of
Bepuict assegs in acdition 1o the funds heid at contral harks,
These assets can be used 10 bamow from central banks, used
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in sepo transactions of i order to sall directly in the market

i order 1o smmediatey generare bauadites. The size of the
Riepuichiny bufer is related 10 the risk 1o which Rabobank i
exposed throwgh s balince sheset. Rabiobank Group ha
Entermally securitiied a portion of its koan porifolio which means
it can be pledged from the central bank and therefore senmes
a5 an additional iquidity buffer, Since this concarns mtemmal
secutilizations, solely for Iquicity purposcs, thisy ate not visible
it the economic Balarce shists but are ncliaded in the avallable
Figueicfity bufar

The third plilar entalls the restriction of Rguidity sk through

a prisdent fundeng palicy aimed at meating the financing
requirements of the group’s units at accepiable cost.
Diversfication of sources of funding and cusrencies, Neaibiliy
of the funding insrurments applisd and 3 hands-on imaesior
relations approach ane key factors, This prevenis Rabobank
Group fiom beng overly dependent on a smngle source

of funding.

Fusthenmiore, scenaris analyses ate performed each month

1 calculaze the possible consequences of 3 wide mngs of
SCess soenaton, Mot only market-specific soenation, but alio
Rababank-speciiic, s well 33 2 combination of thess soenasion,
afg analyied. Moathly rports on the liquidity position of the
Group as 2 whole are submitted to the Dutch Cenfral Bank.
Ihiese repans are prepared in accordance vath the guidelines
drawn up by this supervisony authority.

4.7  Market risk in the trading environment

“Wharket risk in the trading envirenment relers fo changes in the
value of thie tadeng book as a telult o, amang other things,
changes in Interest rates, credit sproads. foreign curmoncies

and shate prices. Analysas of the market risk i the bank book
ane included in Paragraph 4.3 ‘Intesest-rate ride in T banting
environment' and Paragraph 4.5 Tunréncy ris in the banking
efyironmant’

At the consolidated baval, the risk is repeesenied by the Value at
Risk {VaR), bask point sensithity and event risk The Esecuthe
Board annually ratifies the itk appatite and the coresponding
limigs. These Lmits are converted inio lmits a1 book kevel

and are maniesed daily by vhe markes rige managemaent

chetprar rmweris. b acditkan o the Ve, Dasls point sensitivity

and event rsk Bmits, an extremaly detalled system of trading
controls per book 15 in place, including rodation risk [Lerisk that
the yiedd curve willshiftl, delta kmits per Bucket. nominal
limits and the maximum numbeds of conracts, The sk position
I responied o the senlor managermien on & dally basis and
sl in el Varion ridk management committons on

a manthly basis
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Thee ¥Walt indicates. based on one year of historical market trends,
The maximurm koss for a given reliabiliny level and hoeizon

under normal’ market conditions. The internal Vaf roodel

forms an integral part of the risk management frarmswork at
abohark. This Intemal model has also been approved by Dk
1o determine the solvency requidement for market risk in tha
tiading book Rabobank has opted 1o apply a Val based on
hitstarical simulation for which one years warth of histoile data
i used, The Vaft i calculated over time herizons of both one day
and tan cdhays, For imernal rsk managemant purpases, Rabobank
has opted for a confidence level of §7,5%. Furtharmore, the VaR
with a confidence level of 90% s also calculated on a dally basks.
A significant adivantage of a Valil model hased on histoscal
sirmulation is that no asswmptions need 1o be made about

the distibation of patential value adjisstrments for The warous
financial intruments, A dosshack i that a chasce nseds ta be
mide concerming the pevind of historical market trends which
could patentially affect the amount of the VR as calculated.
Based on tha requirements imposed by the requiator and
following cur cewm research, it was decided 1o wse an historical
peniod of cne year, Back tEsting |5 used in arder to 1est the
sctual outcomes an & regular Basis in arder to doteaming the
validity of the adsumptions ard paraméeten/Tacton used in
«alculating 1he VaR

48 Operational risk

Rabobank defines oparational risk a5 the risk of beses incured as
aresuln of imadequate of dysfuncional nteenal procsses, peophs
And TSI, OF 0 3 resll of exteanal Trends and developments.,
Patential legal rigks and reputational fiuks am considened in the
assessment and management of operational risk.

In measuning and managng operational nsks, Rabobank Group
aperates withen the pararmetens of the most advanced Basel
Happroach, the Advanced Measureminl Appioach, Forihe
managemant of eparational riska. Rababank follows the e
lines of defence mcdol’ as prescribed by the EBA

Thee bank's cperational risk policy ks based on the principle

that the primary responsibilty for managing operational risk
lias with the first line and that this must be integrated ino

ihe sirdtegic and day-ic-day decision-making processes.

Th prisrpose of operational itk managemint i o identiky,
mieasne, milkgate and monitor variow types of opetational
ks The risk quantihcation process Lunpodts the managamant
respansible for pricdtksing the actions to be underaken and the
aliacanion of people and respunces.

‘Within Rabobank Growp, the departments involvec in the
primary processes of the bank form the Thst line of defence’
Tty st Fully responsible for diy-to-day risk acceprance and
for integrated ridk managemen! and mitigation accoding 1o
‘thie established risk appetite, The risk management funciins
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within the group entities and withen Msk Managemant rogather
canstirure the second line of defence’ The risk management
furictions buve & monitoring role wien | oomes ta risks and
challengs ‘the first line of defence’ with respect 1o the way they
manage risks. In acdition, they repon on the risk pofie o the
managemant and fo the Executive Board, independantly from
the fiest line Intemead audits form the thind line of defence!

AL grogp kevel, the Mon-Finarcal Rise Committes (NFAC) i
responsible for formulming poficy and seting the paramelers,
In addition, Rsk Managermant alio reports dach quatter to the
KFRC on changes In operational risks at group level, A numbaer
of risk managemeant committess have been esabished within
the group’s entities, Thewr res ponssbiibes include moniboning
opserational rigks fincluding system contimuity risks, IT security
ek gt fraued risks) of the nelevant entity,

The yoathy sk managemint cycke consiits o, ameng other
Things, a group-wide Risk Sell Assessment, in which the most
impartant operational risks ane invantorked and, i the risks fall
cartstde tha risk appetite, f which mitigating maasiees aie
ldentified based on scenanio analyses with senior managers of
1he entire Rabobank Grougp, in order 1o gain insight inba the sk
proithe of thi group.

4.9 Legal and arbitration proceadings

Rabobank Group Is active in @ lega! and regulatory environment
that exposes it 1o substantial risk of litigation, As a result of this,
Rabobank Group ks involved In legal cases, arhitrations and
reguilatony procedures in the Netherlands and n other countries,
ncliatng the Linited S1ates. The most rélevant legal and
tegrulalony elaims which could glwe rise 10 liabdity on the pan

of Rabobank Group ame described befow, IF tappears necessary
o the basis of the anplicable repotng chfEna, provisions ae
madie based on current information; similar types of case we
grouped 1ogetlen and some cases may o consbst of @ imenber
o clabms. The esfirmatoed loss for gach indiddual case Por which
it s possible to make a useful estimate) s not reporied, because
Rabobank Group feets that Information of this type could ba
datrimenital to the outcome of ind vidual cases.

When detedmining which of the claims the likelihood of them
beading 16 an ouiflow of funds is higher than fifty percent,

and theredons an estimate s made of these logues, Rabobank
Group takes Mo account a number of facton, including but
Femited 10 thie type of claim and the undarlying facts, the
procadural process and history of each case; nulings from legal
and arbitration bodies, Rabobank Groep's expevience and that
of thirnd parties of similar cases (if known), earier settiemant
discusslons, thind-party settlements in smilar cases iwhen
known). avallabde indemnithes and the advice and opinkons for
logal acviiors and other experts
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The estimate potertial losses, and the sxisting provisions,

are based on the currently available informanon zrd are

fiar vhe rraln padt subject o judgements and 4 number af
dilfirent aspumplica, varkabbe and kngwn and unknown
wncertaintien, These uncertainties may include the inacouracy
of |ncompleteness of the mformation avallable o Rabobank
Group [especaly in the early stapes of a case) in addition,
assumpliont made by Rabobank Geoup about the future
tuling s of hegal of cther ingtances of the Dkdly SC0OMS O
attitudias of juparvisary bodies of the parties opposing
Rabobark Group may turn out tobe incosrect. Furthemone,
estrma‘es of patential losses relating to the lagal disputes

ana frequently impossible to process using statlstical ar other
auanlilarive analyss iInstrunsents, that ase frequently used 1o
make Judgements and estimates They ane then wbject o a stll
greater level of uncertainly than mary aothet areas where the
group needd to make [udgements and estimates,

Thee 521 of cases for which Rabobank Growp determines that the
sk of the future outflow of funds 15 higher than fifty peicent
walll change frosm time to fime, &5 will thie cases for which

an estimate can be made and the estimated potential losses
for thes cases. In practice the results schieved can tem oot 1o
bt considarabiy highad or lenwar than the estimated of potential
fosnos in those cases where an estimate of this kind was made:
Ir adrdition, osses may be incumed in cases where Rabobank
Group estimated that the ik of this ocourring was kow,
fabohank Group may settle legal cates of feguratory
precedunes of vwtgatcn befon mesching an Graovocable)
fine or determination of lability, They may co s In ceder 1o
avold costy, management effort 31 this level, or other negathe
Ibusiness consequences andfor regulatory or reputational
consequsnces of continuing with the disputes relating to
Rahility, even if Rabobank Group is of the opinion that it has
aigaiments o defend Raell against such Nabiling. it may slo
i this wihien tha potenitial consequences ol kxing o cawe ane
dispropoftionate 10 the costs of @ settloment, Fsthermane,
Rabobank Group may, for the same reasons, compensate thied
iparties for their losses, even In situations where Rabobank
Group does not befawe that it 15 legally required to doso.

Libsar/Euribar

Fabbank has recenaed o nusnbe OF regquissts in recenl yean
fram reguiatons invatlous couniries 1o ssue documents and
«ather informathon in redation to various bswes. including ssues
related 1o the provisian of statemants for lving down interest
mate benchmarks. Habobank is cooperating, ang wil continue to
wocperate, with the reguiston and authorities involved in these
glanal imsstigations

TS Naotes to the financial starements of Habobank

Om 29 October 2013, Rabobank entered into a settlement
apresment with vatsous authonies in eelation o their
bnvestigatioi into the historical Lisor and Euribor submission
processes of Rabobank, Additianal information (s avallatibe

on the bank’s cosporate website, Al amounts payabile under
this settiement agreement were fully paid and accountec for
by Rabobank in 2013, Addiionally, some of these settemeant
agieements requined Rabobank 1o () improve messunes

of 1 contlne ther imgdernentiation; and (1 Lo cooperale

o continuows basis with angoing investigations inla tha
canduct of Rabobank ano of ity current and tarmes emphoyees
and repeesentatives (including managers and disectors) in
respect of the manipulation, attempts of manipulation or
muiual comdination betveen banks Tod estabishing intesest
rate Benchmarks. Rabobank continued 1o camply with alf ns
obigations. under these settlement agresmenis.

Rabobank, along with a large member of other panel banisy

and Inter-deater brokers, has been mentioned i conrection
with a number of class action suits and individual civil court
cases himught betors the Federal Courts in the Linied States
These procesdings r2late (o the LS Doty (LISO) Libor, Biltish
Pround Sterlng (GEP) Libor, Japanese Yen [PV ] Liboe Tibore (none:
Bababank was nover 3 membor of the THIOR panael) and Euribar.
In 2014, an Argentivan comumer proteciion crgantsation
bimughi an alleged class action sult against Rabobank in
Argentina in selation to USD Libor. Rabobank has abo beon
summaoned 1o appear bafoes several Dutch couns incivil
proceadings mlaing o ELRIBOR Furtnermorne, vatious
ncividuals and entities have made a number of alegations
relating to Euribor in letters to and legal proceedings against
Habobank andior an hish subsidiany.

Ynce tha allaged class action sults and civll proceedings dsted
above, which have besen brought befose the courts in the US of
elsewhere, are intrinsically sublect to urcertainties, |t is dEhoult
1y predict thisr outcomes. Rabobiank takes the stance that it has
substantive and convincing legal and factual defences against
thesa clabms. Rabobank has the intention tocontinee to defend
Itself against these claims

Fortis

Thie Daneh Inwirston Association (VER) has sued 3 summons
against the company foommer by known as Forts MY, (curnently
tiading as Agaas NV, the undarwiters immabed - including
Rabobank - and the former directors of Fonls N, The VER
Srates in Ahis surmmons that investors were midiad by the
prospectus published by Ageas NV in connaction with its nights
bsue in September 2007, The VEB states that the impact and
ks of thi suby prime criva fer Foetls and (0 liquidity position
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wele marepresented In the prospectus and has requested
adeciararony judgement stating that the defendanis actad
Hisgitimately ard must therefoee be held lable fos the ok
allegedly suffemd by Bveitors in Fortis, We maintain the vew
that the aforementioned loss of ELIR 18 billion has not been
propery sabstantiated The pracesdings concern a settlement
of collective loss, which means that the cowrt will only fule an
1he guistion ol wheiher the delendants, including Rabiobank,
are labke. Depending on the oulcome of ihese procesdings,
sl Becorme chear whathir ieparatd lods proceedings ane to
Ibe expected. Rebobank 5 defanding (tsalf agalnst the claim; at
present, hawever Rabobank s unable to assess the oulcome ol

these or any subsequant proceedings.

Interest rate derivatives in the SME segment

Habobark prowicies Intenest rate derivatives for busness
cutomers who wish to reduce the interedt mite sk associated
with variable (eg. indesed Euribor) leans. Such an interest rate
swap probects customers from eising Interest rates and heps.
Ibussinesses 1o keep their interest payments at an accapiable
evel,

oot butimess cuntomers wha have bath a loan and an interest
rale desvative, the bank (relassessed the individual pasition
i 2012 and 2015 1fa closed inteed rale dervathe no longer
suits the customer’s sequitements, the bank and the customer
st out 1o find a solution which 1s acceptable to the customed
Solutions vary from adjusimenis to the transactions o
1ermination o [partial] compensanion. Each of these solutions
5 Rl -macke, which means that all dhit CHcumitances of i cass
ko 1o Rabobank, a well ot kowdedge of the compary!
«corcemed, are considered in the assessment.

In December 3014, Rabobank took note of the conciuion

Iy the AFM that the banks' ievaluations of the intenest rane
disrivativits sie unssltlactony. i has fownd shorscomings during
s own teting of the valuations. Rabobark is cusrently
weorking with the AFM on a suitable solution to the situatian
That has arsen

Furthermare, these are pending comglaints procesdings sgainst
ababark regasding interest rate detivaiives broughs by Kifd
{Duteh Financial Services Complaints Autlsiny, which, in
January 2015, opered an enguiny window for businesses with
intered) rle dedvathe)
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BEASAML

In 2015, Rabobank concluded a wiinen agreement with

thee Federal Reserve Sank of New York and the New York
Depanment of Financial Services Under this agreement.
Rabobank |5 mauined to amongst sthar things, impeowe the
BSASAML [Bank Secrecy Act/Anti-Money Launcedng) framework
fior its Amencan company. by 2013, Rabobank, KA. (RNA),

& group company, almott enlinely owned by Rabobank, agieed
122 Corsent Order with the US Office of the Comprroller of

The Currency conceming Its BSASAML programmie Amedican
authonities ate investigating the BSASAML compliance
programme of ANA s well as the historncal conduct and
prectices iInvolved and have, m this contedt, requesiad
documentation and othes information to be submitted to them.
Bovh Aaboksenk ard RNA are prosiding their full coopsatan 1o
1his Inwestication
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Notes to the statement of financial
position of Rabobank

Unlass atherwise stated, all amouants are inmilons of surcs

1 Cash and balances at central banks

Thils Rem comsists of kegal tender, balances available on demand
wilih foresgn ceniral anks in countries where Rabobank
operatey, as wedl as a balance with De Nedadandsche Bani

{the Duich Central Bank) as requined under (15 minimwm resedve

Ipobicy

2 Short-term government papers

This lem elates to government securities with am orginal
1B G matunty of up 1o Two years that 1he centml Bank in
1he country of argin will redesm at a discount ar accept as
collateral. Thie cost aad market value of shod:term goveinment
jpapers are vifua'ly the sarra

F Sl
Pecogrinaed in the tradeg porfiol L 1
Recogried inihe Feesimeni podioho B 1
Total thert-term govsmeant papsrs 50 a40

3 Loans and advances to banks

Thals fem tepiesents loa and sdvances 10 other banks, olhe
tha i 154 fem ufihmmu-mrlng SEC UL

2215 I
Tetalibnchude:
Loars prd acdvances S0 group compames Tazn 97848
o hich it thnanied .

Tha terma of recervabiles from other hanka ofter Than grosp coempaney s
H Aol

(O el ¢ Lndlated 50648 (R
& Brranihs 0,38 Jroan
w Irwaiihs | pear B34 T30
= 0 i 5 Sy 15504 1BdT
5 Synan (PRI 11587

107,203 134,472

Thee fair walue of coflatedal that Rabobank can sall or pledge
16,720 (207142 20, 784)

ITT Motes 1o e siatement of financia positon of Rabobank

4  loans and advances to customers

This Hem consists of bans and advances arsing in the counse
of business operations, other than recelvablas from banics and
interest-bearing securities.

FLl i
Breanddosn of lean and sdvances io curiomers
Pz peciod lesding ams 1543
Petwite necin linding [RER L] R840
Prodessaonal securities anssctons. e HWaim
Total lending 1%§,133 13721
Toatahy bncliche:
Ol wrdibch 1o GO L TR [ RE i, A0
i moriagr . =
Tiats! hoemas FESIBENTIE MOMGEHES - -
Total lendmg 1 11132
O which recogrsed bs the trading pomfolo. rART 1,767
D which recogriied s th peaicd & T
Lieeiing inchuding loany which ltem part of the
trading snd irvestenant portiolos TETTAD 135,438

Tha terrrsy ol knany sred mhvare ey can be lnghen dooan an sl

D demarsd of undated 0554 26355
& 1 manithd 32308 EFETL]
» Amonths £ 1 year Th0EE LU,
= Uymar 23 yeany LIS 41,198
% yury AN AT
Lemicding inchafing loany which form part of the

trading and irvestment cormobos VIR0 135,438

Thie kani {Fechafing Purae 1o e reverw epc and shane levcling)
o e i P s Aol by thetr coraeniration iy ipecifc bine seoom

P ared dgn 4% o
Trade, indutry and sernon E1 A
Private indhvdah = o

f1 1ot

Thie Eair value of collarral socopted in the form of diebl
secusithes ks 5,656 (2014 5,381}

Reclassified assets

In 2008, basad on the amendmeants 10 1AS 33 and FRS 7,
Reclassification of fnancial assets, Rabobank reclassified

& number of Tinancial aswets beld fof trading and Al leble-for-
sake Noamoial a55e s 1o Loans and advandes 10 custamend’ and
Leans and advances 16 banks’

509/569

Oooooooa



Leriseptd i

abohank has identified assets 1o which this amendment
applies, whereby the intention has clezty shified from
Ihokding the securities foe the near fulue 2t oppoted 1o

eiling o iracing them in the shet term, The ieclassifcations
worne effected as of 1 July 2008 a1 their fa'r value a1 the time
Thils note provides detads on the mpact of the reclassifications
at Rabobank

The tabsle Db shows the cantving armounty and fair values of
Thad rclaiiilicd assets,

i rillin i o werad
Financial svety hedd for tradeg reclesfed to e
ok dor s & P A Y

Taotal frusncial aviets reclaified 1o loses

ifthe naclassification had not been made. net profit for the
assals hald for trading would have been 2 higher (2014: 26
hagherk. The change in the equity position in 2015 would

haye been 43 mare neganive (2014: 6 mae negative] if the
neclamifeation of financial asee1s hold for sake had net been
cartied out

Fodlcwing reclassthcation, the eclassifed fnancial assets macde
thee folicwing contribution to operating profit befoee taoation

Fow- e peiar eraded 11 Devembey
A il
Het EMDETEL RO 3
Lusars impsnnree chasryge . 1
Dperating profit belore tasstion en
redasshed Arsandial assets Beld Tor trading 3 1
et Interest incoeme i1 7
Livai iifajieisiacill (e 2 1
Operating profit befors taxstion sm
reclasnified Bruancisl sssets held for trading " 15N

Cradit loss costs include raversed impasments and recoveries
subsaguent to write-doswns 1o the amount of 3 (2014: 148 and
impaitrments 1o the amount of 1 (2014: 26)
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IV December 2015 3 Deceriber Mp1d

Carrymp amount Favvohat  Compngsmaonl Fawr vlum

LLEY (=0 uy £

T4 &7 L= 1213

=T L5 1538 i.44%

5 Interest-bearing securities

This item represents iniemest-bearning negotiable bonds
and orher inteest-beaing secunities, orher than shor-1am
CENRTRMENT papen.

L] Al
il Beiring iedusties of
P, gtorter FEL FERL]
Dther basers 0.5 8178
Total intevest-bearing necurities. S ATE B, 508
e 0F inere e aring wecin e
el i S2ATE BLT7E
inreestmeni portiolio conisning vl
wdjusimeenis shiough the profr sed loas
[T g Bis rata
Tradirg porifole TE Lisa
B ATE 0406
Tha portdadia aluo rcludes
Secuithes lsveed by geoup companies 51205 52157
Listedd portion of the porifalia pLE Rl
I qrew comp 57,084 SBT53
Total interest-bearing decurities BAATE a9,808

510/569

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000000000000000dn(Ees923)

OoOooogooo
Lty epnace e 4wl L pte ey I sepcielitm S e e i = 1] iy Flle 1
& Shares 8  Otherequity investments
This nem cendiis of shared and othes noa-Interest-beating This item inclsdes participaling nteneas in associates, in
securities, Inchuding temparary olher irvestments, particular Achmeas BY,
2005 2004 2018 014
This bk dewn a Fofiows: Fraulty mepstmeriy o
Ieveesimeni portioda L1F) w50 Ereit mbasons i 3]
Ieverairme i pordolio o lur vahes thicugh s 1575 2555
it o ks s 3 Total ather sqaity Invrments 1872 1,840
Traring pewrifrdas 158 m
™ 955 Chamgos irt exjusty invedime
Carrying smount on 1 Jsnusry 2040 S |
Livied postion ol the poriiclia d o Aenuhitions dusieg the Brancisl yesr 2 6
hices ifuned getion of the ponfoli T a4 Diipcocats charing S fnanctal ya ;
™ 0 Pk 1A 1
Hevaluniion i1 m
g . Dvtddered ] wa
7 Participating interests : o i i
in group companies
This tem nchides the interests hald directyin 9  Goodwill and other intangible assets

QOUp COMpanies.
This fem incledes saftwae.

o Mld
Ecuity investmenss i 2005 004
Cindt ilitoni 7028 500 Coadwll 3 :
tHher 10401 T8 Saftwary a7 1
Tosl squity in group ; WSS ALATE o) goodwill and ather intanglble
e A5 44%
Changes n sruty Inemsmant
Camrping arvoum on | lenusry 13275 FEWY
Capital i siona during the financlal year 5,364 L] mhm-ﬂm&-wnu
s, clupriyn ancd Brpsidatineny, dunneg the oo Loftware Toral
Femsmicisl year [{ Ry nAam Camying oal aay 3
Aerui hising the & pe— 1 Ak 418
Divicierd (1] (F] ks e W1 il
Revabariioan [1E11 130 IS Qe e F H =
Carrying amount on 11 December LER ] 11,378 hapzraly dorng the Snarcisl pree (230 |23}
Depreciation [LEL] a4
gl hssen . . -
Exchange differreces ared ather - 1] (1]
Carrying amount on 19 December £l awy 469
Accurrulited degrediataon and
DT s L . L1-11 101%

Chaniges in gocdwill and ather intangible st 2014

Safrure Tocal
Carryiveg amasun an | lanisey & an
Arrusitiam diring the braned e m ]
[raporals dharng the Snancial pes o group
CEETRDAE] [y 54
Depraistion f{F.-] 124
et sy - -
Exchange SMerenoes sl other 15 5
Carrying amount on 11 December 441 a43
Accumiilansd depeeciation and Impalement sl 4 g

a7a Worss 1o the siaement of Hnancial positon of Rabobank
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10 Tangible fixed assets

Leriseptd i

This nem cendiis of lend and bulldingd, equipment and othe

fangib non-current assets, as well a4 tangible fixed assets

it i o use, such 3% non-turrent assels atquined under

foraclcsre,
s A4
‘L and bagiding v i oven U 720 TG
Equipment s 122
Total tangisle fied anety BEE LE1]
Changes in tangible fired aszets 2015
tandand
gt in
ownuse  bgepmenn Tonal
Carrping amgurd en § linuary T LFr i
Acqpaution: dunng the fnangial pes a6 0w 755
Desprisialt hising the Badarial ye ol L] 571
Derpeed alion 431 [ESH] L]
I et s Las. - - g
Emchuinge o flereres sl oabser 1 {3 i
Carying amount on 31 Decomber 30 n 918
Accumalsied depeeciaten ard
g penl Ly 543 208 B0
Changes i tangible fred assets 2014
tandand
Endingrin
owniuse  Eeipetamr Tiotud
Camying arreunt cn | lanuary FET] 134 (e
hegy huring the f il in n L]
Despoiahi dusing the Rnstial yeal [E]] = (E]]
Deques atinn 4 EH] L]
Imparrent bosses. - - -
Exchange o Hetenes aead other oy 5 151
Carrying amount on 31 Becember e 132 a3
Awtierilato deperlation and
mparmen lovees. 0 nr LLL]

2ED fabobank Adresl Repomn 3015
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11 Other assets

Thits item rélates bo precious metals, cenficates regeesenting
precious metahs, coins and medaly made of prechous metals [nol
Eaing legal tender), goods and warehouse recespty, curment and
difarred tax assets and assets that cannot bea classfied undar
any other heading.

2018 2014
This Brrmran be brokeen drsm as iniloss
Do i aridets LB45 20310
Employes benefils. ! L]
Other 287 3558
Orhir asssts &7 5,581

Fiscal unit for corporate tax purposes

Foar ¢ o pordte tand purposes Habobank fooms a fecal wndt
with a nmber of domestic subsidiares ardd member banks
Under the fiscal unil, each participating legal entity ks [ointly
and severally liable for the fiscal unit’s corporate fax Rabilities

12 Derivatives

The noted 10 the derivatives ane included below

Mrs Myld
Ansrty
This mermcan be broken down as fofloen:
Denwative contradts with thisd partes A51TF 52813
[ with grows rampans 14083 P
Total derivasives e TN
Lisbiliticn
This merm can be broken down as folow
Diifwailive COMPBOLE with Thind paries 54401 0
Terivative rrmracts wilh grog ramy RAT ML
Totsl derivaihnes #1434 Th1BE
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The fabile balow shows the nodlonal amounts and the posithe
and negative falr values of Rabobanks dervative contracts with
1hiid partbes.

L

TSI Fot ko
Bignoeon 11 Devemder 013 Asietr b imes
Dieri vt =l Ton g
IntErTil fabe SSAlr Bl AT, B6E B45TH 33,557
o ERIEE ] HATE 15,547
Lisesd Lo AL L] -
Currenay comtracts 294,381 5005 T.a00
ofc IBHELE 57 7.5
Litted 1,585 3] [ F]
Crede derraiives 3340 I 15
Crtier comvirasiy 5,631 1 Al
o i, 15 515 a7
Liaed 1,139 25 47
st rves meedd wn Pesiiges
Dirivirtrews euigraited s P valow
hedgey 133,768 a7 2oz
Fderesi rate coniracts AT.E8T LR 11181
Curmency tontiscty [ ] -] 41
Dot wart reet deiagrantend ad canids fowy
hidgpen 04,957 AW 1,848
Cumency cong st 18857 i 1640
Tortal dherivabiwe Araincisl comtracts
wwrith third partien 934,545 45T 54,491

Motipmal

AL Fuir vishies
Batorse an } Dedomber 2014 Aneh bkt
D iwatroes esled for Sracing
ITREF AT P OO LT SO FAFLR L A0, 185 Lk
orc LETRSGT 0384 4051
Lismed S0E1R L] h |
Currency contracts 344, 5318 & a3
o L E T EA LT L]
Laed 1572 I El
Credit devsvatives Soa N i9
Orthver comiracts 11,278 L Bas
o LAk i To%
Lbaed 3 LI E 138
Dprivartrens ~ekd a0 Festiges
Dzt wart iy dhessgratnd ad fer sabue
(T 138,545 a.53F 14,485
Inserest rabe contracty 4,05 1571 14,419
CLimanry COnRms W7E 1558 50
Dierivarrew dessgranmed 31 ca fioey
(LT 0
Curmency soriacty I9E00 n& pECE]
Tatal derivachos imancial ceriracts
with thiid paniei FX_ L% k) LFELLY ]

2B Worss 1o the siaement of Hnancial positon of Rabobank
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Breakdown of truding and investnrent portfolios

SO0} fTld
Traderey portfole including group corpaniey
Sha AT gUver et fa pers ] 128
Loars and sdvanor fo customen 1407 1,7EF
marres bearing seosties LY 25
Sk 158 L]
4447 4518
P T e indn
SR AT QO AL B Py 41 BIS
raeresl-braring weoarkeny ALATE LT
Yhares L1F L]
Lisard v sdvanied 10 cuslomers [ r

B4, 137 a5,247

wsfiadend T e e ool iod o gioun

Camaanin ALIng A
[ Tp——— oo

Balance on 1 lafuany ni a4 S0
Fonege e hunge difeences 163 L)
Acoisrions dising the fesncul yar rm 5252
Pinperh. choring the Snang il peae LR [R5, 2]
Far walue changes 188 Lol
o o | and

s thee boak pear 1 =
Dther % L]
Balarde & 1) Dedambies 84337 &5.247

The e of secusies included is the ivvesimen pociolio other then group
Cimzsanied ey da Folwe:

O theprriisd 0 unclabad (0] [ZF]
& | manths i 1678
= 3 maonihs = 1 pear 1108 1958
> |y § yrany (LAF] tham
= % yars B A a5 140

B4, 357 &5,247

wrrestmien pitdolio conisining veiue sdfustmenis shrough the proft snd los
BEEORNE i erling PO COMEanES

rasmes!-branng sroanksn [1H] PR
Shares ] "
BEY 511

13 Prepayments and accrued income

Thils ke mralnly relatas to accrued Interest
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14 Dueto banks

This REm sepiesents amaunts owed 10 credil ingitution, other
than el securities and subordinated debe, of which,

Tintwh et iiehe M5 M4
G grpanint 6080 24472
her eopaity iveesimendy 148 w2

Tha perrmy ol gty cwed B2 ther Bank ctter tian groug companin e
an foliowy

Do he e o Linelabed 0954 19,246
% Imonthy LT Tk
= Erronths £ 1 yesr 1005 1013
» e 5 S peany B35 5,935
2 By anis 451

A 043 14,508

15 Due to customers

This fem consists of amounts due to customers other than debt
seculities, Due 10 customers also incluges the investments af
contral banks armounting to ELR 23 tilon (3014: EUR 20 billlan)

Totads ol e F. 14 Fo L]
e T 188 B
Chver wgatty vepslmasiy 1078 (1L ]

Savings compaise all depodits and savings accounms of natuwl
perions, ion-peolll making assoclations and foundations, a3
werll ag nonefransferable savings bongs,

Thee terms of amounts due ta customers sther than to group
companias ae ay follows:

FelE] b

Oy chermaneed o undaned 1085 18532
= 3 wanthi AXAHTT A3 a0
& Drronthe € 1 pest EAL fpd7
= Vyear £ Sipears 1335 2333
o Syeany 12358 18583
115,897 08958
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16 Debtsecurities

Thits item rédates to poh-subordinated bonds and ather intesest-

bearing securitled, such as certificates of deposin.

IS Arld

Tradeabily dbt socutities 100042 124918
Dither deit secentiey B3 ST
Vb, 50 1EL12E

Thae tamrrms oof el il ibes othem Ehar ol gros compuanies Lin be broken
deraes il Aothorari.

O dherriend £ unclsted 153 P
£ Imontha ATy AT
3 mniths £ 1 e 4831 poi ]
=1 ypur 5 3 ywary ELE ] AT a4
=5 yewrs Jnme 137

166,501 181128

17 Other llabilities

This ltem includes llabibties that cannot be classifed under

any ciher biading, such as shad positions lor wecurities and
labilites associated with securitised ieceidables. Onher liabiiities
alsa includes liabikties for stalf coss, taces and nationa
insurance contributions. At year-end 2015, approskmately

EUR 55 bl lson in local Rsbobank morigages were securitisad,

2015 ol
Thus mermican be broken down o fndoss
Lia bl A% sl atod with el sedetwalied 54817 212
Cusre fax Rakbtie % n
Oither kabsbties 208 3483
Tetal athes delst 1920 LA FE
18 Provisions

25 ol
trtimrmed aliraanory m 240
Prirvisom fof defeed Lan habdlities. " -
Oither provisions s w5
Total provisions. 499 543

Pension provision

Thie provision for pensions and other allowanices following
termination of employment consists of 2 provision for pensians
26 (21004 23) and othes employes benefits 197 [2014: 217

Fai Aabobank Gioup, the net Lability for penyans is

1H0HE2014; | 1), For Rabobank, thiy armounts 9 21 (2014 18)
(e, the balance of the pention pravision and the pention cliim
cf 5 [20014: 5)
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Cther provisions

Cithet provissons CONCENN A FeSTIUCTURING proviskon, 3 provsion
for ¢ redit guaraniess related 1o koam, provisions for ather rlsks
aned guaranbess and 4 peovisicn S cngoing kegal claims,

R A4
Changm m ot frowiians
Balance on 1 Lnuary i <] L7 ]
Adddinions chasged 1o profit 131 &5
Wintdrawal) and rebeanm. |1e) Fl]
Drher changes 4 f1m
Balasseie et 31 Deiarnled e 305

19 Subordinated Habilities

Thils mxprosants thee lnars felating to the e of Trist Prodered

Securities and subardinated kaam
2015 2004
Loana related to the saue of Trut
Peefermed Securites BL V. snd vl 1853 108
Susbonfinuted kans 15479 11,50
Halsnce on 31 Decernbir RS L] 15580

Ir 2015, Habobank (ssued four subordirated bonds in AU and

U0 The ALRD 225 milllion bond mabwes in kiy 2025 and has

A coupon rate of 5.00% The ALD 475 million bond matwes in
July 3025 and has a variable coupon rate. Babobank is entitled,
but non obliged, to eardy repayment of these AUD bond loans

aft 2 July 2020, The USD 1500 milkon Bond matuses in August
2025 and hat a coupon rate of 4 375%. The USD 1,250 mallon
lbona matares in August 2045 and has a coupon e of 5.25%.
I 2014, Hababank issued thiee tubamdnated bonds m GHE
urod and B, The ELR 2 billlion band ratures in May 2026
andd has & coupon rate of 250%, Rabobank is entiled, but neot

abliged, to easly repaymant af thiy bond lean in 2015 The GBR
| billan band matures in May 2029 and has a coupon rate of

A625%. The JPY 508 biltion bond matures in December 2024
and has 3 coupan rate of 1.42%%

abobank issued thees subod inated loans in 2013:

A EUR 1,000 million koan with a foed invierest rie ol 3875%
A 3 mabarity date i 2003; 3 USD 1750 mileon koan with

a fored Inderett rabe of 4625% and a maturity date in 2023
ansd a LS 1,250 million nan with a fued interest rate of 5 75%
and a maturity date in 2043

I 2012, Habobank izsued thiee subominated loans

a EUR 1,000 million koan with a fixed interest rate of 4.125%
amnd 4 matuiity date m 2022 & GOP 500 milion loan with

A Thotd imterest rabe of 5.25% and 3 matunity date in 2027

and a USD 1,500 million laan with a foed interest rate of
3.95% ard a maturity date in 2022 In 2010, Rabobank ssued

B3 Motes 1o ihe siatement of financia positon of Rabobank
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a EUR 1,000 millian loan with a fixed intenest ale of 3.75%
and a mauriny date in 20200 in 2009, Rabobank issued

& EUR 1,000 millian loan with o fixed memwst e of 5875%
avd & rmatufity date in 2015,

20 Equity
ME Ml
This e can be broken down as oo
Capital B0 w0
Prermium 800 402
Rabohank Centficaten SHE 580
Capital Sewut ties A1 6,530
Avabuntion rrurney T A
Skatutory reserve L “a
Dthet ieisreni [EE ] L2351
ity frur prerviinans Femancial year B 1482
Total equity 18815 TROOT
Capital

This section mclisdes the fully itsued ane paid-up shae capstal
All shares have been ssued to local Rabobanks, Asal | January
2016, as o consequonce of the lega meger betweon Rabobank
and the local Rabobanks, the shiees became void - sée Events
aftar the reparting period.

Capital

nma&u .ﬂ‘li h‘.l‘]ll.

Changes dering the pras

Dperrivag Lualance 00 a0
Frem Capitsl taPeemium 15.401)
Clasing balance ] &00

Premium

i mellians of Furos JO0F i
ChaniE ity the s

Dperiing halance 5407 =
From Capitil o Premium o 5403
Clasing balanos 407 5,800

Ratabank Certificates

En thee pariod J000- 2005, Rabohank issued member cartifcates
a5 part of Its member loyalty programme. Thenes wene foue
Esiee {in 2000, 2301, 2002 and 2005) under which mamber
certificates wene only made available to membess of local
Rabobanks and were traded once & manth an an intemal
marker. On 14 Jpnuary 2014, the cerphicate hokler mestng
approved the proposed change in order la facilitate a Eumonext
Amsterdam isting. The Rabobank Certificates have been listed
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an Euronext Amsterdam since 27 lanuary 2014 Since the siock
axchange listing, Rabobank Cartificaras are also avatlable 1o
on-Rabobank memben. This has increased the matketabiiy of
1hit Insriment,

Fabobark Cerificatos sepresent private participation rights
issued by Rabobani via the foundation Stichting Administratie
Kanioor Rabooank Certifcaten and belong 1o the Common
Eaguity Tier 1 exquity of Rababank.

Thee initial shave price on 27 lanuary 2014 amaunted 1o 105.00%
{EUR 26,25k On 3| December 2015, the shan price amountid
to 111.46% (EUR 2787 Of the fotal 237, 561,365 certificates,

an aveage of 4.3 millon were traded every day on Euronest
Ams terdam during this panod.

Thee distribution pald per certificate in 2015 was EUR 1535
{200a; EUR 1,675), Thee Executive Board s enitked not 1o pay 1he
dlintribution. Lnpaid distribiutions will net e paid 31 8 lates date,
Thae amounts Tsted 0 the tabie below are based an the nominal
value of EUR 25 per Rabobank Certificate.

: T
e rvilicens of wwran M ol
Changey dorang chie ear

Cippemiing bslance 5531 EBXY
Rabohank Cartsfe st i curmg e year L] 10a
Clasing balance bA =5
Caphal Securities

All Capital Sacurifies are perpetual and kave no expley date.
The distriburtion an Capital Securities per issue 5 as Tollows:

Isswe of EUR 1,500 million

The distribution is 5.5% per year and s made payable every six
mionths i anears as of the issue date (12 January JOIS) for the
first tirme on 26 Jung 2015 The Capital Securities e perpetual
and firsl fedvemabe on 29 Juiw 2020,

Caplital Securitles ate mecogniued a3 equity, 25 them i no faemal
abligation 1o repay the principal or to pay the periodic dividend,
These Capital Securities comply with tha current rules, the
so-calied CRONY and CRA requirements, conceming additional
tiar 1 capital, The conditions include the requirement that the
SeCulies MU not pay starer inferest and mast absonb losses
i 3 cortain wigger is seachad, In that case, the rlevant armawnt
will b debited from the peincipal. The debiting will occer

an 3 pm rata bashs with athar additional tier | instrumenty

Thils instrement has two triggers: One at Rabobank Group level
and the other at the level of Rabobank with the kocal Fabobanks
{Local Rabobank Grouap), For Rabobank Goup, the trgger is at
A Comiman equity et | ralke of T3, and fof the Local Rabobank
Group ot 5.125% respectivehy; this senes of Capital Securitie
abiorbs iosset from that point orwards As of 29 July 2020,
and suogect o Capital Securites not being redeemed earky,
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the distribution is sat for a further five-yaar period, but withcut
a sep-up, based an the 5-year eun swap rae + 5.25%,

Issue of USD 2,000 million

The distribution is 8.40% per year 3nd 15 made payable every Si
months in amears a5 of tha ssue date (9 kovember 2001) for
1l fivst time on 29 Decernber 2011. The Capital Securitles are
perpeiual and first redeemablie on 29 June 2017, i the Capaal
Secuities sia ol redeemed early, the distribation i3 set for

a Turther five-ear pariod, But withoul a slép-up, based on the
U5 Treasury Benchmark Hate plus 3 74%% mark-up,

Issue of USD 2,000 million

The distribution is 8.375% per year and & made payable every
A rrsonith inaeeeas as of the s date (6 January 2017, o
e st time on 26 Juby 2001 Asof 26 July 2006, and subject 1o
Capital Securities not being redeemaed early, the distribution i3
set for a further five-year period, but without a step-up. based
o tha LIS Treaswry Benchmark Rate phis a 6AZ5% mark-up

Issue of EUR 500 million

Thie distribution i 9.34% par yeat and ivmadie payable annually
in artears a4 of the istue date (37 February 2009), for the

first tirme on 27 Fabruary 20100 As of 27 Rebeuary 2010, the
distribution vwill be made payable every quarter based on the
theea-mionth Euribon plus an anmesl 7 50% mark-up,

Issue of USD 2,868 million

Th distributian i 11,00 per yeat ahd 15 made payable eveey
i manths In aroaes as ol 10 lswe date (4 June J0049), for he
first time on 31 December 2004 (long first inenest parkod),

As of 30 June 119, the distrebutson will b2 made payable every
cpuarter based an the three-month USD Liboe plus an annual
0BG mik-up,

Iigune of CHF 750 maillien

The distribution is 6.375% per year and s made payable
annually In arrears as of the issue date (14 July 2009, lor the first
time on 12 Nevember 2000 (thoet first Interest period), As of

12 Nevarnben 014, the distribution will be made payable every
s rsanih based an the sx-manth CHF Libor plut an annual
A565% mark-up The s was redeemed on the earliest
recemption date of 12 November 2014

Isswe of GBP 250 million

The distribution i 6.567% per year and & made payable every
Al mmanths i arreas as ol 1he B date (10 June 2008), far
the first time on 10 Decernber 2008, As of 10 June 2038 the
cigtribution will be made payable every s months based on
the semionth GEP Libor plus an annual 2 825% mark-up.

516/569



Isswe of CHF 350 million

Thee dintriburion is 5.50% per year and Is made pavabe annually
i arears &5 of the Isue date (27 June J008), for the first time an
27 Jung 2009, As of 27 June 2018, the distribwion will be made
payable every six months on 27 June and 7 Decermiber based
«an tha see-manth CHF Libor plus an annual 280% mark-up,

Isswe of ILS 323 million

Thet dimtribution it £.15% per year and b made payalye annually
i ariedrs &5 of the isue dane {14 July 2008), Tor The first Time on
14 Juby 2005, As of 14 Juty 3018, the distribution will be made
payable annually based on an Index related 1o the Interest rmte
jpald on isael govemment bonds with terms belween 45 and
5.5 years plus a0 annual 200 mark-up

Isswe of LS 225 milllan

Thee dintribution s 7.375% per yoar and s made payable every
sl manths In arrears from the Issue diate (24 September 2008),
for tha first tima on 24 Mach 2009 The lssse was redeamead on
the eailiest redemption date of 24 Mach 2014

Issune of NZD 900 miliian

Thee dlistribution an the NZD Capital Securitbes equals the
ane<year swap infeeest rate plus an anmual 078% markeup and
ks made payable annually on 8 October, until B October 2017,
Asof BOctobes 2017, the distribution will be made payabe
avery quarter hased on the 90-day bank bill swap intasest rate
s an equivabeng mask-up,

Isswe of NZD 280 mililon

Rabobank Capstal Securities Limited has bsued capial
sacuities, the destribution of which equals the five-year swap
interest rate plus an annual 3.75% mark-wp and was set at
B.TBEAY s ansiurn o6 35 May 2009, As of the bsue date

{37 Mary 2009}, the distribution iy made payatsle euoey quartar
i armears, for the first time gn 18 June 2008 (short first intenest
paricd) As of 18 June 2014, the distribution wall be made
payable every quaner based on the five-year swap Interest plus
an annual 3 75% rmark-up. As of 16 June 2019, the disrlibution
will be made payable every quarier based on the 90-day bank
ol sweaps Evtonest rate plus an annual 3.75% mark-up

The lpve! of proshit made by Rsbohank may inflyence the
distribution on the Capital Securities. Should Rabobank becoma
insolvent, the Capital Securities are subordinate to the fights of al
ather (cwnent and futuné) creditors of Rabobank, unless the rights
of thode ather crediton are substantively determined olhenadse
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WovEmanTs mee an lnbows:

Bualaiv e o 1 lariiary ASNY T304
Tavky repaymeent of Cazilal Seurtars . 1848
ngupnae of Capaal beourites 1500

Costs of mtoe of Capital Secusities 2 .
Tither 118} 4]
Balgroe on 31 Depsenher B o0 &530
Revaluation reserves

This Mem repiesents the dififrences botween the codt and
carrying amount of revalued assats, net of the related provision
for deferred tax kabilities.

s Jaid
The revabuation reve il Latizer ot e can b specified aa follows:
Cah Mo Pestiges 9 n
armril-Beaning sty a4 e
[guity mvevimencs i ]
Shanes e nasnrberes-bearig sea ides 615 [
Tatsl revalustion mssrves 2 ne4
Wl reyh mesr i folows:
Rulance on 1 lanuary 0ed TER
Ewchange nbe diffesences i 151
Aevabuationd w7 1143
[thser (] []]
Transderres 1o profii or kas. [Fer] LFEY]
Balarse on 31 December FLH] ELT]

Rabobank's cash flow hedges consist mainly of cross-cunency
EEEAT 3T Swapd whilch Serve Do pIotect Aqaindt 8 potential
charpi in cash fows fiom Nnancial assets In faeign curencles
with foating interest rates.

Rabobank tedts the hadge effectiveness on the basls of
statistecal regressive analysis models, both prospectively and
retrospectively. At year-end 2015, the hedge elations wene
wery elfec i within tw sange set by 1AS 39, On 31 Decenber
2015, the i Fale vatue of The crois Cuntency INTeoest £1e swaps,
clasiified o3 cash Noww hedges was <707 (2014, -2,6600,

In 2015, Rabobank accounted for an amount of 659 (2014 543)
after taxation in equity as eflectve changes in the fair value

of dervatives In cash Mow hedges bn 2015, 2n ameount of

-0 (01 & -586) afier Tanabion of cash Mow hedoe reseres wal
toclassified 1o the profit and less account, On 31 Decombar
2015, the cavh Now hedge reserves as patt of equity totalled
<36 {2004: 1palter tazation, This smoent fluciuates alpng

with the falr walue of the denvatives in the cash flow hedges
and s accountad for in profit over the term of the hedged
pasitions as rading profit. The cash flow hedge reserve relates
10 & large number of derivatives and hedged podtions with
chffienent sesrmg, This maxdemiam e 15 26 yiars, with the Lingest
condanirations exceeding fve years. The IFRS ineffectiveness fod
the year ended 31 December 2015 was 181 (2004 185]
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Statutory reserves

Thils concerns tie reserve for retained eamings of associates
and tramslation diffeences. A statutory ressrve has Deen
incheded for soltware dewsloped in-house, The comiparative
dita hawe been adjusted,

2018 Fr
The statuinn wrienes can b g o o iliows:
Retained profits of axpociates. 244 ]
Saftwar tirerloped im ko i Bl
Trandation dffemace. (e 1] Ll
Total sther reserees (1] A3
5 aola
MWicrrrmendy wrey @ [ofown:
Balance om 1 laniiary LX) (5 4]
Frziren, ¥ roncrery 160 14
Exchuangs rate d fevencey m L1
Balsare on 31 Decenier s 461
Cither reserves
F.-1E Faia
The 12ina e reseree Lan be specdied as fufows:
R kb ation of penidicnd © [ 1985
Rrtaingd camings FE ] JETEL]
Total other swesrewe 1,478) 12,235
ol Fro Lt
Wisements i the Becaliteation of pensons:
Balsnce on | lsnuary V5] rxsn
Rercableation o gk i 25
From Pecsliprsnon of pensons
i REtsined carnings L] bl
Halsmce on 31 Decernier 1175) 11ea;
FlH] Foo b
Wippmenns = frrained ramnesgn
Balanice of 1 laruary CLOF &38
Frofit far prevous financial year 1.8 L1m
Third pasrry fees TL1E K
DCivicdercti. 1o afln o banks 5] [2ha
Frem ather iriervps Lo L lubary PeserreL 8L ] e
t ElEvEs [OFE " “
Reparpmenty of Capial Serunnies - 11871
From Becaliontion of pensons
1o Rt abned darrings . 13080
Crthar changm ] 1
Malusnce aon N1 Decomnbier 10| (RE L]

1 Creaned o stcoedsrce with BAS 19522

/5 Rabobank Annwsl Repon 2015

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000000000000000dn(Ees923)
Oooooooa

The reserves can not be distributed among members

The consolidated financial stmements of Fabobank include the
financia information of Rabobank and that of the Membern and
cther group companies.

The net profit for Rabobank Group was 2214 (201 4; | 8421 the
nat profit of Rabobank was 808 (X014 1,306), The difference of
1,286 represants the profits of local Rabobanks, which were not
recognised In the single financial statements and under non-
cantralling inléeny

The fable balow shows reconcifation between the aquity
cf Rabobank and that of Rabobank Group:

HRE M
ity of Pabobank scoonding o Pait 3 of ook 2
ol thes Dhuatich vl Code TREIE  RRDOT
Capital puid by loeal Rabsbard wom  jsoe
Fremlim SADT (R8N
W ornpnera of Pat equty of Fasobund Gioup:
Trund Peefmined Securities @ bWl Lim 1,048
A cormponend of ter equity of Pakbank Geoup:
Crihvif ey -C DT Odn ItereiLs 459F LTE]
Equity o kel Rabobianks acconding o Pact fof Book &
ol thee Dusch Civil Cosde oA LM
Conueledaii and roonding e, . 1
Tetal group ecuaity under IFRS, a1 tedd
in Rababank Group & ial 41,780 14,871

Management and agency services

Management and agency sendices provided to third parties

are an aiute 1o all Rabobanks activities. Nababank alw
sdminiSiErs risets in U5 own name, bul 1o the sC0ount and rise
of third parties, which are saparte from iy own asiets
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Other notes to the financial
statements of Rabobank

Re g F TR T
JI ufﬂl‘ofj’ kv;ﬂ" Aunrtrract heehy avalabie Brelaind i ippa of lntslies

L and adeances 1o banki  Desrvateer 518 7.0
Thar ieguilatary levies contist of bank tax and levy, contributicns Loars and abvance o .

CUFIEHT=ET [DRaF T o] 8,758 4333
o tha national resolution fund and the resclution vy, Sk : o R
{Banks operating in the Netherlands on | October of the year Total Y3985 12,080

under review are required to pay bank tax There are two rates
f bank tae A ate of C04% for cunent labilives and a rats
ol 0022% for long-1erm fabilites, based on the balance an

December 2014, In 2015, Rabobark was changed a 161al of 23 Contingent liabilities
168 in bank e (2014 167} In 2015, the bank levy in (reland
amaournited 1o 4. In X315, the contrib.tion ta the National This item relates to transactions In which Rabobank stands
Resctution Fund amounted to 172 (2014: 01, surety for obligations of thid parties
2005 FNTH
22 Professional securities transactions Co R ——
Goatanteri THE 12,308
and assets not freely available Loty o e ar4 5188
Dither ] -
Preafessinnal sacurities transac bony In whach Rabohank Tetal costingent laksletirs a0 17487
lent securities. Of which
Corvtinggeni Dabsi ke of group compsnkes. AT A B
Felb] At
R Liability undertzakings
Loani and afance 1o ek BrH Fre ;
L el 3 P e yogre  Fursuant 1o Section 403 of Boak 2 of the Disch Civil Cade,

Total w02 43,960 Rababank has assumed liabllity for the debts adsing fiom the
legal transactions of the following Group companies:

Prifessional securilkes tansactions in which Rabobank BY Bewaarbedrijf Schreflen & Co MY
Ront secutities. = Bodemgoned BV
De Lage Landen Amarica Haldings BV

2005 Iad = De Lage Landen Corpoeate Finance BV
E—:::ﬂ - e = D Lage Landen Facliities BV,
= S . = + De Lage Landen Ninancial Sendcas By
Tatal 567 ar1 = Delage Landen Financienng BY,

Dis Lage Landen Ininational BY,

D Lage Landen Tradie Finance By
De Lage Landen LS Pasticipations BY,
De Lage Landen Vendorleass BAL

Ther assets dedemed o in the table below (with exception
1o professional securities transactions) wera prosided to

COouMBrparties as sacurity for fcontingent) Babilities. I Rabobank - FGH Bank NV
remains in default the courterpanies may e the secwity o « Friesland Zekerheden Naatschapp Holding NV
Al Ehe debin, « Fri=sland Jeberheden NMaatschappi NV

= N Handamanteshappi] ‘Hot Zuiden’
= RaboGroen Bank BY,
« Rabo Herverzekanrgsmaatschappll NV

E7 [Hher nates o the inancial statements of Rahohank
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+ Rabo Marchant Bank M.

+ Rabo Mobssl BV

= Fabobaak Wnternational Holding BV,

« Rabobank Nedetland Participatie Maatschagpij BY
= Rabohypatheekbank Ny,

=+ Rl Acquisition Finance Grootbedsdjf BV

Fl Corporate Finance BV,

« Seheetlen B Ca NV

*

AL the reqleest of the negulator, Rabobank has guaranteed the
obligations of Rabobank Curagan MV Liguidiy guarantees were
msued by Rabooank for Rabo Green Bank BY. and Rabobank
Ireland plc.

B e prarst, Rabsobank has guaranesed thie Sebilities of & namber
o groln companies Even though thise giaarantee R
come 1 an end, Rababank remains liable for the fulfiment of
abligations entered inta by the group companies duting the
term of the guaraniess.

I conpeciion with the Trust Prefered Securities, Rabobank
uarartees pach of the Tt condorned, on o subordinated
i, that the payments from the LLC 10 the Trusts will be mide
and = in the eyent that the LLC goss o lguidation - that the
ILLE Class B Prefered Securities will be repaid and the associated
payments on thi Trust Prefermed Securities will be made (the
Tuaraniees) Under the so-called Contingant Guarantes,
tabobank guaranteas the LLC that it will pay the amouns owed
under the Guarantess, IF these amourts have been dee and
wsnipad for mere than 180 days.

Internal liability (cross-guarantes system)

Ir accordance with the Dutch Financlal Supervision Act {Wet
i Dot Mot lens] Ao dc Y, wat i bedpal Ertitkes Ledonging

10 Rababank Gioup am internally Bable under an intra-

group mubual keap well system, Under this system the
jparticipating entities are bound, in the event of a lack of funds
«of & participating entity 1o satlsfy its cred 1ors, to provide the
funds necessary 1o allow the defickent participant to satisly

s credions

Asgn 31 December 2015, the parlicipants ae:

+ Tha lgeal Rabohanks, mamban of Codperateve Centrle
Ralffeisen:Boesendeenbank BA.

+ Cooperateve Centrale Ralffesen-3oerenkeanbank BA
Amsterdam

= Rabohypatheskbank NV, Amsterdam

= Falffesenhypotheskank MY, Amsieam

«+ Schietien & Co NV, Amstandam

88 Rabobank Aanwsl Bepon 2015
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+ De Lage Landen International BV, Eindhoven

« De Lage Landen Rnancienng BY, Einghoven

« De Lage Landen Trade Finance BV Einchowen

= De Lage Landen Rinanclal Servces BY, Eindhoven

Om 1 January 2016, the koecal Rabobanks and the Codperateve
Centrale Raiffelsern-Boerenkeenbank BA entaned into

& legal menger. Furthedmore, on 1 Lrwary 2016 the name

of the Cotperatieve Cantrale Railfelen-lcemnieenbank

B.A was changed into Codperatievs Ribabank UA

Ko Information on this matter i Inclheded in the Saction
Events after the repodting period’

Fiscal unit for corporate tax purposes

Foo corporates tax purposes Babolank foerma & fecal unit
with a ngmiber of domestic subsidlanes and mamber bBankt
Under the fscal wnit, sach participating logal entity b jointly
and severally liable for the fiscal unit’s corporate tax Eabilities

24 [rrevocable facilities

This item relates bo all irmevocalile facilitied that could lead

1o lending
Mot agld
e oreckt {sckses AL e
Dihar M3 ELCY
Total irrewaeable cammibrmnts Fiert] 4,155
[ which groap romparies T2A%1 0.
25 Employees

Thits avesrage nuwimbeei Of infemal and exlermal employes wis
15758 (2014: 15,559}, of which 3,155 outside the Methedandy
{3014; 3068}, Expiessed i FTES. the average number of internal
and sxternal employess was 15,224 (3014 15,207).

M5 004
Wageransd valaces L1k 1,108
Soxinl senusny ) L)
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26 Main subsidiaries

All subsicliaries lsted (0 the table are consolidated. In 2015,
i o Wl i bdlariees enpedlenced amy Sgnifcant pesinicticng
in tha payment of dividends. or the redernption of loans and
repayment of advances The option of subsidiaries 1o pay
diadend 1o Ratobank depends on vanows factors. including
local regulstony sequirements, Watutory resemnves and financlal
petlormance
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27  Costs of external auditor

oy ol of s ME aH
Financial st sl 7 -]
Dithes sl engagerrants i i
Dther nom-auds wrvion N =
Tetal a8 T

I tha year undif mevigw, the audin farn Ernst & Young
Accauntants LLP in the Netherlands imoed the abowe

O 11 December 2215 Show  Weangnghts amaunts to Rabobank, its subsldianes and other companies
:": s it comsolidates, within the meaning of Section 3822 of Book
(AL Inimmatisnal BV 100% ey 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. These amounis do not nclude fees
Rabre Viitgstelgtentin MV, 100%% o foi financkal sratzmants dudis, otber audit engagensents, tax
Pt Bank M, oo oo cansultaney serices and other ran-audi tervices chasged by
e e i i other auditors and cther Ernit & Young business units
Ditreion V. ot oo
bty ek bk WY, L o
Rabo Merchant Bank WY, oo oo
Radrisenhypatherhinrs 5 1719 oo
‘CHr Burozona couniriss
ALE Loan Mansgement Limssd 100 ey
Horth Bmerics
Rabrhank Capital Funding LEC H 1 s w28 Remuneration of the Supervisory
Sahclynk ChnitalPumfing Trat MW . Lo Board and the Executive Board
Lniebi Armetica Heidngs e 100R oo
Annirales and Hew Eraland
Rk Rt s Lo T e In 1015, the rermuneration of membears and Emee members of
Rabetiank Hew Zealand Limied 100 ey ihe Exocutive Board amountod o 64 (2014: 630

P - Ferm——
in el e Teral sttt bty s Db Tatal
W, Dapiger a0 x5 FLF) L] i38
A, Eragink sy F 84 1 1,50
B Martte BS4 4 159 i 1,408
LERE naf n 171 4 Bo0e
. Hagel By L] m r Lo0%
I van Meruwentudien e n 185 L
Total 3015 141 4 1097 - 3 (%]
Toanl 2014 4992 1,302 - 4 - a1

Fios [hher nedes 1o the financial statements of Rabohank

At year-end 2015, there were a total of 11,647 DRNS cutstarding
with mermibers and fosmer mambers of the Duecutive Doard
tvear-and JO14; 12,133 pieces), The pension schame fed the
mermbers of the Executive Board |1 clastibed a4 o collectve
cetfimed contribution scheme As of § Januasy 2015, the
matimum Income on tha basis of which the membars of the
Executive Board can bulld up & pension amaounts to EUR 94600
Ay Income exceading this amount is not penskonakble. As of

1 Eanuary 2015, the members of the Executive Board theselone
fee ve an molivichiaal penaion contribulion
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[Expenses related to membsers and former members of the
Supervsony Board tatal 1.2 (2004: 161 This includes VAT

and ermployess contributions payable. 'n addition 1o the

e of Méamber of the Superviioty Boad of Rababank,

Thee rermuneration also depends on the rodes in the vanious
commetiest, Tha compaosition of thesa committees i detailed
in the Annual Report. The remuneration stociure for 2015
sl of VAT and ather charges) i

i Chaismn rnmnlﬂ Mesmite
Supen ey Boand A 1,500 6000
Aut Commities L0 15000 W00
etk Commitoes 12500 15,000 185,000
Apprahy Cammiiben 500 - 1500
Cooperative haues Commities N . 15,000
Appoistments Commirnes 1750 LT50
Retmunaratiss Com=riten 1750 : 1750

The tabla below shows the remuneration {exciud ng VAT and
oithar charges) for sndnvidsal mambers of the Supervisory Board.

in Mensan dhcf e Armmrratir
L, Dot 3
P Aascher Aok [
£, ~an Dalen (lemporanty vopped down on &-11-2015] e
LN, Degle (1]
5L Gamalur na
A van e Merss i
AL Teerbnk (Wce Charman s of 1-4-101 51 o
P, Werrman (in offoe until 7 March 2015] 7
AAAM Karrg L1
M. Trompetier (in office 25 of 13 Seplember 715 F
Totsd F015 T
Totsd 3014 pro v

Al Rabobank, the Chilman of the Supervisory Bodrd holds
a numoat of roded which ame related 10 the Coopetatise.
Theese rales are specified in the Annual Report.

v milan of eros

Eve v Poand
Loarvi, sdhyanioe and guaraniees Fl ] 2004
‘Dutstanding on | Jamisy oy 14
Proreicled curing e o [H] .
Parcheprrnd churing the yeat [LE ] 1t
Reducton on st of lerving offce - ([:F]
Tadreaie on s ousd of Laking elfice . 28
Gutstanding cn 11 Decambssr 41 am
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The loans, advances and guarantees of the membess of the
Execunive Board in office on 31 December 2015 and the averags
Intenest rates wene as follows:

i i ol e Fewmny e (e g
On 11 Decmmbser 1075

AL Deekoer 12 1]
2.1 Maimiim o a4
H., Magel 14 L]
1L it MierweEnr e 17 13

The lcans, advances and guarantees of the memben of the
Supervisory Board in office on 31 December JO§5 and the
average intesest rates wene s follows:

Dashfanging  Awerageinipresf

EE T foants T fin
01 11 Dbt 1015

AALM, Mg a ¥
WL Tromspesines e a3

Al year-end JO15, the members of 1he Supervisoty Board nod
st in the table had not received any loans, advances oo
guaianleds, Theie trantactions with members of the Executive
Hoard and Supervsory Board were completed in parsonon
the basis of employee teems and cond tions andor market
rales for the Supardsony Board, The rates depsnd inpart on
the currency, the agreed fived- Intaiest paiiod and the time the
ransaction was completed of the Bme & new fued-interest
1enm becomes effective,

Segpervesorp Beand
s Filll
s 5
" ol
1ok il
o .
-7 11
14 F
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Sevaral members of the Executive Board and Suparvisory
Board hawve invested in Rabobank Certficates m parson andior
thraugh theis cwm pension BY. AL year-end 2015, This invaled
iy erlal 40,950 Ceitilicales

N of
Pabesash Cambeane
Cm 38 Decembes 2015
A Brugyink (FAL
L. Asicherionk L]
LM Deyle: AT I ponon BY,
SILL. Ganalima D50  in peniion B
CH. v Dialn 142350

29 Approval of the Supervisory Board

The pubBcation of these inancial statements was appeoved
oy the Superisory Boaand on |7 Febuary 2016, The fnancial
statements will be presented to the Genen! Members Councll,
1o b held on 20 Ageil 2016, for adoption: Concerning the
adoption of the financial statements of Rabobank, the Articles
of Asiociaibon state- The reso'ution 1o adogpt the financial
SranEments will be pasied Dy an absolun rmajarity of he vones
validly cast by the General Members' Council”

Cn behalfl of the Executive Board
WL Dy, Chiwrman and CRO .

BL. Brouwers, CFO

i), Dekbker, Mernbar

L), Marttin, Member

H Magel, Member

JIL van Miewsanhuizen, Membaor

On behalf of the Supervisory Board
W Dekker, Chaliman

. Teerlink, Vice Choinman

IR Asscher-Monk, Secretdry

LM Degle

L1 Graafsma

AA LM Eamp

EAL van de Merwe

WL Trampattor

391 (nher noted fo the financal statements of Rahohank
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Other information

Statutory provisions

Prafit can be used urder an Executive Boara maolutkon 1o

pay disttibations on equity Prsesiments and distibutons on
additional tes 1 insramsents,

Thee remalnder of the profit |5 adoed 1o the genaral reserves
held by Rabobank, The Exacutive Board can also resolve to
imake payouts in the interim to holders of equety imestments
and the halders of additional ther 1 Instruments from the profit
anfor the sesult, While Rabobank still exiss, e reserves
cannal b ditributed 1o the membes, neithes b full, poin
jpart, The Executive Baard has the right 10 make a payaut from
the resarves on equity investments andfor additional tier 1
instruments. If tha decsion is taken 3t any tima to dissolve
ltabobank inonder to hawve its business

contmed by ancther \egal 2niity or Qnganisat, the 1eserves
willl B transforrod 10 sald othes kegal entity or crganisation.

297 Rabobank Amnssl Repon 2015
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Proposals regarding the appropriation of available
proft for Rabobank

Of the profit of 508, 1,196 15 payabie to the holders of Capital
Secwrites and Rababank Cerificmes in docardance with
Executive Board iesclutions. It i proposad that the remainder
of the profit be added 1o the genesal eserve heid by Rabobank,
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Events after the reporting date

After discussions beteesarn:

1. Cotperatieve Centrale Ralfielen-Boerenisennank BA,
Amutendam

L The coopetalive membier banks of Colparatiev Cantrale
Raiffefsen-Bosrentoendank A,

decided at the espective meetings of the membery’ councils
of the banks concernad (7 on I Decembser 2015 and at

e Gl Meseting of Codpetatiev Centrale RaiPeisen-
Hoeterlmenbank B A, on % Decomber 20015 1o ented into a ogal
memgerasef 1 lanuaty 2006

One of the consequences of the dechlons taken was that

the formar bank (1) recaned the assats of the banls referrad
1o {71 undes wiiversal itk and the banks refered to (2} ceased
10 eXI51,

Duting the alonememioned General Meating, the bank (1],

in cannection with the mergée, decided to change its name
1o Codperatiows Habobank LA as of 1 Januaey J016,

Uil 1 Janamsry 2016, each of the banks (3] was a UA)
{cooperative with limited llabilky whemeby the members are
ot Eable for army deficity Until that date. the bank (1) was a
BA (cooperative with Bmited labiling where the rambers are
Rbiles for the deficht ug 1o the level specified In the Articles of
Assoclation) with the banks as the only members (2], A% a result
of the merger the banks' members (1] became the only
members of the merpad bank (1) By changing the mambers
lubility regimie from BA. 1o LA in the bank's (1) Articles of
Asscciatbon U fsbilicy regimis remnamed die facio unchangped
for ther rmerrbess wiho were members of the banks (2) befone
the manger and members of the menged bank (1] after

Thi mengar.

297 Ewenils alter the ieponiiig date

The kegal mesger ncreased the assets by EUR 215 oillion, the
fiabilities by EUR 194 billion, and the equity by ELR 21 biflion
The most important (bems in the asssts and lsbilities are Loans
and advanced 1o cuitomers' dnd Tl 10 Customers,

The kocal Rabobanky assets and Eabilities ane included in the
singhe financazl statements as of | Famuary 7016 at the book
walue at which they were included In the consalidatad fnancial
staterments of Repobank Group, The legal merger ncieased the
singhe equity, with excegition 1o non-controlling intereats, to e
samie leved a1 that of the conolidated equity,
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Independent auditor's report

To: the general members’ council of Co6peratieve Rabobank U.A.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements 2015

Our opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements 2015 of Cotperatieve Rabobank U.A. (hereafter:
Rabobank), based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Rabobank as at 31 December 2015 and of its result and its cash flows for 2015 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code.

The consolidated financial statements comprise:

» The consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015;

» The following statements for 2015: consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows; and

» The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of Rabobank in accordance with the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.

Furthermore, we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Materiality
Materiality EUR 150 million
Benchmark used 5% of operating profit before tax (rounded)
Additional We have applied operating profit before tax as this benchmark is an importance metric for the
explanation financial performance of Rabobank.

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material
for the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the Supervisory Board that misstatements in earnings in excess of EUR 7.5 million, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be
reported on qualitative grounds.

Scope of the group audit
Rabobank is for financial reporting purposes head of a group of entities. The financial information of this group is
included in the consolidated financial statements of Rabobank.

Our group audit mainly focused on significant group entities in retail banking and wholesale banking globally as

well as on the leasing and real estate activities as well as on an associate in insurance activities. We have:

« used the work of other EY auditors when auditing entities outside the Netherlands, as well as the audit of the
real estate activities;

 used the work of other non-EY auditors when auditing the entities in Ireland, as well as the audit of the leasing
and insurance activities;

« performed audit procedures ourselves at the other group entities in scope.

All these entities represented 87% of the consolidated operating profit before taxation and 97% of total assets.
This provided us with the evidence we needed for our opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
remaining entities were considered to be immaterial.

For the in-scope components the group audit team instructed component auditors as to the significant areas to
be covered, including the significant risks identified for the consolidated financial statements and the information
to be reported back.

The group audit team allocated component materiality levels depending on the mix of size and risk profile of the
group across the components.

By performing the procedures mentioned above at group entities, together with additional procedures at group

level, we have been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence about the group’s financial
information to provide an opinion about the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the Supervisory Board. The key audit
matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Risk

Provision for loan losses (see note 4.4 and 11)
The provision for loan losses amount to EUR 8,372
million as at 31 December 2015.

The appropriateness of loan loss provisions is a key area
of judgment for management. The identification of loans
that are deteriorating, the assessment of objective
evidence for impairment, the value of collateral and the
determination of the recoverable amount are inherently
uncertain involving various assumptions and factors
including the financial condition of the counterparty,
expected future cash flows, observable market prices and
expected net selling prices. The use of different modelling
techniques and assumptions could produce significantly
different estimates of loan loss provisions. The
associated risk management disclosure is complex and
dependent on high quality data. Specific portfolios of
focus included the retail portfolio in the Netherlands, the
shipping portfolio and the commercial real estate
portfolio.

Given the impact of inherent uncertainty of the loan loss
provision and the subjectivity involved in the judgments
made, we considered this to be an important item for our
audit.

Our audit response

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls related to the timely
recognition and measurement of impairments for loan
losses, including the quality of underlying data and
systems. For loan loss provisions calculated on an
individual basis we examined a selection of individual
loan exposure in detail, and challenged management
assessment of the recoverable amount. We tested the
assumptions underlying the impairment identification and
quantification including forecasts of future cash flows,
valuation of underlying collateral and estimates of
recovery on default. This included taking into
consideration the impact of forbearance.

We applied professional judgment in selecting the loan
exposures for our detailed inspection with an emphasis
on exposures in sectors that pose an increased
uncertainty for recovery in the current market
circumstances, for example commercial real estate
exposures, retail exposures and exposures in the
shipping industry.

We tested, supported by our specialists, the sufficiency of
the underlying models, assumptions and data used by
Rabobank to measure loan loss impairments for portfolios
of loans with similar credit characteristics. Likewise we
have tested the models, assumptions and data used for
the collective impairment for incurred but not identified
loan losses, including the appropriateness of the
respective loss identification period that is used in these
models.

Finally, we assessed the completeness and accuracy of
the disclosures relating to loan loss provisions to assess
compliance with disclosure requirements included in EU-
IFRS.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (see note
4.9)

The financial instruments that are measured at fair value
are significant for the financial statements. At 31
December 2015, derivatives (both assets/liabilities),
trading positions, available for sale investments and
other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
amount to EUR 48,113/EUR 55,129 million, EUR 3,472
million, EUR 37,773 million and EUR 16,991 million
respectively.

For financial instruments that are actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are available, there is high
objectivity in the determination of fair values (‘level 1
valuation’). Regarding ‘level 3’ assets, observable market
prices or market parameters are not available. As a result
the fair value is subject to estimation uncertainty as
significant judgment is applied to estimate fair value.
Regarding ‘level 2’ assets, observable market prices or
market parameters are available as inputs for valuation
models that are used to determine the fair values.

Given the judgment applied in the estimation of the fair
values, we determined this to be a significant item for our
audit.

Risk

Other provisions (see note 4.10, 23 and 24)

At 31 December 2015, provisions amount to EUR 993
million.

Other provisions are accrued for regarding restructurings,
uncertainties associated with legal, tax and compliance
risks. IFRS provide specific criteria determining the point
in time other provisions must be accrued for.
Assessments are made both on likelihood of certain risks
and the possibility to estimate the amounts involved.
Especially the outcome of legal procedures might be very
difficult to predict. Procedures have been developed to
cope with the uncertainties, including involvement of
internal and external experts.

Nevertheless, judgments regarding other provisions
inherently are (highly) uncertain and best estimates
regarding other provisions might change over time.

Given the uncertainty of provisions and the
unpredictability of final outcomes, we determined this to
be a significant item for our audit.
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We have tested the level 1 fair valuations by comparing
the fair values applied by Rabobank with publicly
available market data. For level 2 and level 3 valuations
we tested the appropriateness of the models used by
Rabobank and the reliability of the data that was used as
input to these models.

We assessed the design and operating effectiveness of
the internal controls over valuation and performed
independently price verification and model approval. We
performed additional procedures for areas of higher risk
and estimation with the assistance of our valuation
specialists.

This included, where relevant, comparison of judgments
made to current and emerging market practice and
reperformance of valuations on a sample basis.

We also assessed the impact of other sources of fair
value information including gains or losses on disposal.
Besides we assessed the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls over related disclosures
including the disclosure of valuation sensitivity and fair
value hierarchy.

Finally, we assessed the completeness and accuracy of
the disclosures relating to fair values of financial assets
and liabilities to assess compliance with disclosure
requirements included in EU-IFRS.

Our audit response

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls related to the timely
recognition and measurement of other provisions. We
included (tax) specialists in our team to assess risks and
audit the proper application of IFRS.

Judgments were discussed with management and
challenged based on internal and/ or external information
available. We assessed the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls over related disclosures.
Finally, we assessed the completeness and accuracy of
the disclosures relating to other provisions to assess
compliance with disclosure requirements included in EU-
IFRS.
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Reliability and continuity of electronic data processing
Rabobank Group is dependent on the IT-infrastructure We tested IT- security, change management and
for the continuity of their business processes. Rabobank  application controls embedded in Rabobank’s key
Group invested in the improvement of IT-hardware, processes. We assessed the reliability and continuity of
systems and processes, focused on the increased electronic data processing only to the extent necessary
effectiveness of the IT-infrastructure and the reliability within the scope of the audit of the annual accounts. We
and continuity of electronic data processing. included IT-auditors in our audit-team. Our work

consisted of assessing the developments in the IT-
infrastructure and analysing the impact on the
ITorganisation. Additionally, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of relevant internal controls
related to IT- systems and processes.

Consolidated financial statements as part of the (complete) financial statements

The (complete) financial statements of Rabobank 2015 include the ‘Consolidated financial statements 2015
Rabobank Group’ and the ‘Financial statements 2015 Rabobank’. For a proper understanding of the financial
position and result the consolidated financial statements must be considered in connection with the company
financial statements.

On 17 February 2016 we issued a separate auditor's report on the company financial statements.

Responsibilities of management and the Supervisory Board for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the
management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Furthermore, management is responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned,
management should prepare the consolidated financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate Rabobank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on
Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern in the consolidated financial statements.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing Rabobank’s financial reporting process.
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not have
detected all errors and fraud.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures
and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in
accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our audit
included e.g.:

« ldentifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

» Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Rabobank’s internal control.

» Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause Rabobank ceasing to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures.

 Evaluating whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing, supervising and
performing the group audit. In this respect we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures to
be carried out for group entities. Decisive were the size and/or the risk profile of the group entities or operations.
On this basis, we selected group entities for which an audit or review had to be carried out on the complete set of
financial information or specific items.
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We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Supervisory Board, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, when not communicating the matter is in
the public interest.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the management board report and the other information

Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our obligation to report

about the management board report and other information):

« We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the management board report, to the
extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and
whether the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been annexed.

» We report that the management board report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial
statements.

Engagement
We were engaged as auditor of CoOperatieve Rabobank U.A. as of the audit for the year 1972 and have
operated as statutory auditor ever since that date.

Amsterdam, 17 February 2016

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by C.B. Boogaart
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Independent auditor's report

To: the general members’ council of Co6peratieve Rabobank U.A.

Report on the audit of the company financial statements 2015

Our opinion

We have audited the company financial statements 2015 of Codperatieve Rabobank U.A. (hereafter: Rabobank),
based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Rabobank as
at 31 December 2015 and of its result for 2015 in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The company financial statements comprise:

« The company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015;

e The company statement of income for 2015; and

» The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Our responsibilities for the audit of the
company financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of Rabobank in accordance with the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore, we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Materiality

Materiality EUR 150 million

Benchmark used 5% of operating profit before tax (rounded) as presented in the consolidated financial
statements

Additional We have applied operating profit before tax as this benchmark is an importance metric for the

explanation financial performance of Rabobank

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material
for the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the Supervisory Board that misstatements in earnings in excess of EUR 7,5 million, which are

identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be
reported on qualitative grounds.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the Supervisory Board. The key audit
matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Risk

Provision for loan losses (see chapter 4.4 and note 4)
The appropriateness of loan loss provisions is a key area
of judgment for management.

The identification of loans that are deteriorating, the
assessment of objective evidence for impairment, the
value of collateral and the determination of the
recoverable amount are inherently uncertain involving
various assumptions and factors including the financial
condition of the counterparty, expected future cash flows,

observable market prices and expected net selling prices.

The use of different modelling techniques and
assumptions could produce significantly different
estimates of loan loss provisions. The associated risk
management disclosure is complex and dependent on
high quality data. Specific portfolios of focus included the
retail portfolio in the Netherlands, the shipping portfolio
and the commercial real estate portfolio.

Given the impact of inherent uncertainty of the loan loss
provision and the subjectivity involved in the judgments
made, we considered this to be an important item for our
audit.

Our audit response

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls related to the timely
recognition and measurement of impairments for loan
losses, including the quality of underlying data and
systems. For loan loss provisions calculated on an
individual basis we examined a selection of individual
loan exposure in detail, and challenged management
assessment of the recoverable amount. We tested the
assumptions underlying the impairment identification and
quantification including forecasts of future cash flows,
valuation of underlying collateral and estimates of
recovery on default. This included taking into
consideration the impact of forbearance. We applied
professional judgment in selecting the loan exposures for
our detailed inspection with an emphasis on exposures in
sectors that pose an increased uncertainty for recovery in
the current market circumstances, for example
commercial real estate exposures, retail exposures and
exposures in the shipping industry.

We tested, supported by our specialists, the sufficiency of
the underlying models, assumptions and data used by
Rabobank to measure loan loss impairments for portfolios
of loans with similar credit characteristics.

Likewise we have tested the models, assumptions and
data used for the collective impairment for incurred but
not identified loan losses, including the appropriateness
of the respective loss identification period that is used in
these models.

Finally, we assessed the completeness and accuracy of
the disclosures relating to loan loss provisions to assess
compliance with disclosure requirements included in EU-
IFRS.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (see chapter
2.4 and 2.5)

For financial instruments that are actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are available, there is high
objectivity in the determination of fair values (‘level 1
valuation’). Regarding ‘level 3’ assets, observable market
prices or market parameters are not available. As a result
the fair value is subject to estimation uncertainty as
significant judgment is applied to estimate fair value.
Regarding ‘level 2’ assets, observable market prices or
market parameters are available as inputs for valuation
models that are used to determine the fair values.

Given the judgment applied in the estimation of the fair
values, we determined this to be a significant item for our
audit.

Other provisions (see chapter 4.9 and note 18)

Other provisions are accrued for regarding restructurings,
uncertainties associated with legal, tax and compliance
risks. IFRS provide specific criteria determining the point
in time other provisions must be accrued for.
Assessments are made both on likelihood of certain risks
and the possibility to estimate the amounts involved.
Especially the outcome of legal procedures might be very
difficult to predict. Procedures have been developed to
cope with the uncertainties, including involvement of
internal and external experts. Nevertheless, judgments
regarding other provisions inherently are (highly)
uncertain and best estimates regarding other provisions
might change over time.

Given the uncertainty of provisions and the
unpredictability of final outcomes, we determined this to
be a significant item for our audit.

Reliability and continuity of electronic data processing
Rabobank Group is dependent on the IT-infrastructure
for the continuity of their business processes. Rabobank
Group invested in the improvement of IThardware,
systems and processes, focused on the increased
effectiveness of the IT-infrastructure and the reliability
and continuity of electronic data processing.
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We have tested the level 1 fair valuations by comparing
the fair values applied by Rabobank with publicly
available market data. For level 2 and level 3 valuations
we tested the appropriateness of the models used by
Rabobank and the reliability of the data that was used as
input to these models.

We assessed the design and operating effectiveness of
the internal controls over valuation and performed
independently price verification and model approval. We
performed additional procedures for areas of higher risk
and estimation with the assistance of our valuation
specialists.

This included, where relevant, comparison of judgments
made to current and emerging market practice and
reperformance of valuations on a sample basis. We also
assessed the impact of other sources of fair value
information including gains or losses on disposal. Besides
we assessed the design and operating effectiveness of
the controls over related disclosures including the
disclosure of valuation sensitivity and fair value
hierarchy.

Finally, we assessed the completeness and accuracy of
the disclosures relating to fair values of financial assets
and liabilities to assess compliance with disclosure
requirements included in EU-IFRS.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls related to the timely
recognition and measurement of other provisions. We
included (tax) specialists in our team to assess risks and
audit the proper application of IFRS. Judgments were
discussed with management and challenged based on
internal and/or external information available. We
assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the
controls over related disclosures. Finally, we assessed
the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures
relating to other

provisions to assess compliance with disclosure
requirements included in EU-IFRS.

We tested IT- security, change management and
application controls embedded in Rabobank’s key
processes. We assessed the reliability and continuity of
electronic data processing only to the extent necessary
within the scope of the audit of the annual accounts. We
included IT-auditors in our audit-team. Our work
consisted of assessing the developments in the IT-
infrastructure and analysing the impact on the IT-
organisation. Additionally, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of relevant internal controls
related to IT- systems and processes.
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Company financial statements as part of the (complete) financial statements

The (complete) financial statements of Rabobank 2015 include the ‘Consolidated financial statements 2015
Rabobank Group’ and the ‘Financial statements 2015 Rabobank’. For a proper understanding of the financial
position and result the company financial statements must be considered in connection with the consolidated
financial statements. On 17 February 2016 we issued a separate auditor's report on the consolidated financial
statements.

Responsibilities of management and the Supervisory Board for the company financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the company financial statements in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the management board
report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the company financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the company financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework mentioned,
management should prepare the company financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate Rabobank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on
Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern in the company financial statements.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing Rabobank’s financial reporting process.
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the company financial statements
Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not have
detected all errors and fraud.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these company financial statements.

The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of
identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in

accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and

independence requirements. Our audit included e.g.:

« Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the company financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Rabobank’s internal control.

 Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on Rabobank’s ability to continue as a going concern.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the

related disclosures in the company financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause Rabobank ceasing to continue as a going concern.

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the company financial statements, including the

disclosures.

Evaluating whether the company financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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We provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Supervisory Board, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the company financial statements of the current

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, when not
communicating the matter is in the public interest.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the management board report and the other information

Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our obligation to report

about the management board report and other information):

* We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the management board report, to the
extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and
whether the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been annexed.

» We report that the management board report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial
statements.

Engagement
We were engaged as auditor of CoOperatieve Rabobank U.A. as of the audit for the year 1972 and have
operated as statutory auditor ever since that date.

Amsterdam, 17 February 2016

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by C.B. Boogaart
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